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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Shareholders of
ACCIONA, S.A.,

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Acciona, S.A. (the Parent) and
Subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the year then ended.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s directors are responsible for preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements
so that they present fairly the consolidated equity, consolidated financial position and consolidated
results of Acciona, S.A. and Subsidiaries in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and the other provisions of the regulatory financial
reporting framework applicable to the Group in Spain and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain. Those
regulations require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the preparation by the Parent’s directors of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Deloitte, S.L. Inscrita en el Registro Mercantil de Madrid, tomo 13.650, seccion 82, folio 188, hoja M-54414, inscripcion 962. C.I.F.: B-79104469
Domicilio social: Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1, Torre Picasso, 28020, Madrid.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated equity and consolidated financial position of Acciona, S.A. and Subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and their consolidated results and their consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union and the other provisions of the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Group
in Spain.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The accompanying consolidated directors’ report for 2015 contains the explanations which the Parent’s
directors consider appropriate about the situation of Acciona, S.A. and Subsidiaries, the evolution of
their business and other matters, but is not an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. We
have checked that the accounting information in the consolidated directors’ report is consistent with that
contained in the consolidated financial statements for 2015. Our work as auditors was confined to
checking the consolidated directors’ report with the aforementioned scope, and did not include a review
of any information other than that drawn from the accounting records of Acciona, S.A. and
Subsidiaries.

DELOITTE, S.L.
Registered in ROAC under no. S0692

29 February 2016
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ACCIONA, 8.A. Y SOCIEDADES DEPENDIENTES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET FOR FINANCIAL YEARS 2815 and 2014 (Tuousands of eurss)

ASSETS Note 31122015 31122014 |
Property, plant and equipment 4 7,664,187 8,012,540 |
Investment property 5 675,215 180,851 ‘
Goodwill 6 79,296 79,295
Other intangible assets 7 508,484 532,431
Non-current financial assets 10 160,045 155,734
Investments accounted for using the equity method 8 409,114 390,150 |
Biological assets Il 6,839 6,836
Deferred tax assets 22 926,764 976,874
Non-current receivables and other non-current assets 12 455,002 436,710
NON-CURRENT ASSEIS 10,884,946 10,771,421
Biological assets -

I Inventories 13 740,102 1,042,644

. Trade and other receivables 14 1,612,418 1,940,034

i Other current financial assets 10 412,863 369,107

! Current income tax assets 68,298 75,928

| Other current assets 167,756 205,097

' Cash and cash equivalents 15 1,460,173 1,326,812

| Non-current assets classified as held for sale and discontinued operations 23 431,061 412,137 |
CURRENT ASSETS i i ¢ 4,892,671 5371,759
TOTAL ASSETS 15,777.617 16,143,180

l EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note 31.12.2015 31.12,2014 |

! Share capital 57.260 57,260

" Retained earnings and issue premium 3,544 231 3376,948
Treasury shares (20,238) (28,895)
Translation differences (87,968) (25,264)
Interim dividend - -
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent 16 3,493,285 3,380,049

, Non-controlling interests 16 260,860 233,438
EQUITY 3,754,545 3,613,487

i Debt instruments and other marketable securities 18 802,078 758,773

! Bank borrowings 18 5,002,945 5,159,159

IE Deferred tax liabilities 22 739,686 692794

t Provisions 17 420,245 453,588
Other non-current liabilities 21 848,247 854292
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,903,201 7,918.606
Debt instruments and other marketable s¢curitics 18 373,801 440,436
Bank borrowings 18 763,340 631,381
Trade and other payables 2,024 533 2,558,228
Provisions 157,154 177,307
Current income tax liabilities 25,784 19,190
Other current liabilities 21 355,593 463,126
Liabilities classified as held for sale and discontinued operations 23 420,066 321,419
CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,120,271 4,611.087
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,777,617 16,143,180

Accompanying Notes | to 36 and the appendices are an integral part of the consolidated balance sheet for 2015,
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ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS FOR 2015 and 2614
(Thousands pf eures)
Nete 2015 2014
Revenue 25 6,543,524 6,498,501
Other income 247,425 363,979
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress (2,775) (7.461)
Procurements 26 (1,830,221) (1,853,678)
Staff costs 26 (1,254,250) (1,275,310}
Other operating expenses 26 (2,529,621) (2,638,992)
Depreciation and amortisation charge and change in provisions 45,726 (563,118) (547,118)
Impairment and gains or losses on disposals of non-current assets 26 {11,436) 32,369
Other gains or losses 27,391 (326)
PROFIT/(L.0SS) FROM OPERATIONS 626,919 571,964
Financial income 28 34,844 50,256
Finance costs 28 (424 425) (418,557)
Translation differences 22,771 5,226
Profit/(loss) from changes in value of financial instruments at fair vaiue 26 {1,580) 21,960
Profit/(loss) ftom changes in value of non-financial assets at fair value - -
Profit/(loss) of companies accounted for using the equity method 8 60,054 46,248
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 318,583 277,097
Income tax expense 22 (82,824) (69.905)
YEAR’S PROFIT/(L.OSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 235,759 207,192 |
| Profit/(Loss} after tax from discontinued operations a g [
[ YEAR’S PROFIT/(LOSS) 235,759 207,192 |
| Non-controlling interests 16 (28,435) (22,243) I
| PROFIT/LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PARENT 207,324 184,949 ]
l BASIC EARNINGS per share from continuing operations (euros) 31 3.65 324 ]
< o | DILUTED EARNINGS per share from cohtinuing operitmns (eﬁms) ] | 3$3 328 ]
Led Tl _
G [ BASIC EARNINGS per share (euros) 31 365 324 |
==
& | DILUTED EARNINGS per share (curos) 31 363 328 |
63 3
i g Accompanying Notes 1 to 36 and the appendices are an integral part of the consolidated income statement for 2013,
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ERE TTHOET
2y @ 0
N I e
tr of
TE =
-

(it




TRANSLATION

ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT CGF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 2015 and 2014

{Thousands of eurgs)
i Note 'I 2815 2014 I
A) CONSOLIDATED PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 235,759 207,192
1. Profit attributable to the Parent 207,324 184,949 |
| 2. Non-controlling interests 28,435 22,243 |
| B) ITEMS THAT W I.LL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO THE 433 (1.193)
INCOME STATEMENT
1. Revaluation/(Reversal of the revaluation) of property, plant and - o
equipment and intangible assets
© 2. Actuarial gains and losses and other adjustments 17 462 (1,351)
| 3. Tax effect 29 158
g'} }\!rEE}D:ISE'LI;AT MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO I'HE INCOME 11,689 (69,381)
i Income and expense recognised directly in equity {110,811} (143,335)
[ 1. Revaluation of financial instruments: (40) 5467
a) Available-for-sale financial assets 10 40y 5,467
b) Other income / (expenses) - -
2. Cash flow hedges 20 (75,193)  (243287)
3. Translation differences (72,513) 74,234
4. Other income and expenses recognised directly in equity - -
5. Tax effect 36,937 20,251
Transfers to the income statement;: 122,500 73,954
1. Revaluation of financial instruments: - (27,275)
a) Available-for-sale financial assets - (27,275)
b} Other income / (expenses) - -
2, Cash flow hedges 20 163,333 120,949
3. Translation differences - 11,974
4. Other income and expenses recognised directly in equity - -
3. Tax effect (40,833) (31,694) :
TOTAL RECOGNISED INCOME / (EXPENSE) (A+B+C) 247,881 136,618
a) Attributable to the Parent 207.532 100,728
b) Attributable to non-controlling interests 40,349 35,890 |

Accompanying Notes 1 to 36 and the appendices are an integral part of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for 2015
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ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

—

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FOTAL EQUITY AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 (thousands of eures)

Equity attributable to the Parent {fhrousands of enros)
Shareholders® equity

1S TT255R D LA CUESTA BERNALDEZ

Share Year’s
premium, profit Other
reserves and attributed equity Value Nos-
Share interim Treasury 19 the instru- adjust- controlling Total
eapital dividend shares Pavegt oG ments interesy ey |

‘?ll’,;'l';l“g LIl 57260 3620894  (28,895) 184,949 ~  (454,159) 133438 3613487
Adjustments due to changes

in accounting policies -
Adjustments due to errors =
Adjusted opcning balance 57,260 3,620,894 (28,895) 184,949 - (454,159) 233,438 3,613,487
Total recognised

income/(expense) 207,324 208 40,349 247,881
Transactions with

shareholders or owners (103,423) 5800 (3,706) (101,329}
Capital

increases/{reductions) BI6I2 3,612
Conversion of financial

liabilities into equity -
Dividends paid (114.483) (11,851) (126,334)
Treasury share transactions

(net) 4,715 5,800 10,515
Increases/(Decreases) due to

business combinations 4,533 4,533
Other transactions with

shareholders or owners g2 6345
Other changes in equity 185,419 2,857 (184,949) (9,221) (5,894)
Share-based payments 909 2.857 3,766
Transfers between equity

~Thems 184,949 (184,949) --

Other changes (439) {9,221) (9,660)
b ol 57260 3,702,890  (20238) 207324 ~  (@53951) 260860 3,754,145

ste Jurada de INGLES

N2661

Traduoivra-intérpr

Accompanying Notes 1 to 36 and the appendices are an integral part of the consolidated statement of changes in total equity for 2015.
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ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIIMARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY AT 31 DECEMBER 2814 (thounsands of euros)

Equity attributable to the Parens (thonsands ef eurgs)

Sharcholders' equity
Share Year'’s
premicm, profit Other
reserves and attributed equity Value Noan-
Share interim Treasnry to the instru- adjust- controfing Total
capital dividend shares Parent ments ments inferests equity
b e 57260 5521448 6A61) (1972371 ~  (369.938) 166348 3396286
Adjustments due to changes -
in accounting policies
Adjustments due to errors =
Adjusted opening balance 57,260 5,521,448 (6,461) (1,972,371) - (369,938) 166,348 3,396,286
| Vol prereise 184,949 (84.221) 35,890 136,618
income/(expense)
Transactions with _ 70,920 (25.774) 22,718 67,864
shareholders or owners
Capital
increases/(reductions) 13,117 13.117
Conversion of financial
liabilities into equity 37.405 37405
| Dividends paid (12,275) (12,275}
'(l;:':ta)sury share transactions - . @25.774) (25.774)
lnct:easesf(Dec.rcas_es) due to 1,086 1,086
! business combinations
| Other transactions with : o
! shareholders or owners 310 20.5u 54,305
Other changes in equity - {1,971474) 3,340 1,972,371 - - 8,482 12,719
Share-based payments 1,136 3,340 4476 |
| Transfers between equity (1972371 1972371 2
items
Other changes (239) 8,482 8,243 |
g;nls;l;lg"balance at 57,260 3,620,894 (28,895) 184,949 - (454,139) 233,438 3,613,487 |

Accompanying Notes 1 to 36 and the appendices are an integral part of the consolidated statement of changes m total equity for 2014.
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ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR 2015 and 2014 {Thousands of emros)
| 2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 682,953 809,993
Profit before tax from continuing operations 318,583 277,007
Adjustments for: 747,372 700,094
Depreciation and amortisation charge and provisicns 586,920 526,907
Other adjustments to profit (net) 160,452 173,187
Changes in working capital (35,845) 217310
Other cash flows from operating activities: (347,157 (384,508)
Interest paid (418,041) (404,777
Interest received Do 47,816
Dividend received 25586 18,166
Income tax recovered/{paid) (43,507) (20,561)
Other amounts received/{paid) relating to operating activities G681 (25,152)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (167.251) (151,480)
Payments due to investment: (234,658) (444,231)
Group compenies, associates and business units (28,539) (24,089)
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property {206,119) (420,142)
Proceeds from disposal: 62,475 333,622
(Group companies, associates and business units 3,370 217,170
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property 59,105 116,452
Other cash flows from investing activities: 4,932 (40,871)
Other amounts received/(paid) relating to investing activities L (40,871)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (358,424) (507,088)
Proceeds and {payments) relating to equity instruments: 10,516 (25,774)
Purchases (42,747) (25,774)
Disposals 53,263 -
Proceeds and (payments) relating to financial liability instruments: (171,546) (812,314)
Proceeds from issues 614,305 1,446,569
] m & Repayments and redemptions (785,851) (2,258.,883)
Y 2 Dividends and returns on other equity instruments paid (126,334) (12,275)
,&" % Other cash flows from financing activities (71,060) 343275
% '; Provision of funds by non-controliing interests = 397.318
@ ’g Other amounts received/(paid) relating to financing activities (71,060) (54,043)
“3
= ]
v EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES (Al 11,819
EiA
= 28 ‘ ‘ 133,361
"'-;f ) % NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 163,244
«f 2.
ik CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1326512 1,163,568
- s CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,460,173 1326812
£ 8
:1: L: COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
é:j ‘43 Cash on hand and at banks 1,028,293 1,104,362
W o i Other financial assets 431,880 222,450
:'-95'- = TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR £.460,173 1,326 312

Accompanying Notes 1 to 36 and the appendices are an integral part of the consolidated statement of cash flows for 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 OF ACCIONA, S.A. AND
SUBSIDIARIES
(Consolidated Group)

1.- Group activities

Acciona, S.A. (“the Parent” or “the Company”) and its subsidiaries make up the Acciona Group
(“Acciona” or “the Group™). Acciona, S.A.’s registered office and headquarters are in Alcobendas
(Madrid) at Avenida de Europa 18.

The Acciona Group companies operate in several sectors of economic activity, including most
notably:

Acciona Energy: including the various industrial and commercial activities of the electricity
business, ranging from the construction of wind farms to the generation, distribution and retailing
of various energy sources.

- Acciona Infrastructure Construction: including mainly construction and engineering activities and
transport and hospital concessions.

Acciona Water: including the activities relating to the construction of desalination plants, water
treatment plants and drinking water stations as well as the management of the entire water cycle,
an activity that covers from the initial harnessing of the water, its treatment, including
desalination, to its cleansing and return to the environment after use. It also operates concessions
for services related to the ENTIRE water cycle.

- Acciona Service: including the activities of facility services, airport handling services, waste
collection and treatment, and logistics services, among others.

- Other Activities: businesses relating to fund management and stock market brokerage, wine
production, as well as the activities of the Acciona Trasmediterrinea subgroup, and other
investments.

Note 27 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, “Segment Reporting”, includes
detailed information about the assets, liabilities and transactions carried out in each of the above
business divisions making up the Acciona Group.

2. Basis of presentation of the consolidated financial statements and consolidation
principles

2.1 Basis of presentation and significant regulatory frameworks

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements for financial year 2015 of the Acciona Group were prepared by
the Directors of Acciona, S.A. at the Board of Directors Meeting held on 29 February 2016, and
disclose a true and fair view of the Group’s consolidated equity and consolidated financial position at
31 December 2015, and the consolidated results of its operations, the changes in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the changes in the consolidated equity and the consolidated cash
flows in the years then ended.

10




TRANSLATION

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting
framework applicable to the Group and, in particular, with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union, in conformity with Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the
European Parliament and of the Council. The main mandatory accounting principles and measurement
criteria applied, the alternative treatments permitted by the relevant legislation in this respect and the
standards and interpretations issued but not yet in force at the date of formal preparation of these

financial statements are summarised in Note 3.

These financial statements were prepared on the basis of the accounting records kept by the Parent and
by the other Group companies. These records include the figures relating to the joint ventures,
groupings and consortia considered to be joint ventures, in which the Group companies have interests,
through the proportional consolidation method, that is, through the inclusion, based on the percentage
of participation, of the assets, liabilities and operations of these entities, after asset and liability
balances are appropriately eliminated, as well as operations in the year.

The Acciona Group’s consolidated financial statements for 2014 were approved by the shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting on 11 June 2015. The consolidated financial statements for 2015 of the
Acciona Group and the separate financial statements for 2015 of the companies making up the Group
have not yet been approved by the shareholders at their respective Annual General Meetings.
However, the Parent’s Board of Directors considers that the aforementioned financial statements will

be approved without any material changes.

Unless otherwise indicated, these consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
euros, because the euro is the functional currency of the principal economic area in which the Acciona
Group operates. Foreign operations are accounted for in accordance with the policies established in

Notes 2.2.g) and 3.2.q).

Significant regulatory framework

The business of electricity production under the special regime in Spain was regulated until 2013 by
Spanish Electricity Industry Act 54/1997, of 27 November, and by the subsequent implementing

regulations.

In addition, most of the Group’s electricity production facilities in Spain are governed, as far as the
remuneration framework for the support of renewable energy sources is concerned, by the special
regime provided for in Royal Decree 661/2007, of 25 May, which regulated electricity production

»
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der the special regime.

Transitional Provision One of Royal Decree 661/2007 acknowledged the right of wind generated
power facilities, inter alia, with start-up certificates pre-dating 1 January 2008, to continue to receive
the premiums and incentives existing under the previous regime (Royal Decree 436/2004, of 12
March) until 31 December 2012, before transitioning into the new system. The facilities owned by the
Group’s subsidiaries that commenced operations prior to that date availed themselves of the
aforementioned Transitional Provision. For all the facilities that came into service after 1 January 2008
caps and floors were set for the aggregate price (market price plus premium) applicable to power sales
in the market, or a regulated fixed tariff was established.

Royal Decree 6/2009, of 30 April, introduced the facility pre-assignment system for entitlement to the
system of special regime premiums defined in the Spanish Electricity Industry Act until the targets set
in the Renewable Energy Plan for 2020 had been met, The facilities that, at the date of publication of
the Royal Decree-Law, met the pre-assignment conditions established therein, would be entitled to the

premiums and tariffs provided for in Royal Decree 661/2007.

Royal Decree 1614/2010 was approved on 7 December 2010. The purpose of this legislation was to
modify and regulate matters relating to the production of electricity using solar thermal and wind

11




TRANSLATION

energy technologies, with the aim of containing the deficit. This Royal Decrec established a limit on
the equivalent hours of operation with entitlement to a premium for solar thermal and wind
technologies, the obligation to sell electricity at the regulated tariff for the solar thermal sector for the
twelve months following the entry into force of the Royal Decree or following the start-up of the
related facility if at a later date, and a 35% reduction in the premiums for wind technology subject to
Royal Decree 661/2007 and for the period from the date of approval of the Royal Decree to 31
December 2012, while maintaining the amounts relating to the cap, floor and regulated tariff
unchanged.

The reduction in the premiums established by the aforesaid Royal Decree hardly affected the Group’s
farms, since most of them had start-up certificates pre-dating 1 January 2008 and they availed
themselves of the aforementioned Transitional Provision of Royal Decree 661/2007. The remainder of
the facilities sold their energy under the regulated tariff regime. Also, the limits placed on operating
hours had little impact on the Group’s facilities, since the number of hours established in the Royal
Decree exceeded the hours that the facilities actually operated.

On 28 January 2012, Royal Decree-Law 1/2012 was published in the Spanish Central Government
Gazette and it came into force on that same date, giving rise to the suspension of remuneration
pre-assignment procedures and the removal of economic incentives for new electricity production
facilities which use combined heat and power, renewable energy sources and waste. Royal Decree-
Law 1/2012 affected, inter alia, facilities under the special regime that at 28 January 2012 had not
been registered in the Pre-assignment Register. Since the Group’s facilities had been registered in the
aforementioned Register before 28 January 2012, this Royal Decree did not have any effect on the
profitability and recoverability of the carrying amounts of the Group’s facilities.

In addition, 28 December 2012 saw the publication of Act 15/2012 on tax measures aimed at energy
sustainability, which affected all electricity production facilities in Spain from 2013 onwards. All of
Acciona’s facilities became subject to the tax on the value of electricity output, which means 7% tax
on income from electricity sales. On the other hand, the aforementioned Act also introduced a charge
for the use of inland water for electricity production. This charge meant 22% tax on the economic
value of electricity output, with a 90% reduction in the tax for facilitics with a capacity lower than 50
MW and pumped storage power plants. Lastly, Act 15/2012 also established a dual tax on solar
thermal plants: on the one hand, the Act eliminated the premium for power produced using fossil fuels
and, on the other, it introduced a tax of 0.65 euros per GJ of gas consumed.

Until 31 December 2012, practically all the facilities owned by the companies in the Group operating
on the Spanish market were doing so under the free market regime by selling their energy to the pool
through Acciona Green Energy Development, S.L., one of the Group companies. As will be seen
below, from financial year 2013 on, the first transitional provision of Royal Decree 661/2007 is no
longer applicable due to the remuneration changes that took place in said financial year for the
facilities previously covered by it.

Royal Decree Law 2/2013 of 1 February on urgent measures in the electricity sector was approved in
2013. This RDL, in force from 1 January 2013, sets the premiums for all technologies at zero value
and eliminates the caps and floors for the market sale option, with the option for tariff-based sales
being maintained. It also modified the annual coefficient for updating these tariffs, referencing it to
core inflation instead of the Consumer Price Index (CPI).

This RDL established that the registered holders of facilities had to opt for selling the electricity under
the regulated tariff option or selling it freely on the market without receiving any premium. Once an
option is made, it is irrevocable.

For practical purposes, this RDL meant that the Acciona Group’s wind farms and thermoelectric or
biomass power stations had to choose the fixed tariff sale option from 2013 on. The hydroelectric
power stations in the Special Regime were already selling at the tariff prior to the publication of this
RDL.,
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In addition, on 12 July Royal Decree-Law 9/2013 was published, whereby urgent measures to
guarantec the financial stability of the electricity system were adopted. This Royal Decree, which
came into force on 13 July 2013, repealed, among others, Royal Decree 661/2007, of 25 May, and
Royal Decree 6/2009, of 30 April, the decrces governing, as described in the paragraphs above, the
remuneration framework supporting renewable energies for most of the Acciona Group’s power
generation facilities located in Spain. This RDL introduced substantial changes in the applicable legal
and economic framework.

This new regulation means that, in addition to the remuneration for the sale of electricity generated
valued at market prices, facilities could receive a specific remuneration comprising a term per unit of
power installed, covering, where appropriate, the investment costs for a standard facility that cannot be
recovered through electricity sales and an operating term that covers, where applicable, the difference
between operating costs and the revenue from that standard facility’s participation on the market.

To calculate this specific remuneration, the following items, for a standard facility, are considered,
throughout its regulatory lifetime and with respect to activities conducted by an efficient and well-
managed company: -

a) The standard revenue from the sale of the energy generated valued at the market production price.
b) Standard operating costs.
¢) The standard value of the initial investment.

According to the regulation, the aim of these parameters is not to exceed the minimum level necessary
to cover the costs that enable the facilities to compete on a level footing with the rest of the
technologies on the market and make it possible to obtain a reasonable return. With regard to this
reasonable return, the Royal Decree-Law indicates that this will be similar, before tax, to the mean
return from ten-year Government Bonds on the secondary market after application of the appropriate
differential. The First Additional Provision of Royal Decree-Law 9/2013 sets this appropriate
differential at 300 basic points for facilities under the premium-based regime, all without prejudice to
a possible review every six years.

RDL 9/2013 came into force on 14 July 2013. Its regulation was still pending approval at the close of
financial year 2013, with a draft Ministerial Order containing the parameters for remuneration.
Pursuant to this document, at 31 December 2013 the Group estimated and re-appraised its revenue,

impairment tests and other aggregate figures, posting the resulting impairments according to the new
model.

Moreover, it should be noted that Act 24/2013 was enacted in December 2013 to replace Act 54/1997
on the Electricity Industry; it provides the overall legal framework for the new model, eliminating the
concept of the special regime and creating that of the specific remuneration and also establishing the
criterion for defining the “reasonable return” for facilities.

Royal Decree 413/2014 was enacted on 6 June 2014 and published in the Central Government Gazette
on 10 June 2014, to regulate the activities of electricity generation from renewable energy sources, co-
generation and waste. As a follow-up to the same, final Ministerial Order IET 1045/2014 was issued
on 20 June 2014 and published in the Central Government Gazette on 29 June 2014. This Order
contained the final remuneration parameters applicable to all renewable energy facilities, whether
already in existence or planned for the future. The new model defines the remuneration of assets
applicable from 14 July 2013 as a consequence of RDL 9/2013. Both the structure of the remuneration
model and the final values were not substantially different, in the specific case of the Group’s
facilities, from the draft versions circulated by the CNMC [Spanish National Securities Commission]
for comments during the first quarter of 2014 and used by the Group for the estimation and re-
appraisal of its revenue and impairment tests. As a result, the impairments covered by provisions are
considered to be sufficient.

In financial year 2015 no impairment was estimated or significant losses were revealed that were not
covered by the provisions in place at 31 December 2015.
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Biofuels

As regards the biodiesel business in Spain, Royal Decree 1738/10 established obligatory minimum
annual targets for the sale or consumption of biofuels for transportation purposes. These targets were
reviewed downwards in Royal Decree 459/2011 and Royal Decree 4/2013, the initial 7% being
reduced to 4.10% in 2013 and subsequent vears for the consumption of biofuels in diesel.

The situation of surplus in the capacity installed in Spain for the proposed targets, bearing in mind the
Group’s net volume of assets related to this activity, did not have any material impact on the Group’s
equity, with the impairment recognised in previous years being considered.

2.2 Consolidation principles

a.

C.

d.

Consolidation methods

The companies over which, under IFRS 10, control is exercised were fully consolidated. These
companies are considered subsidiaries and they are listed in Appendix I, and their consolidation
method is explained in section d. of this same note.

Entities managed jointly with third parties as a joint venture are proportionately consolidated when
it is concluded that the participating company has direct rights and obligations for its share
percentage in the assets and liabilities under the agreement. This is explained in section e. in this
note. The companies consolidated by applying the proportional method are listed in Appendix II.

Finally, the companies not included in the paragraphs above, where significant influence is held in
their management, or if they are joint ventures, are associates, and they are measured by applying
the equity method (see Appendix II). This consolidation method is explained in section f. in this
note.

Eliminations on consolidation

All material balances and effects of the transactions performed between the subsidiaries and the
associates and joint ventures, and intra-subsidiaries, were eliminated on consolidation.

The gains on transactions with associates and jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s share percentage in their capital. Exceptionally, the profit and loss on internal
transactions with Group companies, jointly controlled entities or associates in connection with
certain concession-related activities were not eliminated.

Uniformity

The Spanish resident companies included in the scope of consolidation were consolidated on the
basis of their separate financial statements prepared in accordance with the Spanish General
Accounting Plan and foreign companies were consolidated in accordance with their local standards.
All material adjustments required to adapt these financial statements to International Financial
Reporting Standards and/or make them compliant with the Group’s accounting policies were
considered in the consolidation process.

Subsidiaries

“Subsidiartes™ are defined as companies over which the Company has the capacity to exercise
effective control; control is generally seen in three elements that must be complied with: having
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authority over the subsidiary, exposure or the right to variable returns from its investment and the
ability to use said authority to influence the amount of these returns.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are fully consolidated with those of the Company.
Accordingly, all material balances and effects of the transactions between consolidated companies
were eliminated on consolidation.

When a subsidiary is bought, its assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values, as provided for in IFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any excess in the
cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets is recognised as goodwill. If
the cost of acquisition is lower than the fair value of the identifiable net assets, the difference is
credited to profit or loss on the acquisition date.

The results of subsidiaries acquired during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date of acquisition to year-end. Similarly, the results of subsidiaries disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the beginning of the
year to the date of disposal.

The interest of non-controlling shareholders is stated at their proportion of the fair values of the
assets and liabilities recognised.

The share of third parties in the equity of their investees is disclosed within the Group’s equity
under “Non-Controlling Interests” on the consolidated balance sheet. Similarly, their share in the
profit or loss for the year is disclosed under “Non-Controlling Interests” on the consolidated
income statement.

Joint operations

Joint arrangements are deemed to be ventures in which the investee (jointly controlled entity) is
managed by a Group company and one or more unrelated third parties, all of whom act jointly to
manage the relevant activities and where strategic decisions require the unanimous consent of the
parties.

Joint arrangements where the investing company is deemed to hold direct rights and obligations
for its share percentage in the assets and liabilities under the arrangement are considered joint
operations.

The financial statements of joint operations are proportionately consolidated with those of the
Company and, therefore, the aggregation of balances and subsequent eliminations are only made
in proportion to the Group’s share in the capital of these entities.

The assets and liabilities relating to operations are recognised on the consolidated balance sheet
classified according to their specific nature. Similarly, the income and expenses from joint
operations are disclosed in the consolidated income statement on the basis of their nature.

Equity method

In the consolidated financial statements, investments in associates and joint ventures (joint
arrangements giving a right to the net assets of the arrangement) are measured by applying the
equity method, i.e., at the Group’s share in net assets of the investee, after taking into account the
dividends received therefrom and other equity eliminations.

The value of these investments on the consolidated balance sheet implicitly includes, where

applicable, the goodwill arising on their acquisition.
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When the Group’s investments in associates are reduced to zero, any additional implicit obligations
in the subsidiaries that are accounted for by the equity method are recognised under “Non-current
provisions” on the consolidated balance sheet.

In order to disclose results uniformly the Group’s share in the profit or loss of associates is
disclosed on the consolidated income statement before and after tax.

g. Translation differences

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations with a functional
currency other than the euro are translated to euros at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly. Capital and reserves are translated at the historical
exchange rates. Any translation differences arising are classified as equity. Such translation
differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which the investment is made or
disposed of.

h. Changes in the scope of consolidation

Appendices I, 1 and III to the accompanying consolidated financial statements contain relevant
information about the Acciona Group’s subsidiaries, joint operations and associates and joint
ventures, and Appendix I'V shows the changes in consolidation scope in the year.

In financial year 2015 no significant additions to or removals from the scope of consolidation took
place.

In financial year 2014, within the energy division, the main event was the sale, in January 2014, of
the shareholdings the Acciona Group held in the following companies based in Germany: Acciona
Energie Windparks Deutschland GmbH, EHN Deutschland GmbH and Volkmarsdorfer. These
companics owned 18 wind farms located in Lower Saxony and Brandenburg (Germany). Similarly,
although it was a transfer without loss of control, in June 2014, Acciona Energy, S.A., Acciona
Group subsidiary, signed an agreement with the KKR Fund for the acquisition of a one-third
sharcholding in the Acciona Group subsidiary, Acciona Energy Internacional, S.A. by a vehicle in
its global infrastructure fund, following a corporate restructuring that grouped together in the latter
company 51 renewable energy assets operating in 11 countries, the most relevant of which are:
United States, Canada, Mexico, Australia, Chile, India, Italy, Portugal, Poland and South Africa.

Within the infrastructure construction division, the most noteworthy event was the sale, in June
2014, of two associates: Tranvia Metropolita, S.A. and Tranvia Metropolita del Besos, S.A. In
addition, in the month of October 2014, Acciona Infraestructuras, S.A. sold the 50% it held in the
Freyssinet, S.A. company. And in December 2014 a share percentage held by the Acciona Group in
three Canadian concessions was sold.

Within the other activities division, an additional 47.47% over and above the 50% alrcady owned
in the Compafiia Urbanizadora Coto, S.L. subgroup was bought.
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3. Principal accounting policies
3.1 Adoption of new standards and interpretations issued
Standards and interpretations applicable in this financial year

In financial year 2015, new accounting standards, amendments and interpretations came into force,
which, accordingly, were taken into account in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Standards, amendments and Maadatertly ipﬂﬁehﬂe in
interpretations: annnal periods beginning on
or afier:
Approved to be applied in the EU
IFRIC 21 - Levies (published in May Interpretation on when 1o recognise a liability for 17 hune 2014
2013} levies umposed by a government.
IFRS improvements - 2011-2013 cycle Small changes to a number of standards 1 Janmuary 2015
(published in December 2013)

For some of the Acciona Group divisions, application of IFRIC 21 meant a moditication at the time of
recognition of some levies, particularly IBI [property tax], which formerly was accrued throughout the
year but now it is recognised as expense at 1 January. However, given the nature of this change in
accounting, which is not really significant, there won’t be an impact on the annual income statement
for the year and, on the same grounds, no modification has been required retroactively.

The other standards were applied with no impact on the reported figures or on the presentation and

disclosure of the information, either because they do not involve relevant changes or because they
refer to economic events that do not affect the Acciona Group.

Standards and interpretations issued but not in force

At the date of preparation of these annual financial statements, the following were the most significant
standards and interpretations published by the IASB, but they have not come into effect yet, either
because their effective date is later than the date of the consolidated financial statements, or because
they have not yet adopted by the European Union:

Standards, amendments and Maudatority applicable in

interpretations annual reporting periods
beginning on er after:
endment of IAS 19 — Contributions by~ The amendment 1s issued to facilitate the possibility | February 201%
oyees 1o defined benefit plans of deducting these contributions from the cost of the
= (pubiished in November 2013) service i the same period in which they are paid if
certain requirements are met,
ry 2 Improvements in the IFRS 2010-2012 Minor amendments to a nurmber of standards 1 February 2015
= 2 @bished in December 2013).
o 2 Kmeniment 10 1AS 16 and 14 38 - Clarification of the acceptable depreciation and 1 January 2016
:*’: -5 ¢ptable depreciation and amortisation  amortisation methods for tangible and intangible
P = methods (published in May 2014). fixed assets.
;‘E}} endment to IFRS 11- Accounting of It specifies how to recognise the acquisition of a 1 January 2016
o ’ o= acqu sitions of stakeholdings in joint stakeholding in a joint venture where the activity 1s
;‘-;f A es (published in May 2014). a business.
@ . Amendment to 1AS 16 and 1AS 41 - Production plants will change to be catried at cost, 1 Jamuary 2016
~-=_" Production plants (published in June.2014)  instead of at fair valuo.
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Standards, amendments and Mandatorily applicahie in
interpretations annual regorting perieds
beginning on or after:

Improvements to the IFRS 2012-2014 Minor amendments to a number of standards. 1 January 2016
cycle (published in September 2014).
Amendment to IAS 27 — Equity method in©~ The equity method will be allowed in an investor’s 1 Jenuary 2016
separate financiul statements (published in  separate financial statements
August 2014
Amendments to IAS 1: disclosure initiative ~ Clarification about disclosures (materiality, 1 January 2016
{December 2014). aggregation, order of notes,...)
Not approves for yse in the EU
IFRS 9 — Financial instruments (last phase ~ Replacement of the requirements for classification, 1 January 2018
published in July 2014} measurement, recognition and derecognition in

accounts of financial assets and liabilities, hedge
accounting and impairment under IAS 39,

IFRS 15 — Revenue from contracts with New standard for revenue recognition (replacing 1 January 2018
clients (put:lished in May 2014) IAS 11, JAS 18, IFRIC 13, IFRIC 15, IFRIC 18 and

SIC 31)
IFRS 16 — Leases (published in January New standard on leases (it replaces IAS 17) 1 January 2019
2016)
Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 — Sales  Clanification about the gain or loss from these Indefinitely postponed
o1 contribution of assets between an uperations if 1t 1s about businzsses or assets

mvestor and 188 associate/joint ventuie
{published in September 2014),

Amendment o IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS  Clarification about the conselidation exception of -—
28 — Investment entities (December 2014).  investment entities

Amendments io TAS 12. Recognition of Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised 1 January 2017
deferred tan assets tor unrealised losses losses on debt instruments measured at fair value
{published 1n fanuary 2016)

Amendments to [AS 7: disclosure It proposes disciosing opening and end balances on 1 January 2017
initiative (published in January 2016) the financial statements for the items whose cash

flow is classified as financing activity.

- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments.

IFRS 9 will replace IAS 39 in future. There are very significant differences with respect to the
current standard in relation to financial assets, including the approval of a new classification model
based on only two categories, namely instruments measured at amortised cost and those measured
at fair value, the disappearance of the current “held-to-maturity investments” and “available-for-
sale financial assets” categories, a new impairment model based on expected losses instead of
losses incurred and also hedge accounting that attempts to align accounting with the economic
management of risk.

At present, the Group is analysing all the future impacts of adopting this standard and it is not
possible to furnish any reasonable estimate of its effects until this analysis is complete.

- IFRS 15 — Revenue recognition.

IFRS 15 — Revenue from contracts with clients is the new standard for recognising revenue with
clients, and will replace, in financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018, the following
standards and interpretations currently in force: IAS 11 — Construction contracts, IAS 18 —
Revenue, IFRIC 13 — Client loyalty programmes, IFRIC 15 — Agreements for the construction of
Real Estate, IFRIC 18 — Transfers of assets from clients and SIC 31 — Revenue - Barter Transaction
Involving Advertising Services.
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At present, the future impacts of adopting this standard have not yet been analysed.

IFRS 16 — Leases will replace IFRS 17 — Leases in the financial years beginning on or after 1
January 2019. This new standard provides for the lessee a single accounting model where all the
leases (leases of little value and those covering a period shorter than twelve months can be
excluded) will be recognised on the balance sheet in a similar manner to current finance leases
(recognising finance cost for the amortised cost of the liability and depreciation for the right of
use). For the lessor a dual model based on current IAS 17 is maintained and leases will be

finance or operating.

At present, the future impacts of adopting this standard have not yet been analysed.

Except for the impacts of the standards indicated in the paragraphs above, the Group’s Directors do
not anticipate any significant changes to arise as a result of the introduction of the other standards,
amendments and interpretations published but not yet in force, since they are to be applied
prospectively, amendments related to presentation and disclosure issues and/or matters that are not

applicable to the Group’s operations.

3.2 Measurement standards

The main measurement standards applied in the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the

European Union, were as follows:

A) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquired for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes are stated on the consolidated balance sheet at the lower of acquisition or
production cost less any accumulated depreciation and their recoverable amounts.

The costs of expansion, modernisation or improvements leading to increased productivity, capacity or
efficiency or to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are capitalised. Acquisition cost includes
professional fees and borrowing costs incurred during the construction period that are directly

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use. The investments made
by the Acciona Group are carried out through special purpose vehicles incorporated for that sole aim.
These “one-off” companies obtain specific financing generally through the concept known as “Project
inance”. The finance costs relating to this funding used for the construction of these assets are

ntirely capitalised during their construction.

The acquisition cost of elements acquired before 31 December 2003 includes any asset revaluations
permitted in the various countries to adjust the value of the property, plant and equipment due to the
effect of inflation until that date.

The balances of assets retired as a result of modernisation or for any other reason are derecognised
from the related cost and accumulated depreciation accounts.

In-house work on non-current assets is recognised at accumulated cost (external costs plus internal
costs calculated on the basis of in-house consumption of warchouse materials and manufacturing costs

incurred.

Upkeep and maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated income statement for the year in which

they are incurred.
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Generally, depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method, on the basis of the acquisition cost
of the assets less their residual value. The land on which the buildings and other structures stand has
an indefinite useful life and, therefore, is not depreciated. The Group companies depreciate their
property, plant and equipment over the years of estimated useful life. The annual depreciation rates
applicable in 2015 were as follows:

Annual depreciation rates

Buildings 2-10%
Speatal tacilities
Wind farms 4%
Hydroelectric power plants 1-4%
Biomass plants 4%
Solar thetmal plants 3.33%
Photovoltaic solar plants 4%
Vessels 5-6%
Remaining plant 3-30%
Machinets 5-33%
Furniture 5-33%
Coraputer hardware 13-33%
Transport equipment 7-25%
Other tems of propetty, plant and equipment 2-33%

The consolidated companies recognise in the books any loss that may have occurred in the registered
value of these assets due to their impairment, and the caption “result due to impairment of assets” on
the consolidated income statement is used as balancing entry. The criteria to recognise the impairment
losses of these assets and, if appropriate, the loss recoveries that might occur subsequently are detailed
in section E) in this note.

Finance leases

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are recognised in the corresponding asset
category and are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

B) Investment property

“Investment Property” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet reflects the net values (i.e.
less any accumulated depreciation) of the land, buildings and other structures held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation on their sale.

Investment property is stated at acquisition cost and for all purposes the Group appiies the same
policies as those used for property, plant and equipment of the same kind.

Each year the Group determines the fair value of its investment property with the support of appraisals
undertaken by independent experts (see Note 5).

Investment property is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the years of estimated useful life of the
assets, which constitutes the period over which the Group companies expect to use them. The average
depreciation rate is as follows:

Annuval depreciation rate
Buildings held for rental 2-5%

O) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the acquisition cost excess over the Group’s ownership
interests in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities, including contingent assets and
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liabilities, of a subsidiary or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition or at the date on which
control is obtained.

The assets and liabilities acquired are measured provisionally at the date on which control is acquired,
and the resulting value is reviewed in a maximum period of one year from the date of acquisition.
Until the fair value of the assets and liabilities has been defitively determined, the difference

between the cost of acquisition and the carrying amount of the company acquired is recognised
provisionally as goodwiil.

Any excess in the cost of the investments in the consolidated companies over the corresponding

underlying carrying amounts acquired, adjusted at the date of first-time consolidation, is allocated as
follows:

- If it is attributable to specific assets and liabilities of the companies acquired, increasing the value
of the assets (or reducing the value of the liabilities) whose market values are higher (lower) than
the carrying amounts at which they had been recognised on their balance sheets and whose

accounting treatment is similar to that of the same assets (liabilities) of the Group: amortisation,
accrual, etc.

If it is attributable to specific intangible assets, recognising it explicitly on the consolidated
balance sheet provided that the fair value at the date of acquisition can be reliably measured.

- The remaining amount is recognised as goodwill, which is allocated to one or more specific cash-
generating units.

Goodwill is only recognised when it has been acquired for a consideration and represents, therefore, a
payment made by the buyer in anticipation of future economic benefits from assets of the acquired
company that are not individually and separately identifiable and recognisable.

Goodwill acquired on or after 1 January 2004 is measured at acquisition cost and that acquired earlier
is recognised at the net carrying amount at 31 December 2003.

On disposal of a subsidiary or jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising in the acquisition of companies with a functional currency other than the euro is
translated to euros at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the consolidated balance sheet.

:__‘;‘ ) Other intangible assets
l‘:;';
] tangible assets are recognised initially at acquisition or production cost and are subsequently

Z=measured at cost less, if applicable, any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

~— Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over those useful lives using methods similar to
&-those used to depreciate property, plant and equipment. The amortisation rates, which were determined
L3

- _r;-CTn the basis of the average years of estimated useful life of the assets, are basically as follows:

199N
S316 o epnang a32idigul-elolanpeay

et

73
iy Annual amortisation rate
5 T Development expenditure 10-20%
o Administrative coneessions 2-25%
- Leasehold assignment rights 10 - 20%
~ Computer software 7-33%

21




TRANSLATION

The consolidated companies recognise any impairment loss in the carrying amount of these assets with
a charge to “Impairment and Gains or Losses on Disposals of Non-Current Assets” in the consolidated
income statement. The criteria used to recognise the impairment losses of these assets and any
subsequent recovery thereof are detailed in section E in this note).

Research and development

As a general rule, expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the year in which it
is incurred, except in development projects in which an identifiable asset is created, it is probable that
the asset will generate future economic benefits, and the development cost of the asset can be reliably
measured. The Group’s development expenditure, basically related to the wind power business, is only
recognised as an asset if it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits and the
development cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Development expenditure is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life. Unless the
aforementioned conditions for recognition as an asset are met, development expenditure is recognised
as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Administrative concessions

The “Administrative Concessions™ line item includes concessions that have been acquired by the
Group for a consideration (in the case of concessions that can be transferred) or for the amount of the
expenses incurred to directly obtain the concession from the Government or from a public agency.
Administrative concessions are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the concession.
Appendix TV details the duration (and, therefore, amortisation) of the main concessions.

Intangible assets in infrastructure projects

Since the adoption of IFRIC 12, the Acciona Group has included intangible assets associated with
concessions in which the investment recovery risk is borne by the operator under “Intangible Assets in
Infrastructure Projects”. This type of concession-related activity is carried out through investments
mainly in transport and water supply infrastructure that is operated by subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities or associates (concession operators), the main characteristics being as follows:

- The concession infrastructure is owned by the grantor in most cases.

- The concession grantor, which can be a public or private sector entity, controls or regulates the
service offered by the concession operator and the conditions under which it should be provided.

- The infrastructure is operated by the concession operator as established in the concession tender
specifications for an established concession term. At the end of this period, the assets are handed over
to the concession grantor, and the concession operator has no right whatsoever over these assets.

- The concession operator receives revenue for the services provided either directly from the users or
through the concession grantor.

The most significant criteria applied by the Acciona Group in relation to these concession
arrangements are as follows:

- Capitalisation of the borrowing costs incurred during the construction period and non-capitalisation of
the borrowing costs subsequent to the entry into service of the related assets.

- Amortisation of the concession infrastructure on a straight-line basis over the concession term.
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- Concession operators amortisc these assets so that the carrying amount of the investment made plus

the costs considered necessary to return the assets in working order is zero at the end of the concession
term.

- In virtually all of the concessions of the Acciona Group, the construction work was carried out by
Group companies. In this regard, the income and expenses corresponding to infrastructure construction
or upgrade services are recognised at their gross amount (recognition of the sales and the cost of sales
in the consolidated financial statements of the Acciona Group), recognising the construction margin in
the consolidated financial statements. If construction were not carried out by the Group itself, this fact
would be taken into account for the purpose of recognising sales and the cost of sales in the
consolidated financial statements. No adjustment was necessary in 2015 for this reason.

Computer software

The acquisition and development costs incurred in relation to the basic computer systems used in the

Group’s management are recognised at acquisition cost with a charge to “Other Intangible Assets™ in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Computer system maintenance costs are recognised with a charge to the consolidated income statement
for the year in which they are incurred.

E) Impairment of non-current assets

At the closing date of each balance sheet, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets, to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets might have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where the asset itself does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the

Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest identifiable cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unif) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit} is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in previous years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment ioss is treated as a revaluation increase.

At the end of each reporting period, goodwill is reviewed for impairment (i.e. a reduction in its
recoverable amount to below its carrying amount) and any impairment is written down with a charge
to “Impairment and Gains or Losses on Disposals of Non-Current Assets™ on the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill must not be reversed in a subsequent period.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The methodology
used to estimate value in use varies on the basis of the type of asset in question. For these purposes,
the Group considers three types of assets: investment property (assets held to earn rentals), goodwill of
companies and assets of a limited duration (primarily assets related to electricity production and
infrastructure concessions). The way they are measured is explained below. Similarly, due to its

specificity, the following paragraphs explain how the recoverable value is estimated for the vessels
from the Compafiia Trasmediterrdnea, S.A. subgroup.
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Investment property (assets held to earn rentals)

The Group’s investment property relates to properties earmarked for lease. The fair value at 31
December 2015 of the Group’s investment property was calculated with the support of valuations
conducted at that date by “Aguirre Newman Valoraciones y Tasaciones, S.A.” (lts report was issued on
04/01/2016), y CBRE Valuation Advisory, S.A. (its report was issued on last 01/02/2016).

Assets of this type are measured by updating the rents at rates that vary on the basis of the type of
building earmarked for lease and of the specific characteristics of the buildings. In proportion to their
carrying amounts, the assets held to earn rentals may be classified as residential for rent (57.48%),
offices (13.74%), land for development (13.41%) and other property (15.37%) (housing, car
parks, etc.) The update rates used for each type of property lie in the following ranges: residential
property for rent (4.75-8.0%), offices (8.5-10.5%) and other property (7.5-11.0%).

The method used to calculate the market value of investment goods consists in preparing ten-year
forecasts for the income and expenses of each asset that will then be updated at the date of the
statement of financial position, through a market discount rate. The residual amount at the end of the
tenth year is calculated by applying a yield rate (“exit yield” or cap rate”) from the forecasts for net
income in the eleventh year. The market values thus obtained are analysed through calculation and
analysis of the capitalisation of the yield implicit in these values. The forecasts are used to reflect the
best estimate of income and expenses of property assets over the future. The yield rate and the
discount rate are defined according to the domestic market and the conditions of the institutional
market and the reasonability of the market value thus obtained is proved in terms of initial gain.

To calculate the fair value of land, the residual method was applied. This method consists in
estimating the value of the final product on the basis of the comparison or cash flow discount method,
and the development costs are taken off this value. Development costs include the cost or urbanisation,
construction, fees, levies and all the costs needed to carry out the projected development. Revenue and
costs are distributed over time according to the development and sale periods estimated by the
appraiser. The update rate used is the rate representing the annual average yield of the project, and the
external financing that would be required by an average developer for a development of the
characteristics of the development analysed is not taken into account. This update rate is calculated by
adding the risk premium (determined through the risk assessment of the development, with the type of
property asset to build, its location, liquidity, term of construction and amount of required investment
being taken into account) to the free-risk rate. Where in the determination of the cash flows external
financing is taken into account, the risk premium mentioned above increases depending on the
percentage of said financing (leverage level) attributed to the project and on the usual interest rates on
the mortgage market.

Taking the valuations made as a benchmark, the corresponding impairment losses are booked and
recognised as result due to impairment of assets on the income statement (see Note 5).

Goodwill of companies

The impairment test takes into consideration the cash-generating units’ overall capacity to generate
future cash flows.

The Group prepares five-year forecasts of projected cash flows, including the best available estimates
of the income and expenses of the cash-generating units, using industry projections, past experience
and future expectations.

Also, a residual value is calculated on the basis of the normalised cash flows of the last year of the

forecast, to which a perpetuity growth rate is applied which under no circumstances exceeds the
growth rates of previous years. The cash flow used to calculate residual value takes into account the
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replacement investments required for the continuity of the business in the future at the estimated
growth rate.

The weighted average cost of capital (WACC) is used to discount cash flows, which will depend on
the type of business and on the market in which it is carried on. The average leverage during the
projection period is taken into account in the calculation of the WACC.

Other items calculated include: i) the effective cost of borrowings, which takes into account the tax
shield that they give rise to, based on the average tax rates in each country; and ii) the estimated cost
of equity based on a risk-free interest rate, (generally using as a benchmark the return on a ten-year
bond in each market), the beta (which factors in the leverage and the risk associated with the asset), a
market premium (estimated on the basis of historical yields in the capital markets) and a country-risk
premium (that reflects the risk differential between the various markets). These variables are tested
using recent studies on premiums required at long term, comparable companies in the industry and
rates habitually used by investment banks.

At 31 December 2015 the impairment tests implemented did not show the need to register additional
impairment (see note 6.)

Non-current assets in projects

This line item includes concession assets and projects with a limited duration and characterised by
having a contractual structure that enables the costs incurred in a project to be clearly determined (at
both the initial investment stage and the operating stage) and the related revenue to be reasonably
projected over the life of the project (basically property, plant and equipment from the energy
division). They are registered in property, plant and equipment (mainly under electric power
generation facilities) and in other intangible assets under intangible concessions (IFRIC 12).

To calculate the value in use of assets of this nature, the expected cash flows are projected until the
end of the life of the asset. Therefore, it is assumed that there is no terminal value. This is possible
because:

= These assets have a stable long-term production, thus enabling reliable long-term estimates to
be made.

e There are extensive series of historical data from reliable external sources.

» In connection with the energy division, the estimates of prices used by the Acciona Group for
revenue determination (pool price) are based on a profound understanding of the market and
on the analysis of the parameters determining pool prices.

* They have known operating costs with scant variability.

o« Most of them have been financed with long-term debt with known and constant terms and
conditions enabling the easy projection of the necessary outflows of cash to cover debt
service.

The projections include both known data (based on project contracts) and basic assumptions supported
by specific studies performed by experts or by historical data (on demand, production, etc.). Also,
macroeconomic data, such as inflation, interest rates, etc., are projected using data provided by
independent specialist sources e.g. Bloomberg).
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The discounted cash flows are those obtained by the shareholder after servicing the debt. The rates
used to discount these cash flows are based on the cost of equity, and in each case include the business
risk and the sovereign risk relating to the location where the operation is being performed.

At 31 December 2015, the Acciona Group recognised the amount of 19 million euros in “Impairment
and result on disposal of assets” on the 2015 accompanying consolidated income statement, for
impairment in accordance with these tests carried out for a concession asset in Brazil, as mentioned in
note 7.

Property, plant and equipment — Other plant: vessels

To calculate the recoverable amount of the ships from the Compaifiia Transmediterranea, S.A.
subgroup, the specific characteristics of the market for seagoing vessels are taken into account; it’s a
narrow market where the specific features of each ship is particularly important, as they are not built
on a production line but tailor-made for certain types of traffic; their value depends on the year and
country of construction, ramps, linear metres, height of the hold, passenger capacity, speed, etc., so the
measurement of value habitually takes into account comparable market features through the
international brokers the Group works with (see note 4).

F) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the lessce. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Finance leases

When the consolidated companies act as the lessee, they disclose the cost of the leased assets on the
consolidated balance sheet, based on the nature of the leased asset, and, simultaneously, recognise a
liability for the same amount (which will be the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the
aggregate present values of the amounts payable to the lessor plus, where applicable, the price of
exercising the purchase option). These assets are depreciated using the same criteria as those applied
to similar items of property, plant and equipment that are owned.

The finance charges arising under finance leases are charged to the consolidated income statement on
a straight-line basis over the term of the leases.

Operating leases
In operating leases, the ownership of the leased asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
relating to the leased assets remain with the lessor, which recognises the assets at their acquisition

COst.

These assets are depreciated using a policy consistent with the lessor’s normal depreciation policy for
similar items and lease income is recognised on the income statement on a straight-line basis.

When the consolidated companies act as the lessee, lease costs, including any incentives granied by
the lessor, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis.

Amounts received and receivable as incentives for the arrangement of operating leases are also
recognised tn profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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G) Non-current receivables and other non-current assets

“Non-Current Receivables and Other Non-Current Assets” includes the non-current trade receivables,
mainly from public authorities, and withholdings from trade receivables, mainly from the Construction
of Infrastructure division.

Since its adoption of IFRIC 12, the Acciona Group has recognised under “Other Non-Current Assets”
non-current assets associated with concessions in which the grantor guarantees the recovery of the
asset through the payment of a fixed or determinable amount, and in which, therefore, the operator
does not bear any demand risk.

This type of concession-related activity is carried on through investments mainly in transport, water
supply and hospital infrastructure that is operated by subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or
associates {concession operators), the detail being as follows:

- The concession infrastructure is owned by the grantor in most cases.

- The concession grantor, which can be a public or private sector entity, controls or regulates the
service offered by the concession operator and the conditions under which it should be provided.

- The infrastructure is operated by the concession operator as established in the concession tender
specifications for an established concession term. At the end of this period, the assets are returned to
the concession grantor, and the concession operator has no right whatsoever over these assets.

- The concession operator receives revenue for the services provided either directly from the users or
through the concession grantor.

The most significant accounting criteria used by the Acciona Group in relation to these concession
arrangements are as follows:

- The account receivable is recognised for the present value of the amount receivable from the grantor.

- Borrowing costs are not capitalised, either during the construction phase or after the concession has
started to operate.

- The Group recognises interest income earned on the financial asset, even during the construction
phase, by applying the effective interest rate of the financial asset. This income is recognised in the net
revenue.

- In virtually all of the concessions of the Acciona Group, the construction was carried out by Group
companies. In this respect, the income and expenses corresponding to infrastructure construction or
upgrade services are recognised at their gross amounts (recognition of the sales and the cost of sales in
the consolidated financial statements of the Acciona Group), recognising the construction margin in the
consolidated financial statements. If construction were not carried out by the Group itself, this fact
would be taken into account for the purpose of recognising sales and the cost of sales in the
consolidated financial statements.

~ There is no depreciation or amortisation charge since the arrangements constitute a financial asset.
+ Annual billings are divided into a financial asset component recognised on the balance sheet (and,

therefore, not recognised as sales) and the component relating to services provided, which is
recognised under “Revenue”.
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H) Financial instrument disclosures

As a result of the adoption in 2007 of IFRS 7 and of the amendments to TAS 1 and IFRS 7, the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures on financial instruments and risk and capital management were
extended and are detailed in the following notes:

- Financial asset and liability categories, including derivative financial instruments and accounting
policies are detailed in Note 3.2 i).

- Classification of the fair value measurements of financial assets and for derivative financial
instruments consistent with the fair value hierarchy established in IFRS 7, detailed in Note 3.2 i).

- Qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements relating to capital are detailed in Note 16 g).

- Risk accounting and management policies are detailed in Note 19.

- Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting are detailed in Note 20.
Transfers from equity to the year’s profit or loss, for settlements of hedging derivative financial
instrument transactions, are detailed in Note 28.

D Financial instruments

Non-current and current financial assets excluding hedging derivatives

The financial assets held by the Group companies are classified as:

- Loans and receivables: financial assets originated by the companies in exchange for supplying
cash, goods or services directly to a debtor. These items arc measured at amortised cost, which is
basically the initial market value, minus principal repayments, plus the accrued interest receivable
calculated using the effective interest method.

- Held-to-maturity investments: assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity. The
Group has the positive intention and ability to hold them from the date of purchase to the date of
maturity. This category includes mainly short-term deposits, which are measured at amortised cost,
as indicated above.

- Available-for-sale financial assets: these relate to securities acquired that are not classified in the
other categories, substantially all of which relate to investments in the capital of companies. They
are measured:

- In the case of stakeholdings in unlisted companies, since the fair value cannot always be
reliably determined, at acquisition cost, adjusted for any impairment Josses disclosed. The
main criterion applied by the Acciona Group to determine if there is objective evidence of
impairment is to have incurred significant and permanent losses in the investee.

- At fair value when it is possible to determine it reliably, based on either the market price or, in
the absence thereof, using the price established in recent transactions or the discounted present
value of the future cash flows. The gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised
directly in equity until the asset is disposed of, at which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in equity are recognised in the income statement for the vear. If fair
value is lower than acquisition cost and there is objective evidence that the asset has suffered
an impatrment loss that cannot be considered reversible, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the available-for-sale financial assets were measured by
reference to quoted (unadjusted) market prices and categorised in level one of the hierarchy
established in [FRS 7.
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In financial years 2015 and 2014, no financial assets were reclassified among the categories defined in
the preceding paragraphs.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised using the trade date method.
Transfers of financial assets

The Acciona Group derecognises financial assets when they expire or when the rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have also been
transferred, such as in the case of firm asset sales, factoring of trade receivables in which the company
does not retain any credit or interest rate risk, sales of financial assets under an agreement to
repurchase them at fair value and the securitisation of financial assets in which the transferor does not
retain any subordinate financing or award any kind of guarantee or assume any other kind of risk.

Bank borrowings other than derivatives

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs. Borrowing costs, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue
costs, are recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis using the effective interest method
and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the
period in which they arise. In subsequent periods, these obligations are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

In specific cases where liabilities are the underlying of a fair value hedge, they are measured,
exceptionally, at fair value for the portion of the hedged risk.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Because of its activities, the group is mainly exposed to the financial risks of changes in foreign
exchange rates and interest rates and in certain fuel stocks and fuel supplies. The Group uses foreign
exchange forward contracts and interest rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures. Electricity and
fuel price and supply hedging transactions are also arranged. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of
Directors.

Accounting policies:
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Derivatives are recognised at fair value (see measurement bases below) at the consolidated balance
sheet date under “Other Current Financial Assets” or “Non-Current Financial Assets” if positive and
under “Bank Borrowings” (both current and non-current) if negative. Changes in the fair vaiue of
derivative financial instruments are recognised in the consolidated income statement as they arise. If
the derivative has been designated as a hedge which is highly effective, it is recognised as follows:

- Fair value hedges: these hedges are arranged to fully or partially reduce the risk of fluctuations in
the value of assets and liabilities (underlying) recognised in the consolidated balance sheet. The
portion of the underlying for which the risk is being hedged is measured at fair value, as is the
related hedging instrument, and changes in the fair values of both items are recognised under the
same heading in the consolidated income statement. At 31 December 2015, the Group had not
arranged any fair value hedges.

Cash flow hedges: these hedges are arranged to reduce the risk of potential changes in the cash
flows associated with the interest payments on non-current floating-rate financial liabilities,
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exchange rates and fuel stock and fuel hedges. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are
recognised, with respect to the effective portion of the hedge, under “Equity - Reserves - Value
Adjustments - Hedges”. The cumulative gain or loss recognised in this heading is transferred to the
consolidated income statement to the extent of the impact of the underlying (resulting from the risk
hedged) on the consolidated income statement; thus this effect is netted off under the same heading
in the consolidated income statement. Gains or losses on the ineffective portion of the hedges are
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.

- Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation: changes in fair value are recognised, in respect
of the effective portion of these hedges, net of the related tax effect, as “Translation Differences”
in equity, and are transferred to the consolidated income statement when the hedged investment is
disposed of. At 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any hedges relating to net investments
in a foreign operation.

Group policy on hedging:

At the inception of the transaction, the Group designates and formally documents the hedging
relationship and the objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. Hedges are only recognised
when the hedging relationship is expected, prospectively, to be highly effective from inception and in
subsequent years it will be effective to offset the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged
item during the life of the hedge and, retrospectively, that the actual effectiveness of the hedge, which
can be reliably calculated, is within a range of 80 - 125% of the gain or loss on the hedged item.

The Group does not hedge forecast transactions, but rather only firm financing commitments. If the
cash flows from forecast transactions were hedged, the Group would assess whether such transactions
were highly probable and whether they were exposed to changes in cash flows that could ultimately
affect the year’s profit or loss.

If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or projected transaction results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is recognised, the
associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously been recognised in equity are included
in the initial measurement of the asset or liability. For hedges that do not result in recognition of a non-
financial asset or liability, amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the income statement in the
same period as that in which the hedged item affects net profit or loss.

Compound financial instruments with multiple embedded derivatives
The Acciona Group does not have any compound financial instruments with embedded derivatives.

Measurement bases

The Group measures derivatives not traded on an organised market (OTC) by discounting the expected
cash flows and using generally accepted option pricing models based on spot and futures market
conditions at the closing date of every financial year. The fair value calculations for each type of
financial instrument are as follows:

Interest rate swaps are valued by discounting future settlements between fixed and floating
interest rates to their present value, in line with implicit market rates, obtained from long-term
interest rate swap curves. Implicit volatility is used to calculate the fair values of caps and floors
using option pricing models.

- Foreign currency hedging and option contracts are valued using the spot exchange rate, the

forward interest rate curves of the related currencies and, in the case of options, implicit volatility
until maturity.
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=

Commodities contracts (for fuel) are valued in a similar way, in this case, taking into account the
futures prices of the underlying and the implicit volatility of the options.

In order to determine the adjustment for credit risk in the valuation of derivatives at 31 December
2015, the technique applied was based on a calculation through simulations of the total expected
exposure (incorporating both the actual and the potential exposure) adjusted in line with the
probability of default over time and the severity (or potential loss) assigned to the Company and to
each of the counterparties.

More specifically, the adjustment for credit risk was obtained from the following formula:
EAD * PD * LGD

where

- EAD: Exposure at default at any given moment. This is calculated through the simulation of
scenarios with market price curves.

- PD: Probability of default, i.e., that one or other of the counterparties may fail to fulfil its
payment obligations at any given moment.

- LGD: Loss given default with a severity = 1- (recovery rate): The percentage of losses
ultimately occurring when one of the counterparties has incurred default.

The total expected exposure from derivatives is obtained using observable market inputs, such as
interest curves, exchange rates and volatilities depending on the market conditions on the valuation

date.

The inputs applied to obtain credit risk and counterparty risk (determination of the probability of
default) are mainly based on the application of credit spreads of the Company or other comparable
businesses currently traded on the market (CDS curves, IRR of debt issues). In the absence of credit
spreads of the Company or other comparable businesses and in order to maximise the use of relevant
observable variables, the listed references taken into account are those considered most suitable in
each case (listed credit spread indices). For counterparties with credit information available, the credit
spreads used are obtained from the Credit Default Swaps (CDS) listed on the market.

Furthermore, for the adjustment of the fair value to the credit risk, consideration has been given to the
credit enhancements in terms of collateral or guarantees when determining the severity rate to be
applied to each position. Severity is considered to be unique over time. If there are no credit
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enhancements in terms of collateral or guarantees, the minimum recovery rate applied has been 40%.
Nonetheless, this rate would range between 57% and 91% depending on the degree of progress in the
project (construction or operation phase), for derivatives contracted under Project Finance structures.

The measurements at fair value made over the different derivative financial instruments including the
information used for the calculation of the adjustment for credit risk of both the Company and its
counterparty are classified at level 2 in the fair value hierarchy established in IFRS 7 as the inputs
based on prices listed for similar instruments on active markets (not included in level 1), listed prices
for identical or similar instruments on markets that are not active, and techniques based on valuation
models for which all the significant inputs are observable on the market or can be corroborated by

observable market data.

Although the Acciona Group has determined that most of the inputs used to evaluate the derivatives
are at level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, the credit risk adjustments use level 3 inputs such as the credit
estimations based on the credit rating or comparable companies to assess the probability of insolvency
for the Company or its counterparty. The Group has assessed the relevance of the credit risk

adjustments for the total valuation of the derivative financial instruments and has concluded that they
are not material.

Trade payables
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Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value, which does not differ
substantially from their fair value.

Trade payables include unpaid balances to suppliers which are handled through confirming contracts
with financial entities and, in the same way, payments related thereto are classified as transaction
flows, since thesc transactions do not include either special guarantees given as pledge for the
payments to be made or modifications that change the commercial nature of the transactions.

Current/Non-current classification

In the accompanying consolidated batance sheet, assets and liabilities maturing within no more than
twelve months are classified as current items and those maturing within more than twelve months are
classified as non-current items. The companies in the Real Estate division classify their liabilities
based on their production cycle, which usually encompasses a longer period than the aforementioned
twelve months. The current assets and liabilities allocated to this division with an estimated maturity
of more than twelve months are as follows:

T'housands of euros

2015 2014
Inventoties 471 695 712,243
Trade receivables = -
Total current assets 471.695 712,243
Bank bitrowings 28,352 82,552
Other current liabilitics 6,869 16,752
‘Total curtent labilities 35221 99,304

Loans that mature in the short term but whose long-term refinancing is, at the Group’s discretion,
ensured through available long-term credit facilities are classified as non-current liabilities.

)] Inventorics
The Group companies measure their inventories as follows:

In the Construction business, procurements, consisting basically of construction materials located
at the sites of the various construction projects in progress, are measured at acquisition cost.
Semi-finished goods or work in progress to be included in the value of the construction projects
are recognised at production cost.

- In the real estate business, land is measured at acquisition cost, plus urban development costs, if
any, purchase transaction costs and borrowing costs incurred from the date of commencement of
the development of the site for its desired use until construction begins, or at their estimated
market value, whichever is the lower. If the building work is halted due to its rescheduling or
other reasons, the borrowing costs cease to be capitalised.

The costs incurred in property developments or part thereof whose construction has not been
completed at the closing date of the financial vear are treated as inventories. These costs include
land, urban development and construction costs, capitalised borrowing costs incurred in the
construction period, and other allocable direct and indirect costs. Commercial costs are charged to
the income statement in the year in which they are incurred.

There were no capitalised borrowing costs in financial year 2015. In 2014 capitalised borrowing
costs amounted to 0.2 million euros (see Note 28).
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Other inventories are recognised generally at the lower of weighted average cost and net
realisable value. These inventories can, on a residual basis, be measured at FIFO cost.

As regards real estate inventories, the Group’s Directors estimate their fair value at the end of every
year on thde basis of the valuations undertaken by independent experts “Savills Consultores
Inmobiliarios, S.A.”, whose report was issued on 31/12/2015, and “Instituto de Valoraciones, S.A.”,
whose report was issued onl14/01/2016, allocating if necessary provisions for impairment when the
properties are found to be overvalued.

The valuations were carried out in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards issued by
the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) of the United Kingdom and the International
Valuation Standards (IVS) issued by the International Valuation Standards Committee (IVSC). The
residual method was used to calculate the fair value, supplemented by the Comparative Method.

Whenever there is a reasonable change in the basic assumptions that affect the recoverable amount of
the assets, the Group performs a sensitivity analysis to determine whether this change may reduce the
realisable value to below the carrying amount, in which case, an impairment loss is recognised.

K) Treasury shares

At 31 December 2015, Acciona, S.A. and its subsidiary Finanzas Dos, S.A., held 320,460 treasury
shares representing 0.5597% of the share capital at that date. The acquisition cost of these shares
amounted to 20,238 thousand euros. The acquisition cost of the treasury shares and the gains or losses
on transactions involving them were recognised directly in equity (see Note 16).

At 31 December 2014, Acciona, S.A. and its subsidiary Finanzas Dos, S.A. held 534,499 treasury
shares representing 0.933% of the share capital at that date. The acquisition cost of these shares
amounted to 28,895 thousand euros. The acquisition cost of the treasury shares and the gains or losses
on transactions involving them were recognised directly in equity (see Note 16).

L) Termination benefits

Under the legislation for the time being in force, the Spanish consolidated companies and certain
foreign companies are required to pay termination benefits to employees dismissed on unfair grounds.
The Acciona Group companies currently do not have any employee termination plans that have not
been appropriately provisioned in accordance with the regulations in force.

) Provisions

he Group’s consolidated tinancial statements include all the provisions covering present obligations
t the balance sheet date arising from past events which could give rise to a loss for the companies,
ertain as to its nature but uncertain as to its amount and/or timing, They include all the provisions
ith respect to which it is considered that it is more likely than not that the obligation will have to be

ettled.

N2 661

rovisions, which are quantified on the basis of the best information available on the consequences of
e event giving rise to them and are reviewed and adjusted at the close of every accounting period,
are used to cater for the specific obligations for which they were originally recognised. Provisions are
fully or partially reversed when such obligations cease to exist or are reduced.

Litigation and/or claims in process

Tradiuciora-iniérprete Jurada de INGLES

At the close of financial years 2015 and 2014, certain litigation and claims arising from the ordinary
course of operations were in process against the consolidated companies. The Group’s Directors,
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taking into account the opinion of its legal advisers, consider that the outcome of litigation and claims
will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements for the years in which they are
settled. Accordingly, they did not deem it necessary to record an additional provision in this
connection,

Operating provisions and allowances

These provisions and allowances include costs that have not yet been incurred. The provision for the
cost of completion of construction projects is intended to cover the expenses arising from the date on
which project units are completed to the date of delivery to the client.

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

Except for the two groups discussed below, the Acciona Group companies do not have any pension
plans to supplement social security pensions. The appropriate provisions are recognised for
terminations of permanent site personnel.

- The collective agreements of certain companics in the Compafiia Trasmediterranea subgroup
establish benefits of specific amounts for employees who reach retirement age, subject to compliance
with the conditions stipulated in these agreements. These collective agreements also establish a loyalty
bonus based on the employee’s length of service at the companies. The subgroup currently recognises
these obligations at the moment of their effective payment; the cost recognised for these commitments
in 2015 and 2014 were 16 thousand euros and 20 thousand euros, respectively.

On 15 December 2002, pursuant to Royal Decree 1588/1999, of 15 October, Compaiiia
Trasmediterranea externalised its employee retirement benefit obligations by arranging a single-
premium insurance policy. The cost recognised at 31 December 2015 and 2014 relating to the amounts
payable to the insurance company for the benefit obligations accrued in these two years amounted to
337 and 468 thousand euros, respectively, and this amount was recognised under “Wages and
Salaries” in the accompanying consolidated income statement.

- As a result of the acquisition of assets and/or companies from the Endesa Group in 2009,
certain companies in the Acciona Group entered into or were subrogated to collective agreements that
establish benefits of specific amounts for employees included in such agreements that reach retirement
age, provided that the conditions established in the agreements are met. Some of these collective
agreements also establish a loyalty bonus based on the employee’s length of service at the companies.
The impact of these obligations is not material.

These companies also have various pension obligations to their employees, which vary depending on
the company of the Endesa Group they came from. These defined benefit obligations are basically
formalised in pension plans, except as regards certain benefits in kind, mainly electricity supply
obligations, which, due to their nature, have not been externalised and are covered by the related in-
house provisions.

For the defined benefit plans, the companies recognise the expenditure relating to these obligations on
an accrual basis over the working life of the employees by performing at the consolidated balance
sheet date the appropriate actuarial studies calculated using the projected unit credit method. The past
service costs relating to changes in benefits are recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement as the benefits vest,

The defined benefit plan obligations represent the present value of the accrued benefits after deducting
the fair value of the qualifying plan assets. The actuarial losses and gains arising in the measurement
of both the plan liabilities and the plan assets are recognised directly in equity under “Reserves -
Change due to Actuarial Losses and Gains on Pension Schemes™.
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For each of the plans, any positive difference between the actuarial liability for past services and the
plan assets is recognised under “Provisions” on the consolidated balance sheet and any negative
difference is recognised under “I'rade and Other Receivables™ on the asset side of the consolidated
balance sheet, provided that such negative difference is recoverable by the Group, usually through a

reduction in future contributions.

The impact of these plans on the consolidated income statement is not material (see Note 17).

The Group recognises termination benefits when there is an individual or collective agreement with
the employees or a genuine expectation that such an agreement will be reached that will enable the
employees, unilaterally or by mutual agreement with the company, to cease working for the Group in
exchange for a termination benefit. If a mutual agreement is required, a provision is only recorded in
situations in which the Group has decided to consent to the termination of the employees when this
has been requested by them. In all cases in which these provisions are recognised the employees have

an expectation that these early retirements will take place.

N) Grants

Government grants related to assets to cover staff re-training costs are recognised as income once all
the conditions attached to them have been fulfilled over the periods necessary to match them with the
related costs.

Government grants related to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are treated as
deferred income, are classified under “Other Non-Current Liabilities™ and are taken to income over the

expected useful lives of the assets concerned under “Other Income™.

0) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the
amounts receivable for the goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes. Sales of goods are recognised when substantially all the

risks and rewards have been transferred.

Following is a detail of some of the particular features of the business activities carried on by the

Group:

Construction business.

The Group companies recognise construction contract revenue and expenses by reference to the stage
completion of the contract activity at the consolidated balance sheet date, determined on the basis of
examination of the work performed. Under this method, contract revenue is recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the accounting periods in which the contract work is performed, and
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the accounting periods in which the work for which they
e incurred is performed, provided that:
Total contract revenue and the costs to complete the contract can be reliably measured; where
appropriate, estimated contract revenue and contract costs are reviewed and revised as the contract
= | progresses.
= Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will be obtained.
-+ The costs attributable to the contract can be clearly identified and reliably measured.

exceptional cases, where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be reliably estimated,
ntract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred and contract revenue
s recognised only to the extent that the contract costs incurred are likely to be recovered.
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In practice, revenue relates to the work completed in the year (as determined in the aforementioned
examination), measured at the contract prices, provided that the work in question is included in the
subject-matter of the main contract entered into with the client.

Since contracts can be subject to variations during the performance of the construction project, due to
instructions from the client to change the scope of the work to be performed under the contract terms,
contract variations are only recognised as revenue when negotiations have reached an advanced stage
and, therefore, it is sufficiently certain that the client will approve the variation.

Late-payment interest resulting from a delay in the payment of progress billings by the client is only
recognised when it can be reliably measured and its collection is reasonably assured.

If, due either to a delay in collection or to the insolvency of the client, uncertainty arises as to the
collectability of an item already recognised as contract revenue, the related provision for uncollectable
amounts is recorded on the basis of the client risk estimated.

Construction contract costs are recognised on an accrual basis, i.e., they are recognised as an expense
in the year in which the work to which they relate is performed. Costs that relate to future activity on
the contract, such as insurance premiums, site installations, fencing and enclosures, etc., are initially
recognised as assets and are periodically charged to income on the basis of the stage of completion of
the contract.

As regards the depreciation of property, plant and equipment used in construction contracts, the assets
whose estimated useful life coincides with the duration of the construction work are depreciated over
the term of the contract so that they are fully depreciated upon completion thereof.

Machinery whose useful life exceeds the term of the contract is depreciated systematically on the basis
of the technical criteria stipulated under the various contracts for which it is used.

Machinery removal and site installation dismantling costs, upkeep costs within the warranty period
and the costs, if any, arising in the period from completion of the construction work to the date of final
settlement, are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the life of the construction project, since
they relate both to the completed contract units and to future activity on the contract.

When it is considered probable that estimated contract costs will exceed contract revenue, a provision
for the expected loss is recognised with a charge to the income statement for the year in which the loss
becomes known, regardless of whether the construction units under the contract have been completed
or not,

Real Estate business:

The Group companies recognise property sale revenue and expenses on the date the property is
delivered, since this is considered to be the time when the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
are transferred to the buyers.

Accordingly, at the date of delivery of the property the Group companies recognise, if appropriate, the
provisions required to cover the contractually stipulated costs not yet incurred in relation to the asset
delivered. These provisions arise from a present obligation of the company, the amount of which can
be reliably estimated and whose settlement will probably give rise to an outflow of resources for the
company.

Rental revenue is recognised on an accrual basis, and incentive-related income and the initial costs of

the lease agreements are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
agreement.
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of property developments or
investment property -assets that necessarily require a substantial period of time to be prepared for their
intended use or sale- are added to the cost of said assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for use or sale, provided that the fair value exceeds the accumulated cost of the asset. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Services business:

Revenue associated with the rendering of services is also recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date, provided the outcome of the transaction can be
reliably estimated.

For every year the Group companies recognise as profit or loss on their services the difference
between production (value at the selling price of the services provided during the period, as stipulated
in the main contract entered into with the client or in amendments or addenda thereto as approved by
the client, or of the services not yet approved but whose recovery is reasonably certain) and the costs
incurred during the year, since the revenue and expenses from projects in the services industry can
undergo major changes during the period of performance, which are difficult to predict and quantify
objectively.

Price revisions stipulated under the initial contract entered into with the client are recognised as
revenue on an accrual, basis, regardless of whether they have been approved by the client on an annual
basis.

Energy business:

One of businesses of the Acciona Group is the turnkey construction of wind farms and other energy
production facilities. The total costs incurred in these projects are recognised as operating expenses
and the related sales are recognised in accordance with the stage of completion of the project,
calculated on the basis of the price and terms and conditions of the sale agreement at the cost incurred
and at the estimated cost, based on the detailed budgets of each contract applied since the inception
thereof, Losses on contracts are recognised in full in the year’s profit or loss as soon as they become
known.

P) Income tax. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Income tax expense is calculated by aggregating the current tax arising from the application of the tax

7rate to the adjusted accounting profit for the year, after deducting the tax credits allowable for tax

purposes, plus the change in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the taxes expected to be payable or recoverable on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their fax bases.
They are registered by applying the tax rates at which they are expected to be recovered or settled.

Corporate tax and changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities not arising from business combinations
are recognised in the consolidated income statement or in equity accounts on the consolidated balance
sheet depending on where the profits or losses giving rise to them have been recognised.

Changes arising from business combinations that are not recognised on the acquisition of the
controlling interest because their recovery is not assured are recognised by reducing, where
appropriate, the carrying amount of goodwill recognised when the business combination was

ounted for or, if no such goodwill exists, using the aforementioned method.
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Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences, and tax loss and tax credit carrvforwards are
only recognised if it is considered probable that the consolidated companies will have sufficient future
taxable profits against which they can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised are reassessed at each balance sheet date in order to
ascertain whether they still exist, and the appropriate adjustments are made on the basis of the findings
of the analyses performed.

Q) Foreign currency balances and transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of each company are recognised in the
functional currency by applying the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. During the
year, the differences that arise between the balances translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the
date of the transaction and the balances translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of
collection or payment are recorded as finance costs or finance income in the consolidated income
statement.

In addition, balances receivable or payable at 31 December each year denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies in which the financial statements of the consolidated companies are
denominated are translated to euros at the year-end exchange rates. The translation differences are
recognised as finance costs or finance income in the consolidated income statement.

R) Environment-related activities

In general, environment-related activities are considered to be operations whose main purpose is to
prevent, reduce or redress damage to the environment.

Investments relating to environmental activities are measured at acquisition cost and capitalised as an
addition to non-current assets in the year in which they are made.

Environmental protection and improvement expenses are charged to profit or loss in the year in which
they are incurred, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow arises.

Provisions for probable or certain liability, litigation in process and outstanding environmental
indemnity payments or obligations of unspecified amount, not covered by the insurance policies taken
out, are recorded when the liability or obligation giving rise to the indemnity or payment arises.

S) Discontinued operations and non-current assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

The Group classifies as “Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale” property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, other non-current assets or investments under “Investments Accounted
for Using the Equity Method” and disposal groups (groups of assets which will be disposed of together
with their directly associated liabilities) for which at the date of the consolidated balance sheet an
active programme and at reasonable prices has been started so as to sell them and the sale is expected
to be completed within twelve months from that date.

The Group classifies as “Discontinued Operations” the business lines that were sold or otherwise
disposed of or which meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale, including, where applicable,
assets which, together with the business line, form part of the same disposal plan or are classified as
held for sale as a result of acquired commitments. Similarly, companies acquired exclusively with a
view to resale are classified as “Discontinued Operations™.

These assets or disposal groups are measured at their carrying amount or their fair value less costs to

sell, whichever is the lower, and depreciation on such assets ceases from the time they are classified as
“Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale”. However, at the date of each consolidated balance
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sheet the related value adjustments are made to ensure that the carrying amount is not higher than the
fair value less costs to sell.

Non-current assets held for sale and the components of the disposal groups classified as held for sale
are disclosed in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as follows: the assets as a single line
item called “Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” and the
liabilities also as a single line item called “Liabilities Associated with Non-Current Assets Classified
as Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations™.

Profit or loss after tax of discontinued operations is disclosed as a single line item in the consolidated
income statement as “Profit/Loss after Tax from Discontinued Operations”.

T) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the period’s net profit attributable to the Parent by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during said period, excluding the average
number of shares of the Parent held by the Group companies.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the period’s net profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders adjusted by the effect attributable to the dilutive potential ordinary shares by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares that would have been outstanding if all the potential ordinary
shares have been converted into ordinary shares of the company. For these purposes, it is considered
that the shares are converted at the beginning of the accounting period or at the date of issue of the
potential ordinary shares, if the latter had been issued during the accounting period.

U) Consolidated cash flow statement

The following terms, with the meanings specified, are used in the consolidated statement of cash
flows, which was prepared using the indirect method:

- Cash flows: inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents, which are taken to be changes in
the value of short-term, highly liquid investments.

- Operating activities: the main revenue-producing activities of the Company and other activities
that are not investing or financing activities. Beginning with the profit before tax from continuing
operations, in addition to the adjustment for “Depreciation and Amortisation Charge”, transfers of
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interest paid and received are recognised under “Other Adjustments to Profit (Net)” although on a
separate basis, as well as the transfer of the gains or losses on disposal of non-current assets
included under investing activities and, lastly, the adjustments to the results of companies
accounted for using the equity method and, in general, any results that do not generate cash flows.

- | Investing activities: the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not
included in cash and cash equivalents.

- | Financing activities: activities that result in changes in the size and composition of equity and of
borrowings that are not operating activities.

3.3 Accounting estimates and judgements

The information contained in these financial statements is the responsibility of the Directors of the
nt Company.
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In the consolidated financial statements for 2015 and 2014 estimates were made by the Group’s
Directors in order to measure some of the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and obligations reported
therein. These estimates relate basically to the following:

- The measurement of assets and goodwill so as to determine any impairment losses thereon.
- Distribution of the cost of business combinations.

- Recognition of revenue in the construction activity.

- The assumptions used in the actuarial estimate of pension liabilities and obligations.

- The useful life of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets.
- The assumptions used to measure the fair value of financial instruments.

- The probability of occurrence and the amount of liabilities of an undetermined amount or
contingent liabilities,

- Future costs for shutting down facilities and the restoration of land.

- The results for tax purposes of the various Group companies that will be reported to the tax
authorities in the future, which served as the basis for recognising the various income tax-related
balances in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

These estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at 31 December 2015 and
2014 on the cvents analysed. However, events that take place in the future might make it necessary to
change these estimates. Any such changes would be made in accordance with the requirements of
IAS 8.

3.4 Changes in accounting estimates and policies and correction of fundamental errors

- Changes in accounting estimates: the effect of any change in accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively, under the same income statement heading as that under which the expense or
income measured using the previous estimate was recognised.

Changes in accounting policies and correction of fundamental errors. The effects of changes and
corrections of this kind are recognised as follows: if material, the cumulative effect at the
beginning of the year is adjusted under “Reserves” and the effect for the current year is recognised
in the income statement. In these cases, the financial data for the comparative year presented
together with those for the current year are restated.

At 31 December 2015 there were no material changes in accounting estimates or accounting policies;
nor any corrections of errors. In financial year 2014 the Acciona Group made a new estimate of the
working lives of its wind farms, which changed from 20 to 25 years, and the impact was registered
prospectively.

4. Property, plant and equipment

The changes in financial years 2015 and 2014 in cost and accumulated depreciation were as follows
(in thousands of euros):
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Advaneces
and
property,
plant and Other
Land Electricity Other equipment  property,

Property, plant ard generating  plant and mn plant and
and equipmrent  buildings  facilities | machinery  progress  tquipmest  Degwecistion Impairment | Tomd
Balance at 485,099 10,329,856 1,380,366 185,374 243,170  (3,913,787) (878,798) 7,831,280
31/12/2013
Vananonsdueto  (17,940) 228) (19859 (1917 (1373 3L110 - tan
changes 1 the
seope of
consohrdaiion
Additions/charge 5257 5,466 50,367 307918 13,981 (439.262) 2962)  (59.235)
for the year e
Reductions (2.386) (51,569 (37,292) {502) {21,234) 88281 7,325 (6737
Transfers (3,738) 388,886 119,455  (307,537) {10,163) (25.103) (15.184) 146,616
Other chanpes 2.830 TH 04 1.530 11,518 1,415 (51.888) {12,125y 182,684
;’_’,';ﬁf]ﬁ 469,122 10901821 1444573 195,980 213437 (4310,649)  (901,744) 8,012,540
Vanahons duc o
changes in the - A 53

of (33.372) 76 H B.186 A £2.114)
Additions/charge
for the year 7,581 37.7m 46,310 118,384 9481 (447 867) (3,219)  (231,559)
Reductions (1,100) (2404} (148.238) {5.115) (9972) 102,414 20521 (43,894
Transfers (75,649) 56890  (120,359)  (159.067) (2.631) 107314 (51) (193,553)
Other changes 2,500 208 557 (7,357 (24331} (4.097) {40,938) (11,576 122,767
?1’};;;;;‘; 402,463  11,169263 1,215,005 125,851 206214 (4,581,540 (873.069) 7,664,187

Breakdown of the net balances at the end of 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

Property, plant
and equd 201% 2414
Cost Amortisation lm_ Total Cost Amertisation l?;i:‘- Totel
and and buildings 402,463 (145.194) (1,809) 255 460 469,122 {162,997) - 306,125

T EEOCTANE 11,169,064 (3468,830)  (7BS.760) 6914674 10901821  (3,063227)  (800,1STy  7.038437

806,536 (474,840) (82,880) 248,816 992,626 (563,063) (98,880) 330.683
408,469 {334,525) (2,484} 71460 451,947 (361,268) (2.484) 28,195
125,851 - - 125,851 195980 - -

206,214 {158.151) (136} 47.927 213437 (160,094) (223) 53,120

AT e
iri additions in 3015 were recorded under the heading “Advances in progress” from the energy
or. the é’}gct icity generation facilities in South Africa, Poland and the United States. The
: éatgd i1 South Africa, which began to be built in 2014, has already been transferred to the

L3

efricity generation facilities, since it was already operational at 31 December 2015.

The ma

As regards removals, the main amount is found under the heading “Other plant and machinery”, for
the sale of a tunnel boring machine in the infrastructure division, and for the sale, by the subsidiary
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Compaiiia Trasmediterranea, S.A., of two ships: Superfast Canarias and Superfast Andalucia, for
18,500 thousand euros; the operation did not involve any losses for the group. This fact, together with
the references obtained of the fair values of the ships with market transactions, and the appraisal
values as explained in note 3.2.E), permitted to conclude that the impairments registered in previous
years, in the amount of 81 million euros, were sufficient.

The main movement in “Transfers” was the transfer to Concessions within other intangible assets of
the farm in Chiripa (Costa Rica) for 102 million euros, as it is framed within standard IFRIC 12 after
the analysis of all the contracts associated with the concession, which began to operate at the end of
2014. The Group estimated that the aforesaid classification was not significant over gross and net
values under “plant, property and equipment” so as to have to restate the figures for 2014 according to
IAS 8.

In addition, at 31 December 2015 there was a transfer on reclassification of property, plant and
equipment to the heading “held for sale” of the Windpower subgroup for 90 million euros, gross
amount and accumulated depreciation for 193 and 103 million euros, respectively (see note 23).

“Other changes” in 2015 included the effect of the translation differences in the period for a positive
amount of 121 million euros (negative 216 million euros in 2014), fundamentally from the wind farms
located in the United States and Mexico, where the financial statements are stated in dollars, a
currency that appreciated almost 10% against the euro in the course of 2015.

In financial year 2014 the most significant additions were recorded in the heading for “Advances in
progress” from the energy division for the electricity generation facilities in South Africa and Chile.
The wind farms located in Chile and Costa Rica, as well as the solar plant located in South Africa that
started to be built in 2013, were transferred to the heading for electricity generation facilities, as they
were in operation.

The main removal in 2014 from “electricity generation facilities” was the non-renewal of the operation
of a hydraulic plant; from “Other plant and machinery”, the sale of a ship and sundry machinery in the
infrastructure construction division, which was also reflected in elements booked under the heading
“Other property, plant and equipment”.

Another significant amount was found in the transfers of the “Other plant and machinery” heading,
due to an increase caused by the reclassification, from the heading for assets held for sale, of two
vessels included in that item at the close of financial year 2013.

At 31 December 2015 the amount registered in previous years under “impairments” amounted to 873
million euros, which related to the impairment of ships from the Compafiia Transmediterranea
subgroup for 81 million euros as mentioned before and the remaining amount basically to impairment
of assets from the energy division, both in the international area and in respect of Spanish assets. In the
case of Spanish assets, due to the regulatory change that took place in 2012 and 2013 as explained in
detail in note 2.1 relating to regulatory framework.

In financial year 2015 no impairment was estimated and no significant losses occurred that were not
covered by the provisions in place.

In 2013, the companies capitalised finance costs amounting to 6 million euros as the higher value of
property, plant and equipment and 17.1 million euros at 31 December 2014 (see Note 28).

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment in use at 31 December 2015 and 2014 amounted to
487 and 512 million euros, respectively; most of these assets are currently in use.

At 31 December 2015, the Group companies had property, plant and equipment purchase
commitments amounting to 421 million euros, mainly in the energy division, for new wind and
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photovoltaic projects awarded in the United States and Chile. The amount committed at 31 December
2014 came to 87 million euros.

The Group has taken out insurance policies to cover the possible risks to which its property, plant and
equipment are exposed, and the claims that might be filed against it in the development of its business
activities. These policies are considered to provide adequate cover for the related risks.

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment did not include any significant
amount in 2015 or 2014 in respect of assets acquired under finance lease arrangements.

The Group has mortgaged land and buildings totalling 24 million euros (24 million euros in 2014) to
secure credit facilities granted to the Group by banks. In addition, at 31 December 2015, certain
vessels with a carrying amount of 105 million euros (152 million euros in 2014) had been mortgaged
to secure repayment of the loans received for their acquisition.

5. Investment property

The Group's investment property relates mainly to properties earmarked for lease.

The changes in 2015 and 2014 in the Group’s investment property were as follows:

lsvestment property Thousands of eures
Accumulated
depreciation and
Cost impairment losses Total
Baiance at 31/12/13 17k A99 (81.158) 117.249
Addittons 206 (9.818) (9,612)
Disposals (396) 21 (375}
Transfers 90,411 (16.781) 73,630
Other changes ) (34) (1)
Balance at 31/12/14 268,613 (87,762) 180,851
Addrtions 3230 (11,179) (7.949)
Disposals (198) 322 124
Transfers 748,127 {245,867 502260
Other changes (340) 269 ()
Balance at 31/12/15 1,019,432 (344217 675,215

In 2015 the main changes under this heading related to a transter trom “held for sale” from the Coto
subgroup (property for rent), due to a strategic change in the real estate division, as well as to the
reclassification of land and housing from Inventories to Property investments, due to the change of use
of same because of the revision of the end use of residential housing based on the trend followed by
the property market; all this meant revaluation of the use of certain developments now intended for
rent (see note 23).

The main movement in 2014 related to the transfer, from “non-current assets held for sale”, of two real
properties since their selling processes were stowed down in the course of the year.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the fair market value of the property investments recorded under this
line item on those dates and estimated on the basis of the valuations made by independent appraisers
(see note 3.2. E) amounted to 705,833 million euros (201.46 million euros at 31 December 2014), The
increase in value in 2015 if compared to 2014 was mainly due to the reclassifications indicated on the
table above, from “held for sale” (with an appraised value of 425,160 thousand euros at 31 December
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2014) and from Inventories (with an appraised value of 211, 860 thousand euros at 31 December
2014). If these two impacts are considered, the appraised value in 2014 if compared to 2015 would
amount to 838,478 thousand euros.

The rental income earned by the Group from investment property listed under this heading at 31
December 2015 and 2014, all of which was leased out under operating leases, amounted to 29 million
euros (19 million euros in 2014). For the interpretation of the rental income obtained it must be taken
into consideration that the heading property investments includes assets that are not currently in
operation since there is land in the process of development for future lease. Direct operating expenses
arising from investment property in the period amounted to [0 million euros (6 million euros in 2014),
recognised under “Other Operating Expenses” in the accompanying consolidated income statement.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014 and 2013, the Group had mortgaged a portion of its investment
property included under this heading, for 468 and 90 million euros net, respectively, to secure bank
credit facilities granted to the Group. The increase was mainly due to the reclassifications indicated on
the table above from held for sale and from Inventories to this heading for 313 and 46 million euros,
respectively.

The detail, by location, of the cost of the properties held to earn rentals owned by the Property
Division of the Acciona Group at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Location 2018 2014
Depreciation Depreciation

Cost and provisions Cost and provisions
Madnd 598 401 (152,962) 98.493 (29.724)
The Levant Region 52,533 (23.560) 11,401 (3,687)
Andalusia 90,260 (37410 59,244 (24 849
Catalonia 161,279 (66,218) 67.439 (19,785)
Other 114,782 (63407 29,591 (8.501)
Total 1,017,256 (343,642) 266,168 (86,946)

6. Goodwill

The movements in “Goodwill” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in 2014 were as
follows (in thousands of euros):

Balance at Qiher Ralance at
3112/13 Uditiens Impairment changes 3L1214
Acciona Facility Services subgroup 50,962 50,962
Acciona Water subgroup 27.976 27976
Other 367 {10) 357
Total 79,305 - - (10) 79,298

The movements in “Goodwill” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in 2015 were as
follows (in thousands of euros):

Brlance at Other Baiance at
31/12/14 Addhtions Impairment changes 312118
Acciona Facility Services subgroup 50,962 50,962
Acclona Water subgroup 27976 27976
Other 357 | 358
Total 79,295 - - 1 75,296

At present the main goodwill registered by the Group comes from the subgroup Acciona Facility
Services and Acciona Agua (Acciona Water) for 51 and 28 million euros, respectively. In 2015 the
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update of the impairment test, according to the method described in note 3.2E) did not show the need
to record additional impairment.

The growth rate employed by both subgroups to extrapolate the cash flow projections beyond the five-
year period covered by the forecasts was 1.75%.

The WACC rates after tax that were applied were: 5.68% for Acciona Facility Services and 5.83% for
the Acciona Water subgroup.

A sensitivity test was carried out, particularly in relation to the operating margin, the discount rate and
the perpetuity growth rate, in order to ensure than possible changes in the estimation did not have an
impact on the possible recovery of the goodwill registered. The outcome of these sensitivity tests
indicated that, decreases of 75 basic points in the growth rate applied, increases in the discount rate of
up to 40 basic points and 10% reductions in the net operating margin, these assumptions being
considered jointly, do not change the outcome of the impairment test, that is, no goodwill impairment
is shown.

The Acciona Group applies the acquisition method to account for any and all additions to the Group
that involve the acquisition of a controlling interest.

There were no additions to the group in 2015; the main ones in 2014 are summarised below.

Net increase in

Carrying value of assets

amount of and liabilities

100% of through
Acquisition  Percentage the application of
Company cost acquired company market value Goodwilt/DNC
2014
Compaiia Urbanizada Del Coto, S.L. 15,018 4747% 57,659 (12,353)

The negative consolidation difference generated in the purchase operation for 47.47% of Compafifa
Urbanizadora Coto, S.L. was applied against the goodwill existing in the company. The Acciona
Group had previously been including 50% of it by applying the equity method.

7. Other intangible assets

The changes in 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands of euros):
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Other intangikie assets
Balance at 31/12/13

Changes Jue to changes in
scope of consolidation

Additions / charge for the year
Removals

Transfers

Other changes

Balance at 31/12/14

Changes due to changes i
scope of consoludation

Additions / charge for the year
Removals

Transfers

Other changes

Balance at 31/12/15

Transfer

Development Concessioms  rights
94,122 801,591 1,063
- 1238} -
3,196 31,154 609
1143) (26.157) =
325 (45,897) -
2 3462 (12)
97,502 763,895 1,660
= i =
3,610 25,645 -
(280 (61,8943 -
(42,765) 89,202 (292)
21 {24,003y 27
58,040 789,846 1,341

Computer
software

62,509
819)
2,896

(1681

(3.952)

{43)
59,511
{29}
3.607
(434)

(4,573)
(259}

57,823

The net balances by headings at the close of the financial years 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Intangible assets
Cost
Development 58,040
Concessions 789.846
Transfer rights 1,341
Computer sottware 57,823
Advances 4982
Total 912,632

2015
Amortisation Intpzirment
{52,129) (1,608)
{205 199 193,865)
(537 (35)
(50.175) -
(3£3.940) [95.508)

Total
4,303
490,782
769
7648
4,982
508,484

Accumulated Impairmient
Advances amortisation logses Total

21,958 (283,983) (63,381) 633.879

(14} 603 {438)

2,909 (49,415) - (8,648)

- 1,167 68 (26,146}

(19.461) (61) 184  (68,862)

78 {743) (46 2.696

5470 (332,432) (63,175) 532,431

= 28 = -

2072 (47.883) (18,630) (31,579

(112) 14,398 1.080  (56,.248)

(1,.957) 51,931 - 91,546

(491) 5918 (14.783)  (33.666)

4,982 (308,040) (95,508) 508,484

2014
Cost Amaortisation Impairment Total

97,502 (79,772) (1,608) 16,122
763 895 {202,044) {61,832} 500319
1,660 404) (35) 1,221
5951 £50,.212) - 9299
3,470 - - 5470
928,038 (332,432} 63,17%) 532,431

The “Concessions” line mainly includes those concession assets where the risk of recovering the asset
is assumed by the operator.

In addition, it includes the cost of the administrative concessions, as well as the identifiable intangible
values acquired in business combinations, relating to raft of expectant right and intangible assets, for
the development of future wind projects acquired from third parties through the acquisition of
stakeholdings in the companies holding these rights and the levies paid by Acciona Agua for
concessions related to the integral water cycle.

Breakdown of the concessions line at 31 December 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

Concessions

Cost Amortisation
Admmstrative a
et e 331284 (114.452)
Intangible
Concessions 458,562 (90,747)
(IFRIC 12}
Tutit 789,846 (205,199)

2015
Impairment
(32,210}
(61,655)
193,865)

Taotal

184,622

306,160

490,782

Cost

375,058

388,237

763,895

2014
Amortisation  Impairment Total
{125.789) (18.508) 23] 361
(76,255) (43,024) 268,958
(202,044) (61,832) 500317
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The breakdown of the main concessions is given in Appendix VI and the detail of the balance of the
main concessions under the intangible model (IFRIC 12) at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Concessions 2015 2014
Cost Amortisa- Impairment Cost Amortisa-  Impairment Total
tion Total tion
Rodovia do Ago, S.A 123 322 (16A2T) (58.550) 48150 158,080 | { 13,718_]__‘ { 39.950) 99.{42 ‘
S.C. A2 Tramo 2, S.A. 148,523 (38.936) (3,104) 106,483 148,426 (25,264) (3,104) 116,058
gmi&’” 114345 (.887) ~ 105458 = - = r

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the main additions related to the development of certain concession
operations of the group in the area of road transport infrastructures.

“Removals” reflects mainly the completion of a concession contract in the Water division, which did
not have an impact on equity, the assets and liabilities registered in the concession whose contract
ended being considered.

“Transfers” relates mainly to classification of the wind farm in Costa Rica under this heading for 102
million euros as discussed in note 4.

“Other Changes” includes the effect of translation differences in the period in the negative amount of
34 million euros, mainly from the construction of an infrastructure in Brazil (positive amount of 3
million euros in 2014).

At 31 December 2015 the amount of 8,322 thousand euros of intangible assets from the Windpower
subgroup was classified under the heading “non-current assets held for sale” (see note 23).

In 2015 the concessionaire of a Brazilian motorway, Rodovia do Ago, S.A. showed additional signs of
a drop in its value, mainly due to the worsening of the country’s macroeconomic conditions.

As a result, an impairment test was implemented, as indicated in note 3.2 E) on the basis of the
projection of cash flows estimated after covering the debt service. The discount rate used includes the
country-risk (Brazilian 10-year bond plus market premium) and the average leverage during the life of
the concession, the cost of own capital standing at 13.44%. The impairment calculated amounted to 19
million euros, which was recorded under the heading “impairment of assets” on the accompanying
income statement (see note 26).

As regards the other intangible assets, in 2015 no impairment was estimated and no significant losses
appeared that were not covered with the provisions in place at 31 December 2015.

At 31 December 2015, Group companies had commitments to acquire intangible assets in the amount
of 121 million euros for concession projects in the infrastructure construction division (motorways)
and in the water division. At 31 December 2014, the amount committed came to 103 million euros.
Fully amortised intangible assets in use at 31 December 2015 and 2014 amounted to 90 and 105
million euros, respectively.

8. Investments in associates

The movement in 2014 in this heading on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet was as

follows (in thousands of euros):
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Balance at
Direct investinents of the Parent 31/12/13
Direct investments of the Parent
Consoiero Traza, S A §302
Gran Hospital Can Misses, § A, 4,872
S C Novo Hospital De Vigo S A 14,130
Acciona Nouvelle Autoroute 3§ Inc, 43,180
Taotal dircet investinents 70,490
Indirect investments of the Parent

Indirect investments of the Acciona Energy 148,832
Subgroup
Indiect investments of the Ceatesalas Subgioup 83.713
Indirect investments of the Acciona Infrastructures

31,562
Subgroup
Induect investrrents of the Acctona Concessions 185
Subgroup
Indirect investments of the Acciona Water 104,319
Subgroup
Indnect investments of the Acciona Propeity

3177
Subgroup
Indirect investments of the Acciona 176
Trasmediterranea Subgroup
Other mdirect investments 1713
Total indirect investments 402,677
Total 473,147

Share of
profit (loss) Tax effect and
before tax Dividends aiher changes
{624} - (2 149}
(344) (3,696)
759 = (3.537)
7,899 - =
7,685 = 9.402)
12,039 (3,999} 2,066
L1170 (960) 357
5,008 - (5.326)
2956 3m b 406)
20,253 (11,780) (11,934)
{4 361) {3.420)
191 {13) (189)
(49) < 192
37,207 (17,125) (24,660)
44,892 {17,125 (34,062)

Changes in
the year

(51,079)
(51,079)

(36)
(630)
(17,171)
6947
2,553
(17.302}

3
(25,643)
176,722)

Bilance at
31.12.14

5,504
832
11,358

17,694

158,902
83,630
14,073

3,509

103,411

6,887

165
1,839
372,456
390,150

The movement in 2015 in this heading on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet was as

follows (in thousands of euros):

Balance at
Direct investmends of the Parent 3112113
Direct investments of the Parent
Consorcio Traza, S.A. 5,504

Gran Hospital Can Misses, S A §32

8.C. Novo Hospital De Vige S.A. 11,358
Total direet investment 17,694
Indirect investaiznts of the Acciona Enelgy 1SR 902
Subgroup

Indirect investments of the Ceatesalas Subgroup 83,650
Indmrect investments of e Acciona Infiastructuies 14.073
Subgroup

Indirect investments of the Acciona Concessions 3,509
Subgroup

Indirect investments of the Accrona Water 103 451
Subgioup (*)

Indirect investments of the Acciona Property 6,887
Subgroup

Indirect investments of the Accrona 165
Trasmediteitanea Subgroup

Other indirect investments 1,859
Total mdirect investments 372456
Total 390,150

Share of
profit {(loss) Ta» effect and
before tax Dividends other changes
(516) 614
96 - 1,036
68 . 549
(352) - 2,199
19 189 {36.908) {TSH)
7.406 (1,984) (994)
4,652 - 193
4,397 (57T) (2439
15,679 (9.928) (4,743)
8,886 (5,385) (3,027
61 14) (112)
136 113 {1,081)
60,406 (54.901) (12,956)
60,054 (54,901) (10,757)

Changes in
the year

2340

(3,139)
1801

7.814
3128

10,439

&)
24,568
24,568

Balance at
J1.12,14

5,602
1,964
11,975
19,541

142,865

84,939
22,814

12,704
107 547
17 800
110

794
389,573
409,114

(*} Indirect Investments of the Acciona Water Subgroup includes the concessionaire ATLL, which contributes a value on application of the
equity method of 52,123 thousand euros and whose key figures are detailed in this note,
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The Acciona Group’s interests in associates are detailed in Appendix III to these notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

When the Group’s investments in associates, mainly certain toll road concession operators, which are
consolidated by application of the equity method, are reduced to zero, and where there could be
implicit obligations exceeding the contributions made, the losses or equity decreases are recognised
under “Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions” on the consolidated balance sheet (see Note 17). In these

cases, the loss is recognised under “Other Gains or Losses™ instead of “Profit/(Loss) of Companies
Accounted for Using the Equity Method™.

The heading “Tax effect and other changes” reflects, in addition to the year’s tax effect, the changes
due to derivatives, translation differences and the effect of transfers to non-current liabilities of values
than become negative after application of the equity method.

In 2015, the main movements in “changes in the year” stemmed from the incorporation of the
companies Nuevo Hospital de Toledo, S.A. and Nexus Infrastructure Holding Unit Trust (both of the
Acciona Concessions Subgroup). In the Acciona Inmobiliaria Subgroup (Acciona Properties), the
amount under the heading “changes in the year” relates to the change in the consolidation method for
the companies Torre Lugano, S.A. and Parque Reforma Santa Fe, S.A. de C.V, which are now
consolidated by applying global consolidation and the equity method, respectively, because of the

present conditions of the shareholders’ agreements, and the impact of the change to the consolidation
method is not significant.

10 million from “Tax effect and other changes” relate to the change due to derivatives and -3 million
to the change due to translation differences.

The table below shows, in proportion to the share percentage in the capital of each of the associates
included under this heading, the assets, liabilities, revenue and profit or loss for 2015 (the figures

related to associates with an equity deficit, recognised on the liability side of the consolidated balance
sheet, are detailed in Note 17):

Energy Construetion Water Services pher  Toml 201
Asset
Non-cuirent assets 595,688 339,416 529126 2,040 12034 1,478,304
Current assets 75,129 92,122 135,583 5,701 29,173 337,708
Total assets 670,517 431,538 664,709 7,741 41207 1816412
-—=-'=_: Liabilities .
2.\ [Bautty 227,806 55,581 107,549 268 17,910 409,114
% Z5 Non-current liabilities 380,594 345,228 415355 4971 4603 1.150,751
g ru;'!'u Current labilities 62417 30729 141,805 2502 18,60 256,147
¥
5 & fotal liabilities and equity 670,817 431,538 664,709 7,741 41207 1,816,012
. E = Profit or loss
S % e Netrovenue 123.968 64,034 144,249 5,960 29366 367,577
& '.;‘f. % ki 26740 9.118 15,67 @31 8948 60,054
t ‘.;a-:; fit before tax 26,740 9,118 15,679 @31) 8,948 60,054
g l:;% None of the associates is individually significant for the entity except for ATLL Concesionaria de la
.1 = |Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A., for which we detail below the main key figures at 39%, the percentage
%:E %_-P‘: eld by the Acciona Group:
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Assets 2015 2014

Non-current assets 388,396 393,105
Curnent assets 22,280 30001
Cash and cash equivalents 36,410 23,252
Total assets 447,092 446,358
Liabilities

Equity 52123 56.554
Non-current financial liabilities - 34,214
Non-cuntent habiliies 308,944 319578
Current financial liabilities 35,092 2,971
Cutent lrabnletes 50,913 33,043
Total equity and liabilities 447,092 446,358
Profit/{loss)

Revenue 58,686 56,211
:lcﬁffub;fm: tax fiom contimnng 3948 3870
Profit before tax 3,948 3.870

9, Interests in joint venmtures

The Acciona Group’s interests in joint ventures are explained in Appendix II to these Notes to the
consolidated financial statements. The most significant amounts included in the consolidated financial
statements, in relation to these interests, at 31 December 2015 are summarised as follows:

Companies JVs
Revenue 107,554 840,161
Gross profit/(loss) fiom operations (6.930) 86,358
Profit/(loss} from operations (10,365) 69.506
Non-cuirent assets 6l 836 T2 694
Current assets 65,783 792,135
Non-cunent liabilimes 3483 85,033
Current liabilities 83,863 782,260

There are no stakeholdings in Joint Arrangements that are material for the entity.

10. Current and non-current financial assets

Detail of the balance for this chapter on the consolidated balance sheet is as follows:
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2015 2014
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Avaslable-for-sele financral assets 26,230 2 26,087 4
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets (10,192) 0 (8.137) -
Finauctal derrvatives at fau valye (Nete 20) 780 o i4 -
Held-to-mﬁturity investments . 376,435 - 349.636
Deposits and guaraniees 13.769 14,593 10999 8,250
Other loans 133,501 22,053 130,692 11,620
Impairment of ather loans (4,003) (238) (3,921 (#19)
Net Total 160,045 412,863 155,734 369,107

Avatlable-for-sale financial assets:

The changes in “Available-for-Sale Financial Assets” in the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014
were as follows:

mount of 2 million euros sustained by an investee of the Acciona Infrastructures subgroup (see note
6).

Nos-cument
Balance at 31/12/13 73.366
Addttions : R i
Sales (53.114)
Changes in faiy value 5467
Transfers -
Other changgs 210
Changes in the scope of consolidation (12)
Closing halance at 31/12/14 26.687
Additions 125
Sales (109)
Changes in fair value 7
Transfers 0
Other changes 235
Changes m the scope of consolidation an
Balance at 31/12/15 26.280
Impairment losses
Balanee at 3171213 £28.361)
Additions (209)
Sales ] 20433
Transfers -
Other changes -
Closing balance at 31/12/14 (8.137)
[ Additions (2.055)

% Sales i

% Other changes

P Changes 1 the scope of consolidation

x= Balance at 31/12/15 (10.192)

p= Net Total . 16.088

-

« No significant changes took place in 2015. The only thing worth mentioning is the impairment in the

=

-

e main changes in 2014 related to the lines “Changes due to changes in fair value” and “Sales”,
= ainly due to the revaluation of the stakeholding in Bolsas y Mercados Espafioles, S.A. until July
i== 2014, when this stakeholding was sold for a total of 28 million euros and a capital gain of 27 million
uros was generated. After this sale, at 31 December 2015, the Group kept only a stakeholding under
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“available-for-sale financial assets” with changes in value in reserves, with a balance of 1.4 miflion
euros at the closing date.

Furthermore, within the Acciona Infrastructures subgroup, practically the entire stakeholding in
Gteeisu Construction, S.A. was sold in October 2014. The acquisition and impairment costs were 25
and 20 million euros, respectively, and the result of this transaction was recorded under the heading
“Profit/(loss) from changes in value of financial instruments at fair value” (see Note 26).

Held-to-maturity investments:

This heading relates basically to the tunds allocated to the debt service reserve accounts by the Energy
division for the projects under way as required by Project Finance clauses in force. The main changes
in financial year 2015 related to the setting-up of this reserve fund after the start-up of the last
electricity generation facilities.

Qther loans

This related mainly to loans granted to companies consolidated by applying the equity method.

11. Biological assets

Breakdown of current and non-current biological assets at 31 December 2015 and 2014 was as follows
(in thousands of euros):

IS JL12.2014

Non-current 6,839 6,836
Current = -
Total biological assets 6,839 6,336

Non-current biological assets relate mainly to the vineyards belonging to the Hijos de Antonio Barceld
subgroup, which in accordance with IAS 41 must be measured at fair value. The year-on-year changes
in the value of these assets were not material.

12. Non-current receivables and other non-current assets

Breakdown of “Non-Current Receivables and Other Non-Current Assets™ at 31 December 2015 and
2014 was as follows:

31.12.2018 31.12.2014

Non-current operating receivables 70,594 76,636
Non-cunient prépayments and accrued incame 26,560 50082
Concessions under the non-current financial asset model 357,848 3154982
:’;;?énon-cmem receivables and other nor-current 455,602 436,710

“Non-Current Operating Receivables” included mainly client balances and other trade receivables
generated by operating activities maturing at over one year and also the retentions that are customary
in the construction business.

“Non-current prepayments and accrued income” includes the amount of 16,977 thousand euros related

to the initial value of an energy contract entered into, in December 2015, by a subsidiary in the United
States, to supply a specific amount of energy for a term of 13 years.
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“Concessions under the Non-Current Financial Asset Model” included the balance receivable to more
than one year for concessions which, in accordance with IFRIC 12, were treated as financial assets,
since there was an unconditional collection right on the investment made to date. The current portion
of this unconditional collection right was recognised under “Trade and Other Receivables” based on
the collections expected to be made by the grantors of the concessions under the various economic and
financial plans. At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the balance reclassified to short term in the
“Concessions under the Current Financial Asset Model” under the heading “Trade and Other
Receivables” for the amount expected to be collected by the granting entities in the next twelve
months came to 16,203 and 17,175 thousand euros, respectively (see Note 14).

Breakdown, by division, of “Concessions under the Non-Current Financial Asset Model” was as
follows:

31122015 31122014

Construction of Infrastructure division 347,222 342,462
Water division 10,626 12,520
Total 357,848 354,982

The main concession projects included in the Infrastructure division relate to hospitals and motorways,
and those in the Water division relate to the integral water cycle and are detailed in Appendix VL

Breakdown of the balance of the main concessions the financial model at 31 December 2015 and 2014
was as follows:

31122015 31122004
S.C. Acciona Concesiones Ruta 160 218,878 209,060
8.C. Hospital del Norte, S A 86,592 $9,939

The change in financial year 2015 related, on the one hand, to the increase in investment based on the
stage of completion of the concession works under construction, mainly in Chile, within the
infrastructure construction division, for 5 million euros, and to recognition of income on interest for 17

million euros (see note 25), as well as to the reclassification of 16 million euros to short-term accounts
as discussed above.

At 31 December 2015, the Group companies had commitments to acquire concession assets under the
financial asset model in the amount of 1 million euros, most of which related to concession
arrangements awarded to the infrastructure division (3 million euros at 31 December 2014).

13. Inventories

The detail of the Group’s inventories at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as follows (in thousands of
€uros):

2015 2014
Raw materials, other procurements and goods held for resale 185,165 298,091
Wosk in progress and half-finished goods 38,702 30,178
Finished goods 2.573 2,895
Assets received in payment of joans 16,704 24,993
Land 635,255 841,518
Property developments m progress 17.421 45,887
Completed property developments 42,637 141,865
Advances paid 115048 153,729
Impairment (314,403) (496,512)
Total inventeries 740,102 1,042,644
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The main movement in 2015 related to the reclassification of land and housing from inventories to
property investments, in the gross amount of 282 million euros (133 million euros net in impairment),
due to the change in use thereof because of the revision of the final use intended for residential
housing according to the trend followed by the real estate market; this meant revaluation of the use of
certain developments now to be used for rent (see note 5). In addition, another significant portion of
the decrease in inventories was due to the reclassification to “held for sale” of the Windpower
subgroup (see note 23).

The Group’s Directors, on the basis of the valuations and appraisals performed by Savills Consultores
Inmobiliarios, S.A. and Instituto de Valoraciones, S.A., independent property appraisers not related to
the Group, estimated that the fair value of the Group’s property inventories at 31 December 2015 and
2014, including inventories related to the companies consolidated using the equity method, amounted
to 535,995 million euros. In this respect, the impairments endowed in the consolidation process were
sufficient to absorb the current trend of the fair values of these assets, incorporating the distortions and
uncertainties currently persisting in the real estate market.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014 the carrying amounts of mortgaged inventories were 30,600 and
97,520 thousand euros, respectively, and related mostly to property developments completed in 2015
and 2014. The balance at 31 December 2014 included 46 and 21 million euros related to the
reclassification to property investments because of the change in use discussed above and because of
the change in the consolidation method of the subsidiary Parque Reforma Sante Fe, respectively (see
notes 5 and 8), which must be taken into account to explain the trend of the balance of mortgaged
inventories.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were no firm land purchase commitments.

Property development sales commitments to clients at 31 December 2015 and 2014 amounted to
16,502 and 87,048 thousand euros, respectively. The balance at 31 December 2014 included 76
million euros related to the aforementioned subsidiary that passed on to be consolidated under the
equity method. From the balance at 31 December 2015, the amount of 13,427 thousand euros had been
collected or was instrumented in notes and bills receivable, the balancing entry of which was recorded
under “Current Trade and Other Payables™ on the liability side of the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet until the date of delivery (35,859 thousand euros at 31 December 2014).

14. Trade and other receivables

The detail of “Trade and Other Receivables™ at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

2015 2014
Trade receivables 1,153,343 1,449,185
Doubttul trade receivables 68,451 62,546
Amounts to be billed for work performed 504,802 515,544
Total trade receivables for sales and services 1.726,596 2,027,278
Receivable from associates 67,953 81,939
Sundry accounts receivable 154,135 168.677
Current concessions under the financial asset model (Note 12) 16,203 17.175
Provisions (352.469) (355.032)
Total trade and other receivables 1,612,418 1,940,034
Advances from clients 1573,319) (852.608)
Total net balance at 31 December 1,039,099 1,087,426

In 2015, the balance of “advances from clients” was considerably reduced as a result, mainly, of the
reclassification to “Assets held for sale” under assets on the balance sheet of the wind turbine

54




TRANSLATION

manufacture business in the Energy division, as indicated in note 23. In addition, the balance of
receivables from clients in the Construction division dropped significantly, which is explained by the
dynamics typical of its activity.

Breakdown, by business activity, of the balance of trade receivables for sales and services, net of
client advances, was as follows:
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2018
Central Government 12,148
Regionsl Goveraments 12.093
Local Governments 8,170
Other 4,74%
Public-sector subtotal 37,160
Prrvate-sector subiotal 131,886
Total Spanish clients 168,246
Total foreign clients 251,124

Breakdown, by age, of receivables from clients was as follows:

2015
Age up to 3 months by date of invoice 787,599
Age between 3 and 6 manths by date of invorce 36,721
Age over 6 months by date of mvoice 320,023
Total 1,153,343
Trvoroes past dee by more than 3 months and not 156.916
provisioned 3

2015 014
Energy 779,186 592,246
Construction of Infrastructure 425319 666,917
Water 137,474 147,751
Services 177.185 186,551
Other Activities 164,212 166,120
Intra-Group transactions (644.277) (672,159)
Total nct balance at 31 December 1,839,699 1,087,426

Breakdown relating to the construction business was as follows:

2018 2014
Progress billings receivable 492,798 674,903
Amaumts te be bitled for work performed 454.040 481978
Sundry accounts receivable 207,607 236,690
Provismons - (Ze3935 {263.370%
Total construction trade receivables 888,520 1,130,001
Advances from clients {468,151) (438038
Total net balance at 31 December 419,369 671,343

Breakdown, by type of client, of the net balance of construction trade receivables was as follows:

2014
44,109
19,201

5774
44278
113,362
253,764
367,126
364,217

2614
1,085.263
102,356
261,566

1,449,188

172 06

The movement in provisions for losses due to impairment in the value of receivables at 31 December
2015 and 2014 was as follows:
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2415 2014
Opening balance (355,032) (354,650)
Increase in provision for impairment of accounts receivable (21.379) {40,405)
Accounts receivable de-registered as impossible to collect 5,680 14,931
Revetsal of amounts not used 5.645 25815
Transfer to Non-current assets held for sale (note 23) 11,548 -
Reclassifications and other minos adjustents 1519 {633}
Closing balance (352,469) (355,032)

15. Cash and cash equivalents

Detail of “Cash and Cash Equivalents™ at 31 December 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

2015 2014
Cash 1,028,293 1,104,362
Deposits and othiz 431 880 222,450
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,460,173 1,326,812

“Cash and Cash Equivalents” included mainly the Group’s cash, bank deposits and risk-free deposits
with initial maturity of three months or less. None of the balances under this heading was unavailable.

In 2015 and 2014 the cash and cash equivalent balances earned interest at market rates.

16. Equity

a) Subscribed and registered share capital
The Parent’s share capital is represented by 57,259,550 fully paid-up ordinary shares of 1 euro par
value each, represented by book entries. All the Parent’s shares carry the same rights, are listed and
there are no restrictions as to their transferability under the Articles of Association.

The table below shows, based on the notices received by the company, the owners of significant direct
and indirect equity interests at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

31.12.2015  31.12,2014

Tussen de Grachten, B.V. 27.69% 27.17%
Wit Europesse Investering, BV (*) 28.04% 26.75%
Fil Limited (*¥) -- 1.044%

Capital Research and Management ]
407% -
Company {(**)
(*) Formerly called Entreazca, BV.
(**) Indirect holder of the equity interest.

Wit Europesse Investering, B.V. and Tussen de Grachten, B.V. signed a securities loan granted to
HSBC of up to 3 million shares as a whole, divided equally between them, so that securities loans can
be furnished to investors within the framework of the convertible bond issue made by Acciona, S.A. in
2014 and reported to CNMY as a Material Event under registration number 198,666.

b) Share premium and reserves

The balance of the “Share Premium” account, which at 31 December 2015 and 2014 amounted to
170.11 million euros, arose as a result of the capital increases with share premiums carried out on
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different dates. The rewritten text of the [Spanish] Capital Companies Act expressly permits the use of
the share premium account balance to increase capital and does not establish any specific restrictions
as to the use of said balance.

Detail of the share premium, reserves and value adjustments as appearing on the consolidated
statement of changes in equity was as follows:

2814 as13
Issue premium 170,110 170,1 lﬂl
Legal reserve 11,452 1143
Reserve for retired capital 10.454 g 10,453_;
Vohmiary reserves 2,682,763 2,626,074
Consolidated reserves (Note 16.d) 462,128 379,910
Subtotal reserves 3,166,797 3821589
Transtation differences (Note 16 d) 57,968) (25,264)
Total reserves 3,248,939 : 3,166,735
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The legal reserve, to which transfers must be made until 20% of the share capital is reached, can be
used to increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall below 10% of the
increased share capital amount. Otherwise, until the legal reserve does not reach 20% of share capital,

it can only be used to offset losses, provided that there are no other reserves available in a sufficient
amount for this purpose.

c) Treasury shares

The changes in treasury shares in financial years 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2615 2014
N':::r‘:"f Cast Nm"f Cost

Opening balance 534,499 28,895 140,440 6461

Addrtions 3428656 247,091 - =

Removals (3.391,297)  (244.121) = 5
Liguidity contract 37,359 2970

Additions 615935 2,747 466,283 25774

Removils (867.333) (54374 (72,224) (3.340)
Other movements (251,398) (11,627)

End balence 320.460 20,238 534,499 23,895

Last 3 July 2015 Acciona, S.A. reported subscription of a liquidity contract with Bestinver Sociedad
de Valores, S.A. for the management of its treasury stock. The company’s stock operations carried out
by Bestinver within the framework of this contract will take place on the Spanish stock exchanges and
the purpose will be to promote the liquidity of transactions as well as a regular quotation.

The term of the liquidity contract will be twelve months, which can be tacitly extended for an equal
period. The number of shares earmarked for the securities account associated with this contract
amounts to 48,000 shares and the amount earmarked for the cash account is 3,300,000 euros. At 31

December 2015 the profit obtained was 652 thousand euros, recognised in reserves.
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As regards other movements, in 2015 48,000 shares were used for the liquidity contract, as discussed
in the paragraph above, and 819,333 shares were retired, with a profit of 4,972 thousand euros,
recognised in reserves. Part of the retired shares related to the delivery of 51,149 shares mainly to the
Group’s Management, under the Share Delivery Plan and the variable remuneration Substitution Plan,
with a profit of 909 thousand euros (sce note 34).

In 2014 a total of 466,283 shares were acquired for 25,774 thousand euros. In addition, 72,224 shares
were retired, with a 1,136 thousand euros gain, recognised in the year’s reserves, due to the delivery of
shares, mainly to Senior Management under the Share Delivery Plan approved by the General
Meeting.

d} Reserves of consolidated companies and translation differences

Detail, by line of business, of the consolidation reserves contributed by subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates and of the related translation differences at 31 December 2015 and 2014 was as follows (in
thousands of euros):

2013 2014

Line of Consolidated  Translation  Consolidated Translation

business reserves differences reserves differences
Energy (645 335 21086 (836,990} 3714
Infrastructure 202,279 (89,771 206,788 (15,859
Water 91,719 {4 885) 77401 {2 837"
Services (71,104) (314) (56,577) 929
Other Acuvities 924626 {1:.078) 1.034 992 {11.191)
Consolidatien
adjustments (40,057) - (45,704) -
Tatal 462,128 (87.968) 379,910 (25,264)

A breakdown, by company, of the consolidation reserves at fully and proportionately consolidated
companies and at companies accounted for using the equity method and of the related translation
differences at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is provided in Appendix V.

In addition to the Parent, at 31 December 2015, the Group company Mostostal Warszawa, S.A. was a
listed company. The average market price of this company in the last quarter was PLN 13.85 and the
market price at year-end was PLN 13.00.

¢) Value adjustments

*  Available-for-sale financial assets
This heading under “Retained Earnings™ in the consolidated balance shect includes the amount, net of
the related tax effect, of changes in the fair value of assets classified as available for sale. These

changes are recognised in the consolidated income statement when the assets that give rise to them are
sold.

The changes in the balance of “Value Adjustments” in 2015 and 2014 were as follows:
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2015 2014
Balance at 1 January 179 15,432
Increases m value m the yoar = 3838
Decreases in value in the year (30) -
Transter to results 1 the year - (19,081)
Changes in the scope of consolidation = =
Belance at 31 December 149 e

In 2014 the Group divested itself of all the securities it held in the company Bolsas y Mercados

Espafioles, transferring the increases in value accumulated to date to the income statement in the
amount of 19 million euros, net of the tax impact.

= Cash flow hedges

This heading under “Retained Earnings™ in the consolidated balance sheet includes the amount net of

the tax effect of changes in the fair value of financial derivatives designated as cash flow hedging
instruments {see Noie 20).

The changes in the balance of this item in 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014

Balance at 1 January 427377 (324,237
® Changes 1n value m the year (51,456) (187.209)
Gross (68.661) (226 ,259)

 Tax effect 17165 39,050

& Transfer to income for the year 114,005 81,069
Gros 152,006 115813

Tax effect (38,001) (34,744)
Balanee at 31 December 364.368) (427.377)

f) Non-controlling interests

The balance of “Non-Controlling Interests” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet reflects
the equity of non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries. Also, “Non-Controlling Interests” on the

accompanying consolidated income statement reflects the share of non-controlling interests of the
profit or loss for the year.

The movement in 2014 was as follows (in thousands of euros):

=
_:’ Changes in
rm scope & Value Year's
l‘:'?l Balance capital adjust- Profit/ Balapee
N at contrib./ wments and {LLoes) at
¥ = Company 31AM13 remawed  Dividends otier 31712004
= g_?. Hospital del Norte 717 - = (80) 119 756
T = |Mostostal Warszawa subgroup 7508 (3,009) = =7 (3023 4,145
25 % =7 |Parque Reforma 4,995 e - (19) 1,156 6,132
% €= |Acciona Enerey subgroup {6.246) = (180) 4.896) 4672 (6.650)
S E'?; Acciona Energy Internacional subgroup 138,487 37,132 (11,799) 27358 12,918 204,096
s = de Cogeneracion subgioup 10 - - (1) W 8
. w2 |Alabe subgroup (65) . - = 66 1
-, Zt3 pa Infrastructures subgroip 475 (106) = m 3983 4,638
& cciona Forwarding subgroup 272 14 - 15 85 386
7 = Wrasmediterranca subgroup 14,261 - - (364) (750) 13,147
: catesalas subgroup 5933 (70) (296) (189) 127 5,505
wbgroup : - 1,086 = 26 170 L
Total non-controlling interests 166,348 34,993 (12,275) 22,129 22,243 233438
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(1) Excluding the Acciona Energy Internacional subgroup

The movement in 2015 was as follows (in thousands of euros):

Changes in
scope & Value Year's
Balsnce capital adjust- Profit/ Balapce
at contrib./ nents and (E.0ss) at

Company 311214 reiarned Dividends other 31/12/15
Hospital del Norte 756 - - 51 118 925
Mustostal Warszawa subgioup 4145 - {352) () 3.985 7576
Parque Reforma 6,132 (6,132) - - - -
Acciona Energy subgroup (1) {6.650) 4.533 (133 2812 2.884 3.446
Acciona Energy Internacional subgroup 204,096 4,154 (11,154) 9,603 17,792 224491
Inewopa de Cogenetacion subgioup § - - - - 8
Alabe subgroup | - - - (1) -
Acciona Infrastructures subgroup 4,630 - - (3.543) 2,647 3,734
Acciona Service subgroup 386 145 - 48] 212 742
Trasmediterranea sukzioup 13.147 - - 51 1,191 14,389
Ceatesalas subgroup 5,505 (649) (12) 131 354 5.329
Inosa subgroup 1,282 - - 1315) 1747 220
Total nen-controlling interests 233,438 2,051 (11,851) 8,787 28,435 260,860

(1) Excluding the Acciona Energy Internacional subgroup

In 2015 “Value adjustments and other” included changes in the non-controlling interest due to
exchange rate fluctuations in the amount of 8 million euros, mainly as a result of the appreciation of
the US dollar against the euro (22 million in 2014). Any other changes were not significant.

On 3 October 2014 the Group formalized an agreement for the transfer, without loss of control, of a
one-third stakeholding in the capital of the Acciona Energy Internacional subgroup, included in the
Acciona Energy subgroup, to a vehicle in the KKR global infrastructure fund. The impact on the
balance item “Non-controlling interests” of the aforesaid transaction, which came to 23 million euros,
is shown in the column “Changes in scope of consolidation” on the table about movements above (see
Note 2.2 h).

In addition, in financial year 2014, also within the Acciona Energy Internacional subgroup, increases
occurred in the non-controlling interest, through capital contributions of 13 million euros in two
generation facilities, a wind farm and a photovoltaic plant both located in South Africa.

Summarised financial information for those subgroups or subsidiaries representing a material portion
of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions and for which no dominant stakeholdings are held is
shown below.

Acciona Cia.

31.12.2015 Energy Acciona Mostestal — Trasmedite-

' Internacional Thermuselar Warszana, rrinea

Sabgroup Subgroup S.A. Subgroup

% Non-controlling interests 33.33% 15.00% 49.91% 7.29%
ASSETS

Non-current assets 3156 947 845 815 56,900 294 093

Current assets 450,166 270,248 270,108 124,558

Fotal Assets 3.607.163 1,116,063 327,017 418,651

LIABILITIES
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Equity
Attributed Equity
Non-controlling interests
Non-curvent lzabilihes
Current liabilities

Total Liabilities

PROFITALOSS)
Revenue

Operating profit
Profit/(loss) before tax

Profit/(loss) after tax
Profit/(loss) attributed to Non-
controlling mterests

Profit/(loss) atteibured to the parent

31.12.20E4

% Non-controlling interests

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Equity
Armibuted Equity
Non-controlling interests
Non-cutrent habilities
Current liabilities

Total Lishelities

PROFIT OR LOSS
Revenus

Operatmg profit

Profit or (loss) before tax

Profit o1 (Joss) after tax

Profit or (loss) attributed to Non-
controlling interests

Profit or (loas) attributed to the parent

341 475
143,826
197,649

3,086.841
178,847

3,607,163

444,195
188,892
49213
K478
(15,082)

13.396

Accionn

Encrgy
Internacional

Subgroup
33.33%

3,058,830
445,900
3,504,730

318,697
145434
173,263

2,992,285
193,748

3,504,730

512,990
300,809
60,096
45,648
(7,960)

3g.638

(35.094)
(35,094)
801,908
349,249
1116,063

118,933
53,651
4,062
5424

5424

Acciona
Thermesolar
Subgronp

15 00%

831,569
289,065
1.170.534

(55.719)
(55.779)
1,167,086
59327
LA70,634

112,022
53,529
736
27.995

27995

3,868
(1,678)
5,546
94,274
228,875
J3T0LT

304,085
11,726
9,652
7,647
(157
7491

Mostostal
Warszaws,
8.4,
4991%

68,469
284,337
352,806

3,460
(2,390)
5,850
93,732
255,614
352,806

355,006
7,091
3,196

{1,225)
(603)

(1,828)

197 566

197579 !

(13)

22 983
198,102
418,651

424 170
31,158
25317
31364

31,366

O,
Trasmedite-
rrinea

Subgronp

729%

363,790
143,530
507,320

180,506
180.517
(n
79.497
247317
§47,320

417,125
(1.165)
(11,001)
(10,185)
8

(10.177)
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g) Capital management

The main objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard its capacity to continue
operating as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholders and to benefit
other stakeholders, and also to maintain an optimal financial and equity structure to reduce the cost of
capital. As a result of this policy, creating value for the shareholder is compatible with access to
financial markets at a competitive cost in order to cover both debt refinancing and investment plan
financing needs not covered by funds generated by the business.

In order to maintain and adjust the capital structure, the Group may vary the amounts of the dividends
payable to the shareholders, return capital, issue shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

In line with other groups in the industries in which the Acciona Group operates, the capital structure is
controlled on the basis of the leverage ratio. This ratio is calculated as the result of dividing net debt
by equity. Net debt is calculated as the sum of current and non-current bank borrowings, excluding
those relating to held-for-sale assets, less current financial assets and cash and cash equivalents.

The leverage ratio at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is shown below.

Leveraze
Miliens of eures
2015 2014
Net financial debt: 5,159 5,294
Non-cunent bank botiowings 5,805 5,918
Current bank borrowings 1,137 1,072
Curtent financial assets and cash end cash equivalents (1873) (1.696)
Equity: 3,754 3,613
Of the Parent 3,493 3,380
Of non-controlling intezests 261 233
Leverage 137% 147%

h) Restriction on the distribution of funds by subsidiaries

Certain Group companies have clauses in their financing contracts that have to be met in order for
profit to be distributed to the shareholders. Specifically, the clauses stipulate the maintenance of a
senior debt coverage ratio in financing contracts.

17. Provisions and litigation

The movement in the long-term provisions on the liability side of the consolidated balance sheets at 31
December 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

31122015 31.12.2014

QOpening balance 453,588 533,121
Additions and provisions 47,023 31,124
Removals (55.,453) (18,112)
Transfers (18431} {62 008)
Other changes (6,482) (30,537}
Clesing balauice 420,245 453,588

The Acciona Group operates in different businesses and in a great number of countries with very
specific industry regulations. In the normal course of its business, the Group is exposed to litigation
related to these business activities, including most notably: tax claims, claims related to defects in
construction projects performed and claims related to differences regarding services rendered. Part of
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these risks are covered by insurance policies (third-party liability, construction defects, etc.) and for
the other risks identified, the required provisions are recognised. The nature and amount of the main

provisions are detailed below.

a) Constructive obligations: Provisions are recognised for the constructive obligations of subsidiaries
accounted for using the equity method when the Group’s investments in associates have been reduced

to zero. At 31 December 2015, the provision in this connection amounted to 69 million euros (76
million euros at 31 December 2014). The table below shows detail, by division and in proportion to
the Group’s share percentage in the capital of each, of the assets, liabilities, revenue and profit/(loss)

for 2015 of the associates for which a provision was recognised.

Emergy Censtruction Water Serviees Teoml 2015
Assets
Non-cusrent assets 44,670 4TI ARG 53,639 1,506 572301
Cutrrent assets 11,974 33,742 3,296 5.005 54,017
Total assets 56.644 506.228 56,935 6511 626318
Liabilities
Equity (5.535) {59.391) (3,669) (610) (69.20%)
Non-current liabilities 35,347 409,166 57,080 1,136 502,729
Current ligbilities 26,832 156.453 3,524 5585 192,794
Total equity and Habilities 56,644 506,228 56,935 6,511 626,318
Profit/(Loss)
Revenue 6,220 18,179 6,551 15,063 46.013
m":ﬁ;’“’ e BT (788) (1821 952 61 1.596)
Profit/{Loss) before tax (788) (1,821 952 61 (1,596)

This section includes, in the infrastructure construction division, a provision in the amount of 29
million euros for the companies Infraestructuras y Radiales, S.A. and Henarsa, S.A., companies
undergoing voluntary creditors® meeting proceedings as declared on 5 September 2013 by Business
Court no. 10 in Madrid on. Similarly, there is a provision in the amount of 5 million euros for
Sociedad Concesionaria Puente del Ebro, S.A., a company undergoing voluntary creditors’ meeting
proceedings as declared on 4 November 2014 by Business Court no. 2 in Zaragoza.

b) Levies, taxes and local charges: these relate to provisions for regional, state or international levies,

g_ E ’ taxes and local charges arising from construction work and infrastructure development and taxes in
= :.-1':.' general which, in view of the varying interpretations that can be made of the tax legislation, could give
s o rise to contingent tax liabilities in the various countries in which the Acciona Group operates. At 31
o 2 December 2015, the provision in this connection amounted to 41 million euros (59 million euros at 31
5 = December 2014), In the financial year payments in the amount of 18 million euros were made, mainly
- _5‘ = in connection with the inspections performed in relation to VAT and Corporate Tax as described in
E 5 Note 22,
YOS
= =2 c) Guarantees: these relate to provisions from the Corporaciéon Acciona Windpower subgroup for the
- amounts estimated in relation to warranty and maintenance obligations undertaken for facilities and
machinery sold, mainly wind turbines. As mentioned in note 23 the assets and liabilities of this
subgroup were classified under the headings “assets and liabilities held for sale”, 18 million euros of
the provision for guarantees being reclassified to these headings. After this reclassification, the
provision in this connection at 31 December 2015 amounted to 4 million euros (22 million at 31
December 2014).

d) Repairs: these relate to provisions in connection to repairs agreed with the awarding entity in
concessions from the infrastructure division. Each year they are systematically endowed by a charge
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against the operating profit/(loss). The provision in this connection, at 31 December 2015, amounted
to 17 million euros (13 million euros at 31 December 2014).

e) Pensions and similar: these relate to provisions for pensions and similar obligations arising mainly
from the acquisition of assets from Endesa in 2009, which are detailed and quantified below. At 31
December 2014, the provision in this connection amounted to 11 million euros (12 million euros at 31
December 2014)

) Burdensome contracis: these relate to contracts for works and provision of services that represent
and burden and lead to losses. The Group charges a provision against the income statement for losses
expected from these contracts at the moment when it determines that the contract’s costs are likely to
exceed the revenue therefrom. The provision in this connection at 31 December 2015 amounted to 65
million euros (68 million euros at 31 December 2014).

g) Dismantling: these relate mainly to provisions stemming from the electricity generation facilities
recently commissioned in the Energy division international area, after the Group concluded, upon
analysis of the particularities of these contracts, that there is an obligation to dismantle said facilities
although this has no impact on the income statement. The provision in this connection at 31 December
2015 amounted to 33 million euros.

h) Litigation: these related to provisions for lawsuits under way as a number of claims have been
brought against the Group for various reasons. At 31 December 2015, the Group had a provision in
place in the amount of 180 million euros (203 million euros at 31 December 2014). The main lawsuits
in progress are the following:

- Construction defects: these relate to provisions for construction defects and lawsuits relating to
work performed and claims over differences about the provision of services, mainly in the
construction and property divisions. The provision in this connection at 31 December 2015
amounted to 61 million euros.

- CNC Penalties: related to certain liabilities connected to the Logistics division, mainly arising
from three penalties imposed by the Spanish National Competition Commission (CNC) in
previous years and under appeal. In 2015, at the Supreme Court, two of the penalties were
solved favourably for the Group, with reversion of part of the provision recognised for 30
million euros (see note 26). The provision in this connection at 31 December 2015 amounted
to 16 million euros and it related to the third of the aforesaid penalties, which as yet had not
been solved.

- At 31 December 2015 the Group had provisions related to certain liabilities connected mainly
to the energy division in relation to lawsuits brought for payment commitments linked to
future wind project developments. The provision in this connection at 31 December 2015
amounted to 24 million euros.

- In addition, there are provisions related mainly to three lawsuits under way in connection with
proceedings related to disputed land linked to property development in Spain, breaches of
contract in the United States and a case involving trademarks and image. The provision in this
connection at 31 December 2015 amounted to 79 million euros.

As regards these cases, it is hard to predict how they will turn out, although the Group’s Directors are
of the opinion that there will be no short-term outflow of economic profits due to the status of these
court cases at the present time.

The best estimates of the risks and uncertainty inevitably surrounding most of the events and

circumstances affecting these cases have been taken into account for the recording of these provisions.
In this respect, the negative downturn in recent years of the general market situation and the economic
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and financial conditions in many of the countries in which the Group has operations has contributed to
a general situation of extreme and very widespread instability, giving rise to very significant
uncertainties. This situation has not only remained constant but has in fact even increased recently,
with the result that the calibration of this uncertainty has been done with prudence, understood as the
inclusion of a certain degree of caution in the prosecution of the necessary court cases, but
safeguarding in all cases the true and fair view of the financial statements.

As for the movements in the financial year, the line “Transfers” relates mainly to the transfer of the
provisions from the Corporacién Acciona Windpower subgroup to “liabilities held for sale”. The
“Removals” line reflects mainly the applications of the tax provision for payments upon tax inspection
conclusions following tax audits (see Note 22), as well as the reversion of the provision for CNC

penalties.

The Group’s Management considers that no significant additional liabilities will occur that are not
provisioned in the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

In addition to the litigation under way indicated above, information is given below about the current
status of the court proceedings related to ATLL Concesionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A.

(see Note 8).

Last 22 June 2015 the High Court of Justice of Catalonia issued judgment allowing in part the appeal
for judicial review of administrative decision lodged by the concession company ATLL Concesionaria
de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A. and Acciona Agua, S.A., overruling the resolution dated 2
January 2013 from the Contractual Resources Administrative Body of Catalonia in relation to
exclusion of the bid made by the consortium headed by Acciona. The Court, however, considers that
there are defects in the tender procedure that are not attributable to the bidders, which lead to render
void the contracting procedure as a whole because the bidders did not have full knowledge of the exact
scope of the requirements related to the works schedule.

The fact that the High Court of Justice of Catalonia says that the possible defects in the tender
procedure phase are not attributable to the bidders does not have adverse effects on the compensation
the concession company would be entitled to if the tender procedure became null and void under a
firm judgment and, accordingly, the award and the contract subscribed, and all of it would go to &
settlement process without prejudice to appropriate claim for damages.
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The judgment issued is not firm and has been appeal against by the concession company and the
Generalitat de Catalunya [Catalan Government] for quashing at the Supreme Court.

In the event that the Supreme Court confirms the judgment referred to above and the award is rendered
definitively void, the contract will be void and will go into the settlement stage, with the effects
established in the Government Procurement Act. The contract includes a contractual clause, 9.12,
which refers to early termination of the concession contract. This clause establishes that if the
concession contract is terminated before 50 years elapse, regardless of the grounds for termination, the
Administration shall pay the concession company compensation that will cover:

(a) the unamortised portion of the total concession fee. This amortisation is calculated according
to what is established in this clause 9.12 on the contract in conformity with clause 22 of the

Administrative Specifications Document;
(b) the unamortised portion of the works, installations and other investments, in tangible and

intangible assets, as made by the concessionaire to date; and,
(c) related additional costs.

In any event, as indicated in this contraciual clause 9.12, all calculations needed to determine what is
established in the paragraphs above must refer to amounts actually included in the tariffs, following
the principle of recovery of all previous items through the tariffs and with the time where contract
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termination occurs and the months elapsed in which the concessionaire applied the annual tariff in
question being taken into account, if appropriate.

The compensation referred to in clause 9.12 is applicable even if the Administration must enforce
court resolutions that involve termination or cancellation of the concession contract according to reply
by the Generalitat de Catalunya of 5 July 2013 to the enquiry made by the concessionaire ATLL.

In any event, the principle of ongoing service guarantees that the concessionaire will remain in the
concession operation until, as the case may be, the Catalan Government or another possible awardee
from another award tender procedure can formally replace the concessionaire

In short, ATLL must continue fulfilling the obligations derived from the water supply public service
management contract in force according to the terms thereunder as long as there is no definitive
Jjudgment that renders the award void, and at such time, if the judgment is confirmed, the contract
would be rendered void and go into the settlement stage, and the relevant compensation would have to
be paid. The compensation would include, inter alia, returning the portion of the unamortised fee,
without prejudice to the claim for damages as might be appropriate.

Therefore, the Directors are of the opinion that the final resolution of the proceedings described above
will not involve an outflow of resources, for which reason no provision for risks and expenses in

conneciion with this lawsuit was recorded at 31 December 2015.

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

“Non-current provisions™ on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet includes mainly provisions
for pensions and similar obligations due to the acquisition of assets and/or companies from the Endesa
Group in 2009.

The group of employees considered in 2015 and 2014 for measurement was 102 employees (105 at the
close of 2014), 25 of whom have already taken early retirement (23 at the close of 2014). Not all of
them are in the same situation and under the same commitment. The main characteristics of the plans
assumed are the following:

i) Defined benefit pension plan with salary increase rate tied to the increase in the CPL This plan
is treated in exactly the same way as a defined benefit system. The assumptions used in
calculating the actuarial liability in respect of the uninsured defined benefit obligations at 31
December 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014
Interest rate 2.72% 226%
Mortality tabkizs PERPM/F2000 PLRPM/T2000
Expected rate of return on plan assets 2.60% 2.16%
Salary review 20% 23%

Information is provided below on the changes in the actuarial liabilities for the defined benefit
obligations at 31 December 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014
Initial actuarial liabitity 3,775 2800
Cost incurred in the year 112 85
Finance costs 84 108
Benefits paid in the year - -
Actuanal gams and losses 24 782
Final actuarial liability 3,995 3,775
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Information is provided below on the changes in the actuarial assets for the defined benefit
obligations at 31 December 2015 and 2014:

015 2014
Rate of return 1n the year 54 86
Contiibutiens nrade m the year . 160 31
Actuarial gains and losses 50 69
Final actmarial asset 2,757 2484

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the total amount of the final actuarial assets and liabilities
related in full to defined benefit obligations in Spain.

At 2015 year-end, the amount recognised in the consolidated income statement for defined
benefit pension obligations amounted to 142 thousand euros (107 thousand euros in 2014) and
related to the cost incurred during the year and the return and finance cost of the assets and
liabilities associated with these employee welfare benefits.

ii) Obligations to provide certain employee welfare benefits during the retirement period, relating
mainly to electricity supplies. These obligations were not externalised and are covered by the
related in-house provisions totalling 2,778 thousand euros (3,175 thousand euros at 31
December 2014).

The actuarial changes recognised, arising in this connection, amounted to a profit of 427
thousand euros in 2015 (638 thousand euros in 2014).

1ii) Commitment undertaken by the company to supplement the public social security system
benefits in the event of termination of the employment relationship as a result of an agreement
between the parties.

The movement in the provision for these obligations, recognised under “Provisions” on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet in 2015 and 2014, was as follows:

Provision for ather long-
term employee benefit
obligations
Balance at 31/12/13 3373
Addimons and provisions 1197)
Removals (586)
Balance »t 31/12/14 2,390
Additions and period provisions (607)
Remiovals (1,022)
Balance at 31/12/15 961

T~
L 0
[

These liabilities related in full to the collective redundancy procedures of the Group
companies in Spain.

The Plan affects employees with at least ten years of acknowledged service. Employees aged

3 © 50 or more at 31 December 2005 were entitled to adhere to a pre-retirement plan at the age of
Lo w - 60, of which they could avail themselves between the ages of 50 and 60, upon the mutual
L= agreement between the employee and the company concerned. For the Plan to apply to
— 3 employees younger than 50 at 31 December 2005, a written request from the employee and the
: acceptance thereof by the Group were required.
L B

nG R The conditions applicable to employees under 50 years of age affected by the voluntary
;'" " e redundancy plan consisted in a termination benefit of 45 days® salary per year of service plus
E T
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an additional amount of 1 or 2 months’ salary based on the employee’s age at 31 December
2005.

The impact of these plans on the consolidated income statement is not material.

18. Financial debt

a) Bank borrowings

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, detail of recourse and non-recourse borrowings, it being understood
that non-recourse is the debt with no corporate guarantees, whose recourse is limited to the debtor’s
flows and assets, was as follows (in thousands of euros):

2015 24
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Non-recourse bank borrowing 336,649 4,039,637 419,515 4,304,743
Mueigage loans for non-current asset fingneing 32638 217871 75,924 85950
Mortgage loans for property developments 29,196 0 83,344 -
Project fiance 269,978 3R13229 247,720 4,151 346
Obligations under finance leases 3324 6,312 4,624 4,781
Other imited 1ecourse debt 1.516 2225 2898 62,626
Recourse bank borrowing 426,691 1,053,308 211,866 854,416
Discounted notes and bills not vet dug 3443 0 5,162 .=
Other bank loans and credit facilities 423,528 1,053,308 206,704 854416
Total bank borrowings 763,340 5,092,945 631381 5,159,159

In 2015 and 2014, the Group’s loans and credit facilities mostly bore interest tied to Euribor, although
a portion of the Group’s borrowings were also tied to other indices such as Libor for borrowings in US
dollars, the CDOR for borrowings in Canadian dollars, the TIIE for financing in Mexican pesos, the
WIBOR for financing in Polish ztoty and the BBSY for financing in Australian dollars; these are the
main indices for the Group outside the euro zone. A significant portion of the Group’s borrowings is
hedged by financial derivatives which seek to reduce the volatility in the interest rates which the
Acciona Group pays (see Note 20).

Through subsidiaries or associates, the Acciona Group undertakes investments mainly in transport
infrastructure, energy, hospitals and the supply of drinking water, and these are then operated by
subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates and funded through “Project finance”.

These finance structures are applied to projects capable of providing by themselves sufficient support
for the participating financial entities as to the repayment of the borrowings taken out to implement
them. Thus, each one is normally executed through special purpose vehicles in which the project’s
assets are financed on the one hand by a contribution of funds by the project’s sponsors, limited to a
certain predefined amount, and, on the other hand, generally a larger sum through third-party funds in
the form of long-term borrowing. The debt service on these loans or credits is fundamentally backed
by the cash flows to be generated in future by the project itself, as well as by in rem guarantees over
the project’s assets and credit rights.

Within this heading, mention must be made of the increase of approximately 21 and 11 million euros
in the international energy division due to the last drawdowns implemented, prior to their
commissioning in the first half of the year, in the financing of a wind farm in Chile and a photovoltaic
plant in South Africa, respectively, as well as the increase of 28 million euros for the wind farm
project also in South Africa, which began to operate at the end of August. The effect of translation
differences in the period was also included, which increased the debt by 45 million euros and related
mainly to the net effect arising from the translation differences of projects whose currency is the US
dollar (+85 million euros) and the South African rand (-30 million euros).
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In addition, the two main reasons that explain the reduction in this heading must be mentioned: the
scheduled amortisations according to the calendar for each project, and the reduction in debt by 89
million euros due to the effect of payment of the derivatives settlements reflected in the income
statement, net of the worsening of the negative value in the period in relation to the financial
derivatives engaged by the infrastructure and energy divisions mainly.

As indicated in Note 3.2 I), the adoption of IFRS 13 requires an adjustment in the measurement
techniques applied by the Acciona Group to obtain the fair value of its derivatives in order to
incorporate the bilateral credit risk adjustment to reflect both own risk and counterparty risk in the fair
value of the derivatives.

At 31 December 2015, the adjustment of credit risk represented a lower valuation of liability
derivatives in the amount of 16,772 thousand euros, recognised on the one hand as a smaller debt with
credit entities in the amount of 12,944 thousand euros by subsidiaries and, on the other hand, as a
higher value of the investment using the equity method in the amount of 3,827 thousand euros, without
considering the tax effect, by the companies consolidated in accordance with this method. The external
and after-tax effects that this modification had on the heading “Adjustments in equity for valuation of
cash flow hedges™ were positive in the amount of 12,128 thousand euros.

In 2015 there was an increase in “other loans and borrowings” due to subscription last March of a
syndicated bank loan by the subsidiary Acciona Financiacién Filiales, S.A., for 1,800 million euros,
and used in part as explained below. The credit is divided into two tranches (tranche A for the
maximum amount of 360 million euros and tranche B for the maximum of 1,440 million euros) with
due date on 25 March 2010. The two tranches will be used to refinance part of the Group’s debt and to
finance general corporate and investment needs and to strengthen the group’s liquidity. On 24 June
2015 tranche A was used in full. At 31 December 2015 the whole tranche B remained unused.

At 31 December 2015 the Group companies had been granted additional financing not drawn down in
the amount of 1,900,665 thousand euros, of which 1,880,707 thousands related to credit lines for the
financing of working capital and the remaining amount, 19,958 thousand euros, to lines to finance fees
to enter infrastructure projects.

The Group’s Management is of the opinion that the amount of these credit lines and the ordinary
generation of cash, together with the realisation of current assets, will sufficiently cover the short-term
payment obligations.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, neither Acciona, S.A. nor any of its significant subsidiaries were in
breach of any of their financial obligations or any other obligations in such a way as might lead to
early maturity of their financial obligations. Also, no breaches are foreseen for 2016.

Furthermore, in 2015 and 2014 there were no defaults or other non-payments of principal, interest or
repayments of bank borrowings.

The Real Estate division classifies its borrowings as current liabilities based on the production cycle of
the assets they finance, namely inventories, even though some of these liabilities mature at more than
twelve months.

Detail, by maturity, of bank borrowings for the years following the closing date of the balance sheet
was as follows:

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 s"‘;ﬁ‘:‘“‘ Total
763,340 528,322 412227 692,704 AT 324379 2413836 5856285

69




TRANSLATION

Obligations under finance leases
Detail of the Group’s finance leases at 31 December 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

Minimurs lease payments

Amounts to pay under finance leases 2015 2014
Withm one yea 4,191 +.870
Between one and two years 2,746 3,264
Between two and five vears 373 1.677
After five years -- 338
Total lease payments payable 10,650 10,149
Less: future finance charges 1,014 744
Present valoe of lease obligations 9,636 9,405
Less: amount due for settlement within twelve months (current liability) 3324 4,624
Amount due for settlement after twelve months 6,312 4,781

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its facilities and equipment under finance leases. The
average lease term is three to five years. In the year ended 31 December 2013, the average effective
interest rate was the market rate. Interest rates are set at the lease contract date. All leases have fixed
payments and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The decrease in 2015 if compared to 2014 was due mainly to the payments made as established on the
lease contracts.

b) Debentures, bonds and negotiable securities

Breakdown at 31 December 2015 and 2014 of debentures, recourse and non-recourse bonds and
negotiable securities, it being understood that non-recourse is the debt with no corporate guarantees,
whose recourse is limited to the debtor’s flows and assets, was as follows (in thousands of euros):

Theusands of euros

2015 2014
Debentuies, bonds and negotiable securiies without recourse 253016 270 4858
Debentures, bonds and negotiable securities with recourse 922,863 969,721
Total debentures, bonds and negotiable securities 1,175,879 1,199,209

The movement in these accounts on the current and non-current liabilities side of the balance sheet for
financial years 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

Fhousands of euros
2015 2014
Opening balance 1,199,269 363,349
Net incorporation of companies into the Group - -
Tssues 370,961 1,118,528
Interest accrued pending payment 11,292 9,336
Amoltisations 1440,362) (327.302)
Other changes 34,779 35,298
Closing balance 1,175,879 1,199,209

The main variation in this heading in 2015, on the “Issues” line, related to the issue of EMTN y ECP
(promissory notes) for a total of 77 and 294 million euros, respectively, under the Euro Medium Term
Note (EMTN) and Euro Commercial Paper (ECP) programmes, all described further below. As for the
line “Amortisations”, mention must be made of the amortisation on maturity of the previous ECP
programme (promissory notes) for 437 million euros. The line “Other changes” related mainly to
translation differences in the two issues of bonds in currency other than the euro.
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The distribution of the maturity of these debentures for 2016 and for the next and subsequent years is
as follows:
Subsequent
years
262,611

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 Tetal

38,781 1,175,879

456,147 11,030 12,978

373,801 20,531

At 31 December 2015, detail of the issues making up the balance for this heading was as follows:

- Placement of a bonds issue on 10 August 2012 with a credit rating of “BBB -” given by the Standard
& Poors and Fitch rating agencies for the Mexican subsidiaries CE Oaxaca Dos, S. de R.L. de C.V.
and CE QOaxaca Cuatro, S. de R.L. de C.V ., in a total amount of 298.7 million US dollars. The purpose
of this funding was the development, construction and operation of two wind power projects (102 MW
each) for the final client, the Federal Electricity Commission (CFE). The issue accrues interest at
7.250% per annum, payable every six months on 30 June and 31 December each year until 31
December 203 1. The redemption of the debt began on 31 December 2012 and will continue with six-
monthly debt write-downs until its total repayment on 31 December 2031. At 31 December 2015, the
balances recorded for this issue on the non-current and current bonds and debentures account
amounted to 248 and 4.7 million euros, respectively.

- Euro Commercial Paper (ECP) Programme formalised on 17 January 2013 by Acciona, S.A. and
renewed most recently on 27 October 2015 by the Group’s subsidiary Acciona Financiacion de
Filiales, S.A., with the guarantee of Acciona, S.A., for another twelve months and a2 maximum of 500
million euros. Through this programme, which is listed on the Irish Stock Exchange, notes are issued
on the euro market with maturities between 15 and 364 days. In 2015, promissory notes were issued
and amortised for 294 and 437 million euros, respectively, and the outstanding balance stood at 293.7
million euros at 31 December 2015.

- Issue of bonds convertible into shares of Acciona, S.A. in the amount of 342 million euros that took
place on 30 January 2014 and maturing on 30 January 2019. The benchmark price of the share on the
issue date was 47.563 euros with a conversion premium of 32.5% on this price. The number of shares
to be surrendered if all the convertible obligations were converted, bearing in mind the conversion
price (63.021 euros) and the amount of the issue, would come to 5.43 million shares, representing
approximately 9.48% of the share capital of Acciona, S.A. currently in circulation. Following the
distribution of dividends carried out by Acciona, S.A. effective 2 July 2015, the conversion price was
adjusted, from 63.021 to 61.208 euros and the number of shares to surrender would be 5.587 million
shares if all the convertible bonds were converted (approx.. 9.75% of the share capital of Acciona,
S.A)).

The issue pays a coupon of 3% per annum every six months (6.04% of effective cost over the debt
component of this instrument). At 31 December 2015, the balances recorded for the convertible bond
on the accounts for non-current and current bonds and debentures, net of the transaction costs and
considering the accrual of interest, amounted to 314 and 4 million euros, respectively, which related to
the debt component of the issue. In addition, in 2014, the amount of 37 million euros was recognised
in equity as corresponding, net of the transaction costs, to the equity component (conversion option)
included in the convertible bond. To determine the value of the financial debt and equity component,
the valuation model used, based on the Black-Scholes method, concluded, after considering the market
values relating to volatility, the share price of Acciona, S.A. and the credit spread on the date of issue,
what part of the convertible bond’s value corresponds to the “bond floor” and what part corresponds to
the bond conversion option.

- Issue by Acciona, S.A. in April 2014 of simple bearer debentures through a private placement, in the
amount of 62.7 million euros and maturing in 2024. The face value of each debenture is 100,000 euros
and they accrue interest at 5.55% per annum with an annual coupon. At 31 December 2015, the
balances recorded for these simple debentures on the accounts for non-current and current bonds and
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debentures, net of the transaction costs and considering the interest accrued, amounted to 61.4 and 2.3
million euros, respectively.

- Last 19 June 2015 Acciona Financiacién Filiales, S.A. renewed, with the guarantee of Acciona, S.A.,
under the same terms and conditions as the previous one issued by Acciona, S.A., a fixed-interest
securities issue programme - Euro Medium Term Note Programme (EMNT) for a maximum amount
of up to 1,000 million euros. In relation to this programme, the Group prepared a base leaflet that was
approved by the Central Bank of Ireland. These issues accrue annual interest ranging from 3% to
4.625% and 3.60%, payable on an annual basis. The securities issued under this programme may:
accrue fixed or variable interest, be issued in euros or in another currency and at par, below par and
premium and have different maturity dates. At 31 December 2015 the balances registered against this
EMNT programme in the non-current and current debentures and bonds accounts, net of transactions
costs and considering interest accrued, amounted to 178.4 and 68.6 million euros, respectively.

At 31 December 2015, there were no issues convertible into shares other than the issue discussed in
this note, or issues granting rights or privileges that might, in the event of a contingency, make them
convertible into shares of the Parent or of any of the Group companies.

In addition, two of the companies in the Acciona Group consolidated using the equity method have
debentures and bonds issued with the following characteristics:

[ssue by Autovia de los Vifiedos, S.A. This issue took place on 28 October 2004 in the amount of
64.1 million euros and accrues interest at 4.79% per annum payable on 15 December each year
throughout the life of the issue. The bonds began to be redeemed on 15 December 2009 and their
total amortisation is scheduled for 15 December 2027.

Private issue of bonds with a credit rating of “A” given by the Standard & Poors rating agency by
the Canadian company Chinook Roads Partnership in the amount of 108,882 thousand euros
attributed as part of the funding needed to undertake the construction, operation and maintenance
project for the Southeast Stoney Trail motorway in the city of Calgary (Canada). This issue took
place on 31 March 2010 and accrues interest of 7.134% per annum payable monthly on the last
working day of each month during the construction phase and quarterly during the operation phase.
Debt amortisation began on 31 December 2013 and will continue with quarterly cancellations until
its total amortisation on 31 March 2043.

- Issue on 27 May 2015 by Sociedad Concesionaria Autovia de la Plata, S.A. in the amount of
184,500 thousand euros. The issue accrues a 3.169% annual coupon payable every six months. The
bond principal must be amortised every six months and the total term is 26.6 years, with final
maturity on 31 December 2041. The issue credit rating is BBB by the Standard & Poors rating
agency.

c) Other debt-reiated information

At 31 December 2015, the average interest rate of the debt, considering bank borrowings and the debt
associated with debentures and other negotiable securities, stood at 5.49%.

In financial year 2015, the debt percentage (net of cash) not subject to interest rate volatility stood at
76.21%, in line with 75.81% in 2014.

The composition of debt in currencies other than the euro at 31 December 2015, classified by the main
currencies in which the Acciona Group operates, was the following:

Currency Financial debt

Australian dollar 203,324
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Currency Financial debt
Brazilian real 57,606
Canadian dollar 38.§Q4
Chilean pesa 144,553
Mexican peso 22207
Polish zloty 47.370
US dollar 962,911
South African rand 219,588
Other 73,675
Teatal 1,769,238
19. Risk management policy

Due to its geographical and business diversification, the Acciona Group is exposed to certain risks,
which are managed appropriately through the application of a Risk Management System. This System
is designed to identify potential events that might affect the organisation; to manage its risks through
the establishment of internal treatment and control systems that ensure the probability of occurrence

and impact of these events are kept within the established tolerance levels; and to provide reasonable
assurance in relation to the achievement of strategic business objectives.

This policy seeks to integrate risk management into ACCIONA’s strategy and to establish the
framework and principles of the Risk Management System.

This policy covers all the risks associated with the activities carried on by ACCIONA’s business lines
throughout the geographical areas in which it carries on its activity.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate fluctuations change the future flows of assets and liabilities that bear floating-rate interest.
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Interest rate risk is particularly important in relation to the financing of infrastructure projects,
concession arrangements, the construction of wind farms or solar facilities and other projects in which

project profitability is affected by possible changes in interest rates, since it is directly linked to project
cash flows.

Based on the Acciona Group’s projections of the trend in interest rates and of debt structure targets,
hedging transactions are carried out by arranging derivatives that mitigate these risks. The level of

ebt hedged in each project depends on the type of project in question and the country in which the
investment is made.

he benchmark interest rate for the borrowings arranged by the Acciona Group companies is mainly
uribor for transactions denominated in euros and Libor for transactions denominated in US dollars.

e borrowings arranged for projects in Latin America are normally tied to the local indices
ustomarily used in the local banking industry, or also to the LIBOR rate as the projects in this

cographic area are frequently financed in US dollars since the cash flows generated by the asset are
Iso in the same currency.
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Sensitivity test on derivatives and debi

The financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk are basically borrowings arranged at
floating interest rates and derivative financial instruments.

In order to be able to analyse the effect that a possible fluctuation in interest rates might have on the
Group’s financial statements, a simulation was performed which assumed a 50-basis point increase and
decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2015.

The analysis of sensitivity to upward or downward changes of 0.50% in floating Euribor interest rates
gave rise to a sensitivity in the Group’s consclidated income statement arising from an increase or
decrease in financial results due to interest payments of 6.1 million euros at 31 December 2015.

The analysis of the sensitivity to upward or downward changes in the long-term interest rate curve in
relation to the fair value of interest rate derivatives included in cash flow hedges arranged by the Group
at 31 December 2015 on the basis of share percentage, meant a decrease in debt for financial derivatives
vis-a-vis 0.5% increases in the interest rate curve of 92,777 thousand euros. Similarly, 0.1% decrease in
the interest rate curve would lead to an increase of 19,363 thousand euros in liabilities for financial
derivatives.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has developed a process of growing internationalisation, which means it is exposed to
foreign currency risk involving transactions in the currencies of the countries in which it invests and
operates.

Management of this risk is the responsibility of the Group’s Economic and Financial Department,
which follows a policy of non-speculative hedging.

Foreign currency risk relates basically to the following transactions:

- Debt denominated in foreign currencies engaged by Group companies and associates.
- Payments to be made in international markets for procurements, mainly fuel.

- Receivables tied mainly to the performance of currencies other than the euro.

- Investments made in foreign companies.

In order to mitigate foreign currency risk, the ACCIONA Group uses currency derivatives and foreign
currency hedges to cover significant future transactions and cash flows, within acceptable risk limits.
At other times, non-current assets in currencics other than the euro are financed in the same currency
as that in which the asset is denominated.

Also, the net assets relating to net investments in foreign operations whose functional currency is not
the euro are exposed to foreign currency risk in the translation of the financial statements of these
foreign operations on consolidation.

The composition of current and non-current assets and liabilities and equity at 31 December 2015 is
shown below in thousands of euros for the main currencies in which the Acciona Group operates.

Carrency Non- Current Non- Carrent Equity Sensitivity
current assets current Kabilities (10%%)
assets liahihties
Australian dollar (AUD} 411,024 204,942 309,270 192,758 113,938 11,394
Biazihen real {BRL) 85.079 232,854 72,065 165.705 80,163 8,016
Canadian dollar {CAD) 125,853 94,106 49,969 42,876 127,114 12,711
Chileant Peso (CLP®) 265 427 191,091 158710 247 855 49,953 4,095
Mexican Peso (MXN) 112,189 295368 52,677 213,724 141,156 14,116
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Zloty (PLN) 242175 307911 228 046 321,266 774 77
US dollar (USD}) 1,947,880 327987 1,730,424 267994 277449 27,745
Rand (ZAR) 267 662 60.677 243,940 24,490 59909 5991

The last column on the table above shows estimate of the negative impact on the Group’s equity of
10% revaluation in the quotation of the euro in respect of these eight main currencies in which the
Group operates and holds investments. As can be seen, the Group keeps positions in different
currencies, some of which (BRL, CAD, MXN, ZAR) underwent strong devaluation vis-3-vis the euro
in 2015.

Procurement price risk

The ACCIONA Group is exposed to tluctuations in the price of procurements, mainly fuel for its sea
transportation business when such fluctuations cannot be passed on to clients.

Most fuel purchase transactions are carried out in international markets.

Fluctuations in procurement prices arc managed through short-term measures, 1.e. within one year,
which is considered to be the normal period for the implementation of the appropriate commercial
policies. The risk is managed by arranging specific hedges, generally in the form of derivatives, to
maintain the economic balance of the procurements.

In the short and middle term fluctuations in procurement prices are managed through specific hedging
transactions, generally using derivatives.

The Group performed a sensitivity analysis in relation to the possible changes in fuel prices. Based on
this analysis it was estimated that 5% change in prices would have an effect of approximately 1.4
million euros on the profits in 2016.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a contract does not meet its obligations, giving rise to a
financial loss for the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only trading with solvent third parties
and obtaining sufficient guarantees to mitigate the risk of financial loss in the event of non-
performance. The Group only trades with entities rated at the same investment level as the Group, or
higher, and obtains information on its counterparties through independent company valuation
agencies, other public sources of financial information or the information it obtains from its own
relations with clients.

Bills receivable and trade receivables from clients relate to a large number of clients spread over
different industries and geographical areas. Credit relations with clients and their solvency are

assessed on an ongoing basis and credit guarantee insurance is arranged when it is considered
necessary.

As regards the default risk, basically in the infrastructure business, an assessment process is

implemented before entering into contracts with public and private clients. This assessment includes
oth a solvency study and supervision of contractual requirements from a financial and legal guarantee
iewpoint. During the course of the projects, the correct performance of the debt is monitored
onstantly and the related value adjustments are made using accounting criteria.

e Group does not have significant exposure to credit risk with any of its clients or groups of clients
ith similar characteristics. Similarly, credit risk concentration is not significant.

The credit and liquidity risk of derivative instruments with a positive fair value is limited in the
ACCIONA Group, since both cash placements and the arrangement of derivatives are made with
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highly solvent counterparties with high credit ratings and no counterparty has significant levels of
total credit risk.

On the other hand, the new definition given for the fair value of a liability in IFRS 13, based on the
concept of transferring the liability in question to a market player, confirms that own credit risk must
be taken into account in the fair value of liabilities. Thus, ACCIONA adds a bilateral credit risk
adjustment in order to reflect both its own risk and the counterparty risk in the fair value of
derivatives.

Liquidity risk

The Acciona Group manages liquidity risk prudently by ensuring that it has sufficient cash and
negotiable securities and by arranging committed credit facilities for amounts sufficient to cater for its
projected requirements. As indicated in note 18, at 31 December 2015 the Group companies had been
granted additional financing not drawn down in the amount of 1,900,665 thousand euros, of which
1,880,707 thousand related to credit lines for the financing of working capital, and the remaining
amount, 19,958 thousand euros, to lines to finance fees to enter infrastructure projects. The average
term of these limits amounts to 3.9 vears.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management lies with the Economic and Financial
Department, which prepares the appropriate framework to control the Group’s liquidity requirements
in the short, middle and long term. The Group manages liquidity risk by holding adequate reserves,
appropriate banking services, having available loans and credit facilities, monitoring projected and
actual cash flows on an ongoing basis and pairing them against financial asset and liability maturity
profiles.

Finally, attention should be drawn, in relation to this risk, to the fact that the ACCIONA Group has
recognised, as part of its quest to diversify its funding sources, a European Commercial Paper
programme for the maximum amount of 500 million euros to issue commercial paper with maturities
of not more than one year, as well as bonds convertible into shares for 342 million euros, a private
placement of simple bearer bonds for 62.7 million euros and a Euro Medium Term Notes programme
for a maximum of 1,000 million euros (see Note 18).

Economic risk vs. budget variances

The Group has an overall system of economic and budget control for each business, adapted to each
activity, which provides those responsible for each business with the necessary information and allows
them to control potential risks and make the most appropriate management decisions. The economic
and financial information generated within each division is periodically compared with the projected
data and indicators, variances regarding business volume, profitability, cash flows and other relevant
and reliable parameters are assessed and, where necessary, the appropriate corrective measures are
taken.

Price risk

With regards to the price risk on the Spanish electricity market, Royal Decree-Law 9/2013, whercby
urgent measures were adopted to guarantee the financial stability of the electricity system, was
published on 12 July 2013. This Royal Decree, which came into force on 13 July 2013, repealed,
among others, Royal Decree 661/2007, of 25 May, the decree governing the remuneration framework
supporting renewable energies for most of the ACCIONA Group’s power generation facilities located
in Spain.

Royal Decree 413/2014, whereby the activities for electricity generation from renewable energy

sources, co-generation and waste were regulated, was enacted on 6 June 2014 and published in the
Central Government Gazette on 10 June 2014. In the development of this decree, final Ministerial
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Order IET 1045/2014 was signed on 20 June 2014 and published in the Central Government Gazette
on 29 June 2014. The Order sets out the final remuneration parameters applicable to all renewable
facilities, whether already in existence or planned. The new model defines the remuneration for assets
to be applied from 14 July 2013 onwards, as a consequence of RD-L 9/2013.

This new regulation provides that, in addition to the remuneration for the sale of electricity generated
valued at market prices, facilities can receive a specific remuneration comprising a term per unit of
power installed, covering, where appropriate the investment costs for a standard installation that
cannot be recovered through electricity sales and an operating term that covers, where applicable, the
difference between operating costs and the revenue from the participation of that standard facility in
the market. Furthermore, the terms for remunerating the investment and the transaction will be
reviewed every 3 years, taking into consideration the revenue from energy sales at market rates by
standard facilities, so that any upward or downward variations outside the range of the bands
established in said Ministerial Order will be incorporated into the calculation of the specific

remuneration.

According to the regulation, these remuneration terms are not intended to exceed the minimum level
necessary to cover the costs enabling the facilities to compete on an equal footing with the rest of the
technologies on the market and making it possible for them to achieve reasonable profitability. With
regards to what constitutes reasonable profitability, the Royal Decree-Law indicates this will revolve
around the mean pre-tax yield on the secondary market of ten-year Government Bonds by applying the
appropriate differential. The first additional provision of Royal Decree-Law 9/2013 sets this
appropriate differential at 300 basic points for facilities participating in the economic regime with a
premium, all without prejudice to a possible review every six years.

The new regulatory framework shows that a large part of the Group’s renewable assets, especially
wind power technology commissioned prior to 2004, as well as many of its mini-hydroelectric power
stations, will cease to receive any additional remuneration other than the market price and will thus be
fully exposed to price variations on the electricity market. On the domestic electricity market,
approximately 53% of the Group’s total production is subject to regulated remuneration while the
other 47% is remunerated solely at market prices.

Finally, as regards the price risk on the international power markets where ACCIONA operates, it
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should be noted that approximately 68% of production is governed by a long-term price contract
(PPA) established with a third party, 13% under a regulatory feed-in tariff and the remainder through
unrestricted sale on the market.

20. Derivative financial insttruments

Interest rate hedges

The Acciona Group regularly arranges interest rate derivatives, which are designated as hedges. These
instruments are used to hedge possible changes in cash flows due to interest payments on long-term

floating rate financial liabilities.

Detail of the derivative financial instruments arranged and outstanding at 31 December 2015 and 2014,
which are recognised at market value on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, in assets or

liabilities, depending on the market value of the derivative and the method of inclusion in the Acciona
Group, was as follows:
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2014 2013
(thousands Notional Financial Notional Financial
of euros}) amount Financial Held-for-sale assets Investment in amount Financial Held-for-sale assets Investment in
arranged liabilities liabilities (note 10)  associates (*)  arranged liahilities liabilities (note 10)  associates (*)

Cash flow hedyes

JIErESE 2889516 370,090 : 780 (82,679) 3046355 446,635 17,711 14 (93,399)
rate swaps
Total 2889516 376,090 - T80 (R2679) 3046358 446,635 17,711 14 (93,399)

(*) The amount of the investment in associates indicated is net of tax.

The most commonly used interest rate derivatives are interest rate swaps, the purpose of which is to
fix or limit fluctuations in the floating intcrest rates of hedged borrowings. The Group arranges these
financial derivatives mainly to hedge the cash flows on the debt arranged to finance wind farms or
solar facilities, in the case of the Energy division, and to finance the infrastructure concessions
operated mainly through jointly controlled entities and associates.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the fixed interest rates on the Euribor benchmarked financial
derivative instruments ranged from 5.085% to 1.51%.

The amounts recognised by the Group are based on the market values of equivalent instruments at the
balance sheet date. Substantially all the interest rate swaps are designated and effective as cash flow
hedges and the fair value thereof is deferred and recognised in equity.

The terms in which these cash flow hedges are expected to impact the income statement, in proportion
to the share percentage, are shown below,

Future settlements
< 1 month 1 - 3 months 3 months - 1 1 year - 5 years + 5 years
year
Cioup companies
or Jjointly controlled 13 1.758 £9,123 220278 58.138
COMpPaNIes
Associates (*) 565 1,568 15,2835 48,823 49,732

(*} The amount of the investment in associates indicated is net of tax.

Changes in the fair value of these instruments are recognised directly in equity (see Note 16 e). The
net deferred tax asset arising on recognition of these instruments amounted to negative 93,063
thousand euros at 31 December 2015 and negative 112,816 thousand euros at 31 December 2014;
these were recognised in equity (see Note 22).

The methods and criteria applied by the Group to measure the fair value of these financial instruments
are described in Note 3.2.1.

The notional amounts of the liabilities hedged by interest rate hedges were as follows:

2015 2014
Group companies or jointly controlled entities 2,302,841 2,402,181
Associates 586,675 514,712
Companies classified as held for sale - 129,462
Total naticasl amount arranged 2.889.516 3,046,355

The contractual notional amounts of the contracts entered into do not reflect the risk assumed by the
Group, since these amounts merely represent the basis on which the derivative settlement calculations
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are made. The changes in the notional amounts of the financial instruments arranged for the coming
years, in proportion to the share percentage, are as follows:

Change in notisnal amonnts
216 2017 2018 2019 2020 26021
Group compames or jointly
contioHed o 2497076 2315051 2032965 1703723 1426388 1019637
Associates 430,696 383,804 367,554 350,391 333,735 307,357
Fuel hedges

The Group uses tinancial derivatives to manage the risk of fuel purchase price fluctuations on

international markets. The Group manages this risk by arranging financial instruments to mitigate fuel
price fluctuations.

In 2015, through its subsidiary Compaiiia Trasmediterranea, S_A., the Group hedged fuel oil and diesel
price fluctuations by arranging several derivatives which ensure a fixed purchase price for the tonne of
these fuels for a total of 208,451 tonnes. The settlements of these derivatives in 2015 were
unfavourable to the Group and a cost of 11,454 thousand euros relating to the contracts that matured

during the year was recognised in the consolidated income statement as an addition to the cost of
procurements.

In addition, the company has hedged the risk of fluctuations in the prices of fuel oil and gas oil for
financial year 2016 by engaging two derivatives that ensure a fixed purchase price per tonne of fuel oil
and gas oil for a total of 363,847 tonnes (approximately 50% of the expected consumption in 2016).
The amount directly recognised at 31 December 2015 in equity as the effective part of the cash-flow
hedging relations amounted to a loss of 3,881 thousand euros net of external and deferred tax. The
company had designated the appropriate hedging relations at 31 December 2015 and they are fully

effective. In these hedging relations, the risk covered is the fluctuation in the prices of fuel oil and gas
oil.

Foreign currency hedges

The Group uses currency derivatives to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows. In 2015

and 2014 the Group hedged a portion of purchases and payments to suppliers in US dollars through
exchange rate insurance.

Detail of the transactions outstanding at 31 December 2015 and 2014 was as follows (in thousands of
euros ).

2015 2014
Effect of Effect of
measurement measurement
Expiry Amount at market Amount at market
Currency date arranged value arranged valoe
Foreign currency
prchase UsD 30.04.2016 5,872 1,538 135,592 17.442
Foreiga cutrency 4
paichase AUD 03 04 2017 4.046 126 -
Foieign currency
el NOK 05.12.2016 46,800 1,719 - —
Foreagn cutteney ;
puichase UsD 31122016 10:528 226 - =
Total 67,246 3,609 135,592 17,442
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At 31 December 2015, the market values of foreign currency hedges were recognised under “Bank
borrowings” in the amount of 3,609 thousand euros, which related mainly to the last instalments of the
exchange rate insurance engaged for the construction of a wind farm in Mexico as well as to exchange
rate insurance engaged in 2015 for the construction in 2016 of a tunnel in Norway and for the payment
in US dollars of the fuel insured by the subsidiary Compafiia Transmediterranea.

The amounts recognised by the Group were based on the market values of equivalent instruments at
the reporting date. Substantially all the currency purchase transactions are designated and effective as
cash flow hedges and the fair value thereof is deferred and recognised in equity.

The settlement of the hedges meant recognition of a higher expense in “Procurements™ for 30,773
thousand euros in financial year 2015.

Other derivative financial instruments

In 2009, the Acciona Group prospectively discontinued the accounting ot an interest rate derivative
from a subsidiary consolidated by the equity method as, following the novation of the underlying loan,
it no longer qualified for hedge accounting. The portion of the fair value that had been recognised as
value adjustments in equity until the time hedge accounting was discontinued, and which amounted to
12,114 thousand euros net of the tax effect, is being transferred to profit or loss over the period to
maturity of the transaction, based on the foreseeable reduction of the notional amount. At 31
December 2015, the balance yet to be transferred to profit or loss amounted to 1,785 thousand curos.

Lastly, it should be mentioned that the three Australian energy subsidiaries have contracts in place
which enable them to set the future electricity sale price for a specific volume of MW. These contracts
are measured at market value and the changes in value are recognised in equity as value adjustments.
At 31 December 2015, there was a balance payable in “Reserves” and in “Non-controlling interests”,
net of the tax effect, amounting to 5,060 and 2,530 thousand euros, with balancing entries in accounts
receivable and payable in the amount of 1,919 and 12,764 thousand euros, respectively.

The impacts on equity of the measurement of derivative financial instruments at 31 December 2015
can be summarised as follows:

{Thousar:ds of enros) 31.122818
Financial liability due to interest rate hedge 370,090
Held-for-sale Liability due to mtetest rate hedge -
Financial asset due to interest rate hedge (780)
Negative tmpact on equity due o interest rate hedge by associates. net of taa 82.679
Net deferred tax payable due to interest rate hedge (93,063)
Net deferred tax pavuble due 1o intezest rate hedge from held-fo <ale Liabihities n
Ineffectiveness of hedging derivatives 0
Other, mainty due to non-controllng urterests in interest reiie hedging transactions (7411)

Balance adjusted due to changes in value of interest rate hedging transactions 351,518

Balance adjusted due to changes m valuz of fuel hedging transactions (net of non- 1 881

controlinig mrterests and tas) .

Balance adjustgd dpe to changes in value of foreign currency hedging transactions (net 2618

of non-controlling interests and tax) -

Balance adjusted due to changes in valug of energy contract (net of non-controiimg 5 060

interests and tax)

Balance adjusted due to changes in value of transactions with discontinued hedging (net 17

of tax) ,785

Other, mamly due to translanon differences on detivatives 9

Total asset balance receivable for value adjustments at 31 December (Note 16) 364,868
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21. Other non-current and current liabilities

Detail of “Other Non-Current Liabilities” and “Other Current Liabilities” on the consolidated balance
sheet was as follows (in thousands of euros):

Other liabiities No Corrientes Corrientes
2015 2014 2015 2014

Obligations under finance leases 17,457 17.658 527 520
Grants 148,174 152,733 - -
Other deferred mmcome 70.388 77.311 - -
Remuneration payable - - 096,453 92 478
Debt with non-conirolling interests 410,451 410,930 4,481 4,531
Other payables 201,777 195,660 254,131 365,597
Closing balance 848,247 854,292 355,593 463,126

“Other Deferred Income” related mainly to certain incentives established to promote the development
of renewable energies in the US, which are similar in nature to grants for accounting purposes and
which apply to two wind farms developed by the Energy division in the US.

“Debt with non-controlling interests” included mainly the assumption by the infrastructure fund KKR,
which, as described in note 2.2 h) became shareholder in the Acciona Group’s subsidiary Acciona
Energy Internacional, S.A. in June 2014, of one third of the subordinated debt of Acciona Energy
Internacional, S.A. dated 25 February 2012 and with a balance of 369 million euros at 31 December
2015 (375 million euros in 2014). This debt matures in 2017 and accrues 12-month Euribor interest
rate +3.7%. As for the rest, mention must be made of the debt with members in the wind farm and
photovoltaic plant in South Africa, which amounted to 22 million euros (25 million euros in 2014).

Liabilities were recorded under “Other Non-Current Payables”, for long-term business transactions
relating to the construction business for 58 million euros as well as a loan from the Administration for
61 million euros as part of the finance for Sociedad Concesionaria A-2 Tramo 2, 8.A.U. 7%. [sic]

“Obligations under Finance Leases™, which relates mainly to outstanding lease payments, includes the
purchase option on certain facilities of the Energy division in Australia. Detail is as follows:

Minimum lease pay ments

Amounts payable under leases 2015 2014
Wrthm one yeat 2394 2125
Between one and two years 2576 2086
Between two and five years 5.682 5229
After five years 27,948 20997
Total lease payments payable 38,600 48,437
Less future finance charges 20,616 22259
Present value of lease obligations 175584 13,173
Less: amount due for settlement within twelve months (current liability) 527 520
mount due for settlement after twelve months 17457 17,658

¢ main change in the financial year related to the payments made and to the appreciation of the
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Grapts
Balance at 31/12/2013 151,012
Addinons 4380
Taken to profit/{loss) “Other Income™  (15,081)
Cither 12422
Balance at 31/12/2014 152,733
Addions 1,941
Taken to profit/(loss) “Other Income”  (13,319)
Others 6819
Balance at 31/12/2015 148,174

In 2015 there were no significant additions. The line “Other” reflects mainly a positive variation due
to the exchange rate, as a result of the appreciation of the US dollar against the euro, and a negative
variation due to transfer to “held for sale” of companies from the Windpower group.

In 2014 the main additions related to grants from the Government of Navarre to Acciona Blades, S.A.,
a subsidiary of the Acciona Wind Power subgroup, as part of a scheme of aid to industrial investment
for 2.8 million euros. The line “Other” reflects mainly the variation due to the exchange rate, as a
result of the appreciation of the US dollar against the euro.

22. Tax matters

Tax Consolidation System

Pursuant to current legislation, consolidated tax groups include the parent together with certain
subsidiaries that meet the requirements provided for in Spanish tax legislation. Since 2009 there has
been a single tax group in Spain that avails itself of this special taxation system, the parent of which is
Acciona, S.A. In addition to the Spanish tax group, the Group pays tax under the tax consolidation
system in Australia (including all the Group’s divisions operating in said country) and for the
companies comprising the energy division in the US, Portugal and Italy.

The other Acciona Group companies file separate tax returns in accordance with the tax legislation
applicable in the Basque Country, Navarre, the rest of Spain or that in force in each country.

Effective from 1 January 2008, several Group companies availed themselves of the special system for
Company Groups for VAT purposes, envisaged in Chapter IX of Title IX of Value Added Tax Act
37/1992, of 28 December. The parent of the VAT Group is Acciona, S.A.

Years open for review by the tax authorities:

On 19 June 2009, the tax audits in relation to the Tax Group’s Corporate Tax for 2003 to 2005 were
completed, when the tax assessments issued for 2003 and 2004 were signed on an uncontested basis.
As for 2005, the tax assessment was signed on a partially contested basis, for the amount of 5,737
thousand euros (tax due, interest payable and fine). The Company filed an economic-administrative
appeal with the Central Economic and Administrative Court on 20 August 2009. On 19 May 2011, this
Court notified the Group of its decision, dismissing the claims filed, upholding the tax assessment and
the fine that appealed against. On 15 July 2011, the Company filed an appeal for judicial review at the
National Appellate Court against the decision handed down by the Central Economic and
Administrative Court. On 11 July 2012, the Company filed a formal statement of claim and the related
pleadings at the National Appellate Court.

On 20 November 2014, the National Appellate Court issued a judgment partly in favour of the appeal
filed and cancelling the fine imposed, albeit dismissing all the other claims.
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On [ September 2015 the Supreme Court notified ruling of 11 June 2015 dismissing the appeal for
review filed on 11 December 2014, confirming the settlement by the National Appellate Court, with
the debt and delay interest accrued on suspension being settled.

As regards the fine (1,475 thousand euros), the Supreme Court accepted the appeal for review filed by
the Counsel for the State against the favourable ruling from the National Appellate Court that
proceeded to cancel it, so this fine proceedings are still pending a decision.

The tax audits also included the review of other taxes of the companies belonging to the Tax Group,
which concluded with the relevant tax assessments being signed on an uncontested basis.

On 10 March 2012, tax audits were initiated in relation to Corporate Tax for 2007-2009 by the
inspection services from the Central Office for High-Income Taxpayers, against both the parent,
Acciona, S.A., and other subsidiaries. In addition to the review of the Tax Group’s corporate tax for

those years, the Company Group for VAT was under review for 2008 and 2009 and for other taxes for
2008 and 2009 of the Group companies subject to the tax review.

During these actions and on the occasion of the review of the withholdings effected on payment of
dividends, this partial review was extended to financial years 2010, 2011 and 2012 and also included
the reverse merger operation involving Grupo Entrecanales, S.A. and its subsidiaries taken over by
Acciona, S.A. on 11 July 2011. The tax inspectors accepted the existence of valid economic grounds

for the merger operation and its inclusion within the special tax system for mergers, spin-offs,
contributions of assets and securities swaps.

The inspectors, for their part, queried the fulfilment of the requirements for application of the
exemption in the payment of dividends for one of the non-resident shareholders, in particular, the
requirements of holding the status of effective beneficiary, and this led to the signing of the contested
tax assessments. On 3 and 17 July 2014, the Company lodged economic and administrative appeals at
the Central Economic Administrative Court. On 29 May 2015 the Company reached an agreement

with the shareholder that received the dividends so as to proceed to pay said amount, with settlement
of the tax debt upon the shareholder’s payment.

The other inspection actions concluded on 12 June 2014 with the signing of uncontested assessments
for Corporate Tax for 2007-2009 and without any tax due, uncontested conclusions for VAT with the
regularization of Acciona’s differentiated activity sectors as a “mixed holding” (without fine), with
\Odg—, application of part of the provisions allocated in Acciona, S.A., as well as contested assessments for
Personal Income Tax withholdings relating to compensation for dismissal. The Group companies
dged economic and administrative appeals at the Central Economic Administrative Court. On 19
ctober 2015 this Court notified dismissal of the claims filed by Acciona Infraestructuras, confirming
ttlement of the assessments for withholdings for the 2008 to 2011 periods, as well as the relevant
ne proceedings. On 3 September 2015 the company filed appeal for judicial review at the National
ppellate Court. The economic and administrative claims filed by the other companies about this

tter are still pending a decision by the Central Economic Administrative Court. It is estimated that
e risk that the proposed fines will be approved is remote.

N2 661

ith regards to Value Added Tax, the company heading the VAT company group (Acciona, S.A.)
ed to and signed the tax assessment dated 29 April 2014 for financial years-periods 2008 to

January 2010, regularizing the input VAT deductible due to the “mixed holding” condition of the
company.

TERESA DELA CUESTA BERNALDEZ |
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21 May 2015 the Central Office of High-Income Taxpayers notified the start of inspection actions
in| relation to Corporate Tax for financial years 2010-2012, targeting Acciona, S.A., as the parent of

Group, and several subsidiaries. In addition to review of Corporate Tax of the Tax Group for said
years, the VAT Company Group was included, years 2011, 2012 and 2013, and any other taxes for the
years/periods from 04/2011 to 12/2012 of the Group companies under tax review.
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The actions related to the VAT Group tor financial year 2013 are partial and limited only to review of
the deductible input VAT so as to regularise this VAT on the same terms as those agreed in previous
tax audits that ended with assessments signed in agreement and with no fines. On 29 September 2015
the tax assessments were signed in agreement to regularise all the outstanding years (periods 01/2010
to 12/2013)

Following the development of all these inspection actions the Group applied in 2015 the provisions
allocated in previous years for this purpose (see note 17).

On 10 January 2013, the company Guadalaviar Consorcio Edlico, S.A. was notified of the inception of
tax inspection actions relating to Corporate Tax and Value Added Tax for financial years 2008 and
2009, in which the value of the wind-power rights transferred in 2009 was reviewed. These actions
concluded with the signing of a contested assessment for the measurement made by the tax auditors of
the said wind-power rights, which increased the value declared by the parties. The company received
the proposed settlement from the technical services from the Central Office for High-Income
Taxpayers on 23 December 2013 and an economic-administrative appeal was filed at the Central
Economic and Administrative Court on 13 January 2014. The amount of the adjustment, including
late-payment interest, for which the company would be liable, would come to 9,159 thousand euros
and it is estimated that the possibility of these liabilities materialising is remote.

In the month of December 2014, the Mexican project companies Eurus SAPI de CV, CE QOaxaca III
and CE Oaxaca IV received notice of tax settlements from Juchitin Town Council for municipal levies
related to the 2011 to 2014 financial years. These companies lodged complaints or appeals (petitions
for legal protection) before the District Court of Oaxaca and obtained the suspension of enforcement
of the settlements. The external advisors engaged to carry out the process concluded that the likelihood
that the appeals lodged would be upheld is high (75%), since there are solid arguments for the defence,
constitutional principles had been breached and the issues in question are administrative acts contrary
to law. All this is supported by the fact that a Mexican court, at the first instance, allowed cancellation
of the municipal regulations on these contributions for 2015. In addition, on 28 January 2016 the
Seventh District Court of Oaxaca issued ruling favourable to the company Oaxaca IV, allowing the
appeal filed against the settlement of municipal contributions of the Juchitin Town Council, although
this ruling is not final and can be appealed against by the Town Council through appeal for review.
Therefore, the risk that material liabilities will materialise from this process is remote.

The directors of Acciona, S.A. consider that the liabilities that might arise from the open tax audits
would not have a material effect on the equity of the Acciona Group.

At 31 December 2015, the years that have not lapsed and that have not been reviewed were subject to
review by the tax authorities, for Corporate Tax and for the other main taxes applicable to the
companies in the consolidated tax group. In general, the other Spanish consolidated companies have
the last four years open for review by the tax authorities for the main taxes applicable thereto. In view
of the varying interpretations that can be made of the applicable tax legislation, the outcome of the tax
audits that could be conducted by the tax authorities in the future for the years subject to verification
might give rise to tax liabilities which cannot be objectively quantified at the present time. However,
the probability of material liabilities arising in this connection additional to those already recognised is
remote.

Receivables and payables with Public Administrations

Breakdown of receivables and payables with Public Administrations at 31 December 2015 and 2014
was as follows:
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2015 2014
Non-current Current Nen-eurrent Current

Tax receivables

VAT and other indirect taxation - 143,822 - 163 468

Corporate Tax - 68,298 75,928

Deferred tan 926,764 - 976,874 -

Other -- 17,401 - 35,107
Tetal 936,764 229,521 976,874 274,503
Tax payables

Income tax — 25,784 -~ 19,190

Pexsonal ncome tax withholdmgs - 16,346 - 17,990

VAT and other indirect taxation - 85,488 - 84 208

Deferred tax 739.636 - 692 794 -

Accrued social security charges - 19,743 - 25,643

Other local taxes - 37,246 - 32640

Other - 16,760 - 15517
Total 739,686 281,367 692,794 215,138

In financial year 2015, the main variation in the outstanding balance for VAT and other indirect taxes
came from the net decrease in indirect taxation to be recouped for the performance of international
projects (mainly in Mexico, Costa Rica and Poland), and these sums will be recovered for the most
part on the completion of the projects or through compensation with the tax accrued at the start of the
activity, as well as on reclassification of the Windpower subgroup to “held for sale” (see note 23).

As for balances payable, it should be noted that, since financial year 2013, the line “Other local taxes™
included the Tax on the Value of Electricity Generation and the fee for the use of continental waters
for generating electricity. These charges were introduced by Act 15/2012 of 27 December and came
into effect on 1 January 2013. In 2015 the main change related to settlement of the hydraulic fee for

the 2013-2014 years.

The VAT refundable and VAT payable balances include the balances relating to the special VAT
Company Groups system,

Reconciliation of accounting profit/(loss) and the tax result

Reconciliation between the accounting result and the income tax expense, at 31 December 2015 and

E § 2014, was as follows:
—r W3
= 2018 2014
l'-lf-'l"-'_l Z Consolidated profit/(loss) before tax 318,583 277,097
(=% g Profit/(joss) befoie tax from discontinued operations - -
!,'“_:E © Permanent ditferences (148,100) (88,843}
3 . Adjusted accounting profit/(loss) 170,483 188,254
:'3 28 Tax expense adjusted by tax 1ate 58,872 54 403
oyt g- °Z' Tax credits (11,436) (18.261)
-1 Offset of taxable amonnts not posted to the accounts (14.668) (3.692)
Unrecognised tax credits 31,986 32,233
Year's tax expense 64,754 39,683
Tax rate change 805 (22,522)
Etfect of tax adjustments fiom previous yeas 17,265 32,744
Tax expense per the income statement 82,824 69,905
Tax expense from discontinued operations - -

The “Permanent differences™ are made up of income and expenditure that are not eligible for inclusion
in accordance with the applicable tax legislation. In addition, the heading also includes those results
that are eliminated in the consolidation process but, nonetheless, are fully effective within the scope of
the international tax returns of each entity in the Group, especially those that are not included in the
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Tax Group. The most significant concept included in 2015 related to the differences arising in
connection with certain companies whose financial statements are subsumed within the group in view
of the functional currency used in their transactions, although their tax returns on earnings
corresponding to their applicable legislations are disclosed on the basis of financial statements
translated into the local currency. The remainder refers mainly to the cancellation of the sanctioning
proceedings of Compafifa Transmediterrdnea, S.A. (see note 17), the expense of which was adjusted at
source as non-deductible.

The “Tax expense adjusted by tax rate” is the result of applying the different tax rates applicable to the
adjusted accounting result for each of the different jurisdictions where the Group operates.

The line “Unrecognised tax credits” includes the tax effect derived from not recording the negative
results generated by some subsidiaries outside the tax group.

As a result of the reduction in the tax rate to 28% and to the final rate to 25% applied in Spain for tax
periods starting in or after 2015 and 2016, respectively, as approved by the new Corporate Tax Act,
Act 27/2014, of 27 November, the Group updated the deferred tax assets and liabilities generated in
connection with transactions and operations performed in the domestic arena, where the rate changed
from 30% to 28% or 25%, depending on the estimated calendar for application/reversal. The impact of
this update in 2015 was not significant, but in 2014 it meant income for 21 million euros, which was
reflected in the line “Tax rate change™ on the reconciliation table shown above.

The reconciliation of the pre-tax accounting profit/(loss) and the tax result is shown below:

2018 2014
Consolidated profit/{loss) before tax 318,583 277,097
Penmmanent ditfetences (148.100) {88.843)
Temporary differences (138,039) (270,615)
Offserting of tax lnss carrviorwards (140.126) {76.344)
Taxable amount (107,682) (158,705)

The Group’s taxable amount for financial year 2015 included as temporary differences the movement
in provision and non-deductible impairment and related reversions on application thereof, together
with the adjustments for the freedom of amortisation and the accelerated tax amortisation; they are
detailed further below in the section about deferred taxes. In addition, this same caption also included
as decrease in the taxable amount the reversion, as from 2015, of the limitation to deductibility of the
amortisation endowment adjusted in 2013 and 2014.

As for 2014, the Group’s taxable amount included a large part of the impairments for domestic assets
in the energy division recorded in 2013 on the basis of the approval of the new regulatory framework
that introduced a new remuneration regime applicable to the generation of electricity from renewable
sources. These impairments were disclosed as a negative adjustment in an amount close to 300 million
euros in “Temporary differences”.

Tax recognised in equity

Independently from the tax on profit recognised in the consolidated income statement, in 2015 and
2014 the Group recognised the following amounts in consolidated equity:

2015 2614
Translation differences 18,129 (22.270)
Fan value of financial mstiuments (22 035) 44 150
Financial assets with changes in equity 10 (1,629)
Actuanal losses and gains on pension plans 29 158
Total (3,925) 20,409
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Deferred tax

In accordance with the tax legislation in force in the countries in which the consolidated companies are
located, in 2015 and 2014 certain temporary differences arose that must be taken into account when
quantifying the related income tax expense.

The deferred taxes arose in 2015 and 2014 as a result of the following:

Deferred i reeeivable with origin in: 2015 2014

Deferred tax assets originating in: 195,111 214,568
Tax loss caryforwards 194,268 204,387
T'ax credit carryforwards 99,355 119216
Derryvative financial mstements 58,733 33226
Translation differences 12,909 15.994
Prov over assets 30,757 32223
Relating to taxation under the pass-through regime (UTEs) 325581 357260
Other 926,764 976,874
Fotal deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities originating in: 2018 14
Remeasutement of financial assets 7 58 77
Reversal of merger goodwaitl 184 184
Translation differences 40 011 23,398
Allocation of first-time consolidation differences to assets 138,408 145.693
Remeasurement of property, plant and equipment and investment 43 880 588
property :

Denvatrve financial instruments 218 5471
Relating to taxation under the pass-through regime (UTEs) 10,524 19.042
Other 506,403 498 341
Total deferred tax liabilities 739,686 692,794

At 31 December 2015, the tax loss carryforwards, whether recognised or not, generated by the
subsidiaries before their inclusion in the Tax Group of which Acciona, S.A. is the parent amounted to
152 million euros. Of this amount, a total of 48.6 million euros related to tax loss carryforwards not
capitalised on the consolidated balance sheet, corresponding to the Tax Group of which Acciona, S.A.
is the parent, as there was no assurance of the achievement of sufficient future profits or because the
regulations establish limits and requirements for them to be offset.

STA BERNALDEZ
e Jurada de INGLES

e subsidiaries of the Compafiia Trasmediterranea Subgroup, included in the Tax Group in 2010,
contributed most of this balance. In 2015 Compaiiia Trasmediterranea offset 28.7 million euros and
e company Compafiia Urbanizadora el Coto, included in the tax group in this financial year,
contributed 28 million euros as previous tax loss carryforwards.

s
i

r its part, as regards the interim settlement of Corporate Tax of the Tax Group for 2015, the Tax
up has a negative taxable base pending application and generated in 2014 for 149 million euros.

U
t
NE 661

In addition, some Energy division subsidiaries in the US, Australia and Mexico, as well as Mostostal
arszawa and the concessions subsidiary in Chile also recognised tax credits for negative taxable
ases pending offsetting.

5

‘ a
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Traductora-ir

t 2015 year-end, the deadlines for the tax credits recognised for negative taxable bases pending
plication were (in thousands of euros):
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Amount Lapse period

Acciona, S.A. tax group 37,253 No lapsing date
Acciona S A tax group — previous capilalised R66 No lapsinz dite
Spanish companies outside the Tax Group 1,900 No lapsing date
Internationsl - hmned 3,004 2017
International - limited 4,394 2018
Inteinational - limuted 1,853 2020
International - limited 24,997 2023
International - lmied 33,479 2024
International - limited 44,080 2025
International - limited 822 2026
International - limited 392 2027
Intemnational - lrited 1,908 202%
International - limited 1,626 2029
[ntetnational - limat] 2023 2030
International - limited 1.572 2031
Intermnational -unlmited 34 28% No lapsnig duie
Total 195,111

The Corporate Tax Act (Act 27/2014, of 27 November) eliminated the deadline for offsetting negative
taxable bases, which was set at 18 years, so this is now unlimited.

The unused tax credits, totalling 196.268 thousand euros, relate mainly to those earned by the tax
Group of which Acciona, S.A. is the parent. At 31 December 2015, the most significant unused tax
credits were: R&D+I tax credits amounting to 106,322 thousand euros; tax credits for the reinvestment
of extraordinary income amounting to 55,817 thousand euros; and environmental tax credits
amounting to 14.356 thousand euros

At 2015 year-end, the deadlines for deduction of the unused tax credits recognised on the consolidated
balance sheet of the Acciona Group were as follows (in thousands of euros):

Anount Lapse peried
Spanish companies outside tax group 52 2025
Grupo Fiscal Acciona, S A 10,268 2023
Grupo Fiscal Acciona, 5.A. 20,805 2024
Grupo Fiscal Acciona S A 21,3945 025
Grupo Fiscal Acciona, S.A. 32,850 2026
Acciong, 8§ A tax gioup 15 530 2027
Acciona, S.A. tax group 13,539 2028
Acciuna, S A tax group 23058 2029
Acciona, S.A. tax group 18,180 2030
Acciona. S A tax group 14 699 2031
Acciona, S.A. tax group 10,837 2032
Acclona, S A tax gioup 8.085 2033
Non-resident companies 4969  No lapsing date
Total 194,268

Act 27/2014, of 27 November, on Corporate Tax, eliminated, effective 1 January 2015, the deadline
for offsetting double-taxation deductions pending application from previous financial years, so the
period is unlimited, as provided for in section 39 of Act 27/2014, and extended from 15 to 18 years the
period to offset other deductions.
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At year-end there were no material unused tax credits that had not been recognised.

The Acciona Group expects to recover the tax loss and tax credit carryforwards recognised in the
books, through the companies’ ordinary activities and without any equity risk of losses.

Most of the deferred tax assets included in the line “Other” related to non-deductible provisions for
liabilities and portfolio mainly in connection to Acciona, S.A., in the amount of 29,807 thousand euros
in tax, impairment recognised mostly in FY 2013 for both resident companies and foreign subsidiaries,
mainly in the United States, and part of which was not deductible. In addition, the “Other” balance
reflects the adjustment for the 30% cap on non-deductible accounting depreciation for Spanish
companies, introduced temporarily for financial years 2013 and 2014, for taxable amounts of 105,723
and 80,296 thousand euros, respectively, and which began to reverse in FY 2015, and the unification
adjustments made as part of the consolidation process, such as eliminations of internal margins (in the
amount of 74,116 thousand euros at 31 December 2015), which will gradually be reversed with the
asset amortisation process. Finally, this line included adjustments to the taxable amounts through the
application of other countries’ specific regulations whereby certain expenses are not deductible until
they are paid or the criterion of accounting accrual is not applied for deductibility, as is the case in
Mexico, Australia and the United States, or because a billing-based criterion is applied instead of
accounting accrual by stage of progress, as happens in Chile.

The ling “Other” under the deferred tax liability heading includes the tax adjustments under the
freedom to amortise established in the Eleventh Additional Provision included in RDL 4/2004
(rewritten text of the Corporate Tax Act) by Act4/2008, whose application is currently limited
depending on the taxable base. In financial year 2014, no adjustment was applied because there was a
tax loss carryforward and in 2015 the taxable base was adjusted in 107,340 thousand euros in this
respect. Said account reflects the reversion of the adjustment from previous years in the amount of the
accounting amortisation recognised. The accumulated amount of this adjustment at 31 December 2015
for the companies from the Spanish tax group amounted to 183 million euros for tax liability. It also
included the amortisation effect for tax purposes of Mexico, the US and Australia, for approximately
127, 63 and 11 million euros for tax liability, respectively, as well as adjustments for application of the
specific regulations of countries where accounting income is not recognised for tax purposes until the
bill is issued or collected, instead of the principle of accounting accrual or stage of progress, mainly in
Chile and Mexico.

“Revaluation of property, plant and equipment and real property” reflects the difference between the
carrying amount and the tax amount for the assets of the company Compafiia Urbanizadora el Coto,

which were in “held for sale” accounts in the previous financial year.

Reporting obligations

Current Corporate tax legislation provides tax incentives to encourage certain investments. The
companies in the Tax Group have availed themselves of the benefits envisaged under this legislation.

The Tax Group, through its Parent and certain of its subsidiaries, is required to fulfil the obligations
assumedimeennection with the tax incentives applied and, in particular, it must hold, for the stipulated
$319 R'enod the as8&s fpr which the ifivestment or reinvestment tax credits were taken.
: P epeuny alaJdJan
ZJ{”WM 20 8 Pjﬂﬁnm 2013 and 2014, the Parent and certain companies in the Tax
“Group.ayi é 't gﬂ @’s_;(ilz}lgg ax¢redit for reinvestment of extraordinary i mcome provided for by
Article 42 of Royal Decree-Law #/2004 (rewritten text of the Corporate Tax Act)'. The income

1 Regulated in the Twenty-Fourth Temporary Provision of Act 27/2014.
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qualifying for this tax credit in these years amounted to 86,550, 160,251, 8,640, 9,598 and 34,516
thousand euros, respectively. The income relating to 2009 and 2010 was reinvested in 2010, the
income relating to 2011 was reinvested in 2011, the income relating to 2012 and 2013 was reinvested
in 2013, and the income relating to 2014 in 2014. The assets in which the income was reinvested were
as listed in Article 42 of Royal Decree-Law 4/2004, i.e. property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, investment property and securities representing stakeholdings of no less than 5% in the share
capital or equity of all manner of companies. The income was reinvested by the companies belonging
to Tax Group 30/96.

Pursuant to Article 42.10 of the rewritten text of the Corporate Tax Act, this information must be
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements as long as the period for which the
assets must be held, as stipulated in Article 42.8 of the Regulation, is not complied with.

In accordance with the provisions contained in section 86 of Act 27/2014 on Corporate Tax, certain
Group companies engaged in 2015 in the transactions listed below, to which the Special System for
mergers, spin-offs, contribution of assets and securities swaps was applied.

- Split-off of the Company Acciona Inmobiliaria, S.L. by segregating the part of its corporate equity
that represents a branch of activity, under the terms set in section 71 of Act 3/2009, of 3 April, on
Structural Changes to Mercantile Companies, with the economic unit being transferred to the
beneficiary, the company Acciona Real Estate, S.A.U., documented under deed dated 30 September
2015.

- Merger of the company Global de Energias Edlicas Al Andalus, S.A. (merged Company) and
Ceolica Hispania, S.L. (merging Company), documented under deed dated 11 September 2015 and
backdated to 1 January 2015.

In accordance with the provisions contained in section 86.3 of Act 27/2014 of the rewritten text of the
Corporate Tax Act, the information required for transactions carried out in previous financial years is
detailed in the relevant separate annual reports approved after completion of the operations.

In 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, several companies in the tax group deducted the tax credit for
impairment losses on ownership interests in Group companies, jointly controlled entities and
associates, as provided for in Article 12.3 of Royal Decree-Law 4/2004 (rewritten text of the
Corporate Tax Act), regulated in Temporary Provision Sixteen of Act 27/2014

Act 16/2013, of 29 October, repealed, with effect from 1 January 2013, section 12.3 of the rewriiten
text of the Corporate Tax Act in relation to deduction of impairment losses on such equity interests
and established a transitional system for the inclusion of losses pending incorporation at 31 December
2012 in the taxable base.

The notes to the separate financial statements of these companies include the disclosures required by

tax legislation concerning the change in the year in the investees’ equity, the amounts included in the
taxable base and the amounts vet to be included.

23. Non-current assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

Detail of “Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale” on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet at 31 December 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

Balance at  Balance at
311272015 31/1272014

Energy division assets (wind farms) 429425 -
Aszets form the other activities division (property assets) 1.636 412,137
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Total non-current assets classified as held for sale

431,061 412,137

At 31 December 2015, detail, by division, of the main asset headings prior to their classification as
“Assets Held for Sale” was as follows:

Energy

division
Property. plant and equipment 90,019
Investment property
Other intangible assets 8322
Deferred tax assets 41,336
Other non-current assets 497
Inventones 172291
Trade and other accounts receivable 62,345
Cash and cash equivalents 9616
Other assets 44,999
Assets clawified as held for sale 429425

Other
Activities
division

1,636

1.636

Also, detail at 31 December 2015 and 2014 of “Non-current liabilities Classified as Held for Sale” on
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet was as follows:

Energy division liabilities (manufacture of wind turbines)
Other Activitics division habihties (mvestment property)

Total non-current liabilities classified as held for sale

Balance at  Balamce at
3171215 3/i1214
418406 -
1,660 321,419
420,066 321419

At 31 December 2015, detail of the main liability items prior to their classification as held for sale was

o 3s follows:

Energy

division
Non-current habilities £8.117
Trade and other accounts payable 302,933
Othe: cirent lisbilities 47356
Liabilities held for sale 418,406

Other
activifies
division

1,660
1,660

Accumulated income and expenses recognised directly in equity at 31 December 2015 in relation to

m gssets classified as held for sale were as follows:
Y

Transiation
differences
Energy division {manufacture of wind turbines) 6,804
Total recognised income/(expense} 6,804

In 2015 the main changes in “Non-current assets and liabilities held for sale” related to the
classification in the year under this caption of the Corporacion Acciona Windpower subgroup after
signature of agreement with Nordex, S.E., which is detailed below; and to the transfer of the
Compaiiia Urbanizadora Coto, S.L. subgroup to the related captions for assets and liabilities, because
of what is explained at the end of this note.

91




TRANSLATION

As regards the Corporacién Acciona Windpower subgroup, last 4 October 2015 Acciona, S.A. signed
an agreement with the German company Nordex S.E., whereby Nordex S.E. would buy the whole
share capital of Corporacion Acciona Windpower, S.L. As consideration, Acciona, S.A. would
receive 16,100,000 newly issued shares representing 16.6% of the share capital of Nordex, measured
at 26 euros per share, which would account for a total of 418.6 million euros and a cash payment of
366.4 million euros, resulting in a total value of 785 million euros, which would be adjusted on the
basis of the existing debt at 31 December 2015.

The first estimated future gains amounted to approximately 675 million euros, to be adjusted on the
basis of the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2015 of the Corporacién Acciona
Windpower subgroup.

At 31 December 2015 the operation was subject to fulfilment of certain conditions precedent, in
particular the lack of opposition of the competent Competition authorities. It is estimated that the
operation could be concluded in the first quarter of 2016.

In  addition, Acciona, S.A. subscribed an agreement with Momentum-Capital
Vermdgensverwaltungsgesellschaft GmbH and Ventus Venture Fund Gmbh & Co. Beteiligungs KG
(current shareholders of Nordex S.E.), for acquisition of 12,897,752 Nordex, S.E. shares currently in
circulation and representing 13.3% in the share capital in the amount of 335.34 million euros
equivalent to 26 euros per share. The acquisition is subject to the condition precedent that the
acquisition of AWP as described in the paragraphs above is formalised and executed in full by
Nordex.

For accounting purposes, the signature of the agreement meant that since 30 September 2015 the
Acciona Group has classified all the assets and liabilities contributed by the Acciona Windpower
subgroup to the captions “assets and liabilities held for sale”.

Ii must be noted too that at 31 December 2015 the caption “Assets and liabilities held for sale” related
mainly to the Compafifa Urbanizadora El Coto subgroup, which in 2015 were reclassified by their
nature (basically to Property Investments-Property for Rentals and to Financial Debt) as a result of the
redesign of the strategy to follow with the Coto subgroup and with part of the real estate division
where revaluations of use of certain inventories were considered (see notes 5 and 13) according to the
trend of the property market, through the creation of a new company, Acciona Real Estate, S.A., to
which the assets and companies (including Coto) that, following the new Group’s strategy, would
create value through operation via leasing, were contributed. In this new context, Coto must be
considered, within the Acciona Group’s strategy, jointly with the other Property for Rentals assets that
make up the Acciona Real Estate activity.

Group Management remains committed to the sales plans for this group of companies at a price,
higher than their carrying amounts. Accordingly, it is considered highly probable that they will be sold
within the coming twelve months.

24, - Guarantee commitments to third parties

The companies had provided third-party bonds before clients, public agencies and financial
institutions, for 2,868,774 thousand euros and 2,516,731 thousand euros at 31 December 2015 and
2014, respectively.

The purpose of most of the bonds provided was to guarantee good performance in the development of
the works engaged by the infrastructure division.
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Also, provided collateral was included to cover future capital and reserves contributions. Within the
infrastructure division, those given to the subsidiaries 8.C. Novo Hospital de Vigo S.A., Altrac Light
Rail Holdings 1 Pty Limited, S.C. and Autovia Gerediaga Elorrio S_A. must be noted, in the amounts
of 1.5, 14 and 3 million euros, respectively. The Water division granted a bank bond to cover future
capital and reserves contributions, for 4 million euros.

The companies estimate that any liabilities as could arise from the guarantees provided would not be
significant.
25.- Income

Breakdown of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

2015 2014
Energy 2718721 2,199 800
Construction 2,169 666 2625940
Water 450,534 409412
Services 715845 691,344
Other Activities 613 458 692,451
Consolidation adjustments {124,700) (120.448)
Total revenue 6,543,524 6,498,501

Breakdown, by geographical area, of the Group companies’ total production was as follows (in
thousands of euros):

Enrppan OECD Other
Span Unpten countries copatries Total

2015

Energy 1,172,974 101,491 1.141.685 302,571 2.118,721
Constructicn 843,087 315,041 665,086 346,452 2,169,666
Water 178.012 45,039 16.309 211,154 450,534
Services 509,939 113,495 55,340 37,071 715,845
Other Activities 595,643 4213 6,565 7,037 613458
Intra-Group transactions (86.,616) cY) (37,774) (306) (124,700)
Total 2015 production 3,213,839 579,295 1,847,211 903,979 6,543,524
2014

Energy 1,185,543 147,560 646,171 220,526 2,199,800
Construction 1,074,154 371,633 580,063 591,090 2,625,940
Water 176,630 36,493 40.071 156,218 409412
Services 550,432 105,607 21,683 13,624 691,346
Other Activities 628 783 10.741 45685 7242 692,451
Intra-Group transactions (91,592) 4 (28.637) (215) (120,448)
Total 2014 production 3,523,950 672,038 1,314,836 988,485 6,498,501

Revenue from the concession activity

At 31 December 2015, the Acciona Group maintained its most significant service concession contracts
in force at the infrastructure and water divisions. The net amount of revenue at the close of the
financial year for each category of concession agreement, including those within the scope of IFRIC
12, came to 106 and 21 million euros, respectively. Appendix VI details the main concessions.

As indicated in Note 3.2 g), following the adoption of IFRIC 12, the Acciona Group recognises under
“Non-Current Receivables and Other Non-Current Assets” concession business assets whose recovery
is guaranteed in the concession contract by the grantor through the payment of a fixed or determinable
amount and, accordingly, no demand risk is borne by the operator.
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In relation to these concession asscts, even during the construction phase the Group recognises income
earned on interest, based on the effective interest rate of the financial asset. This interest income is
recognised under “Revenue”, which at 31 December 2015 and 2014 amounted to 16,756 and 17.938
thousand euros, respectively.

Construction revenue

The Group obtains substantially all its construction revenue in its capacity as prime contractor.,

Detail of infrastructure construction revenue by type of project was as follows:

2615 2014
Civil engineering 1,458,144 1,771,209
Residential burlding constiuetion 435,546 54 713
Non-residential building construction 379247 489,732
Othet business activities 181.779 205,507
Total construction revenue 2,064,716 2,521,161

Detail of infrastructure construction revenue by type of client was as follows:

2018 2014
Central Government 189,218 203,506
Regional Guvernments 88,598 83.831
Local councils 24956 25,509
Regional Agencies end Government-owned corporations 190,259 300,439
Public sector 493,031 622,345
Private sector 302,227 46 965
Total Spanish clients 795258 1,029,310
Tutal clicnts abroad 1.269.458 44 851
Total construction revenue 2,064,716 2,521,161

The accumulated data on the contracts in progress in the construction activity at the close of financial
years 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

20158 2014
Accumnulated revenue from contracts in progress 7,942 406 6,896,231
Accumulated amount of costs mouned 7537611 6,602,682
Total accumulated earnings 404,794 293,549
Advances fiom clients (Mote 14) 469,151 458,658
Withholdings 43,915 48,321

The geographical distribution of the infrastructure construction backlog at the close of 2015 and 2014
was as follows:

2018 Spamn Abread

Civil engineering 1,326,540 4,244 678
Residential building eonyirn:ction 12,581 54.823
Non-residential building construction 240,365 174,423
Other business actrvilies 203528 465 137
Total construction backlog 1,783,014 4,939,061
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2014 Spain Abread

Civil engineering 1,521,235 3,152,472
Residential building construction 26,670 53,003
Non-residential building construction 311,661 264,911
Other business activities 202,750 160,348
Total construetion backlog

2,062,316 3,630,734
26. Expenses

Breakdown of the Group’s expenses was as follows:

2015 2014
Procurements 1,830,221 1,853,678
Staff costs 1,254,250 1,278,310

Wages, salaries and similar 1,006,614 1,027 419

Social secunty cosis 222 863 228,643

Other staff cosis 24773 19,248

Other external expenses 2321467 2,401 541
Taxes other than income tax 190,307 197,764
Other current operating expenses 17,547 39,687
Subtotal 5,614,092 5,767,980
Change in provisions and aflowances 53,156 53,102
Depreciation and amortisation charge 509 962 494,016
Total 6,177210 6.315.898

Employees:

The average number of employees in 2015 and 2014, by professional category, was as follows:

2015 2014
Management and supervisors

Change
1,835 2,521 (686)
Qualified line personnel 5,483 5.040 443
Clenical and support staff 2492 2423 7 69
Cther employees 22,337 23,875 {1.238)
Total average number of employees 32,147 33,559 (1,412)
- =
— - 3 - -
» __:”Fhe classification above broken down by gender in 2015 and 2014 was as follows:
e
™
=4 ?ﬁ 2ns 2614
E:a == Men Women Total Men Women Total
:-':'-: r?l Mansgement and supervisois 1,505 330 1835 2,098 423 2,521
%‘ r:; Qualified fine personnel 3,745 1,738 5483 3350 1,690 5,040
S 5 e | Clencal and support staff 720 1,772 2,492 284 1,539 2423
.
% © S:-. Other employees 16815 5522 22337 18281 5294 23 575
o
‘%::‘ i |Toml average number of employees 22,788 9362 32,147 24,613 8,546 33589
ol
& . .
2 Breakdown of the Group’s employees by line of business was as follows:
25w
'E % 2015 2014 Change
T Energy 2,694 2375 319
v i Construction of Infrastructure 9412 12,268 {2.856)
Wate 2333 2410 (17
Services 15,660 14,321 1,339
Other Activitics 2,048 2,185 {137)
Total average number of employees 32,147 33,559 (1,412)
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The classification above broken down by gender in 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

2015 2014
Men Women Total Men Women Total

Energy 2057 637 2,694 1.796 579 1375
Construction of Infrastructure 7667 1,745 9,412 10,355 1913 12,268
Wazer 1946 387 2333 2,024 386 2410
Services 9,754 5,906 15,660 8,935 5,386 14,321
Uther Activities 1,362 686 2048 1.503 682 2188
Total average number of employees 22,786 9361 32,147 24,613 8,946 33,559

In 2015 and 2014, respectively, 271 and 247 employees of the total headcount were employees of the
Parent and the remainder were employed by the Group subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2015, the average number of employees with a disability level of 33% or over
employed by the consolidated companies amounted to 676 (direct and indirect employment). The
percentage of compliance with Act 13/1982, of 7 April, on Social Integration of Persons with
Disabilities, which establishes a minimum quota of 2% for the recruitment of disabled persons in
companies with more than 50 employees, was 3.55%.

Operating leases:

“Other External Expenses - Leases” in the accompanying consolidated income statement includes
notably the costs incurred by the Compafifa Trasmediterranea Subgroup for the charter of other
shipping companies’ vessels and cargo decks totalling 41 million euros in 2015 and 2014.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the lease terms and conditions and minimum payments (without
taking into account inflation or possible updates) under the main vessel charter contracts entered into
by the Compaiiia Trasmediterranea Subgroup were as follows:

2015 (miles de euros)

_ A"";fti'“e“‘ Expiry date Type 2016 2017-2018
Wistena/Vronshy 294022012 15/11/2016 Time Chartei 4,602 -
Tenacia 07/12/2011 30/01,2017 Time Charter 6,548 540
Scanaila 214022013 29/02/2016 Time Charter 23 -
Volcan de Teneguia 04/02/2013 30/06/2016 Time Charter 1,656
Snav Adititico (7052015 07/05.2016 Time Charier 2713 -

2814 (thousands of eurcs)
Arrangement Expiry date Type 2015 2016-2017

Vessel date

Wisteria/Vronskiy 29/0272012 30/11/2015 Time Charter 4,608

Albayzin 22/02/2010 31032018 Time Chater 1,503
Tenacia 07/12/2011 07/12/2015 Time Charter 5,544 5
leandet/Sherbatskiy 01102014 01/10/2015 Time Charter 4,482 -
Miranda 06/01/2013 01/03/2015 Time Charter 246 -
Scandolla 21022013 037032015 Time Charter 3715 -

Volcan de Tenagua 04/02/2013 04/02/2015 Time Charter 282
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Change in provisions and allowances:

Breakdown of the balance of “Change in Provisions and Allowances” in the consolidated income
statement was as follows (in thousands of euros):

2015 2014
Change in allowance for uncollectible recervables 33.860 35.190
Change in inventory write-downs 3,646 5,000
Other provisions 15,650 12,912
Total 53,156 53,102

At 31 December 2015 there were no changes in provisions for inventories in any significant amount.
“Other provisions” related mainly to additions made for burdensome contracts and provision for
litigation and provision for future replacement or large repairs in concessions recognised under the

intangible model.

Impairment and results from the disposal of plant. property and equipment

Breakdown for this heading on the income statement for financial years 2015 and 2014 was as
follows:

Impairment and profit/(loss) frem the disposal of piant, 2015 2014
property and equipment

Profit/(loss) from plant. property and equipment 8.756 50,349
Lmpawrmest of compames hold by the equity method B (12,078)
Impanment of other assets (Notes 4 and 7) (22,049) {3.846)
Othet 1,857 {2.036)
Total (11,436) 32,369

At 31 December 2015 the line “Profit/(loss) from property, plant and equipment” reflected mainly the
sale of the company Biodiesel Bilbao, with capital gains of 4 million euros. In addition, the company
Acciona Solar Power sold rights over land that the company held for construction of a wind farm, and
it obtained capital gains of 3.3 million euros.

The line “Impairment of other assets™ reflects mainly the impairment recognised in 2015, for 19
million euros, in the company holding a motorway concession in Brazil, Rodovia do Ago, S.A.

At 31 December 2014, the line “Profit/(loss) from plant, property and equipment” mainly reflected the
divestment of a percentage of the stakeholding held by the Acciona Group in three concessions in
Canada with a capital loss of 14 million euros; the sale of two concessions in Spain (Tramvia
etropolita, S.A. and Tramvia Metropolita del Besds, S.A.) with a capital gain of 8 million euros; the
le of Freyssinet, S.A., with a capital gain of 15 million euros; and the sale of German companies that
1d wind power assets in that country, with a capital gain of 28 million euros (see Note 2.2 h),

1 December 2015, two fines imposed on Compaifiia Trasmediterranea, S.A. in 2010 by the
ish National Competition Commission were settled favourable for the Group, with the ensuing
ion of the provision recognised for 30 million euros (see note 17).

oss) from changes in the value of financial instruments at fair value

impairment was applied to the stakeholding in the company “Agrupaciéon Logistica de
S.L.”, classified as financial asset available for sale; this had an impact of 2000 thousand
euros on the consolidated income statement (see note 10).
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At 31 December 2014, this heading included mainly the profit/(loss) from the sale of the stakeholding
that the Acciona Group held in the company Bolsas y Mercados Espatfioles, S.A., with a capital gain of
27 million euros, and from the sale practically all its stakeholding in Gtceisu Construction, S.A., with a
capital loss of 5 million euros (see Note 10).

217, Segment reporting

Basis of segmentation:

Segment reporting is structured on a primary basis by business segment and on a secondary basis by
geographical segment. This structure is in line with the information internally used by Acciona Group
Management to assess the performance of the segments and to allocate resources among them.

The business lines described below are established by the Board of Directors on the basis of the
Acciona Group’s organisational structure, taking into account the nature of the goods and services
offered.

The structure of the information disclosed in this Note has been designed as if each line of business
were a separate business. Costs incurred by the Corporate Unit are distributed pro rata, using an
internal cost distribution system, among the different lines of business.

Inter-segment sales are made at market prices.

In order to help understand the results and in line with how the Acciona Group Directors manage this
information, certain exceptional amounts that facilitate a better understanding of the ordinary course of
business are presented as an additional segment. Nonetheless, where these effects are material in

respect of the Group’s results, details are given as to how they affect each segment.

Segment information about these activities for 2015 and 2014 is shown below.

- Construc- Other Intra~group  Extraords- Virtal

Balances at 31/12/18 Energy i Water Services actviAem Operations e Grwup
ASSETS
Property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets 7,357,808 315,371 161,842 45,527 1,002,140 (34,802) - 8,847,886
and investent property
Goodwill - 358 27.97h 50,962 - - - 79204
Non-gurrent financial assets 37,8358 16,901 11,498 11,955 73,382 8,451 - 160,045
Iy cstments accounted fn R (TS & =
usiny the cqnty methud 227 80e 55,581 107 549 268 18 845 {935 - 309.114
Other assets 461,749 579,076 39,798 2,603 304,152 1,227 1,388,605
Nun-carreat assets 8,088,221 97,287 348,663 111,31% 1,398,519 (26,635 = 14,884,946
Inverianies 102,383 180 221 14,546 1.004 457 905 1601T - 740,102
Trade and other receivables 780,549 894,468 220,044 179,198 182,436 (644,277) - 1,612.418
e Lovetiranl 364 508 1,988 6052 1,850 5028 2,500 : 412,863
FLOGT
Other assets 64,672 145,714 12,937 20,868 3,991 (2,625) (9,503) 236,054
Cash utidd cash equivalents {1.018.266) 926,527 97,858 (31419 149424 (10.951) = 1,460,173
Non-current assets classified
as held for sale 429,425 - - - 1,636 - - 431,061
Corent assets 723,271 2,179,818 351,437 bl i | 2,147,420 {671,370) {9.543) 4,892,671
Total assets 8,808,492 3,147,102 700,100 182,916 3,545,939 (697,429} {9,507} 15,777,616
LIABILITIES
Coaselidated equity 1,599,396 477,214 141,483 127,018 1,360,977 (41,440) E03) NEa (R
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Constime- . Other Intra-group  Extraordi- Teial
D Energy tion el Services activifies Operations nary ltems Group
Bask bortowmes and other o
Timatesy Rt 3.718.160 J% 118,171 5,701 1,707 790 - - 5.895,023
Othex Eabilities 1,347.202 347867 33,786 5,191 280,844 (11,712 = 2,008,178
Nou-cwrrent liabilities 5,065,362 693,068 156,957 10,892 1,988,634 1,712y - 7,903,201
Bank barrowings and othe:
fmamoinl liabilitias 1327416 382650 2,765 25,541 (601 231) - =~ 1,137,141
Trade and other payables 285093 1,335,159 245,529 99,700 214 508 (155,456) v 2,024 533
QOther liabilities 112819 259011 54,366 19,765 581.391 (488.821) - 538,531
Liabilities ditectly
assoGated with non-current
assets classified as held for 4183406 h - 1,660 - i L)
sale
Carrent abiities 2,143,734 1,975,820 302,660 145,066 196328 {644.277) - 4,126,270
Tetal equity and habilities 8.808,492 3047002 700.100 282,916 3.545,939 (697,429) (9,503) 15777616
Construc- ; Other Intra-gronp  Extraordi- Group
Balanees at 31.12.15 Epergy tion Water Services rvitics Operations  nary Items Total
Total revenue 2,718,721 2,169,666 450,534 715,845 613,457 {124,599} - 6,543 524
Revorne 2695316 2,165,704 448 327 624,545 609,133 - - 6,543,524
Ravenue to other
segments 23,405 3.9563 1,707 91,300 4324 (124,699) - -
Other revenue and operating
(1.82),729) (2,067 85%) 1415 906 {685,105) {500,733) 121 884 - (5.369,442)
expenmes
Gross operating result 896,992 101,813 34,628 30,740 112,724 (2,815) - 1,174,082
Endowments (418,145) (59.739) (6.296) (13,189 {44,905) 1,056 {22,500) 1563,118)
Tmpaument and profit/(loss)
from disposal of plant, 6,727 345 - 190 (68) - (18.630) (11.436)
property and equipment
Other gruns and losses (1,688} {1.80%) 559 {430 240 - 0427 37.391
Profitf{{loss) t
oper:{(ﬁl()::’) rom 483,886 40,611 29,291 17,302 67,991 (1,159 (1,003) 626,919
Financial profiv(loss) (312,504 (14,572) (3,830 11.281) (34,623 = - £356,810)
Profit/{loss) due to changes 176 (2,000) . _ 244 i C (1,580)
= Fiofit (loss) fiom entines
g- aceounted for by the equity 26 593 2119 15,679 {431 2.092 ™ - 60,054
: vl
E.;.. ofit /(loss) before tax 198,063 33,158 41,040 15,580 42,904 (1,159 (11,003) 318,583
Eu“ for Corporate Tax {58,187 (22.567) (11,556} (5.196) 12,894 288 1,500 (82.824}
E) oh
= ;“:::"" profit/{loss) 139,876 10,591 29,484 10,384 55,798 871 (9,503) 235,759
A
= g t/(loss) after w from = N : =
° titued activities - - i - )
% . t {loss) in the year 139,876 10,591 19,484 10,384 55,798 871) (9,503) 235,75¢
o .
S 3p-pontollmg miecess (21.030) (63271 - @12} (444) a2 SN T
[« z
£ ﬂ::") il O 118,846 3,864 29,484 10,172 55,384 (893) (9,503) 207,324
8 Construc- Other Intra-group  Extraordi- Total
Bakinces at 31/12/14 Energy tiom Water Services ities =i = R
ASSETS
Property, plant and
equpment, mtangible assets 7.580,403 372,147 215,647 44 658 549,608 (36.641) - 8 725,822
and investment property
Goodwill = 357 21976 50,962 = = = 78095
Non-cuient financial assets 41 556 18,077 9,095 9,191 69,364 8451 8 155,734
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Balances at 31/12/14

[nvesiments dccounted tor
usipg the equrty mathod

Other assets
Non-curriif asgets

Tnventones
Trade and othet receivables

{nhe citent financial
a38ers

Other assets
Cash zud cash equivalents

Non-current assets classified
as held for sale

Current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND
EIABIITIES
Consohdated equity

Bank brerowinzs and other
financeal luibalines

Other liabilities
Non-curyent habnliz ey

Rank botrowings aud other
finzhcial lablites

Trade and other payables
Other habihities

Liabilities directly
associated with non-current
assets classified as held for
sale

Current labilines

Total equity asd Liabiiittes

Balances at 31.12.14

Total revenue

Revenue

Revenue to other
segments
{sther jevenue and eperating
expenscs
Gross operating
profit/{loss)
Endgavments
Impairment and profit/(loss)
from disposal of plant,
property and equipment
Other predit {loss)
Profit/(loss) from
operations
Finascial profitilnss)
Profit/(loss) due to changes
in value

Profit (Joss 1 from eninies
accounted fua by ¥he cquaty
meilod

Profit/(loss) before tax

Expense fix Income Tan

Energy

242,554

464,517
8,329,030

221,936

876,972

334,459

86,458
(1,U63,922)

455,993

8,784,933

1,272,692

1,309,131

1,280,696
5,589,827

1.0i8u,740

690,739

150935

1,922,414

8,784,933

Energy

2,199,800
2,187 445

12,355
(1,411,453
788,347
(395192}
6,766
(1,692}

398,229
1124 889)
@31

13,209

86,318
58575

Consiruc-
non

36 517

556,058
983,156

192,649

1,125,575

26216

127,074
919,082

2,391,206

3,374,362

574,005

428 359

356,259
784,618

243,410

1,510,241
262,070

2,015,739

3,374.362

Construc-
fian

2,625,940
2,591,144

34,79
(2.507, 793}
118,147
{80,880
416
(1,838}
35,845
1825

17,158

54,828
(25,482}

Water

103 412

41,918
398,048

17722
213,287
£330

14,655
99,854

349,857

747,908

214,008

157,248

64,353
221,601

57907

197,232

57157

312,29:

747,908

Water

409,412
5,262

1,150
1374.8501

34,562
118 08,

(75)

52
16,451
(B850
20,253

27,853
(12,656)

Services

6l6

1,594
197,001

91?
189,020
1613

16,869
(37383

171,036

278,057

120,361

1579

4,833
9,812

34225

90,562
25007

147,884

278,087

Services

691346
628 009

63,337
{670,833
20,513
110.902)
(89)
{191)
9,331

(1951)

{201

7,179
(2929}

Other
acnvihes

7,162

354,873
981,007

627,381
207,340
1,253

8,550
1,418 247

412,137

2,074,910

3,685,917

1,446,068

1.018215

306,723
1,324,938

1334,474)
244,915
$63.084
321419

384,914

3,655,917

Other
activities

692,451
683,641

8.810
(566,903

125,548
{44.111)
2,429
3,343
87,209
128 203}
6

14.174)

54,676

173,749}

Intra-group
Operations

111y

1,460
(26,841)

TS
(672,160)
1225

(6,398)
(9,676)

(704,970)

1731,811)

(47,461}

(12,190)
(12,19

(175461
1496, 699)

(672,160)

(731,811)

Intra-gr.ap
QOperations

{120,448)

(120,348)
120370

(78)
2038

1,977

152

.

2,133

(3.310)

Lxtraoidi-
Bary {tems

33,817

Eatra-
ordinary
TItems

22,622

22,922
{9970
22,185

44,110

(10,292}

Total
Group

390130

1,420,420
16,711,421

1,042 044

1,940.034

369,107

281,025
ML B,

412,137

5,371,759

16,143,180

3 6154a7

S 17,532

2,000,674
7,918,600

1.071,817
2,558,228
659,623
321419
4,611,087

16,143,188

Group
Total

6,498 501
6.498,501

(0 B s |

1,087,039
(547.318)

32369

1326;
571,964
(363,075}
21 960
46248

277,097

(69.20)
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Balances at 31.12.14

Consolidated prefit/(loss)
m the year

Profit (boss) after &, from
dacomtraued activities

Profit/(loss) m the vear
Non-controlling mnterests

Profit/(loss) attributable to
the Parent

Energy

144,891

144,891
(17.78%

127,108

Congtruc-
tion

29,346

29,346
13,79

25,554

Water

15,197

15,197

15,197

Services

4,250

4,250

(85)

4,168

Onther
activities

{19,073)

(19,073)
(576)

(19,649)

Intra-group
Operations

(1,237

1,237)
)

{1,244)

Extra-
ordinary
Ttems

33,818

33,818

33,818

Group
Total

207,192
207,192
(22,243

184,949

In financial year 2015, the “Extraordinary items” segment reflected the economic effects of the
following unusual events:

- Reversion of provision for liability, for 30 million euros, in relation to two proceedings involving
Compaiiia Transmediterranea and instituted by the Spanish National Competition Commission; the
proceedings were cancelled when ruling was issued allowing the appeals that the company had
filed before the Supreme Court {see note 17),

- Allocation for impairment in the value of an infrastructure concession located in Brazil and
recognised in intangible asset on the balance sheet, in the amount of 19 million euros (see note 7).

- Finally, losses were recognised for 22 million euros, on anticipated losses from certain contracts,
as well as some receivables in respect of which the process for collection in the year led to doubts
about their recoverability.

In financial year 2014, the “Extraordinary items” segment showed a pre-tax profit of 44 million euros,
mainly the result of the following transactions:

- Sales of the renewable energy activities in Germany with a capital gain of 28 million euros.

- Sale of the stakeholdings in 5 concessions (2 Spanish and 3 Canadian), as well as the sale of the
stakeholding in a construction subsidiary, with losses of 1 million euros.

Iaeonre
2018 2014
Spain 3,213,039 3,523 950
UTOpearn
Alon 579295 613,398
DECD
untries 1847211 1,314,036
puatsies 803 979 1,046 617
otal 6,543,524 6,498,501

523
ETd
=23
£
P
=
)
P~

Total assets
2015 2014
10,141,662 10,498,043
1,194,614 1,181 44)
3597214 3,446,245
844,127 1017 451
15,777,617 16,143,180

Nou-corrent assets

2018 2014
6,844 830 6,821 367
751.826 749,748
2,718.400 2.534,830
569,390 665476
10,884,946 10,771,421

Finance income and costs and other profit/(loss) for the year

Detail of the Group’s finance income and costs was as follows:

Sale of the shares the Group owned in Bolsas y Mercados Espafioles (BME), with a capital gain
of 27 million euros.

The table below shows disclosure of certain of the Group’s consolidated balances based on the
geographical location of the companies that gave rise to them.

Current assets
2015 2614
3.296.832 3,676,676
442.78% 431,603
878,814 911415
274 237 351975
4,892,671 5,371,759
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2018 2014
Finance income 34,844 50,256
From equity mvestments 283 805
From other financial instruments in Associates 3,528 4,714
Other finance moome 31.032 44,737
Finance eosts (424,425) (418,557)
On payables to third parties (428,223) (434,502)
On meflectiveness of denvatives (see Note 20} =
Capitalisation of borrowing costs 6,025 17,346
Change 1 financial provisions 12,227) (1.401)

Other finance income and costs:

The Group had capitalised borrowing costs amounting to 6 million euros at 31 December 2015 and
17.3 million euros at 31 December 2014, of which 6 and 17.1 million euros, respectively, were
capitalised to property, plant and equipment (sec note 4) and 0.2 million euros in 2014 were
capitalised to inventories (see Note 3.2 j).

Finance costs:

In 2015 payables to third parties subtracted from equity and included in “Finance Costs” relating to the
periodic settlements of hedging derivatives and corresponding to fully consolidated Group companies
amounted to 97,759 thousand euros (96,306 thousand euros in 2014). In addition, 23,347 thousand
euros (22,806 thousand euros in 2014) relating to these periodic settlements were recognised as a
decrease in the results of companies accounted for using the equity method, since it related to
associates.

29, Proposed application of profit/(loss)

Proposed application of the profit in financial years 2015 and 2014 of Acciona, S.A., as approved by
the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting, in the case of 2014, and that the Board of Directors will
submit to approval by the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting, in the case of 2015, is as follows (in
euros);

Distribution basis:

Acciona, 8 A profit o loss
Distribution;

To legal 1eserve

To statutory reserve

To volantary 1esaves
Tolosses fiom previous yeais
Dividends

Tofal

2015

180,549 874 53

18,054,987.45
19340012 08

143,148,875.00
180,549,874.53

2014
137.464,549.02

13,746 454.90
0,198 994 12

114,519,100.00
137,464,549.02

Under its Articles of Association, Acciona, S.A. must in any event allocate 10% of net profit to legal
and statutory reserves in such a manner that, when the former is covered (20% of the share capital),
any remaining portion of the 10% of net profit must be transferred to the statutory reserve. This
reserve is unrestricted.
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30. Environmental matters

ACCIONA backs the development of environmentally sustainable businesses: it generates electricity
from renewable sources; it desalinates water and makes it drinkable and also cleans it; and it builds
infrastructures and services where the environment variable is relevant in the taking of decisions.

In 2015, 49% of the Group’s global sales and 79% of the EBITDA were based on businesses included

in what the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP) defines as the Green Economy
(http://www.pnuma.org/ eficienciarecursos/economia.php).

In 2015 environmental expenses represented 266 million euros and environmental investments 116
million euros, which placed the company’s global environmental activity at 382 million euros.

This economic figure for environment-related activities can be broken down as follows:

Category Amount
(Million €)
Measures to minimise 53.6
environmental impact '
Environmental research, 29.4
development & innovation '

This includes investments in new renewable energy
105.4 facilities because of the savings in primary energy

implied by generation with these technologies and
consequently lower emissions.
Personnel mvolved in the

environmental activity 2
Investments in plant, property
and equipment to prevent 52
environmental impacts and '
protect the environment
Environmental consultancy and 0.8
advisory services G
Waste water treatment and 176.4
4 drinking water treatment ’

Environmental prevention

This

category includes other environmental
expenses, of which the mosi significant are
2.3 insurance and charges, framing, environmental

management system and environmertal awareness
and communication

Other

W

]
D

TOTAL 382.2
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Finally, in 2015 ACCIONA obtained bonuses for port rates and for energy production from Compafiia

Trasmediterrdnea, S.A. and the Acciona Agua, S.A. subgroup, for carrying out actions encouraging
espect for the environment and its protection. These bonuses totalled 840,000 euros.

¥15300 Y130 YS3LiL

A

l‘H!

1. Earnings per share

o e
Y |
R

w i

Elf.
¥

AL
ST A

il
o

Basic:

3
301

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit distributable to the Company’s
shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.

The amounts for the periods closed at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are given below:
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2618 2814
Net profit for the year (thousands of euros) 207324 184,949
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 56,794911 57051313
Basic sarnings per share (euros) 3.65 324

- Diluted:
To calculate the diluted earnings per share, the entity will adjust the result of the financial vear
attributable to the holders of ordinary equity instruments and the mean weighted average of the number

of outstanding shares for all diluting effects attached to the potential ordinary shares.

In January 2014, Acciona S.A. issued convertible bonds (see Note 18). The effect of this issue on the
income statement for 2015 was 18,326 thousand euros (16.402 thousand euros in 2014).

The amount for the period closed on 31 December 2015 is given below:

2015 2014
Net profit for the year (thousands of euros) 225,650 201,351
Inluted weizhted average number of shores outstanding $2221 Tl 61422516
Diluted earnings per share {euros) 3.63 3.28

32. Events after the reporting period

Last 21 January 2016, upon fulfilment of the conditions precedent, shares representing an additional
37.05% of ATLL Concessionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A., owned by the shareholder
Aigiles de Catalunya, S.A., were sold to the sharcholder Gestio Catalana D"Aigues, S.A., a subsidiary
of the Acciona Group. According to the provisions of the sale operation described above, both parties
agreed to assign to Gestio Catalana D’Aigues, S.A. 95% of the rights and obligations included in the
loan that the selling shareholder, namely, Aigiies de Catalunya, S.A, as lender, held vis-a-vis ATLL
Concessionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A., as loanee, and that had been subscribed on 21
December 2012. The price to buy the shares amounted to 19 million euros and the amount of the loan
assigned to Gestio Catalana D”Aigues, S.A. amounts to 55 million euros.

At 31 December 2015, the stakeholding of the Acciona Group in ATLL Concessionaria de la
Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A. amounted to 39%, with the stakeholding being consolidated under the
equity method. Note 8 details the key figures of the balance sheet of this company. The stakehoiding
of the Acciona Group after the purchase and sale operation referred to in the paragraph above stands at
76.05% of the share capital.

When thesc annual accounts were prepared, given that the purchase and sale operation is very recent,

the fair values of the Company at the time of acquisition had not been analysed. This analysis will take
place in the next few months as per IFRS 3.

33. Related party transactions

As indicated in these notes to the consolidated financial statements, transactions performed by the
Company with its subsidiaries (related parties) as part of its normal business activities, as regards their
purpose and terms and conditions, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
note. Transactions between the Group and its associates are disclosed below.
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Transactions with associates

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, detail of the balances receivable from and payable to associates was
as follows (in thousands of euros):

Receivables / Expenses Payables / Income
2015 2014 2015 2814
Trade and other receivables 67,953 89,739 - -
Trade and other payables - = 30,899 . 51,057
Loans to associates 120376 119,356 - .-
Income and expenses 4616 6,662 235971 287,804

The Income column basically reflects billings by Acciona Infrastructure to various concession holders
for the construction of their assets.

The balances payable related to the line “Loans to associates” are mainly made up of loans made by
Acciona, S.A. and Acciona Energy, S.A. to associates.

These transactions were performed on an arm’s length basis.

Transactions with other related parties

At 31 December 2014, following the arrival of the KKR Fund in the shareholding structure of the
Acciona Group subsidiary, Acciona Energy Internacional, S.A., this fund became a “related party” for

the Group as the term is defined in IAS 24. The only transaction of note with the KKR Fund in
financial year 2015 was the subordinated debt described in Note 21.

In addition, the contract signed between Acciona Energy, S.A. and said fund incorporates long-term

collaboration agreements between the Acciona Group and KKR in certain affected countries, through
certain rights of refusal that in no case represent a firm commitment.

Transactions with shareholders

In 2015 there were no significant transactions involving a transfer of resources or obligations between
the Parent or its Group companies and the Company’s main shareholders.

Transactions with directors and executives
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The Group’s “related parties™ are deemed to be, in addition to the subsidiaries, associates and jointly-
trolled entities, the Company Management’s “key personnel” (its directors and senior executives,
their close relatives) and the entities over which key management personnel may exercise control
ignificant influence. The transactions performed by the Group in 2015 and 2014 with its related
ies are listed below, differentiating between the Company’s significant shareholders, Directors and
agers, and other related parties. Related party transactions are made on terms equivalent to those
’s length transactions that usually take place in a normal business relationship with Acciona,

Al. or the Group companies within the scope of the ordinary course of trade of these entities. These
sactions consisted basically of:
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Expenses and income

Expenses:

Finence costs

Management or cooperation agreements

R&D vansfers and heensing agreements

Leases

Setvices recerved

Purchase of goods (finished goods and work in progress)
Valuz adjustments due to uncollectible or doubtfui debts
Losses on disposal of assets

Ouite: expenses

Incame:

Finance income

Management o1 cooperatinn agreements

R&D transfers and licensing agreements
Dividends received

Leases

Rendermg of services

Sale of goods (finished goods or work in progress)
Guns on disporal of assets

Other income

Other tranvactions

Purckases of property, plant and equipment, miangible
assets o other agsels

Financing agreements: loans and capital contributions
(lender)

Fmance loawes (lessor)
Repayment or cancellation of loans and leases (lessor)

Sales of preperty. plant and equipment, intangible assets or
other assets

Financing agreements: loans and capital contributions
(borrower)

Finance keases (lessee)
Repayment or cancellation of loans and leases (lessee)

Guarantees provided

Guarantees received

Obligations acqumred
Obligations/guarantees discharged
Drvidends end other profits distibuted

Other transactions

Significant
shareholders

Significant
sharehelders

Thousands of euros

Directors
and
executives

Directars
and
executives

31/12/2015

Group
employees,
companies
or entities

J1/52/18

Group
emplay ees,
cempanies
or entities

Other
related
parties

Other
relnted
parties

Total

Toini
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Thousands of euros
31/12/2014

Group
Directors employees, Other
Significant and companies related
Expenses and income shareholders  executives or enfities parties Total

Expenses:
Fioance costs
Management or cooperation agreements -
R&D transtirs and licensing agrcements -
Leases

Services recerved

Purchase of goods (finished goods and work m progress) -
Value adjustraents due to uncoliectible or doubtful debts -
Losses on disposal of assets
Other expenses

Inrome:

Finance income

Mumagement or cooperaiion agreememts -
R&D transfers and licensing agreements
Davidends received

Leases

Rendertag of setvices -
Sale of goods (fimshed goods o1 work in progress) .-
Gayms on disposal of assets
Other income

- v -

Thoasands of euros
31/12/14
Group
Directors employees, Other

Significant and companies related
Other transactioms shareholders  execmiives or entities parties Tetal

Purchases of property. plant and equipment. mtangible = T _ = =
assete of other assets

" Financing agreements loans and capital contributions

)

il (lender) b - - n -
Finance eases (lessor)
Repayment or cancellation of loans and leases (lessor) -

Sales of property, plant and equipment. intangible assets o1 i = = = =
other assets

Financing agreements loans and capitat contributions N _ N . -
borrower)

Fiance Joases (lessee)
Repayment or cancellation of loans and leases (lessee)

W
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ligations acquired

bligations/guarantees discharged
vidends and other profits distnibuted --
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34. Remuneration and other benefits
A. Board of Directors

In 2015 the remuneration accrued by the members of the Company’s Board of Directors, and taking
into account that this remuneration is taken from the perspective of the Parent and its subsidiaries,
totalled, in euros, the sum indicated in this Note.

According to article 31 of Articles of Association, the remuneration for Directors will consist in a
fixed annual allocation determined for their membership of the Board of Directors and any
Committees on which each Director may sit. The amount of the remuneration to be paid by the
Company to the Directors as a whole for belonging to the Board of Directors and its Committees will
be that determined for this purpose by the General Meeting of Sharcholders. Once established, this
amount shall remain in force until such time as it may be amended, and the Board of Direciors may
reduce the amount in the financial years where this is considered appropriate.

The Board of Directors determines the exact amount to be paid within that limit and its distribution
among the different Directors, with consideration being given to the functions and responsibilities of
each member, sitting on the Board’s committees and any other unbiased circumstances considered
relevant by the Board.

Regardless of the provisions contained in section above, the remuneration deriving from membership
of the Board of Directors shall be compatible with any other remuneration (fixed salary; variable
bonuses depending on the attainment of business, corporate and/or performance goals; compensation
for removal of the Director for reasons other than the failure to perform his or her duties; welfare
systems; deferred remuneration items) that, following a proposal by the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee and by resolution passed by the Board of Directors, could correspond to the
Director for the performance of other functions in the Company, be they senior management executive
functions or otherwise, apart from those of joint supervision and decision-taking carried out as mere
members of the Board.

Following a resolution adopted by the General Shareholders’ Meeting with the legally required scope,
Executive Directors may also be remunerated through the delivery of shares or share option rights, or
by means of any other remuneration referenced to the value of the shares.

Furthermore, art. 55 of the Regulations for the Board of Directors establishes that the Board
determines the system for distributing the remuneration for Directors within the framework established
in the Articles of Association.

The decision must take into account the report drafted for the purpose by the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee.

The Board of Directors shall strive to ensure that the Directors’ remuneration is moderate and in line
with that paid on the market in companies of a similar size and business activity, with preference for
those formats relating a significant portion of the remuneration to their dedication to Acciona.

The system for remuneration of independent directors will strive to serve as a sufficient incentive for
their dedication without compromising their independence.

The remuneration of external directors representing substantial sharcholders for their performance as
Directors must be proportional to that of other Directors and shall not represent any favoured
treatment in the form of remuneration of the shareholder(s) designating them.

As regards remuneration of executive directors, article 55 A of the Regulations establishes that the
Board of Directors must try and ensure that the remuneration policies in force at each time include for
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variable remuneration necessary technical safeguards to make sure that such remuneration is in line
with the professional performance of its beneficiaries and does not arise simply from the general trend
of markets or of the company’s business sector or from other similar circumstances. The remuneration

system must establish similar remuneration for comparable functions and dedication.

For Executive Directors, the remuneration deriving from their membership of the Board of Directors
shall be compatible with any other professional or employment-related earnings received for their
executive or consultative functions rendered to Acciona, S.A. or to its Group.

Remuneration for directors shall be transparent.

At its meeting on 28 February 2013, the Board of Directors resolved, at the proposal of the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee, to reduce the amounts for membership of the Board of

Directors and its Committees by 10%, and these were therefore set as follows:

a) For each director belonging to the Board of Directors 67,500 euros.

b) For each director belonging to the Executive Committee 45,000 euros.

c) For each director belonging to the Audit Committee 45,000 euros.

d) For each director belonging to the Appointments Committee 36,000 euros.
e} For each director belonging to the Sustainability Committee 36,000 euros.

At the meeting held by the Board of Directors on 11 June 2015 additional remuneration was
established: 10,000 euros for the directors holding the chair on the Committees, except in the case of

the executive committee.

Executive directors who are members of the Executive Committee do not receive any remuneration
specifically for belonging to that committee.

After a detailed analysis of the remuneration received at international companies and those included
on the IBEX 35 index, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee considered the remuneration
to be in line with what was paid on the market in companies of a similar size in the same business
area, that analogous remuneration was paid for comparable functions and dedication and, without
compromising independence, remuneration is an adequate incentive to achieve, if possible, a greater

engagement by directors in the different committees.

Furthermore, the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 6 June 2013 resolved to set, for the purposes
established in new section 2 of article 31 of the Articles of Association, the amount of remuneration
may be paid by the Company to its Directors as a whole, for their membership of the Board of
rectors and its Committees, at 1,503,000 euros. This amount shall remain in force until such time as

(e IRY,
Loy
= . . S
= LZ? e General Shareholders’s Meeting decides to change it, but it may be reduced by the Board of
= irectors on the terms contained in the aforesaid section.
S
° e total remuneration paid to the members of the Board for discharging their duties as Company
5 5 irectors in 2015 amounted to 1,365 thousand euros. This amount is broken down, by director, in the
& o & following way:
S g Eplovinevey
- S =
e tal Total
.':: B Fived Remuneration for 1'0015 2314
[ e _'E_:' i membership of
N Board Committees
& 8 _ -
&-l o MR, Daniel Entrecanales Domeeq 67.5 59 126 5 104
= _;:5 (*) Ms Sol Daurella Comadran 3375 225 562 113
E 3 MR. Jeronimo Marcos Gerard Rivero 675 675 34
{*) MK Catlos Espmosa de los Moateros 1375 24 56.2 13
67.5 131 198 5 194

MR. Jaime Castelianos Borrego
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i Total Total
Fixed Remuneration for 2015 1614
remuneration e P
Board Commiitees
MR Fernendo Rodes Vila 675 72 1395 140
MR. José Manuel Entrecanales Domecq 67.5 67.5 68
MR Juan Ignacio Fntrecanales Fianco A7 5 675 (1
(¥*%) Ms. Miriam Gonzalez Durdntez 0 57
MR Tuan Cartos Garay Tbargaray 675 86 153 8 104
(*) MR. Valentin Montoya Moya 33.75 63 96.8 194
Ms, Belén Villalonga Morenes 675 675 35
(***) Ms. Consuelo Crespo Befill 0 52
MR Javier Entrecanzles Franca 675 58 5 126 104
Ms. Maria del Carmen Becerril Martinez 675 18 85.5 34
1*¥} Ms Ana Sainz de Vicufia Bemberg 3375 A 563
TOTAL 810 555 1,365 1,447

(*) Directors leaving the Board in 2015
{(**) Directors joining the Board in 2015
(***) Directors leaving the Board in 2014

The remuneration paid to Directors for the performance of senior management executive functions and
for their membership of the Board was 5,101 and 4,816 thousand euros in 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

In addition, a non-executive director has a professional services contract signed with the Acciona
Group for which she received 150 thousand euros in 2015.

In 2014, the Company implemented a savings plan related to a term life assurance, permanent
disability in the degrees of total, absolute and grand invalidity, and death (“Savings Plan™) aimed
solely and exclusively at the Company’s Executive Directors. The basic characteristics of the plan are
as follows:

a) It is a social welfare system based on a defined contribution.

b} It is a system endowed externally through the payment by the Company of annual premiums
to an insurance company in favour of the Participant for the coverage of survival and the risk
contingencies, i.e., (i) death and (ii} permanent disability in the degrees established in the
Regulations.

¢} Should the Participants cease to occupy positions as Executive Directors of Acciona for any
reason, the Company shall cease to pay the premiums to the Savings Plan on the date on
which they indisputably cease to hold their position, without prejudice to any economic
rights recognised to Participants.

d) The payment of the Benefit arising out of the Savings Plan will be made directly by the
insurance entity to the Participants, net of any corresponding withholdings or payments on
account of personal Income Tax that may be applicable in each case and payable by the
beneficiary of the Benefit. For the rest of the contingencies, the payment of the Benefit will
also be made directly by the insurance entity to any entitled parties.

e) The status of Participant in the Savings Plan will be lost should any of the following
circumstances arise: i) occurrence of any of the risk contingencies covered and collection of
the Benefit; ii) attainment of the age of 65 years; iii) removal from the position of Executive
Director of Acciona for any reason other than those indicated above.
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The contributions to the Savings Plan in 2015 in favour of the Executive Directors came to 1,125

thousand euros. The global remuneration related to rights accumulated by the Directors in this respect
amounts to 2,311 thousand euros.

No obligations have been entered into in connection with pensions with respect to former and current
members of the Board of Directors. Nor have any advances, credits or guarantees been given in favour
of the members of the Board of Directors, except as indicated in this note.

The remuneration of the board of directors of ACCIONA, S.A. in the year was, in thousands of euros,
6,481 and 6,199 in financial years 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Board of Directors of Acciona, S.A. approved on 26 February 2015, upon proposal by the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee, amendment to the “Plan for Delivery of Shares and
options to Senior Management of Acciona and its group” Regulations, preparing new regulations that

affect the executive directors and the Group’s executives. The main characteristics are described
below.

B. Senior executives

Senior Executives include those persons forming the top two levels of the Acciona group’s
management and the Corporate Internal Audit Director. This classification is for information purposes
only and without prejudice to their specific employment relationship.

The remuneration of the Company’s General Managers and persons discharging similar duties,
excluding those who are simultaneously members of the Board of Directors (whose remuneration is
disclosed above), and bearing in mind that this remuneration is taken from the perspective of Parent
and subsidiaries, in 2015 and 2014 and 2013 is summarised as follows:

Type of remuncration 2018 2014
Number of persons 36 a7
Remuneratron (thousands of euros) 21,120 17,159

Plan for delivery of shares and performance shares
The General Shareholders® Meeting held on 24 June 2014 approved the following agreement:

A) To extend the term of validity of the Shares and Options Delivery Plan to Acciona group’s
management, including Executive Directors, as was approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting

of Ucciona, S.A. on 4 June 2009, for application in financial years 2014 to 2020, and fo increase the
maximum number of shares available by 200,000 shares.

NALDEZ

B) To authorise the Board of Directors of the Company so that it may, to all the extend required by
law and upon proposal by the Appointments and Remumeration Committee, amend the Plan
Regulations under the terms and corditions that the Board considers convenient, establishing delivery
conditions and times, accrual periods, allocation criteria and limits and any other aspect that the
Board considers relevant, in order to align further the long-term interests of the Company's Executive
4 Bjrectors and other executives of the Acciona Group with those of the shareholders of Acciona, S.A.,

= and, thus boost their motivation in the attainment of higher value and long-term stability for the group,
and| consolidate their loyalty and permanence in the Group.

£S

rete Juradaide INGLES

TERESADELACU

nt

intments and Remuneration Committee, to amend the Plan Regulations, drawing up a new one

¢ term of validity covers the six-year period from 2014 to 2019, both inclusive; its main
cteristics are the following:

a
a
5

M
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A) Purpose of the Plan:

The purpose of the 2014 Plan for Delivery of Shares and “Performance Shares” to Acciona and its
group’s management (the Plan for Delivery of Shares/Performance Shares) is to remunerate
management, including the Executive Directors of Acciona, S.A. (“Acciona™) and of the business and
company group whose parent is Acciona, S.A. or where Acciona, S.A. holds a significant interest in
management (“Acciona Group” or “Acciona and its group™ in such a manner as to boost the
attainment of strategic business objectives of Acciona and its group to the benefit of Acciona’s
shareholders, and the loyalty and permanence of executives.

B) Strategic indicators and objectives to achieve

Achievement of objectives will be based on business strategic indicators, which have been defined by
the Board of Directors for financial years ranging from 2014 to 2019.

C) Plan beneficiaries

C.1. — Executive Directors

For Executive Directors, it is contemplated for the first time that they may have “performance shares”
annually allocated by the Board of Directors. This does not give them the right to acquire the related
shares (except where so provided by the Regulations) but it is an indication by the Board of Directors
of the number of shares that the Board forecasts that can be allocated to these Executive Directors at a
later date if two conditions are fulfilled: their permanence and the attainment of Acciona Group’s
long-term strategic goals as established by the Board as a requisite for the Executive Directors to
receive shares.

Reference period: The reference period of the business strategic indicators will be the 2014-2019 six-
year period, although, for allocation of “performance shares”, the whole period from the start of the
2014 Plan application period to the end of the previous financial year will be considered.

“Performance shares” allocation: Upon completion of each financial year, the Board of Directors may
assess the extent to which the long-term strategic objectives have been achieved up to that point.

The final allocation of treasury shares to Executive Directors will take place (a) at the end of the whole
2014 Plan period (in 2020) upon consideration of the assessment made for the whole 2014-2019
period and (b) at a midpoint milestone, in 2017, upon completion of the first three 2014-2016 financial
years, upon consideration of the assessment made on the first 2014-2016 three-year period.

Based on the interest of the company and if circumstances so advise for Acciona and its group in the
opinion of the Board of Directors, upon consideration of the recommendation from the Appointments
and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors may put off to 2020 the delivery to the
Executive Directors of the final shares allocated in 2017 (in relation to financial years 2014, 2015 and
2016), making the delivery of these shares coincide with the delivery of the shares that, if appropriate,
should be delivered to the executive Directors at the end of the whole 2014 Plan period (in 2020).

Permanence condition: Delivery of the shares finally allocated to Executive Directors is dependent on
the fact that, up to 31 March of the year when the shares are to be delivered, the Executive Director
has not ceased to perform his/her senior management duties in Acciona or its Group for reasons
attributable to the Director in question.

In no event may the number of allocated shares thus quantified exceed, together with those allocated
under the 2014 Plan, the maximum number available approved by the GM.
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Shares delivered in 2017 are subject to an option for Acciona to buy them back: Treasury shares
transferred to Executive Directors in 2017 (in relation to financial years 2014, 2015 and 2016) will be
subject to Acciona’s right to buy them back, a right that can be exercised if the Executive Director
acquiring the shares ceases to perform his/her senior management duties in Acciona or its group
before 31 March 2020 for breach of his/her contractual obligations or resignation of his/her own free
will.

C.2. — Group’s Executives

For the other beneficiaries that are not executive directors, the Board of Directors will approve, upon
considering proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, the amount for separate
variable remuneration to be paid through delivery of the Acciona’s treasury shares allocated for each
financial year to each executive that benefits from the 2014 Plan other than Executive Directors.

The allocation may be implemented through a number of treasury shares or in a cash amount. In the
latter case, the equivalent number of shares will be based on the closing price on the last day of trading
of March of the year when the Board of Directors determines the allocation. In no event will the
number of allocated shares thus quantified exceed, together with the other shares allocated under the
2014 Plan, the maximum number approved by the GM.

Treasury shares transferred to these Beneficiaries are subject to Acciona’s right to buy them back, a
right that can be exercised if the beneficiary acquiring the shares ceases his/her professional
engagement with Acciona or its Group before 31 March of the third year following the year when
delivery takes place, for reasons attributable to the Beneficiary. The Board of Directors may extend to
a reduced group of executives the “performance share” and/or shares allocation system established for
executive directors, with the changes as can be proposed by the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee regarding interim allocation, tax system, objectives, midpoint milestones and delivery
times, with the purpose of increasing their motivation in the attainment of higher value and long-term
stability for the group, as well as consolidating their loyalty and permanence in the Group.

D) Number of shares available for the Plan

Initially, the maximum number of shares that can be allocated to the Beneficiaries in application of the
2014 Plan will equal 258,035.

The maximum number of shares that can be allocated by the Board of Directors to the Beneficiaries in
application of the 2014 Plan can be increased by agreement of the General Shareholders’ Meeting. In
this respect, the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 11 June 2015 agreed to increase the maximum
number of shares available for the “2014-2019 Plan for Delivery of Shares and Performance Shares”
by 100,000, without affecting later increases if so proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by
the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

The General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 11 June 2015 increased the number of shares available to
100,000 so that at the close of 2015 the maximum number of shares that can be allocated to implement
the Plan, after 29,651 have been used for delivery to executives included in the Plan other than
executive Directors, was 328,824 for the whole period.

E) Recipients

The annual number of Recipients shall not exceed 100.

Plan to replace variable remuneration for shares

Upon proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, given the limited number of
Beneficiaries of the former Plan, with the purpose of furthering and extending the objectives for
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building loyalty and retaining executives to the Group’s executives, on 26 March 2015 the Board of
Directors approved the “Plan to Replace Variable Remuneration for Acciona shares, aimed to Acciona
and its group’s management” (the Replacement Plan), excluding executive directors; the main
characteristics of the plan are the following:

Aim: To retain and motivate the management team effectively and achieve higher alignment of their
interests with those of the Company and its Group.

Initial duration: Six vears (2014 to 2019).

Purpose: To offer discretionally the option of replacing or swapping, in whole or in part, variable
remuneration in cash for Company shares to certain Acciona and its group’s executives, according to a
swap equation to be determined each vear. In 2015, the swap equation approved carries an incentive of
25% over the variable remuneration replaced.

Beneficiaries: The executives that the Board of Directors determines of its own free will. Executive
Directors are excluded from this Plan.

Restrictions on the shares delivered: In gencral terms, the shares delivered cannot be (a) disposed of,
encumbered or used under any title (except for mortis causa), and (b) no option right can be set up
over them, or any other right limiting ownership or as security, until after 31 March of the third year
following the vear in which the shares in question were delivered to the Beneficiary.

Treasurv shares transferred to these Beneficiaries are subject to Acciona’s right to buy them back, a
right that can be exercised if the Beneficiary acquiring the shares ceases his‘her professional
engagement with Acciona or its Group before 31 March of the third vear following the vear when
deliverv takes place, for reasons attributable to the Beneficiary.

The Acciona share price to be taken as benchmark to determine the swap equation will be the closing
price on the last day of trading of March of the year when the Board of Directors determines the
allocation of the replacement option.

Finally, the number of shares delivered to Beneficiaries other than executive directors (46
Beneficiaries), under the Plan for Delivery of Shares /Performance Shares, in consideration of their
dedication and performance in financial year 2015, was 29,651 shares at the fair value of 2,186
thousand euros.

Given that this plan accrues on a three-vear basis, one third of the fair values mentioned above is
reflected in “Staff costs™ on the accompanying income statement at 31 December. The other two thirds
will be recognised on the income statements for financial years 2016 and 2017.

As regards executive Directors, no firm allocation of performance shares or shares took place in 2015.

The Company determined the fair value of the goods and services received by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments assigned.

The “Plan for delivery to Senior management” replaced by the plan described in the paragraphs above
established the replacement of shares with stock option rights (for Acciona, S.A. ordinary shares). The
options granted one year as part of the Plan could be exercised, in whole or in part, in one go or more,
within the three-year period from (a) 31 March of the third calendar year following the year when they
were allocated and (b) 31 March of the third year following the start of the period (the “exercising
period”). The movement in 2015 in the number of options and weighted average of the prices to
exercise the stock options are the following:
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Strike Price -
2015 N* of options Weighted Average
{in enros)

Existing at the start of the financial year 134,573 70.03
Awarded during the period ad -

Cancelled during the period T -

Exercised during the period 4373) 5300
Lapsed during the period (10,986) 8900
Exsting af the end of the peried 114,713 68.97
e P

As regards the options existing at the end of the financial year, it should be indicated that the strike
price ranged between 53 and 91.1 euros and that the weighted average of the remaining life of the
contract was 1.7 years.

The valuation methodology applied is based on the Enhanced FASB 123 method (Accounting for
Stock Based Compensation), which is in turn based on standard “fair value” methods of the CRR
binomial type with certain modifications. The model consists in estimating the value of the option by
trinomial tree methods and then adjusting this value by considering that the executing in question may
leave the company during the maturity period, or may exercise the option when the share reaches a
multiple of the strike value. The market inputs applied for valuation purposes are the closing price of
the reference share on the date of issue of the plan and the strike price established for the exercise of
the option, the track record of the reference share in terms of volatility calculated as the standard
deviation from the quotation yields for a period equal to the duration of the plan and the risk-free
interest rate.

Detail of the individuals who held senior management positions (taking the Parent and subsidiaries
into account as Senior Management) in 2015 was as follows:

Name or registered name Positian(s) held
Alcézar Viela, Jesis General Manager — Acciona Infrastructure - Latin America
(ieneral Manager — Acciona Energy - Engineering. Construction aod
Ancin Viguinisti, Joaquin ROt
Antinez Cid, Isabel General Manager — Acciona Property
Ul Arilla de Juana, Carlos General Manager - Economue and Financial Area
‘ b B -ltrén Nuiiez, Rail Director of Internal Audit
3 ".5 Blanco Diéguez, José Luis General Manager - Acciona Windpower
% g Cibanillas Alonso, Pio General Manager - Corporate Image and Global Marketing
e 5 Cjllgjo Martinez, Alfonso General Manager - Corporate Resources
EE;% E Carrién Lopez de la Garma, Macarena General Manager - Office of the Chairman
:&:; £ ‘Spstitia Chmars, Luss CEO - Acciona Infrastructure
:i‘: E. Claudio Vézquez, Adalberto General Manager Civil Works - Acciona Infrastructure
::‘-‘vf '?é Corella Hurtado, Olga General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Economic Control Area
::5«, :‘: . General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Labour Relations,
:"‘ J‘, Palaclos, fuan Manucl Environment Quality Plan and Sustainability
i”: iﬂj az-Caneja Rodriguez, José Luis Area General Manager - Actona Water
== Ezpeleta Puras, Arantza General Manager - International Area - Office of the Chairman
Fajendo Gerez, Fernando ﬁiﬁﬁrﬁm Manager - Acciona Infrastrucure ~ Australia and the
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Name or registered name

Farto Paz, José Maria
Fernindez Lépez, Roberto

Figueroa Gomez de Salazar, José Julio
himénez Serrunc. Ramén

Lépez Ferndndez, Carios

Luna Butz. Walter
Mateo Alcala, Rafael
Medina Sanchez, Eduarduo

Molina Oltra, Ricardo Luis
Mollinedo Chocano, Joaquin
Muro-Lara Girod, Juan Antonio
Navas Garefa, Carlos

Rivas Anoro, Félix
Santamar{a-Paredes Castillo, Vicente
Silva Ferrada, Juan Ramén
Soto Conide. Antoniv

Tejero Santos, José Angel
Tercero Mateos, José Manuel
Vega-Penichet Lopez, Jorge

Vicente Pelegrini, Justo

Position(s) held

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Galicia

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Corporate Resources
Area General Manager — Legal Services

Area Gencral Manager — Acciona Industrial, Accions Engircering and
Acciona service

Area General Manager — Acciona Industrial Engineering
CEO - Acciona Property

CEQ - Acciona Energy
Area General Manager - Acciona Energy - Business Development

Arca General Manager - Acciona Service

General Manager - Institutional Relations

General Manager - Corporate Development and Relations with Investors
Area General Manager - Acclona Airport Services

Area General Manager - Procurement, Innovation, Quality and the
Environment

Area General Manager - Comphance

Area General Manager - Sustainability

Area (Jeneral Manager — Hyos de Antoniy Barceld

Area General Manager - Economic Oversight and Finance
Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastiucture - Econgmncs anid Finance
General Secretary

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure Spain and Construction
Africa, Sweden and Fmizates

Detail of the individuals who held senior management positions (taking the Parent and subsidiaries
into account as Senior Management) in 2014 was as follows:

Name or registered naie
Ignacio Aguilera Carmona
lestis Alcdzar Viela

Joaquin Ancin Viguiristi

Isabet Antiinez Cid

Carlos Maria Arilla de Juana

Carmen Becernl Martinez

Ratil Belirdn Nifiez

José Lufs Blanco Enéguez

Pio Cabanillas Alonso

Alfonsa Callejo Martingz

Macarena Carrién Lopez de la Garma
Luis Castilla Cdmara

Adalberto Claudio Vazquez

Paosition(s) held

General Manager - Acciona Trasmediterrdnea

Generzl Manager — Acclona Infrastructure - Latin Amenca

General Manager — Acciona Energy - Engineering, Construction and
Innovation

General Manager — Acciona Property

General Manager - Economic and Financial Area

General Manager - [:ternational

Director of Internal Audit

General Manager - Acciona Windpower

General Manager - Corporate Image and Global Marketing
General Manager - Corporate Resources

General Manager - Office of the President

President - Acciona Water

General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - International and
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Name or registered name Position(s) held

Concessions

Corella Hurtado, Olga General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Economic Oversight Area

Juan Manuel Cruz Palacios General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Labour Relations,

Environment Quality Plan and Sustainability

Dizz-Caneja Rodriguez. fosé Luis Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure

Arantza Ezpeleta Puras General Manager - International Area - Office of the President

José Maria Farto Paz Area General Manager - Acciona infrastructure - Gahicia

Fernando Fajardo Gerez Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Australia and South-
East Asia

Roberic Fernandez Lépez Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Corpotate Resources
Carlos Lopez Fernandez Area General Manager - Acciona Engineering and Facilities
Walter Luna Butz

CEQ - Acciona Property

Ramén Jiménez Serrano Area General Manager - Acciona Engineering and Facilines

Rafael Mateo Alcald CEO -~ Acciona Energy

Eduardo Medina Sénchez Area General Manager - Acciona Energy - Business Development

Area General Manager - Acciona Service
General Manager - Institutional Relations

Ricardo Luis Molina Oltra
Joaquin Mollinedo Chocano

Juan Antonio Mure-Lara Girod General Manager - Corpotate Development and Relations with Investors
Carlos Navas Garcia Area General Manager - Acciona Airport Services
Fé&lx Rivas Anoro Area General Manager - Procurement. Innovation, Quality and the
Envirotiment

Vicente Santamaria de Paredes Castillo General Managet - Legal Services

Dolores Sarrion Martinez Assistant Area General Manager - Corporate Resources
Juan Ramén Silva Ferrada Area General Manager - Sustainability
José Angel Tejero Santos

Area General Manager - Economic Oversight and Finance
José Manuel Terceiro Mateos

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Economics and Finance

S orge Vega-Penichet Lopez Secretary General
9 S usto Vicente Pelegrini Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure Spain and Construction
-t = Africa, Sweden and Emurates
= =
e 8 :
R = C. Auditor
et -g
= 5 . . . . .
] = «— In 2015, the fees for financial audit and other services provided by the auditor of the Group’s
8 % 8 donsolidated financial statements, Deloitte, S.L., or by firms in the Deloitte organisation, and the fees
—c & 2 billed by the auditors of the financial statements of the consolidated companies, and by companies
;"J ) lated to these auditors as a result of a relationship of control, common ownership or common
o c anagement, were as follows:
%
"E"z-' e Services provided by Services provided by
i the main auditor other andit firms
3 2015 2014 2015 2014
= = Audit services 3485 2933 1,806 1,688
Other assuiance services 451 674 37 273
Total audit and related services 3,936 3,607 2,185 1,961
Tax advisory services 608 713 914 828
Other services 1,659 2,539 4.541 3,641
Total professional services 2,267 3as2 5455 4,469
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35. Other disclosures concerning the Board of Directors

Pursuant to Article 229 of Royal Legislative Decree 1/2010, of 2 July, whereby the rewritten text of
the Capital Companies Act is approved, at 31 December 2015, according to the information available
to the Company and notified by Directors and their related parties, they were not affected by any
situations of conflict, whether direct or indirect, with the Company’s interests.

36. Average period for payment to suppliers

The table below details the information required by Final Provision Two of Act 31/2014, of 3
December, as prepared following application of Resolution dated 29 January 2016 by the Spanish
Accounting and Audit Institute. This information refers only to Spain, where this regulation is
applicable.

Average payment peried and payments
made and payments outstanding 2015
at the balance sizeet date in Spain

Days

Average period for payment to suppliers 41
Paid operations ratio 38
Crperations outstandmng ratio 54

Amount

(thousands

of euros)
Toal pavments made 2.182.726
Total payments outstanding 502,125

As permitted by the Single Additional Provision of the aforesaid Resolution by the Spanish
Accounting and Audit Institute, for this first year of application of the Resolution, no comparative
information is disclosed, with these annual accounts being rated as opening accounts in relation to the
uniformity principle and comparability requirement.

“Average period for payment to suppliers” refers to the time that elapses from delivery of goods or
provision of services by a supplier to payment of the operation.

The “average period for payment to suppliers” is calculated as the quotient whose numerator is the
result of adding the paid operations ratio by the total amount of payments made to suppliers plus the
operations outstanding ratio by the total amount of payments outstanding and whose denominator is
the total amount of payments made and payments outstanding,

The paid operations ratio is calculated as the quotient whose numerator is the sum of the products
related to the amounts paid, by the number of payment days (calendar days elapsed as from the time
when the period begins to run up to actual payment of the operation) and whose denominator is the
total amount of payments made.

And the operations outstanding ratio refers to the quotient whose numerator is the sum of the products
related to the amounts outstanding, by the number of payment outstanding days (calendar days elapsed
as from the time when the period begins to run up to the closing of annual accounts) and whose
denominator is the total amount of payments outstanding.
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APPENDIX I

GROUP COMPANIES

The subsidiaries of ACCIONA, S.A. considered to be Group companies were treated as such in
accordance with IFRS. The companies fully consolidated in 2015, and the information thereon at 31
December 2015, are the following (amounts in thousands of euros):

Audit Bgeatiss Main activity Share % Hglder of mteresf amonut
Subgroup Acciona
3240934 Nova Scotia Company - Canada Energy 100.00% Renewable Canada 4382
Subgioup Accions
Wmndpower
Acciona - Vietroctehtrane DO.O, - Croatia Enpergy 100.00% Isternacional 3
Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Wind Energy Canada Inc. - Canada Energy 66.67%  Energy Internacional 41,005
Subgronp Acciona
Acciona & Sogex Facilty Services 11T - Oman Urban Sesvices 70.00% Faciliy Servicos 248
Subgioup Acciona
Acciona Agua Adelaide Pty Ltd A Austi_'a.lia Water Treatment 100.00%  Agua Australia 7
] Subgroup Acctona
Acciona Agua Australia Proprretary, Led A Anstralia Water Tieatment 10000% Agma 5
Acciona Agua Brazil - Tratamento De Agua Subgroup Acciona
Lid - Brazil Water Treatment 100 00% Agua 1,799
Subgronp Acciona
Acciong Agna India Povate Lunsted A India Water Treatment 100 00% Agua 1,019
Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Agua Internacional Australia Pty, Ltd A Australia Water Treatment 100.00%  Agua Internacional -
Subgroup Aceiona
Acciona Agua Internagional S L. - Madrid Water Treapment 100 00% Agma 4
Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Agua Mexico, SRL.DeCV B Mexico Water Treatment 100.00% Agua 3929
Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Agua Servicios S 1 A Mndrid Water Treatment 10000%  Agua 51,130
Acciona Agua, S.A A Madrid Water Treatment 100.00% Acciona 124267
Subgrosp Aceiona
Acciona Ajrport Services Barcelopa, 51 - Madnd Logistics Services 100 00%  Airport Services 3
Acciona Atrport Services Berlim, S.A E Germany Logistics Services 100.00%  Acciona 7 14,970
Subgroup Acciona
Acerona Airport Services Canaras, 8 L - Madrid Logisties Setvices 10000%  Aurport Services 3
Subgroup Acciona
irport Services Este, S.L. = Madrid Logistics Services 100.00%  Awrport Services 3
L
rport Services Frankfist Grabh A Germany Logistios Serviees 10000% Aociona 5637
Subgroup Acciona
%cciona Airport Services Madnd, S.L - Madrid Logistics Services 100.00%  Airport Services 3
Subgroup Aeciong
Lithan Services y
N Arrport Services Notte, S.L = Madrid Logistics Services 108.00% Medio Ambiente 2
Subgroup Acciona
nz Ail:port Services Sur, SL - Madrid Logustics Services 100 00%  Auport Services 3
ione Airport Services, 5.4 A Mandrid Logisties Services 100 00%  Avciond 3,065
Subgroup Acciona
a Biocombustibles, S.A. - Navarra Energy 100.00%  Energy 12 871
Subgronp Acciona
na Biomasa - Navara Encrgy 100 00%  Energy 3
Subgroup Acciona
a Blades, S.A. C Navarra Energy 100.00%  Windpower 26,374
Water Tieat / Subgroup Aeciona
a Cerro Negro, $.A - Chile Constraction 100.00%  Infiscstructuras ¢
Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Concesiones Chil_e, S.A. B Chile Holding Company 100.00%  Infraestructuras 57,731
Acciona Concesiones, $ L. A Madud Helding Company 100.00%  Aceions 4,988
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Acciona Concessions Management Inc.
Acciona Copend, S A

Acciona Corporacion, S.A.

Acctona Desarrolle Corporgiivo, S A
Acciona Do Brazil, Ltda.

Acciona Engigy Atlanta 1, S L
Acciona Energy Atlanta II, S.L.
Acclona Energy Atlantalll, 5 L
Acciona Energy Chile

Acgiona Energy Chile Hoidings, S A
Acciona Energy Costa Rica, S.A.
Acciona Fneigy Global ltaly SRL
Acciona Energy Global, S L

Accwona Energy internacional. § A
Acciona Energy Mexico Global LLC
Acciona Energy Mexico, 51l

Acciona Energy Servicios Mexico S de Rl de
CVv.

Accwna Fnergy Solar, S L

Acciona Energy Solare Italy, S.R.L

Acciona Eneigy. S A

Acciona Energiaki, S.A.

Acciona Energya D O O

Acciona Energy North America Corp.
Acciona Energy Austzalia Global, Pty Ltd

Acciona Energy Canada Global Corp

Acciona Encrgy Development Canada Inc
Accicna Energy Global Poland Sp. Z.0.0.
Acciona Energy India Private Limirted
Acciona Energy Korea, Inc

Acciona Energy Oceama Construction Pty Lid

Acciona Energy Oceania Financial Services
Ply, Ltd

Audit

—

Location
Canada
Chile
Madrid
Madnd
Brazil
Madnd
Madrid
Maduid
Chile
Chiie
Costa Rica
Italy
Navarra
Navarra
Mexico

Mexico

Mexico
Navarra

Italy

Navaia
Greece
Cicatia
Us
Agstralia

Canada

Canada
Poland
Ingha

South
Corea

Austreiia

Australia

Main activity SES::&/B
Holding Company 100.00%
Waler Treat,

Construction TATIE
Instrumental 100.00%
Insuumental 100 00%
Holding Company 100.00%
Erergy 66 67%
Energy 66.67%
Energy 66 67%
Energy 100.00%
Energy 140, 00%
Energy 100.00%
Energy 106.00%
Energy 100 00%
Energy 66,67%
Energy 100.00%
Energy 6 67%
Energy 100.00%
Frergy 100 60%
Energy 100.00%
Energy 104) 0(%%
Energy 20.00%
Energy 100 0%
Energy 66.67%
Eneigy 190 (0%
Energy 100.60%
Energy FOH) U)%%
Energy 100.00%
Eneigy 100 (0%
Energy 100.00%
Energy 100 UG%
Energy 100.00%

Holder of interest

Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones
Subgoup Acciona
Infigestiucturas
Subgroup Finanzas y
Cartera 2

Subgroup Fluznzas v
Cartera 2

Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras
Subgroup Acciong
Euergy internacional
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Internacional
Subsroup Acctona
Energy Intemacioral
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subgroup Acciona
Fnergy Glchal
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Sulgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energy

Subgroup Aciona
Lnergy

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energy internacional
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Mexico
Global

Subgroup Acciona
Encrgy

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global Italy
Subgroup Corp
Acciona Energys
Fenovables
Subgroup Acciona
Eotlica Cesa
Subgroup Acciuia
£nergy Global
Subgroup Acclona
Energy Internacional
Subgroun Acciona
Energy Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Canada

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subgoup Acciona
Energy Gicbal
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subgroup Acctona
Energy (tiabal
Australia

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global

Carrying
amount

4,142

60
&0

13.740

2

2

37

3¢

479
3.347
12,307
324,00
10,680

3,300

4,898

1,797

1,146,380

15342

153,924

2,267

1137
716
6,032

2,661

1120

35
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Accicna Energy Oceanta Ply Etd

Acciona Energy Poland Maintenance Services
Sp. Z0.0

Acciona Boergy Poland Sp. Z.0.C

Acciona Energy South Africa (Proprietary)
Limited

Acciona Energy South Afitea Global (Pty) Ltd
Acciona Energy USA Global LLC

Acciona Epgmecrmg Canada nc

Acciona Engineering Qatar

Accrona Eolica Bastheata, Srl

Acciona Edlica Calabria, Srl

Acctona Bolica Cesa Italy, SR L.
Acciona Eélica Cesa, 5.1
Accrona Edlrea De Castilla La Mancha, S L

Acciona Edlica De Gal__icia,‘ S.A
Acciona Edlica Levante, S 1.

Acciona Edlica Molise, Sl
Aceiona Edlica Porugal Unipersenal, Lda

Acciona EPC North America LLC

Acciona Facthty Services Automocion Aragon,
SL

Acciona Facility Services Automocion
atalunya, S.L.

a Factlrty Services Amtomocién Centro,

g
[
8
&
4
2.
&
g
Q
:
g
)
&

Acciona Facility Services Sur, S.A.

Acciona Facility Servives, § A

Andit

Locatian

Australia

Poland
Poland
South
Africa
South
Afriea
us
Canada

Qatar

Italy

Italy
Madrid
Madrd
Lugo
Valencia
Italy
Portugsl
us
Madrnid

Madrid

Madrid

Canada

Madrid

Germany
Hoitand
Ttaly

Portugat

Toledo

Bargelona

fain activity

Energy
Energy
Energy
Encrgy
Energy

Engineering

Energy

Enaigy
Energy
Encrgy

Energy
Energy

Energy
Energy
Energy
Urban Services
Urban Services
Urban Services
Urban Services
Drhan Serviges
Urban Services

Urban Services

Logistics Services
Liuban Services
Urban Services

Urban Services

Urban Services

Urban Serviees

o .=

Share %

O, 67 %

100.00%
66 6%

66.67%

- 100.00%

100 00%
100.00%
100.00%
100 00%
100 00%

66.67%
100.00%
100 00%

100.00%
160.00%

100 00%

£6.67%

100.00%
100 00%
100,00%
100 00%
100 00%
100 00%
100.00%

100.00%
100 00%

100.00%
100.00%

100 00%

100.00%

100 00%

Holder of interexs | CHTYiRG

Australia
Subgroup Aceciona

Energy Intermacionsl

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Poland

Subgroup Accicna

Enetgy Intenacional

Energy Global
Subgioup Acciona
Energy VGlobal
Subgeoty Acciond
Engmeeting
Subgroup Acciona
Engineering

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Gilobal Italy

Subgroup Actions

Subgroup Ceatesalas

Subgroup Alabe
Subgroup Corp
Acciona Energys
Renovables

Subgroup Alebe

Subgroup Acclona
Energy Global Italy
Subgroups Accona
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global USA
Subgroup Actiona
Pacality Services
Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Faeility Services
Subgioup Acciona
Facility Services )
Subgronp Acctona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Fasikity Services
Subgroup MDC
Sebgrotp Acciona
Fagasty Servicos
Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Facilay Servioes
Subgroup
Multiservicios
Acciona Facility
Setvices

Subgromp Acciona
Urban Services y
Medio Ambtente

B

102735

24
46,968
34,852
10,623
33,862

554

47

9
1,052

2.5M
93,938
100

40,716
1,314
33

24,457

5,044
t8
12

1,048

262

191,518
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Acciona Financiacién Filiales
Acciona Forwzrding Argentina, § A
Acciona Forwarding Brazil
Acclona Foowarding Ceaansas, S 1
Acciona Forwarding, S.A.

Acciona Global Renewsihias, 8 A

Acciona Green Encrgy Developments, S.L.
Agciona Ground Services, S|

Acciona Handling Services, S.L.
Acciona Industiial, S A
Acciona Infraestructuras Colombia SAS

Acciona Infraestructuras Residenciales Mexico
S5A

Acciona Infraestructuras, S A.

Acciona Infraestructuras-Elzcnor. Hospual
David

Acciona Infracstructure Asia Pacific Pty
Limited

Acciona Infisstructures Australia Pry. Ltd
Acciona Engineering Industrial $.A. De C.V.

Acciona Engmecring, § A

Acciona Inmobiliaria, S.L.
Acciona Instalacicaaes Mewico, SADe C V
Acciona Inversiones Corea, S.L.

Acclona Las Tabias, S L.

Acciona Logfstica, S.A.

Accrona Mantenimienia De Infraestiucticas,
SA

Acciona Medioambiente, S.A.

Acciona Multiservicios, S A

Acciona Nieruchomosci, Sp. Z.0.0O

Accioni Operacién v Mantemmiento, $ R L De
v

Acciona Portugal I - Energy Global, Lda,

Acciona Producciorzs v Disefio, S A

Acciona Rail Services, S.A.

Acciona inmobiliarra S AU

Acciona Renewable Energy Canada Gp

Audit

A

A

Locatien
Madrid

Atgenting
Brazil
The
(anaries
Madrid
Madnd

Navarra

Madtid

Valencia
Seville
Colombia

Mexico

Madrid
Panarma
Australia
Ausiralia
Mexico

Meadnd
Madrid

Menico
Navarra

Madnd
Madrid

Madrid
Valencia
Madrid
Poland
Mexico
Portugal

Sewille

Madrid

Madrnd
Canada

Main activity
Other Businesses
Lozistics Services
Logistics Services
Logistics Services
Logistics Services
Enetgy

Energy

Logistics Services

Logistics Services
Construction
Construction

Construction
Construction

Constructon
Construction
Construction
Engineering

Engmeenng
Real Estate

Construction
Energy

Real Estate
Holding Company

Constiuct:on
Urban Services
Lrban Services
Real Estate
Llthan Services
Energy

Other Businasses

Logistics Services

Real Estate
Energy

Effect.
Shere %

100.00%

100.00%

98.71%

100 0%

100.00%

66 67%

100.00%

100 00%

100.00%

190 (0%

100.00%

109 00%%
100.00%

75.00%

100.00%

100.30%

100.00%

100 0%
100.00%

100.00%%

100.00%

100 060%
100.00%

100 09%

100.00%

100 00%

100.00%

100 00%

100.00%

100 (0%

100.00%

100 60%
100.00%

[older of interest

Acciona

Subgroup Acetona
Forwasding
Subgroup Acciona
Forwarding
Subgroup Acciona
Forwa ding
Subgroup Acciona
Logistica
Subgroup Acciona
Energy
Subgroup Acciona
Energy

Subzroup Acciona
Ciban Services y
Meduy Ambiate
Subgroup Acciona
Urban Services v
Medio Ambiente
Submoup Acciona
Infraestizicturas
Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras
Subgroup Acciaia
infracstructoniy
Acciona
Subgroup Acciona
Infraestrchias
Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras
Subgioup Aceiona
Infiaestructuray
Subgroup Accicna
Engineering
Subgioup Acciona
Infracstructnas
Acciona
Subgroup Acclma
Industnal
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subzroup Acciona
Innmobiliaris
Acciona

Subgroun Acciona
Inirasstriciutas
Subgroup Accicna
Facility Services
Subyroup Accinna
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Inmobiliatia
Subgroup Acclons
Facihty Services
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Globai
Subgroup Acciona
Infragsiructuras
Subgroup Acciona
Urban Services y
Medio Ambiente
Subgroup Acsican
Inmobiliana

Subgroup Nova

Larrying
amount
60
673
3.305
302
14,649

40

1,000

30 340

16,531
3

6,909
123,848

1,268

256

418,362
13,820
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Holdings Inc

Acciona Renewable Energy Canada Holdmgs
LLC

Acciona Rinnovabili Calabna, Srl

Aceiona Risnovabils Kaly, Srl
Acciona Saltos De Agua, S.L.U

Acciona Serv. Hospatalanios, S L
Acciona Service, S.L.

Acciona Servigios Conessionates, $ L
Acciona Servicios Ferroviarios, S L.,

Acciona Urban Services Medio Ambiente
Mexico, SA DelV

Acciona Urban Services, S.L.
Acciona Sistemas De Segutidad, 3 A

Acciona Solar Canarias, S.A

Acciona Solax Epergy LLC
Acciona Solar Power Inc,
Acciona Solar, §.A

Acciona Termosolar

Aceiona Towers, 5.1

Acciona Windpower Korea, Inc

Acciona Windpewer Mexwoo, S1i De OV
Acciona Windpower North America L.L.C,

A udit

Location

us
Italy

Ttaly

Madrid

Madnd
Madrid
Madnd

Madrid

Mexieo

Madrid
Madrid

The
Canaries

us

Navana
Navarra
Madnid

China

us

Brazl

Chile

India
MNavarra,

South
Corea

Mexico
us

Main activity

Energy

Epergy

Energy

Halding Company

Urban Services

Coneession Opeeation

Logistics Services

Lirban Services

Urban Services
Construction

Energy

Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Water Treatment

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Eaergy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Effect.
Share %

164.00%

100.00%

100 08%
100.00%

100 00%
100.00%
100 60%

100 00%

100 60%

100.00%
100 00%

75.00%

66.67%
100 00%
75 06%
85.00%
100 00%
100.00%

64 67%
66 67%
100 60%
100.00%
100 00%

100 00%

164.00%
100.00%

160 00%
100.00%

Holder of interest
Scotia
Subgroup Accrona
Energy Global USA.
Subgroup Acciona
Energy qubal Italy
Sl n
Eaergy Glebal Itely
Subgroup Corp
Acciona Energys
Renovables
Subgroup Acciors
Urban Services y
Medio Ambrente

Acciona

Asciona

Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acorona
Facihity Services
Subgroup Acciona
Utban Services y
Medio Ambiente
Subgroup Acciona
Faerity Services
Subgroup Acciona
Solar

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Morth
Ameriog

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global USA
Subgroup Acclona

Energy

Subgroﬁp Acciona
Energy

Subzroup Acciona
Windpower
Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgroup Acciona
Ensegy Intemacional
Subgioup Acciona
Energy North
America
Subgroup Acciona
Wmdpower
Internaaronal
Subgroup Acciona
Windpower
Internacional
Subgroup Actrong
Wind Powex
Intesnastoral
Subgioup Acciona
Wind Power
Internacional

Subgroup Acciond

 Wndpower

Subgroup Acciona
Windpower
Internacional 7
Subgroun Acciona
Windpower
Internactonal
Subgroup Acciona

o

4407
43

L48n

10,603

1,500
136,306
160

21

30,809
41

463

36,535
7,819
L3
8,505
16,155
136

8,090

281,841

51570

23

1,902

56,553

250

2477
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Acciona Wimidpower Oueama, Ply, Ltd

Acciona Windpower Rilzgar Enerjisi Sistemleri

Acciona Windpower South Africa (Pry) Ltd

Acciona Windpower, §.A,

Aeno Gebon, S A

Aepo Polska S.P.Z0.0

Aerosite Energy Piivate Limuted
AFS Efficient Energy Uk Limited
AFS Empleo Social Darcelona, S L
AFS Empleo Social, S L.

Agencia Marfima Nasshispanica, S A
Agencia Schembri, S A.

Aguas Pilar Dv La Horadada S L
AIE Trafalgar

Alabe Mengibar, A LE

Alabe Sociedad De Cogeneracidn, S.A.

Amhetst Wind Construction G lie
Anchor Wind, LLC

Andraty Gbres | Saneiiment, S [

Antigua Bodega De Don Cosme Palacio, S.L.

Apoderada Comporauva Genessd § A,
Arsogaz 2005, S.L.
Asesores Turfsticos Del Estiechu, S A

Asimetra, S.A. C.V.

dulac Wind Fower Lp
Avenir El Romero Spa

Beat Creak
Bestinver Gestion S.C.LLC., S.A.
Bestinver Pensiones GF P S A

Bestinver Sociedad De Valores, S.A.

Audit

C

Location

Sustrohia

Turkey
South
Afnca
Navarra
Gabon
Poland
India
United
Kingdom
Bacelnng
Barcelona
Madiid
Madrid
Madnd
Cadiz

Madnid

Madrid

Canada
us

Mallorca
Alava

Madnd
Madrid
Malaga

Mexico

Canada
Chile
uUs
Madrid

Madrid
Madrid

Main activity

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy
Enginceting
Engincering
Fnergy

Urban Services
Urban Services
Urban Services
Lopgistics Services
Logistics Services
Water Trestment
Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy
Enetgy

Watgt T:eatment
Wineries

Other Businesses
Real Estate
Logistics Services

Urban Services

Enelgy
Energy
Energy
Finance

Finance

Finance

Eftect.
Share %

100 00%

100.00%

100 00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.M)%
100.00%
104 0014
100.00%

92 71%

92.71%
100.00%

86.20%

96.25%

100.00%

100 00%
100.00%

160 00%
100.00%
100 00%

100.00%
92 71%

100.00%

100 60%
100.00%

100 00%
100.00%
100 00%
100.00%

Holder ol interest

Windpower
Internacional
Suhgroup Acciona
Windpower
Infernactonal
Subgroup Acciona
Windpower
Internacional
Subgroup Acciona
Windpower
Internacional

Subgroup

Corporacion Acciona

Windpower
Subgroup Acciona
Engingerimg
Subgroup Acciona
Engineering
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Accinna
Facility Services

Subgioup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Accioiza
Trasmediterrinea
Subgroup Agencia
Schembr:
Subzioup Acciona
Agua Servicios

Subgroup Acciona
Energy

Subgroip Ineuropa
€v cogene1acion
Subgroup Corp
Acciona Energias
Renovables

Subgroup Jccioma
Energy Global
Canada

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global USA

Subgroup Acciona
.-‘\gua
Subgroup Palacio

Agciona

Subgroup Acciona
Inmobihana

Subgroup Accrona
Trasmediterranea

Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Canada

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subgroup GUWH
Agcicna Fnergy
Subgroup Bestinver
Subgroup Bestmver

Subgroup Bestinver

Carryiny
amoant

97.069

18

1,701

153

14,808

Lot

1,693

59

9,448

1Lu3i

3,818

744
60

186

1,347

8,151

1,538

331
1,203
5,267
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Bestinver, S.A.

Biocarburants De Catalunya, S.A.
Biodiesel Caparrose, S 1
Biodiesel Del Esla Campos
Biodiesel Sagmt, 5.1

Biomasa Alcazar, S.L.

Biomasa Briviesca, S L

Biomasa Miajadas, S.L.

Biomasa Sangiesa, 5.1
Bodegas Palacio, S.A.

Capev Venemicla
Ce Oaxaca Cuatro, S DeRL DeCV
CeOmacaDos, S DeRL. DeCV

Ce OaxacaTres, S DeRL DeCV

Ceatesalas 5.1,

Cenargo Espafia, S.L.

Centro De Seivicios Compartidos De Acciona
SL

Cedlica Hispania S.L.

Cesa Eolo Sictha Srl

e . S.L.
f oefisa, S A

< b
ﬁ Gmbuslebor, S.L.
. EBmpaia De Aguas Pagusia, 31
- Eolica Granadina S.L.
=4 s
[} Internacional De Constiuceiones
=5
ot Vs
e i A
23 (ompafiia Trasmediterranea, S
i G Urbanizada Dol Coto, § L,
;:’; Cansorcig Acciona Ossa, S.A
Lo,
ﬁi Gonsorci Ascena Ossa Andina 5.4
Moo ?_.;
f:‘“:‘,_ Gonsorcig Constructor Anancaria Ltd.

2y
gm;mm Edfieo Chirtpa, S A,
Construceiones Residenciales Mexico, C.B.
ConstructoraFl Paso S P A

Constructora La Farfana, Spa

Aundit

Lacation
Madrd

Barcelona
Navana
Navarra
Mavarra
Madrid
Buigos
Madrid
Navarra
Alava
Venerueld
Mexico
Mexico

Mexico

Madnid
Madrid
Madiid
Madrid
Madrid
Switzeriand

Murcia

Granada

Madrid

Chile
Chule
Chile
Costa Rica
Mexico
Chile

Chile

Main activity
Fmance

Energy

Energy

Energy
Engigy
Energy

Foergy

Wineries
Construstion

Energy

Energy

Energy
Logistics Services
Instrumentat

Energy
Energy
Instrumental
Finance

Logstics Services
Water Treatrnent

Energy
Fmansce

Logistics Services
Construction
Construehon
Construction
Energy
Construction
Construction

Construction

Effect.
Share %
100 60%
90.00%
106 00%
100.00%
100 08%
100.00%
£5 00%

100.00%

100 002
100.00%

100 60%
66.67%
66 67%

66 67%

100.00%
92 71%
100 00%

100.00%

66.67%,

100.00%
100 00%

100.00%
100 00%

50.00%
100 00%

92 71%
97 47%
65.00%
63 00%
60.00%
65.00%
100.00%
100 00%

100.00%

Holder of interest

Acciong
Subgroup Acciona
Energy

Subgroup Accions
Encrgy

SuBgroup
Biocombustibles

Subgronp
Bioeoministibles
Subgroup Biomasa
Nacional

Subgroup Bromasa
Masiona]

Subgroup Biomasa
Naciqngl
Subgnoup Acctona
Eneigy

Subgroup Sileno
Subgroup Acciong
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Mexico
Subgroup Accions
Enorgy Mexico
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Mexico
Subgroup Corp

Acciona Energys
Renovables

Subgroup Agencia
Schembu

Apcionn
Subgioup Acciona
Eélica Cesa

Subgtoup Cesa Haly_

Acciona

Acciona

Subgioup
Olloquiegm

Subgroup Gasha
Subgroup Cedlica

Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Logistica
Subgroup Accrona
Ronl Estate
Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras
Subgronp Accions
Infracsermoturas
Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras
Subgroup Aceiona
Energy

Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras
Sobgroup Acciong
Infraestruchunas
Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras

" Carrying
Q 3
1,947
54,707
60
2,186
303

4,191

1,526
3,323
307

369

983 583
7.080
3

49,404
10,581
3

711

506

1,303
2,930
1,353

260,540
21,399
5

4
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TRANSLATION

Constructora Ruta 160, S A
Copane Valores, S.L.

Cutpotacion Acciona Fneigys Renovables, S L

Corporacioén Acciona Eolica, S.A.

Corpotacién Acciona Hicdidulica, S A
Corporacion Acciona Infraestructuras S.L.

Corperacion Acciona Windpower, $ L

Corporacion De Explotaciones y Servicios, S.A
Corparacion Eolica Catalana S L

Corporacién Edlica De Valdivia. S.L.
Corporacton Bdlica De Zamora S E
Corporacién Edlica La Cafiada. S.L.
Corporacion Eolica Sora S A

Demsey Ridge Wind Farm, LLC

Depumar 78, S A

Depurar 8B, S.A

Desarrolladora De Infiaestructwrs Hispano-
Peninsula, S A DeC V

Desarrolladora De Infraestructuras Hispano-
Mexicanas, S.A. De C.V.
Desanollos Revolt Del Llobegat, § 1.

Desarrollos y Construcciones, S.A. De C.V,
Dren, 5 A

Ecogrove

Fueovista Wind, LLC

EHN Slovenia

Emp Dhseflo Constr Cong Jardings y Zopas
Verdes, 8 A

Empordavent S.L.U.

Empreendwmienios Félicos Do Verde
Hotizonte, S A

Empreendimientos Eolicos Ribadelide, S.A.
Empiesa Operadora ATLL, S A

Enalia, Ltda.

Energea Servicios v Manterumiento S 1

Energy Renovable De Teruel ,S.L.

Energy Renovables De Bararm, S L

Energys Alternativas De Teruel, 8.A.

Andit

Location

Chile
Madrid
Madnd

Madrid

Madnid
Madrid
Madnd

Madrid
Madnid
Madrid
Madrid
Madrid

Zatagoza
Us
Aragon
Aragén
Mexico
Mexico
Madid

Mexico

Madud

us
Us

Slovenia
Malaga
Barcelona
Pertugal
Portugal
Barcelona
Colombia

Barcetona

Teruel

Madnid

Teruel

Ninin activity

Construction
Instrumental
Energy

Energy

Enetgy
Instrumental

Energy

Holding Company
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Encigy

Energy

Water Treatment
Water Treatment
Constructiun
Construction
Real Estate

Construction
Holding Company

Energy

Enetgy

Energy
Cinstruction
Energy

Energy

Energy

Water Treatment

Wineries

Energy

Energy
Energy

Energy

Effeet.
Share %o

100.00%
100.00%
110 00%

100.00%

108 00%
100.00%
100 00%

100.00%
100 0%
100.00%
104 00%
106.00%

60.00%

66.67%

100.06%

100.00%

60 00%

100.00%

100 00%%

100.00%
100.0i°%

66.67%
100 0%

100.00%

100 00%

100.00%

66 67%

66.67%

100 00%

100.00%

100.00%

51.00%
100 (0%

51.00%

Holder of interest

Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones Chile

Acciona

Acelolia

Subgroup Corp.
Acciona Energys
Renovables

Subgroup Corp
Acciona Egeryys
Renovables

Acciona

Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Servicios Urbanos ¥
Medio Ambiente

Suhgroup Ceolica
Subgroup Ceblica

Subgroup Cedlua
Subgroup Ceatesalas

Subgioup Ceolica
Subgroup Acciona
Wind Energy USA
Subgroaip Acctona
Agua

Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgioup Acciona
Iniraestruciurgs
Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras
Subgioup Accioni
Inmgbiliaria

Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras

Acciong

Subgroup Acciona
Wind Energy USA
Subgroup Ecoenergy
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subgroup Acclona
Infraestrictuias
Subgroup Acciona
Energy

Subizroup Accnma
Eélica Portugal
Subgroup Acciona
Eélica Portugal
Subgionp Accia
Agua

Subgroup Hijos de
Antonio Barcelé
Subgroun Teiranova
Fuergy Coiporation
Subgroup Energys
Alternativas de
Teruel

Subgzroup Ceatesalas
Subgroup Acciona
Energy

Carryivg
amouant

83,251
55719
L773.906

98,503

65.003
3
97.620

3,829
12
12,405
2,717
1,368
a3

54.965
4892
5939

2
5
32,461

7.828
LI1L3

106,334

2,136

33
47835

82
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Eneigys Edhicas De Catalunya, S A
Energys Renovables De Ricobayo. S A
Energys Removables El Abra SL

Energys Renovables Operacion y
Mentenimiento, S,L

Energys Renovables Pefla Nebina SL
Entidad Efinen, S.A.

Entoino Urbane y Medw Ambiente, S 1.
Entrecanales v Tavora Gibraltar, Ltd

Edhica De Rubio, 5 A
Edlica De Sanabria S.L.

Edlica De Zorraquin, S.L

Etlica Villanueva, S.L

Edlicas Del Memeayo. S L.

Edlicos Breogan. S.L.

Fohiki Evnipoy Cesa Hellas Epe

Eoliki Panachatkou Sa

Eoliki Paialimms Cesa Helas Epe

ES Legarda, S.L.

Estibadora Puerto Bahia, §.A

Estudios y Construcciones Ds Obras. S.A De
CVv,

Europa Fenys, S A.

Eurus S,A,P1De C.V.

De Recurscs Corporanvos SL.

$oh De Sarvicios Urbanos Baleares, § A

Aundit

G 0O > 0

i

Location

Barcelona
Madrid
Vizcaya

Barcelona
Madnd
Madrid
Mmca
Gibraltar
Barcelona
Madrid
Madrid
Navarra
Sona

Pontevedra
Greece
Greece
Greece
Navarra
Chiiz
Mexico
Cadiz

Mexico
Madnd

Madrid

Madrid
Geormany
Italy
Murcia

India
Alava
Zaragoza

Bacelopa

Navarra

Mailorea

Main activity

Energy
Energy
Energy

Urban Services

Energy
Instrumental

Construction
Energy
Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Encrgy

Energy

Eneigy

Energy

Logistics Services
Construction
Logistios Services

Energy
Instruenertal

Finance

Holdmg Company

Other Businesses
Logisties Services
Logistics Services
Logistics Sefviges
Energy

Enexgy
Construction

Water Treatment
Energy

Water Treatrnest

Effect.
$hare %

100 06%
50.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100 00%
100.00%

50 00%
100.00%

100 00%
100.00%

66 00%%

66.66%
100 00%
100 00%

72 00%
72.00%
72.00%

100 00%
92 71%
50.00%
92 71%

62 67%
100 00%

100.00%
100.00%
100 00%

100.00%
100.00%
100 00%

100 00%
100 00%
100.00%

100 00%
100.00%

100 80%

Holder of interest

‘Sutfgmup Acciona
Energy

Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup Cedlica

Subgroup
Multiservicios
Acciona Facility
Services

Subgroup Cedlen

Acciona
Subgroup Acciona
Servieios Urbanps
Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras
Subgronp Accioma
Energy

Subgroup Ceolica
Subgromp Acclons
Epergy

Subgroup Acciona
E‘nergy

Subgromp Ceohen

Subgroup Cedlica

Subgroup Cesa
Hellas
Subgroup Cesa
Hellas
Subgioup Cesa
HeHas

Subgroup
Biocombustibles

Subgroup Accionz
Trasmedstorrinen
Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras

Subgronp Acciona
Trasmediterrinea

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Mexico
Accaons

Subgroup Acciona
Inmobiliatia
Acctona

Acciona
Subgroup Accrona
Alport Servivea
Subgroup Acciona
Logpstica

Subarony
Olloguiegm
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subgroup Ceblica
Agcciona
Subgroup Acciona
Agna

Accicna

Subgroup Acciona
Agr Servieios

Carrying

127

294
5798

2625

4,508

37.645

6,000
6,403

503

18.644

3471

61

2%
2,558
3,893

1,701
438
30

7234



TRANSLATION

Gouda Wind Facility (Proprietary) Limited

Grupo Transportes Frigoiificos Murcianos, 8 L

Gsd Flughafen Gmbh

Guadalaviar Consorcio Zdhice Alabe knerfin,
SA

Gunning Wind Energy Developments Py Ltd
Gunning Wind Energy Hoidmngs Pty Lid
Gwh-Acciona Energy LL.C

Heartland Windrower, LLC

Hermes Logistica, S.A.

Hidiceldctiica Dl Senado, SL
Hijos De Antonio Barcelo, S.A.
Hospital De Leon Bajio, SA De CV

Hsd Flughafen Gmbh

Ibet Rait France, S L

Iberica Arabian Co Lid

Ihennsa Do Brazi} Engenhaua Ltda
Inantic, §.A.

Industria Toledana De Fnergys Renovables,
S

Inetime, S.A.

Inewopa De Cogeneracron, S A
Infraestructuras Ayora, S.L.

Inmobzltara Paigue Reforma, S A [be CV
INR Eolica, S.A.
Interlogistica Def Frio, S A

Interurbano De Prensa, S.A.

Kw Tarifa S A

Lambarene Necso Gabon
Lameque Wind Power Lp
Logistica Del Transporte Slb, S.A.
Lusonecso

Maritime Global Operator, Ltd
MDC. Aarport Consult Gmbh

Meltemi South Sp. Z.0.0.

Audit

A

A

-

Locaticn

South
Africa

Mureia
Germany
Madnd
Australia
Australia
Us

Us
Barcelena

Barcelona
Madrid

Mexico
Germany
France
Saudi
Arabia
Brazil

Madrid

Toledo
Madrid

Madid
Madrid

Mevico
Sevilla
Baicelona

Madrid

Madind
Gabon
Canada
Murcia
Portuga!

Malta
Germany

Poland

Main activity

Energy
Logistics Services
Logistics Services
Energy
Energy
Eneigy
Energy
Energy

Logistics Services

Energy
Wineries

Concession
Logistics Services
Logistics Scivices
Engineering
Engzineening
Instrumental

Energy

Urban Services

Energy

Energy

Real Estate
Energy

Logtstics Services

Logistics Services

Exergy
Construction
Eneigy

Logistics Services
Real Estate

Logistics Services

Logastics Services

Energy

Effect.
Share %

34.00%

100 60%

100.00%

100 6%

66.67%

60 67%

100.00%

100 110%

92.36%

100.00%
100.00%
100 005

100.00%

92 71%

100.00%

100 ¢0%

100.00%

100 00%
100.00%

100.00%
84.72%

100.004%

100.00%

100 00%

100.00%

100 00%

100.00%

66.67%

100.00%

100 00%

92.71%
100.00%

66.67%

Holder of interest

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Sudéfrica
Subgroup
Ulloquiegut
Subgroup Acciona
Airport Services
Subgioup
Guadaloviar
Subgroup Gunning
Wind Energy
Sulgroup Acciona
Energy Oceania
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global USA
Subgroup Acciing
Energy Global LSA
Subgroup Acciona
Trasmeditertanea
Subgronp Acuona
Saltos de Agua
Acciona

Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Airport Services
Subgrouy Acciona
Irmediterranea
Subgroup Accicna
Engineering
Subgroup Accuma
Engmeermg
Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras
Subgroup Acciona
W mdpower
Acciona

Subgroug Corp
Aceiona Energys
Renoy gbles

Subgroup Alabe
Subgroup Accions,
Inmobihana
Subgroup Acciona
Energy

Subgroup Aceiona
Loztstica
Subgroup Acciona
Logistica
Subgroup Coip
Acciona Energys
Renovables

Subgroup Accibna
Infracstructuras
Subgroup Acciona
Wind Fnergy Canada
Subgroup
Olloquiegui

Subgroup Acciona
Inmusnliana

Subgioup Acciona
Trasmediterranca
Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Poland

Carryiny
amuimnt

4912
234
25
250
1,790

1,720

2,134
31710

2,060
152
170
120
528
560

5.650
19

613
16.819

2,676

R134
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TRANSLATION

Meltemu Sp Z0 0
Metrologia y Comunicaciones, S.A.

Millatres 2003, 8 L.
Mostostal Warszawa, S.A.

Moura Fabriea Sofar, Lda

Mt Gellibrand Wind Farm Pty, Ltd
Multeservicios Grupo Ramel, 5 A
Murfitrans, S.L.

Necse Canada Inc.

Necso Entrecanales Cubnertas Mexico, S.A. De
cv

Neeso Hong Kong, Ltd
Necso Triunfo Construcoes Ltda

Nevada Sola One, LLC
Notos Produgao De Energy Lda

Nvs] Investment Group L1LC

Operadora De Servicios Hospitalarios, 8.A. De
Cv.

P & S Logstica Intemal Pery

Pacific Renewable Energy Generation LLC
Packtivity, S.A.
Parco Edlico Cocullo SP A

Paris Aqureasne Transpotts, S.A
Parque Edlico Da Costa Viceniina, S.A.
Edlico Dg Rag, $ A

¢ Edlico De Manrique, S.A

EParquc Edlico De Pracana, SA
3

ralParqucﬂ Eélico Do Marao, 8.A.
3

= Parud Edlion Do Onteirp, S A
m—y p—

gy o

“;;Paique Edlico Dos Fiéis, S.A.
e

“pgfaud Edlico El Chapara

N

:-EParq Eftico Escepar, S.A.
(5 Parquq Eolieo La Esperanza S [,
%Parq Eélico Peralcjo, S.A
—P Folico Tortpsa, SL

Parques Ealicos Celaday, ST

Audit

Lacation
Poland
Madrid
Tenerife
Poland

Portugal

Australia
Barcelona
Murcia
Canada
Mexico
Hong Kong
Brazil

us
Portugal

Us

Mexico
Peru

us
Madnid
Italy

France

Portugal
Portugal
Portugal
Portugal
Poriugal
Porragal

Portugal
Navama
Toledo
Madnd
Toledo
Baicelona
Madrid
Madrid

Main activity

Energy
Construction

Logistis Services
Construction

Energy

Energy

Uiban Services
Logistics Services
Construction
Construction
Constriotion
Construction

Energy
Energy

Energy

Concession Operation

Logstics Services

Energy
Logistics Services
Energy

Logisties Services
Energy
Energy
Energy
Enetgy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy

Effeet.
Share %

66 67%
100.00%

NTN%
50.09%

100.06%

100 00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

50 00%

66 67%
46.67%

§667%

100 00%
89 54%

100.00%
100 H0%
66.67%

100 06%
66.67%
66 67%
66.67%
66 67%
66.67%
66 67%

66.67%
1 (M 000 %
100.00%
100 08%
100.00%
100 06%
100.00%
100 00%

Holder of interest

Subgroup Accioms
Engerpy Poland
Sobgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras
Subgroup Aceioma
I g

Acciona
Subgroup Acctoma
Enetgy {Hobal
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Australia

Facilny Berviees
Subgroup
Olloquiegui
Subsroup Acciona
Infracstrociaras
Subgroup Acclona
Infraestructuras
Subgroup Acclons
Infracstructuras
Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras
Subgrowp NVS1
investment Group

Subgroup Sayago
Sybgroup Acciona
Solar Energy
Subgroup Acciona
Servicios
Hospitalarios

Subgronp Acciena
Ferwarding

Subgroup Acociona
Energy Global USA
Acotoma

Subgroup Cesa Italy

Subgioup
Ollogurege
Subgroup Acciona
Edlica Portugal
Subgroup Acerona
Eoliea Pontagal
Subgioup Aceiona
Eolica Portugal
Subgroup Acciona
Subgroup Acciona
Edlica Portugal

Subgmoup Asclons
Edlice Pormge)
Subgroup Acciona
Edlica Portugal

Subgrenp Alabe

Subgrqup Ceéllca
Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup Ceolica
Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup Cedtica

Carrying

amownt
31310

150

40,671

13,571

389
1,500
233
143,071
553
1,936
155

12,733
200

12,733

1474
9,064

L23s
5,403
1,343
1314
1,139
2,551
14,483

882

1539
2,644
1,020
Foany
__6,127
4599
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TRANSLATION

Parques Eélicos De Ciudad Real. S.L.
Parques Folicos Del Cenato S.L

PAT Cargo, S.A.

PlaCos SRL
Pitagora Srl.

P1ess Cargo Colombia, S A

Pridagua Tratamiento De Aguas y Residuos,
Lda.

Pridesa America Corpotation

Punta Palmersas, S.A.

Pyrenees Wind Energy Developments Piy Ltd
Pyrenees Wind Energy Holdings Pty Ltd
Ramwoik, S A

Ravi Urja Energy India Pvt Lid

Red Hills Finance. LLC

Red Hills Holding, LLC

Rendos, S A

Renovables Del Penedés, S.A.U.

Riacho Novo Empreendimentos Inmaobiliarios,
Lida

Rio Paraiba Do Sul Servigos Ltda

Rodovia Do Ago, S A

Rusticas Vegas Altas, S.L.
SC A2Tiamo 2,8 A

$.C. Acciona Concesiones Ruta 160

SCDLP SA
S.C. Hospital Del Norte, S.A.

Saltos Del Nansa, S A U
Saltos y Centrales De Catalunya S.A.

San Fomen Wind 1. LT.C

San Solar Energy Facility (Propietary) Limited

Sc Acciona Facility Services Automotive Srl
Scdad .Empresarial De Financiacion y
Comercio, S.L

Servicios Corporativos Iberoamerica, S A De
cv

Shanghai Acciona Windpower Technical
Service Co.,Ltd

Awdit

Location

Ciudad
Real

Mudrid
Chile

ftaly
Italy

Colombia
Portugal
Us

Chile
Australia
Australia
Barcelona
India

us

Us
Madrid

Badajoz
Biaal
Brazil
Branl

Badajoz
CGuadalajara

Chile

Madnd
Madrid

Santender
Barcelona
ES

South
Africa

Romania
Madrid

Mexico

China

Mair activity
Energy
Energy
Logistics Services

Wauter Freatment

Energy

Logisties Services
Water Treatment
Water Treatment
Energy

Enerzy

Energy

Urban Sg1vices
Energy

Energy

Energy

Finance
Energy

Real Fstate

Concession Operation

Congesston

Energy

Conceyston
Concession

Construction

Concession
Encrey
Energy

Etergy

Energy
Lliban Services
Finance

Real Estate

Energy

EfTect.
Share %

100.00%
100 80%

57.50%

100 00%
66.67%

93 34%

100.00%

100 0%

66.67%

66 67%

66.67%

99.98%

100 00%

€567%

66.67%
114 G0 %

100.00%

100 00%

100.00%

101,00%

100.00%
100 00%

100.00%

Bl 0%

95.00%

100 00%

100.00%

10 00%

100.00%

100 0020

100.00%

100 00%

100.00%

Holder of interest

Subgroup Ceolica

Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup Accicna
Forwarding
Subgroup Accitna
Agua

Subgroup Cesa Italy
Subgroup Acciona
Forwarding PerG
Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgroup Accwna
Agua

Subgroup Acciona
Energy Internacional
Subgioup Acc:ona
Eneigy Oceazia
Subgroup Pyrenees
Wind Energy
Sutaroup Accrona
Factlity Serviees
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subgroup Acciona
Wind Energy USA
Subgroup Red Hills
Finance

Actiona

Subgroup Acciona
Energy

Suiigioup Acciona
Inmobilaria

Subgroup Acciona do
Brazil

Subgreup Accioma
Infraestructuias
Subgroup Acciona
Energy

Acciona
Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones Chile
Subgroup Avcions
Iafiaesiructuras

Acciona

Sulizroup Acciona
Saltos de Agua
Subgroup Acciona
Saltos de Agua
Subgroup Accima
Energy Gloha! UUSA
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Giobal
Sudifrica

Subgroup Acciona
Froily Services

Acciona

Subgioup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Windpower
Internacional

Carrying
anount

7,844
1,378%

10
5.854

354

63.467

7,000
14,876

30,821

N
9,103

83,038
42,016

12,334

356
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Sierra De Selva, S1.
Sileno, S.A.

Sishen Solar Facility (Proprietaay) Lamted
Sistemas Energéticos El Granado. § A

Sistemnas Enerséticos Sayago. 81

Sistemas Energéticos Vaile De Sedano. 5. A
Soctedad Explotadora De Recursos Edheos,
SA

Sociedad Istmefia Desarroiio Edlico, SRI. De
C.V.

Socredad Levaatma De Obias y Servicios, S A

Sociedad San Rafael Hidraulica S.A De CV

Soconfil, § A

Solar Fields Energy Photo Voltawc India Pvt Ltd

Solomon Foiks Wind Farm, 12.C

Starke Wind Golice Sp Z.0.0.

Sun Photo Valtaic Energy Inda Pvi Ltd
Surya Energy Photo Voltaic India Pvt Ltd
Table Mowntam Wind LLC

Tajro, Sp. Z.0.0.

(Jatenka Finance LLC

rﬂd Holding, LLC
—
=L romma Espaficla, S1
f
[~
gzg Termiftal De Carga Rodada, S.A
| E Ferry Barcelona, SR.L
= .
| d - osolar Alvarado Dos, S L
1y
=T 5
— osolar Alvavade, S1L
M
g £% Termosolar Majadas, S.L
wy O ;
£55 ) Termosolar Paima Sactifla, S L
Ty 3
= .2  Ternua Holdings. B.V.
5o _ﬁ;
= =

Temanova Enerpy Corporation
Terranova Energy Corporation S A
Tibest Cuatro, § A

Tictres, S.A.

Torre Lugamo S.1.

Andit

Lecatien
MNavarra
Alava
South
Afica
Seville
Madrid
Mad:_'id

Portugal

Mexico

Valencia

Mexico

India
us
Poland
Inda
India
Us
Poland

Us

us
Barcelona
Madrid
Barcelona
Badajoz
Badaioz
Madrid
Madnd
Holland

us
Barcelona
Madrid
Madrid

Valenoia

Main activity

Ene1gy
Bodegas

Energy
Energy

Energy
Energy

Enerpy
Energy
Constroction
Engineering
Imstanmental
Energy
Energy
Energy
Eneigy
Energy
Encrgy
Real Estate

Ererzy

Energy

Urban Services
Logistics Services
Logistics Services
Energy

Erergy

Energy

Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Instrumental
Instrumental

Real Estate

Effeet.

Share %

100 60%
100.00%

34 00%
100.00%

6667%
100 00%

66.67%

100.00%
100 00%

100.00%
100 08%
100 00%
100 00%
66.67%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
66.67%
26 00%
(100%

acciones
clase B)

100.00%
92 71%
92 71%

100 00%
83.00%
8500%

£5.00%
100.00%

106 04%
100.00%
HO00%
100.00%

100.00%

Holderofmterest Camont

Sa‘bgroup Acciona
Eneigy
Subgroup Hijos de
Antomo Barceld
Subgroup Acciona
Ensrgy Sudainca
Subgroup Cedlica

Subgronp Acciona
Energy Infermeeional

Subgroup Ceélica

Subgroup Acciona
Eéhica Portugal
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Mexico
Global

Aceions

Subgroup Acciona
Engineening
Subgroup Finenzas v
Cartera 2

Subgioup Acciona
Energy Global
Subgroup Asciond
Energy Global USA
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Poland
Subgroup Acciona
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Subzroup Acciona
Eneigy Global USA
Subgroup Acciona
Inmobiharia
Subgroup Actiona
Wind Energy USA

Subgroup Tatanka
Subgroup Acciona
Facaliy Services
Subgroup Acciona
Trasmeditertinea
Subgroup Acciona
Trasmediteniinea
Subgroup Acciona
Energy

Subgroup Tentesoler

Nacivoal

Subgtoup Termosolar

Nacional

S ——

Maciorna!

Subgroup Tecusa

Subgronp Accioma
Eolica Cesa

Subgroup Cedlica
Ageong

Acciona

Subgioup Acciona
Real Estate

Carrymg

131

17,126
7615

301
2,104

213
6373

4313

13
59
6241
8,386

12

33458

751

2,555
30
2941
16,244
193
EAAE
20,450

41790
953

$2289

15933

13.525
5,042

6,097




TRANSLATION

Tours And Incentives, S.A.U.
Towarowa Park Spolka Z 0 O
Transportes Frigorificos Murcianos, S.L.
Transportes Olloguiegul, § A
Transurme, S.A.

Trasmedrtetranea Cargo, S A

Trasmediterrénea Shipping Maroc, S.AR.L.
Tratamiento De Residuos Delg Rad, 5 L

Ttanka Wind Power LLC

Tucane, Sp Z 0 0,

Tuppadahalli Energy India Private Limited
Turismo y Aventuras. S 4 3!
Valgrand 6, S.A.

Vector-Cesa Helles Likosterna Epe
Velva Windfarm, LLC

Viajes Eurotras, S 4

Vifiedos Vifla Mayor, §.1.
Vjettoeleltrana Cemernica D 0.0
Vjetroelektrana Jelinak Doo
Vjetroelehuana Opor D O O

Voltser Servicos De Operagao E Manutengao
De Centr

White Shueld Wind Proyect LLC
Wind Farm 66, LLC
Yeong Yang Vimdpower Coiporation 1]

Zurich Wind Power Lp Inc

Audit

Location
Madrid
Peland
Murcia
Navatra
Barcelona
Madind

Tangiers

La Rioja

us
Pcland
India
Madnd
Madrid
Giesce
Us
Cadiz
Madrid
Cicatia
Croatia

Croatia

Portugal
us

us
South

Corea

Canada

Main activity

Logistics Services
Real Estate

Logistics Services
Logisties Services
Logistics Services
Logistics Servicexs

Logistics Services

Servicios Urhanos

Energy

Real Fstate
Energy

Logistics Servives
Real Estate
Energy

Energy

Logistics Services
Wineries

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy
Energy
Energy
Enetgy

Energy

Efizet.
Share %

92.71%
10U 00%
100.00%
100 00%
100.00%

92714%

92.71%

100.00%

26.00%
(100%
class B
shares)

100,60%
66.67%
92 71%

100.00%
72 00%
66.67%
92.71%

100.00%

100.60%
66.67%

100 00%

100.00%

66 67%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%

Holder of interest

Subgroup Acciona
Trasmediter1dnea
Subgrowp Acciona
Inmobthiana
Subgroup
Olloquiegui
Subgioup Acciona
Logistica

Subgroup Acciona
Logistica

Subizroup Acclotia
Trasmeditenénea

Subgroup Acciona
Trasmediterranea

Acciona

Subgroup Tatanka
Subgronp Acciona
Lzmobihiana
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Internacional
Subgroup Acciona
Trasmediterrénea
Subgroup Acciona
Real Estate
Subgrouy C'esa
Helias

Subgroup Acciona
Wind Energy USA
Subgrwip Acciona
Trasmediteniniea
Subgroup Hijos de
Antonio Barcelo
Subgroun Accioma
Energy Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Internacional
Subgioup Acciona
Eﬂﬂ'g} Ginhat
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global
Portugal 11
Subgroup Acuiona
Wind Eneigy USA
Subgroup Acciona
Energy Global USA
Subgroup A¢cioma
Energy Global
Subgroup Acciona
Renewable Canada

Carrying
gmount

464
15,338
1,257
44,063
1,451

18,187

3003

149 674
23,303
10,891

454
8,832
283

7.860

8,002

79
74,761
891
179

851

(*) Companies whose financial statements are audited by: (A) Deloitte; (B) PricewaterhouseCoopers; (C) KPMG; (D) Ernst & Young; (E)

Other
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TRANSLATION

APPENDIX 11

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The jointly controlled entities proportionately consolidated in the year ended 31 December 2015, in
accordance with IFRS, and the information related thereto are as follows (amounts in thousands of

euros):

Group
company

Bokpoort Epc Consortium (Pty)} Ltd

Chin Chute Windfarm v

Consorcio Acciona Brotec Ieafal S.A

Consorcio Hospeal Egc, $.A

Iniciativas Energeticas Renovables, S.L

Magrath Windfxm Jv

QOuarzazate Solar 1, Sarl

Ripley Windfarm Jv

Sistema Electrico De Evacuacion Eolica En

Subestac

Tuig-lnt

B

Tratie,

N2 €61

Audit

Lecation
South Africa
Canada
Chile
Chile
Pamplona
Canada
Morocco
Canada

Madrid

Main line
of business

Engineering
Energy
Construction
Constrigtion
Energy
Energy
Enginecering
Energy

Energy

=

Share %
30.00%
22 22%
60.00%
20.00%
50.00%
22 2%
3750%
33 34%

3190%

Holder of mterest
Subgroup: Acciona
Engineering
Subgroup Acciona
Wind Energy Canada
Subgroup Acciona
Infiastructures
Subgroup Acciona
Infrastructiges
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy
Subgroup: Acciona
Wind Enengy Canata
Subgroup Acciona
Engineering
Subgroup: Accrona
Wind Energy Canada
Subgtoup Acciona
Windpower Cesa

Cwerying

3,810

8,154

10

{*) Companies whose financial statements are audited by: (A) Deloitte; (B) PricewaterhouseCoopers; (C) KPMG; (D) Ernst & Young; (E)

Other
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TRANSLATION

APPENDIX II1

COMPANIES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

The associates accounted for using the equity method in the year ended 31 December 2015, in
accordance with IFRS, and the information related thereto are as follows (amounts in thousands of

euros):

Group
companies

ACCI Holdco

Acciona & Ghanim Bia Saad Alsaad And Sons

Gioup Ho

Acciona Waste Water Treatment Plant Limited

Acciona Wep Holdings Ine

Acciones Urbanas, Servicios y Medio
Ambiente, SL.

Adelaideaqua Pty Lad

Aguas Tratadas Del Valle De Mexico S.A. De

CV.

Aleph Sola: [SAPIDe CV

Aleph Solarfield [SAPI De CV

Aleph Solarfield Tt 5.4 PI De CV

Aleph Solarfield SA PI De CV

Aleph Solarfrelds Mexaco SA P1De CV
Algerian Water Investment, S.L.

Aluac Light Rail Holdings 1 Pty Linuted
Amper Central Solar Moura

Amphaciin Facultad Dret. § A

Aprofitament D'Energies Renovables De
L’Ebre S.L.

Arturo Sotia Plaza. A | E

ATLL Concesionaria De La Generalitat De
Catalunya, S.A.

Autovia De 1.os Vifizdos

Autovia Def Almanzora S.A.

Bzja Californsa Power. S A DeC ¥V
Bana H2 Szeleromu Megujulo Energia
Hasznosito Kft

Bicetanol Energetica

Bioetanol Energético La Mancha

Camarate Golf, S A

Carnotavento. S A,

Cathedral Rocks Construee And Management,

Pty Ltd

Audit

Location

Canada

Qatar
Trinidad &
Tobago

Canada
Murcia
Austraha
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexien
Mexico
Mexico
Madrid
Australia
Portugal
Barcelona

Barcelona

Madnd

Barcelona

Toledo
Seville
Mexico
Hungary
Madnid
Madrid

Madiid

Corunna

Australia

Main lige
of business

Holding Company
LUrban Services
Water Treatment
Concession
Urban Services
Water Treatment
Water Treatment
Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Enerpy

Water Treatment
Concession
Energy
Construction

Energy
Real Estate

Water Treatment

Concession
Congession
Engimeenng
Energy
Enezgy
Energy

Real Estate
Energy

Energy

Eifeet.
Share %

10.00%

4900%

70.00%

3333%

50.00%

S0

24.26%

3332%

33.31%

33 31%

33.31%

3331%

50.00%

5 00%

43.74%

50.00%

9.76%
48 749,

39.00%
50.00%%

23.75%

65 00%

49.25%

S50.00%

50.00%

22.00%

24.50%

50.00%

Holder of interest

Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones

Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgrovn Acciona
Lonsesiones

Subgroup Acciona
Servicios Urbanos
Subgroup Accioni
Agua Adelade
Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Mexizo Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Mexico Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Mexica Gilabal
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Mexico Global
Subgroup Acctona
Inergia Mexico Global
Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgioup Acciona
Concestones

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Internacional
Subgioup Acclona
Infraestreiues
Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroup INDSA
Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Infraestructuras

Subgroup Acciona
Ingenena

Subgroup Energy Corp
Hungary

Subzroup
Diocombustibles
Subgroup
Biocombustibles
Subgroup Acclons
Innobiliena

Subgroup Eurovento

Subgioup Accinna
Energia Global
Australia

Carrying
Ameunt

2,451

2t

7611

15,927
659
395
395
395
527

6,825

58,500
24,844

1,635
2

5
k4
931

24588
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TRANSLATION

Group
companies

Cathedral Rocks Holdings 2, Pty Ltd
Cathedral Roeks Holdings, Pty 1ad
Cathedral Rocks Wind Farm, Pty Ltd
Chisook Highway Opelations g
Cogeneraci6e Arrudas Ltda

Concesionana De Desalacion De Ibiza, § A

Concesionaria La Chira, S.A.

Consorcio Traza 5 A : g
Constructora De Obias Civiles y
Electromecanicas

Constiuctora Neeso Sacyr Chile
Constructora Sacyr Necso Chile, .4
Depyrar P1, S A

Desarrollo De Energias Renovables De
Navarra, S.A.

East West Connect Heldmg 3 Pty Limted
EMSERVA, S.A.

Eneigias Removables Mediterraneas, S A
Energy Corp Hungary Kt

Edlicas Mare Nostrum S L

Eblico Alijar, S.A
Eurovento. S L

Villanueva Del Rey, S.L.
E6licas Sierra De Ueera SL

r-.a
Gasticef D Edificios Comarciales, S.A

i3 Hospital Can Misses, S.A.
Hglena Water Fieance Py Lt
T

Tndraest fura Radiales, S.A.

Tefracstructimas Villanueva, $ L

Lineas Eldetricas Asturangs ‘S L
Lineas Eléctricas Gallegas IT. S.L.
Lineas Eléotricas Gallegas I 8.1
Lineas Eléctricas Gallegas. S.L.

ents 238 (Proprietary) Limited

Augit

Iocation
Australia
Augtralia

Australia

Brazil
Tb1za
Peru
Zmagoza
Mexico
Chile
Chile
Zaragoza
Pamplona
Australig
Malaga
Valencia
Hungary
Valencia
Cadiz
Corunna

Seville
Madnd

Almeria

Meorocco

South Africa
Madrid

Ibiza

Australra
Magrid
Madnd
Madrid
Asturias
Galicia

_Gaheia

Gialicia

Main fine
of business

Energy

Ensrgy

Energy
Coneession
Operation

‘Water Treatment

Watcr Treatmeent

Water Treatment
Concession

‘Water Treatrment
Construction
Construction
Water Treatment
Energy
Conoesgton
Water Treatment
Eneray

Energy

Energy

Energy
Energy

Energy
Encrgy

Logistics Services

Logisties Services

Energy
Real Estate

Concession

Water Treatmens
Concession
Encigy

Logistics Services
Encrgy

Energy

Encigy

Energy

Effect.
Share %

33.34%
33 34%
33.34%
S0
50.00%
5000%

50.00%
16 60%

24.50%
50 00%
50.00%
50 00%
50.00%

5 00%
49.00%
50 00%
50.00%
50.00%

50.00%
50 00%

38.04%
25 00%

46 36%

46 36%

45.00%
43 74%
40 00%

2505%
25.00%
40 53%

50.00%
50 00%
50.00%
S0 00%
35.00%

Holder of interest

Subgroup Cathedral
Rocks Holdings
Subgrogp Acciena
Energia Ocounda
Subgroup Cathedral
Rocks Holdings 2
Subgronp Acctomi
Comeesiones
Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subzioup Acciona
Agag

Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Accrora

Subgroup Aguas
Hispano Mexicana
Subgrotp Acctona
Concesronos Cinle
Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones Chile
Subgrotn Acciona
Agua

Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgronp Acciona
Concesiones
Subgroup Acciona
Agua Servicios
Subgroup Acciena
Epesigia

Subgroup Acciona
Eolica Cesa
Subgoup Accions
Frevgis.

Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroyp Tripower

Subgroup Termosolat

Palma Saetilla

Subgioun Ceblica
Subgroup Cenargo
Espafia

Subgroup Cenargo
Espaiia .
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Sudéfrica

Subgreup INOSA

Acciona

Subgreum Accrona
Agus Juternacional
Angtratia

Acciona

Subgronp Guadalaviar

Subgroup Acciona
Logistica

Subgroup Ewrovento
Subgroup Eurovento
Subgromp Eﬁrovctno
Subgroup Eurovento

Carrymg
amennt
8,505
9398
8,505
1,057
55
1,082

6,364
12074

1035

4936

50
79,506
2,588
2452

2,791
3t
817
14

20

17
9,641

8236
28,773

30

B M D2
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Group
conpanies

Locubsa

Mov-R H1 Szeleromu Megujulo Energia
Hasznosito Kft

Myzd Typaza, Spa
Necsorgaz, S.L.

Nexus Infrastrucnnre Heldings Unit Tyust
Nova Darsena Deportiva De Bara, $.A,

Nuevo Hospital De Toleds, S A

Oakleaf Investment Holdings 86 (Proprietary)
Lirnit

Operador Del Maicadu fbénico - Polo Espafiol,
SA

Operadora Can Misses S L.

Pétamo De Los Angostilios, § 1

Parque Edlico A Runa, S.L,

Parque Edlico Adrano S L

Parque Eélico Ameixenda Filgoeira, S.1.,
Parque Edlico Cinseiro. S L

Parque Edlico Curras. S.L.

Paique Eolico De Abaia S L

Parque Eélico De Barbanza. S.L.

Parque Eélico De Bubia v San [sidey § L
Parque Eélico De Deva. S.1.

Parque Eohco De Tea S E

Parque Edlico Vicedo. S.L.

Parque Edlico ¥imxe Do Monie S L

Parque Reforma Santa Fe, S.A. De C.V.
Parques Eolicos D¢ Buie. 8 L

Poligono Romica, S A.
S C Autovia De La Plata S A

5.C. Autovia Gerediaga Elorrio S.A.
S.C Del Camnd De Navarra, S A
S.C. Novo Hospital De Vigo S.A.

S C Puente Del Ehzo, S.A

Secomsa Gestd, S.L

Servicio De Tratarmento De Aguas Ptar
Caracol S.A

Servicios Comunitarios De Molina De Segura,
S.A.

Ststemes Electtics Esplugs, S A
Sociedad De Aguas Hispano Mexicana S.A De
Ccv,

Sociedad Mixta Del Agua- Jaen § A

Andit

i

E

o S - T R R R

>

- v B o B v

Lecation

Andora

Hungary
Algena
Madrid
Auvstralia

Madrid

Toledo

South Africa
MMadnd
Ibiza

Palencia
Corunna
Corunna
Corunna
Zamoia

Corunna
Colunna
Corunna
Astunas
Corunna
Corunna
Corunna

Coiunna

Mexico

Colunna
Albacete
Madnd

Bilbao
Pamplona
Pontevedra
Aragm

Tarragona
Mexico
Murcia
Barcelona
Mexico

Jaen

Main line
of biusiness

Construction
Energy

Water Treatmnent
Real Estate

Concession

Concession

Concession

Energy

Energy
Concession
Operation
Enesgy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Eneizy
Energy
Eneigy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Enetgy
Energy
Fnergy

Real Estate

Energy
Real Estate
Concession

Concession
Concession
Concession
Concession

Urban Services
Water Treatment
Water Treatment
Energy

Water Treatment

Water Tieetnient

Effect.
Siare %

48 89%

49.25%

T 5 5
20

50.00%

20.00%
50.00%

3333%

50.00%

5 00%

40.00%

30.00%
50.00%
50.00%
50.00%
50 00%
50.00%
50.00%
12.50%
50 00%
50.00%
50.00%
50.00%
50.00%

70.00%
50 00%

50.00%

25 00%

22.80%
40.00%
43.33%
50.60%
50.00%

48 9%%%

48.27%

30 00%

50.00%

60 (0%

Halder of interest
Sui_-gniup Acciona
Infreestiuciuras
Subgroup Energy Corp
Hungary
Subgroup Algerian
Water investment

Subgroup Acciona
Inmobiliana

Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones
Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Sudéfrica

Subgiroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Acciona
Servicios Hospitalarios
Subgroup Acctana
Eneigia

Subgroup Cedlica
Subgoup Ceolica
Subgroup Cedlica
Suhgrovp Cedlica
Subgroup Cedlica

Subgroup Ceolica
Subgroup Eurovento
Subgzroup Ceolica
Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup Ceolica

Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup Parque
Reforma
Subgroup Ceflica
Subgroup Acciona
Inmobiliaria
Subgroup Acciong
Iniraestiuchuas

Subgroup Acciona
Infrasstructuras

Acciona
Acciona
Accrona

Subgroup CESSA
Subzsroup Acciona
Agua

Subgroup Acciona
Agua Servicios
Subzroup Accrona
Energia

Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgtoup Acciona
Agus Servicis

Cariying
amnnant

136

1762
6,858
14

5830
1,866

1,984

1,583

1,520
7.068
7420
6,648
508
1,885
1,663
450
548
3,505
5393
553
5,147

10,006
4,305

937
L8531

4,979
5400
13,075
£.693
3,033

38

10,267
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Gronp
companies

Sociedad Operadora Novo Hospital De Vigo
S.A.

Solena Gioup

Tranvias Urbanos De Zaragoza 3.L.
Tripower Wind BV

Valdivia Energia Eélica, S.A.
Vento Mareno SL

Ventos e Terras Galegas IT S.L.
Ventos ¢ Tersas Galegas S L

Vertex Residencial Cuajimalpa, 8.A De C.V.

Andit

loeation

Pontevedra

us

Zaragoza
Holland

Seville
Comunna
Galicia
Galicia

Mexico

Mair Hine

of busipess
Concession
Operation

Urban Serviees

Concession
Operation

Energy
Energy

Energy
Energy

Energy

Real Estate

- Effect.
Share %

4333%

25 00%
15.00%
50 00%
50.00%
24 50%
50.00%

50 00%

10.00%

Heolder of interest
Subgroup Acciona
Servicios Hospitalarios
Subgroup Acciona
Servictos Urbanos y
Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones

Subgroup Acciona

Energia

Subgrosp Ewrovento
Subgroup Tripower

Suhgrm;lp Topewer

Subgroup Parque
Reforma

i
ameTmt
26

3995

11,561

3,145

1,166

(*) Companies whose financial statements are audited by: (A) Deloitte; (B) PricewaterhouseCoopers; (C) KPMG; (D) Emst & Young; (E)

Other
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TRANSLATION

APPENDIX IV

CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

Changes in the consolidation scope in 2015 were as follows:

Company

Acciona & Sogex Facility Services LLC
Acciona Energa Chile Hotdings, Sa

Acciona Global Renewables, S.A.

Acciona infisestructuras Colombia SAS
Acciona Infraestructure Asia Pacific Pty Limited
Acciona Real Estete S A L

Acciona Waste Water Treatment Plant Limited

Acciona Water Supphes Technology Beiing Co Ltd

Acciona Windpower Deutschland Gmbh
Acciona Windpower india Private Limited
Acrosite Energy Private Limited

Aleph Solar 1 SA Pl De CV

Aleph Solarfield I SA PI De CV

Aleph Solaifield i1 SA PI D CV

Aleph Solarfield SA PI De CV

Aleph Solarfields Mexwea SA PI De CV
Altrac Light Rail Holdings I Pty Limited
Ampliacién Faculted Dret, § A

Avenir El Romero Spa

Coipotacion Aceiciia Infiagstructuras S 1.
Fujin Power Private Limited

Gsd Flughafen Gmbh

Nexus Infrastructure Holdings Unit Trust
Nuevo Hospital De Toledo, S A

San Roman Wind [ LLC

Soctedad Operadota Novo Iosprtal De Vigo S A
Autopista Del Mar Atlintica, S.L.

Biodiesel Biibao

Deep River Wind Facility (Propictary) Limited
Euwovento Renovables, S L

Kimberly Solar Facility (Propietary) Limited
Natwral Clunate Systems, § A

Terminal De Contenedores Algeciras, S.A.
Transcargo Orupajes. S A

Transcargo Magreb, S.A.

Glebal De Energias Edheas Al-Andshis S A

Toyonova, S.L.

Entomno Utfumne y Medio Ambrente, S L

Location

Oman
Chile
Madrid
Colombia
Australia
Madrid
Trinidad & Tobago
Chma
Germany
India

India
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mextca
Australia
Barcelona
Chile
Madnd
india
Germany
Australia
Toleda

uUs
Puntevedra
Madrid
Vizoayva
South Africa
Cotunng
South Africa
Panipiona
Algeciras
Madnd
Madrid

Zamora

Corunna

Mrureia

Main line
of business

Urban Services
Energy

Energy
Construction
Construction

Real Esteze
Water Treatment
Water [tesiment
Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Engigy
Concession
Constiuction
Energy
Instrumental
Encrgy

Logistics Services
Concession
Concession
Energy
Concession Operation
Logistics Services
Eneigy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Logistics Services
Logistics Services

Logistics Services
Eirergy

Energy

Urtien Services

Change

Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addmacn
Addition
Addivor
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Additien
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addion
Addition
Addition
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Remaval

Removal
Femoval m
me oy
Removal on
merger

Changz

2012
coosclidation
methnd

Group
Group
Group
Gioup
Group
Grovp
Associates
Grouj
Group
Graup
Group
Assoclates
Associates
Asa0ciages
Associates
Assoviates
Associates
Associates
Group
Group
Group
Group
Associates
Ansuelatss
Group
Assnciates
Group
Group
Group
Assaciates
Group
Associates
Group
Croup
Group
Liroup
Associates

Croup
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Main Hine 015
Company Location of business Change consolidation
method
raethiod
Change in
Parque Reforma Santa Fe, $.A. De C.V Mexico Real Estate method Assoclates
Change in
Tome Lugano 51, Valeoow Eesal Eaemne method Crroup
The changes in the scope of consolidation in 2014 were as follows:
Company Eocation Main line Change 2014 conveliduden
of business mcthod
Acciona Ground Services, S.L Madrid Urban Services Addition Global
Acciona Anport Services Barcelons, S L Madrid Logistics Services Addibon Global
Acciona Airport Services Canarias, S.L. Madrid Logistics Services Addition Global
Acciona Adrport Services Este, S1 Madnd Logistics Serviess Addifion Global
Acciona Airport Services Madrid, S L Madrid Logistics Services Addition Global
Acciona Arrport Services Norts, S 1 _ Magrid Logisties Services Addition Global
Acciona Airport Services Sur. SL Madrid Logistics Services Addition Global
Asciona Concesstons Management Ine Canada Congession Operatron Addrtion Global
ACCI Holdco Canada Concession Operation Addition Equity method
Acciona Energy Avstraha (obal, Py, Lid Aystralia Energy Addstion Global
Acciona Energy Canada Global Corp Canada Energy Addition Global
Acciona Energia Global Baly, SRL Ialy Energy Addition Godral
Acciona Energia Mexico Global Lic Mexico Energy Addition Global
Accona Frergy Globat Polaod $p Z OO Poland Energy Addstion Gigkal
Acciona Portugal li — Energia Global, Lda Portugal Energy Addition Global
Acciona Energy South Afica Global (Pty) Lid South Afrca Encrgy Addition Global
Acciona Eneigy Usa Global Llc USA Energy Addition Global
Acciona Fraancracibn Fiiales Madrid Other Businesses Addition Global
Afs Efficient Energy Uk Limited United Kingdom Energy Addition Global
Consprewo Acciona_Osse Andma S A Chile Constiuction Addibion Globel
Acciona Energia Atlanta I, S.L. Madrid Energy Addition Global
Acciona Eneigia Atlenta i S [, Madrid Energy Addinon Global
Acciona Energia Atlanta [ii, S.L. Madrid Energy Addition Global
iones Urbanas, Servicios Y Medio Madzid Servides: Addition Equity method
Ambents, SL |
iona Windpower Ruzgar Enerjis1 Canada Energy Addition Global
' Sistemleri Anoni
{ ansorcio Acciuna Bioiso lafel § A Chule Construction Addition Proportional metod
- '}g Centto De Servicios Compartides De Acciona Madrid Logistics Serviees Addition Global
Boms 2m sl
L3 = | - S
Eg ';; EE no Urbano Y Medic Ambiente, S L Madrid Urban Services Addrtion Equity method
& EJ‘J: % West Connect Holding 3 Pty Limited Australia Concession Operation Addition Equity method
e o
g | 3 lladora De Infracsninctina Hispano- Mexico Conshaction Additron Tilobal
;f": - Pemnsul
":.: L Hsd Flughafen Gmbh Germany Logistics Services Addition Global
1 3 Melterni South Sp 200 South Affica Energy Addition Globsl
3 Tecniomnia Espaficla, S.L. Madrid Services Addition Global
Residencial 'iajimalpa, Sa De Cv Mexico Property Addition Eyuity metrod
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Acciona Concesiones Canada 2008 Inc.

Acciona Eneigie Windparks Deotschland
Gmbh

Compania Eolica Puertollano. S.L.
Corporacion Eohica De Barruelo S L
Corporacion Eolica De Manzanedo. S.L.
Deutsche Necse Entrecanales Cubiertas Gmbh
Ehn Deutschland, Gmbh
Eolica Gzilega Del Atlantico SL
Freyssinet, S.A.

Makrynoios Societe Anonyme Gf Production
And Tradi

Parque Eolico Topacios, S.A.

Pe Ingenio, S D2 RI DeC WV
Soluciones Mecanicas Y Tecnologicas, S.L.
Tranvia Meiropolita Del Besos, § A
Tranvia Metropolita, S.A.

Trikurfa
Volkmarsdorfer

Compafia Urbanizada Del Coto, S 1

Canada

Geimany

Puertollano
Madiid
Madrid

Getmany

Germany

Corunna
Bilbao

Greece

Madrid
Mexico
Navarra
Barceluna
Barcelona
Giecce
Germany
Madnd

Concession Operation

Encrgy

Energy
Enexpry
Energy
Construction
Energy
Enetgy
Construction
Eneigy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Concession Oporsiion
Concession Operation
Energy
Energy
Property

Removal

Removal

Removal
Remaval
Removal
Reauval
Removal
Rermovat
Removal

Remuoval

Removal
Remaoval
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal

Clhange 1n method

Global
Global

Global
Global
Global
Globat
Global
Global
Equity method
Fquity nizilied

Global
Global
Giobal
Fquity method
Equity method
Equity method
Global
Globul
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APPENDIX V

DETAIL OF CONSOLIDATED RESERVES AND TRANSLATION DIFFERENCES

(Amounts in thousands of euros)

=3

b

oF LA CUESTA BERNAL

Traducicra-iniérprete Jurada de ING

i

o
Lo
FeR T,

5y
]

s vfsr

N26G61

2015 2014
Compasy Consolidated  Translation Consolidated  Tramslation
reserves differences reserves differences
Acciona Adrport Services Berlin GMBH (11,622) - (11,003) -
Acciona Anport Services Frankfurt GMBH 507 - 4,173 -
Acciona Financiacion Filiales 42 = = =
Acciona Ser _vuﬁugs Cencesionales, § L 32 - (791) : -
Apoderada Corporativa General S A (420) - (404) -
Autovia de los Vifiedas, S A (30.612) - (29,1133} -
Cirtover, S.L. 92 - 93 -
Coefise, S A 645 40 681 30
Compaﬁlalntctﬁacional de Construcciones, S.A. 4970 618 4,940 437
Consortio Tiaza, §.4. (6,052) - (5.840) =
Copane Valores, 8 .1. 477 - 12,608 -
Dren, SA - (633) - (633) -
Entidad Efinen, S.A. 4,347) - (4,347)
Pmanzas Dos, S A (5.797) - [1.97?) -
Finanzas y Cartera Uno (i1 - am -
gv:enca de Consnugcwn% y Mantenmuento industrial, 77 = 77 =
Gestion de Recursos Corporativos, S.L (6} = (5) -
Gran Hospitel Can Misses, SA. (1.778) - (8.502)
Hospital De Leon Bayio, S A De CV 18,063 (1,823) 14,160 (825)
lneume, SA. . ¢ (1,067) - (988) -
Infraestructuras Radiales, S.A (58.223) % (58,186) -
Nova Daisena Depostva de Bara, S A (7.588) == {7.094) -
Packtivity, S.A. (2,408) - (2.407) -
Rendos, S A (18,392) = (18.312) --
Sdad. Concesionaria Hospital del Norte, S A 6,227 - 2,998 d
Sefineo, 8Lt | s I 90 - 152 -
Sociedad Concesionaria A2 Tramo 2, S.A. (25,722) - (26,086) -
Sociedad Concesiooaria del Canal de Navatrs, $.A {12,526) = (12,642) -
Sociedad Concesionaria Novo Hospital de Vigo (1,149) - (2,248) -
Sociedad Congastonania Pusate ded Ebco, $.A (12.140) = (14,138) =
Sociedad Levantina de Obras y Servicios, S.A 1,644 - 1,657 -
Terminal de Contenedores Algecnas. S A (100) - (9.823) o
Tibest Cuatro, S.A 1,435 - 1,289 -
Tianvia Metiopolita S A - - 1,564
Tratamientc de Residucs de la Rad, S.L. (31,089) - (30.968) -
Subgroup Acciong Agua ‘ 91.719 (4.885) 77,401 2 85:1')
Subgroup Acciona Airport Services 18,150 - 21,193 -
Spbgroup Acctong Concestones (19,241) (887) (18,341) 253
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Company

Subgroup Acciona Infracstructuras

Subgroup Acciona Inmobilignia

Subgroup Accicna Logistica

Subgrowp Acciona Seivictos Urbanos y M A
Subgroup Bestinver

Subproup Corporacign Aceiona Energlas Renovables
Subgroup Corporacidn Acciona Windpower
Subgioup Finanzas y Cartera Dos

Subgroup Hijos de Antonio Barceld

Subgroup MDC Arport Consult GMBH

Subgroup Mostostal Warszawa

Subgroup Tictres

Reserves for consolidation adjustments in the Parent

Conselidanon adjustments

Total

2615
Consolidated  Transation
TEserves differences
414,394 (83,466)
(376,606} (12.871)
(237,850) 213
136,550) (956)
39,451 --
1502,109 14282
{100,278) 6,804
{25) =
42,213 (1,314)
(5420} =
(50,677) (3,239)
(17.113) -
1,488,557 (484)
(83.006) =
462,128 (87,968)

2014

Coasolidated  Trarslation
reserves difterences
- 412,491 (11.817)
{292,542y {10,961}
(211,620) 635
(28,335} {4

71,527
(559 806) 2,071
(99,262) 1,642
(20) -
40,926 (347)
15,309) =
(36,689) (3.164)
(18.749) -
1,428,279 267)
(83.628) -
358,798 (25,264)
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APPENDIX VI

DISCLOSURE OF THE MAIN CONCESSIONS

Water Division;
Name Description
EDAR 8B Construction, operation

EDAR 7B
IDAM
Alicante
IDAM JYavea
IDAM
Cartagena
IDAM
Cuutadelia
IDAM Fouka
IDAM Thiza
m’ oy
M~
&S FAR
&J 'g Alotonilco
= 3
B oo wWwre
23 Mundanng
wl (B
= =
b T e
a X APTARLa
-z = z,;d'nra
— ==
tzr ¥
R~ AM
SR xueas Moya
Bra w2
e
Laed =t .
* "g ttation
T . n in
= = T
FPP
Davinopalis

and maintenance of waste
water ireatment facilities
in "Area 08B" of the
Aragonese Sewage Plan
Consiructon_ operaton
and maintenance of waste
watel ticatment facilities
m "Area 07B" of the
Aragonese Séewage Plea
Construction, operation
and mamtenance of
seawater desalinization
facilities in Alicante
Constriction, operaton
and. myinienance of
seawater desalinization
faciimies v Javea
Construction, operation
and mamtenance of
seawater desalinization
factlities 1 Cartagena

Construciion, ope1anon
and mamienance of
seawater desalinizatron
facities m Cwtadeta
Construction, operation
and mamtenance of
seawater desalimzation
facilities 1 Tipaza
Refurbishment, operation
and mamtenance of
seawawey dasalmization
facilities w1 San Antonio,
Portmany awd biza
Construciion, operation
and mamtenance of waste
water treatment facilities
m Atotonilco
Constraction, nperation
and mamtenance of waste
waler ireatment faciities
i Mundanng
Construction, opetation
and mamtenance of waste
weter treatment facilities
in La Chira
Eintargement: nperation
and matnigrancs of
seawater desalimzation
facitities Arucas
Construction, operation
and maintenance of
sanitation network in
Andrtx

Canstriigion, operation
ard maintensnce of
saritauon network it
Divinopolis

Period Couniry

2008-
2031

20i1-
2031

2000-
2013

2081-
2023

20601-
2020

20607-
2026

2008-
2036

2010-

2010-

2035

2611-
2048

201t-
2037

2008-
2024

2009-
2044

20153-
2041

Spain

Spam

Spain

Spain

Spain

Spam

Algena

Spam

Mexico

Anstiaiia

Peru

Spam

Spain

Brazil

ACCIONA
100.0%

100 0%

50.0%

168 1%

62.5%

100 0%

25.5%

500%

24.3%

251%

50.0%

100 6%

100.0%

15%

Stxtus
Opezational

Operationn?

Operational

Consticution

Consolidation
method

Global
consolidation

Global
consolidation

Proportione
method
Proportional

method

Giobal

Equity method

Equity method

Equity method
Equiy method

Equity method

Globat

Ecqaty mothod

Type ol wiel
Intangible asset

Intangible asset

Financial asset

Financial assel

Financial asset

Fmancial assct

Fancial asset

Financiaf aseet

Financial asset

Financiat asset

Fmancial asset

Intangivio ssset

Intangible asset

Tangible/mengible
asset
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Infrastructure Division;

Roads

Name

Chingok roads
(SEST)

Autovia de los
Vifledos

Ruta 160

Infraestructuras y
1adiales (R-2)

Rodovia do Ago

A2 - Tramo 2

Puente del Ebro

Windsor Essex
Paikway

Nouvelle Autoroute
A-30

Autovia Getediaga
— Eloirto

Autovia del
Almanzora

Autovia de la Plata

Toowoomba Second
Range Crossing
(Nexus)

Dewription

Toll highway included in the Calgary

ring road (25 km)
Caonstruction, operation and
amtenance of the CM-42  Jual

caimageway between Consuegma and
Tomelloso (74 5 k). Shadow toll
Refurbishment, conservation and
operation of Route 160, connecting
Tres Pinos and the Northern access
road to Coronel (91 km). Explicit toll

Construction and opgiation of the R-2
toll motorway betwsen Madud and
Guadalajara uncludes conservehion of
the streich of the M-50 between the Al
and the A2 motorways) Fxplicit toll

Recovery, operation and maintenance
of the BR-393 trunk road (200.4 km) in
the state of Rio de Janciro (between
Volta Redonda and Além). Explicit toll

Remodelling. 1¢storation. upetation and
mantenance of 76 5 hm of the R2 road
between km 62 and km 139 (province
of Soua to Guedalajard). Shadow toll
Toll motorway between the N-II and
N-232 roads (5.4 km; 400 m over the
Ebro niver). Shadow toll

Design, construction and operation of

an 11 ke ol road connecting "M indsot
iUntarro - Canada) and the US border

{Detrott - Michigan)
Construction and  operation  of
Montreal’s Motorway 30 between

Chéteauguay and Vaudreuil-Dorion
(74 km). Explicit toll

Construction, conservation arxd
oparation of the N-636 road m the
stretch fiom Gersdiaga to Eloino and
the conservation and operation of the
suetch already built of the Elono
Bypass Availabilify payment
Construction and operation of a
40.76 km stretch of dual carriageway in
the province of Almeria between
Purchena and the Autovia del
Mediterrdneo (A-7) dual carriageway.
Availability payment

LExecuiion. conservation and operatzon
of the Autovia de la Plata { A-66) dual
carriageway between Benavente and
Zamuta Stistelizs A6 (Castrogonzalo)
W Saatovenia del Esla Santuvenia dzl
Fsla to Fontamllas de Casto
Fontamllas de Castie to  Zamwia
Availabihity neyment

Design, construction and operation of
41 km motorway for north bypass of
Toowoomba  (Queensland), from
Helidon Spa to Athol via Charlton.
Availability payment. (25 years
operation since end of construction)

Period

2010 -
2043
203 -
2033

2008 —
2048

2001 -
2039

2008 -
2033

2007 -
2026

2006 -
2036

2010 —
2044

2008 —
2043

2012 -

2042

2012 -
2044

U2 -
2042

2015-
2043

Country

Canada

Spamn

Chile

Spaiit

Brazil

Spam

Spain

Canada

Canada

Spam

Spain

Spawn

Australia

ACCIONA

5%

50%

100%

25%

100%

100 (%

50%

334

%

23%

24%

20%

Status

Operational

Coetenonal

Construction
and

Operational

Operghicanl

Construction
and

Operational
Operanonsl

Operational

Construction

Operattonal

Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

Accnunting
method

Equity
method

Equity
method

Global
consolidation

Exquity
method

Global
consolidation

Globai
consolidation

Equity
method
Equiiy
muthid

Equity
method

Equity
method

Equity
method

Equuty

Equity
method

Typeof
aseet

Financial
asset

Intngibie
asset

Financial
asset

Intangible

assct

Intangible
asset

Intangible
asset

Intangible
asset

Financad
assot

Financial
asset

Fmancisl
ahset

Financial
asset

Fmaneiad
asset

Financial
asset
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Railwa

Consoreto Iraza
(Tranvia Zaragoza)

Sydney Light Rail

Canal

Canal de Navama

Harbour

Nova Darsena

Esportiva

Hospital

de Bala

Fori St John

Hospital
Bajio

Hospital del Norre

de Leon

(Madud)

Gran Hospital Can

Misses (

Novo Hospital de
Vigo

AL
de INGLES

CUESTA BERN
ada

r2he Jur

A

F

DEL

a

£
Soetirm

1

a
[ ?
PNy
Cn-.fs_

HERRRLR

Ibiza)

Comsryction and operation of the 2009
tramway crossmg the city of Zaragoza 2044
from north te south (12 80 km)

Design, construction, operation and 2014-
maintenance of a 12 km tamlme, from 2034
Circular Quay via George Street to

Central Station and crossing Surry Hills

to Moote Park, Kensington, Kingsford

and Randwick, It includes operation of

the existing line Inner West

Congtreeton and operatron of the first 2006 -
phase of the area under wrigation from 2036
the Cangl de MNavarra

Constiuctier: and operation of the sports 2005 -
marms 4t Roda de Bara Revenue from 2035
assignmaitt and rental of moorings,

storage and commeicial aréas

(191,771 m*)

Design, constucton, fitting-out and 2009 -
Q&M of a new hospital with 55 beds, 2042
meluGing an ¥U and centre for the

elderly (123 heds)

Design, construction, fitting-out and 2005 -
O&M of the hospital {184 beds) 2030
Desten, construction, fiitig-out and 2005 —
OC&M of tne nespilal Surfecs area of 2035
5{.0900 m? drvided mto 4 blocks (283

beds) o :

Design, consiruction, fitting-out and 2010 -

O&M of the hospital Surface ares of 2045
72,000 m® and a health centre (241 beds)

Design, constrgetion, fittmg-out and 2011 -
O&M of 3 hosprtals Surface aea of 2035
300,000 m (1 73,000 m* for the hospital

and 125 000 m"* for parkmg areas)

{2007 bedsy - ;

Construction, maintenance and 2015-
operation of the University Hospital in 2045
Toledo, with 760 beds

Spam

Australia

Spain

Spam

Canada

Mexico

Spam

Spain

Spain

17%

%

35%

5%

100%

95%

40%

43%

33%

Operabonat  Eguity Beanchsd
method

Construction  Equity Fmancral
method asset

Operational  Bquaty Rranched
method

Opetational  Equity method

Operational  Equity method

Operational ~ Equity method

Operaticnal ~ Global
consalidation

Construction  Equity method
and

Qperational

Construction  Equity method

Construction  Equity method

NfA

Financial
asset

i .
assel

Financial
asset

Fisancral

Financial
asset
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ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(CONSOLIDATED GROUP)
DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2015

Executive Summary
Income Statement Data
(Million euro)
Revenues
LEITDA
EBIT
Ordicary EBLT
EBT

Net attributable profit

Balance Sheet Data and Capital Expenditure

{ Mittion euro)
Equity
Net debt

Ordinary capital expenditure

Operating Data

Construction backlog (Million euro)
Water bachlog (Million eura))
Total wind installed capacity (MW)
Total icsialled capacity (MW)
Total production (GWh) (Jan-Dec)

Average workforce

Jan-Dec 14 Jan-Dee 1S Chg.{ %)
6,499 6,544 0.7%
1,087 1174 8 %
572 627 9.5%
233 330 41 5%
277 319 15.0%
185 207 12 1%
31-Dec-14 31-Dee-15 Cheg. %
3,613 3,754 3.9%
5,294 5.159 (2 3%}
340 223 (34.5%)
31-Dec-14 31-Dee-15 Che. %
5,693 6,722 18.1%
9358 9633 29%
7,087 7.212 18%
8,502 8619 14%
21,450 20,875 (2.7%)
33,559 32,147 (4 2%
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(Miltions of euros)

Revenues

Other revenues
Changes in inventonies of finished goods snd work m progress
Total Production Valae

Procurement
Personnel expensec
Other expenses
EBITDA

Depreciation and amortrzation
Provisions -

Tmpanment of assets value
Results on non-current assets
Other gaing or losses

EBIT

Net financial result

Exchange differences (net) -

Var. provisions financial investments

Share m resuits of assogiaies accounted for by the equity method
Variation in fair value of financial instruments

EBY

Tax on profit F =k
Profit/(loss) from Continuing Activities

Non-controlling interests
Attributable Net Profit

Revenues

(Miliions of exros)

Energy
nfrastivctme

Construction

Water

Services
Other activities
Consolidation Adjustment
TOTAL Reveaues

=

Jan-flec 14  Jan-Dec 15

Jan-Dec 14

2,200
3,727
2,627
i
691
692
(120)
6,459

6499

363
-1
6,855
-1,854
-1.275
-2,639
1,887

=367

-1
46
277

i)
207

22
188

Jan-Dee 15
2,719

3337

2,170
716
613

(125)

6543

= Growth in the Energy revenues (+23.6%) mainly as a result of:

Che.(€m)  Chg (%)
6,544 45 0.7%
247 =117 (32.0%)
3 5 (628%)
6,788 67 (1.0%)
-1,830 73 (13%)
-1,254 21 (1. 7%)
2,530 109 (4 1%)
1,174 86 B4%
510 .16 32%
-53 0 01%
20 3 16.7%
9 ) (82 6%)
27 2 wh
627 54 95%
-389 =23 61%
23 18 357%
5 0 fa
60 14 299%
0 21 (97 8%)
319 81 15.4%
43 -13 13 5%
236 28 13.8%
28 6 278%
297 2 121%
Chg. (Em}  Chg. (%)
519 23 6%
GSL (5%
(436) (17 4%)
i té e
24 35%
(79 (11 4%}
@ 35%
45 0.7%

nsolidated revenues increased by 0.7% to €6,544 million, mainly due to the combined effect of the
following factors:
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- The strong contribution from AWP which increased its business turnover by 34.7% with
reference to FY 2014.

- The good performance of the generation activity mainly due to new capacity additions in
international markets carried out during the last twelve months.

* Decrease in the Construction revenues (-17.4%) duc to less domestic and international
activity.

* Increase in the Water (+~10.0%) and Services (+3.5%) revenues.

= Decrease in the Other Activities revenues (-11.4%) due to the revenue decline of Bestinver
and Real Estate.

EBITDA
%% %
{AfilHons of euros) Jan-De¢ 14 LRITDA Jan-Dec 15 EBITDA Chg. (€m) Chg. (%)

Energy 788 72.5% 897 76.2% 109 13.8%
Infrastructure 174 159% 168 14.2% 6} {3 5%)

Construction l:3 LE/R/ 2 87 {58 T

Water

Services 21 7.6%, el e Nt 14 4905
Other activities 12a 11 5% 113 9 6% (13 (10.2%}
Consolidation adjustments (0} n‘a 3 n‘a 3 nia
TOTAL EBITDA 1.087 100 (% 1.174 100 4% 87 8.0%
Maurgin (%) 16.7% 17.9% +1.2pp

Note: EBITDA contributions calculated before consolidation adjustments.

EBITDA increased by 8.0% to €1,174 million mainly due to the strong growth of the Energy business
(+13.8%) driven by both the strong contribution from AWP and the growth registered by the
generation business in international markets.

EBITDA margin stood at 17.9%, 1.2 percentage points higher than in FY 2014,

With respect to the relative EBITDA contribution of the divisions: Energy contributed the most (76%),
followed by Construction (14%). The rest of the businesses contributed 10% of EBITDA.

EBIT
EBIT reached €627 million, a 9.6% higher than in FY 2014,

EBT
tMrllions of euros) Jan-Dec 14 Jan-Dec 15 Chg. (€m) Chg. (%)

Energy 86 198 112 129.5%
Infiastiuctuie a0 90 1 (0 1%}

Construction 35 R (i) (39.2°0)

Water

Services 7 ) g I17.0%
Other activiites 35 43 {12) (21 5%
Consolidation adjustments 2 (O 3) (134.6%)
Ordinary EBT 233 330 97 41 6%
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Extraordinaries 44
FOLAL ERT 277
Margin (%) 4.3%

an 9
319 42
49%

n/a
15 1%
+0.6pp

Ordinary EBT increased by 41.5% to €330 million vs, €233 million in FY 2014 mainly due to the EBT
increase of Energy business which improved by €112 million.

Total EBT grew by 15.0%. This lower growth rate was due to the fact that extraordinary results
registered in 2015 were €55 million lower than those of 2014.

Attributable Net Profit

Attributable net profit amounted to €207 million, # 12.1% higher than FY 2014.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Millions of euros)
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets
Financial asssis )
Goodwill
Other non-cmrent assels

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Ipventones

Accounts receivable

Other cutrent assets
Current financial assets
Cash anat Cash equivalents
Assets held for sale

CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS.
Capital - . E
Reserves
Profit attributable to eqinty hoidﬂs of the pasent
(Own Securities
EJUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
—_—F OF THE PARENT 5
w% g
g = MINORITY INTERESTS
i)
< 5 -
fed i EQUITY
g2 O
o -':‘,-:-: 8 Interest-beayrg borrowings
w8 > Other non-current Liabilities
E;.g ‘,:E:f NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
:ﬂ;i a“ Imetest-hearing borrowmgs
Lay o
;b;:“:‘ ; Trade payables
Ll Other cutrent liabstres
.I 3&»’ ’_‘f Liabiliries assqciated to assets held for sale
————— ] CURRENT LIABRILITIES

31-Pee-4
8,733

546

79

1413

16,771

1,043
1,940
281
369
1,327
412

5,372
15,143
57
3.167
185

3380

233
3513

5918
2,001
7919

LO72
2,558
660
321
4,611

31-Dec-15
8,855
369
79
1382

10555

748
1,612
236
413

431

3.74

5.895
2,008
7903

1,137
2,025
538
420
4,126

Che. t€m)
122

23
0

-32
113

-303
328
45
!
133
19

-481

82
22

113

Che. (%)
14%
43%
00%

(2 3%)

1.1%

9.0%)
(16.9%)
I Ve
11.8%
10.1%
4.6%

(8.9%)

@3%)
0.0%
26%
12.1%
(30.0%)

34%

11 7%
39%

0 4%)
0.4%
10:2%3

6.1%
(20 9%)
(18 4%)

30 7%
(10.7%)
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TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 16,143 15,777 -365 {2.3%)

Attributable Equity

ACCIONA’s attributable equity at 31 December 2015 amounted to €3,493 million, a 3.4% higher
than in December 2014.

Net Financial Debt
(Millions of euros) 3-Dec-14 31-Dec-18
(€m) % Total (€Em) % Total Chg. (Em) Chg. (%)

liieresebeanag borrawings witout 1954 70.9% 4,629 66% (324 (5 5%)
recourse

Interest-bearing borrowings with 2,036 20 19 2403 34% 367 18.0%
recourse
Total interest-bearing debt 6.990 100.8% 7.032 T3 42 6%
Cash + Cash equivalents {1,696) {1,873) a7 10.4%
Net finaxcial debt £.294 5159 (134) (2.5%)

Net financial debt amounted to €5,159 million 2.5% lower than at 31 December 2014 and the debt
ratio DFN/EBITDA fell from 4.87x as of December 2014 to 4.39x in December 2015. Such decrease
was mainly due to the cash generation during the year.

Additionally, it is worth highlighting the good performance of working capital (-€36 million) during
the year, despite the -€109 million one-off adjustment derived from RD-L9/2013 (in force since 14
July 2013) which implies the reimbursement of premiums received during the period prior to the
publication of the final remuneration parameters applicable to renewable installations (published on 10
June 2014).

Excluding this effect, financial debt would have decreased by €254 million vs. December 2014.

Financial gearing has evolved as follows:

(Millions of euros) 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15
Net debt 5,294 5,159
Geanng (Mot DebtFquity) (%o} 147% 137%
Capital Expenditure
(Millions of eures) Jap-Dec 14 Jan-De¢ 18
Energy 282 130
Infiastructe 70 80
Construction 39
Water
Services 22 12
Other activities (12) 13
Ordinary Net Investments 340 223
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Extraordmmary divestroent

Total Net Investments

(629)
(289)

P31

172

Net ordinary capital expenditure across ACCIONA’s divisions amounted to €233 million, 34.5% less
than in FY 2014, Energy represents the biggest share of the investment effort with €130 million.

Assets and liabilities associated to assets held for sale

At 31 December 2015 the only assets and liabilities held for sale correspond to ACCIONA
Windpower which, as stated in Relevant Information filed on 4 October, will be transferred to Nordex

once conditions precedent are met.

Results by Divisien

Energy

{(Millrons of euros)
Generation
Industrial. developioent and other
Revenues
Gengraiton :
Industnial, development and other
EBITDA
Margin (%)
Bal
Margin (%)

Jan-Dec 13 Yan-Dec 14

1,240
960
2200
824
(36)
788
35.8%
86
3.9%

1,329
1.390
2,719
848
49
897
33%
198
7.3%

Chg. (€m)
89
430
519
25
85
109

112

Chg. (%)
72%
44 8%
23.6%
28%
n/a
13.5%

129.5%

ACCIONA Energy revenues increased by 23.6% to €2,719 million. EBITDA increased by 13.8% to
€897 million. EBT amounted to €198 million vs. €86 million last year.

The results are mainly driven by the following factors:
s The increase shown in AWP that reached €84 million EBITDA vs. €39 million in FY 2014.

= Good performance of the generation EBITDA, which grew by 2.8% to €848 million, mainly

&

boosted by a higher international generation EBITDA, which offset the decrease in the
domestic generation EBITDA. The increase in international generation EBITDA was due to:

(v
E g - A production increase based on the new capacity added in the last twelve months.
- % - The positive effect derived from the foreign exchange rates variations mainly related to the
% % appreciation of the USD.
e 3 = The net increase of the consolidated installed capacity by 119MW in the last twelve months
E £ due to the combined effect of:
%; 5: é - The installation of 128MW of new wind capacity (30MW in Poland and 93MW in South
: s 2 Africa and 5SMW in Spain).
—i
E} .g_:.' - The reduction of 9MW cogeneration in Q1 2015.
= é At an operational level, consolidated production amounted to 17,202GWh, 2.1% lower than in FY
i 2 2014. This decrease was due to the fact that contribution at new international capacity installed in
#2 75 2015 was not able to fully compensate the lower hydro factor and, to a lesser extent, the low wind
S = rnesource in Spain during the months of November and December.
wir e )
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It is worth highlighting the significant improvement of the AWP and others EBITDA (-€85 million
relative to the same period last year), boosted by the good performance of the turbine business which
installed 931 MW vs. 762MW in FY 2014.

EBITDA from industrial activity and development

(Millions of euros) Jan-Dec 14 Jan-Dee 15 Var. (€m)
Windpower 39 84 46
Development and construction (28) 9 36
Total EBITDA Industrial & development 9 93 84

Breakdown of Installed Capacity and Production by Technology

Total Consolidated Net
31-Dec-15 Installed Produced Installed Produced Installed Produoced
MW GWh MW GWh MW GWh
Wind Spamn 4747 10,153 31470 7219 4,079 g.6l14
Wind International 2,465 7,268 2,225 6,622 1,462 4418
Usa : KSR 453 1 hED 17 i 1R
Mexico 557 2,255 557 2,255 361 1.465
Australia L i T2 el 154
Canada 18! 477 103 243 6y 189
Ttaly 1] f e - {4 in
Portugal 3% ilo 135 116 47 k1Y
India 3 2i) i 125 IR s Yy
Poland 101 85 1H 135 67 123
Costa Rica = i Ads Hiw £y 25
Greece 30 303 30 303 32 197
Chite 1% i i 10
South Africa <5 1 45 Hi 30 74
Croatia 3 14 1 o { e
Hungary 24 48 0 ] 12 24
‘Tatal Wind 7212 17,421 5,695 13,841 5.541 13.032
Hvdro special regime 888 2,197 13 2,197 888 2.197
Biomass 61 408 61 408 59 391
Solar PV 143 307 97 214 35 116
Solar Thermoelectric 314 542 314 542 262 455
Total ather technologies 1407 3454 1,361 3,361 1.265 3,16)
Total Energy 8,619 20875 1085 17,202 6.806 16,192
Total Spain 5.950 13,195 4873 10,262 5,248 11,589
Total International 2,669 7,680 2,383 6,941 1,557 4,603
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Annex 2 shows greater detail on MWSs and productions.

Infrastructure
(Millions of eurns) _Jan-Dec 14 Jan-Deg 15 Chg. (ém) Chg. (%)
Construction 2,627 2,170 {456) (17 4%)
Water 409 451 41 16.0%
Services 691 716 24 35%
Revenues 3,727 3.337 (391) (10.5%}
Coristruction 117 102 16  (13.8%)
Water 35 35 0 02%
Services 21 31 10 49.9%
EBITDA - 173 168 6) (3.5%)
Margin (%) 4.6% 5.0%
EBT ., 90 90 0 (B1%)
Margin (%) 2.4% 27%

ACCIONA Infrastructure division includes the operations of Construction, Water and Services under a
single division. This structure brings the following benefits:

Common and integrated international structure to support Construction, Water and Service
business development.

A single and more comprehensive global offer to clients.
Additional business opportunities from synergies among business units.
More efficient international organizational structure to support the business.

Focus on accountability and risk control through specialization, technical excellence and
consistent execution.

A. Construction

£EZ
ES

STABE

-

RESADELA CUE

[y

=

e
t]

-

Trasivccsia-Intérpints Jurada

M1

(Millions of exros) Jan-Dec 14 Jan-Dec 15 Chg, (€m) Chg. (%)
Construction & Engineering 2,517 2,064 (452) (18 0%)
Concessions 110 106 (2] (3 5%}
Revenues 2,627 2,170 (456) (17.4%)
Construction & Engmeering 7 52 (25} (32 ‘f%)
Concessions 40 49 9 223%
EBITDA 117 101 -14 (13.8%)
 Margin (%) 4.5% 4.7%
EBT . 55 a3 (22) {39.5%)
Margin (%) 21% 1.5%

iNE 661

Revenues amounted to €2,170 million, 17.4% lower than in FY 2014 mainly due to a drop in the
levels of the construction and engineering activities in Spain and in the international markets.

EBITDA decreased by 13.8% to €102 million with a margin of 4.7% (vs. 4.5% in FY 2014).
The concession business EBITDA grew by 22.3%.
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Construction Backlog

At 31 December 2015 the construction backlog amounted to €6,722 million, an 18.1% higher than in
December 2014. The international backlog reached an overall weight of 73% out of the total backlog
vs. 64% a year ago.

Aggregated new works awarded during 2015 amounted to €3.565 million, which in net terms at 31
December amounted to €3,094 million’ (83% international). It is worth mentioning the awards of’

= Construction of one of the biggest dams in Canada located in British Columbia.
= The design and construction of a 1 17Km electricity transmission network in Mexico.

=  The second phase of Line 1 of the Quito Metro. The contract includes the construction of a
22Km long tunnel and thirteen new stations.

»  The design, construction and operation of the 41Km ring motorway in the city of Toowoomba,
(Australia).

= A twin railway tunnel in Norway which will join the cities of Oslo and Ski.

The construction of the Kathu Solar complex (100MW of Solar Thermoelectric) in South Afiica.

{Millions of euros) 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 Chg. (%) Weight (%5)
Civil Works Spain 1,521 1,327 (13%) 20%
Crvil Winks Internatonal 3153 4245 35% 63%
Total Civil Works 4,674 5,571 19% 83%
Non Residential Spain 312 240 (23%) 4%
Non Residential International 265 174 (34%) 3%
Total Non-Resideniial 577 415 (28%) 6%
Residential Spain 26 12 (54%) 0%
Residential Intemattonal 34 49 46% 1%
Total Residential 60 62 2% 1%
ANA Developmient Spain o (V] 0% (%
ANA Development International 19 5 (72%} 0%
Total ANA Develapment 19 6 {709%%) 8%
Other* 363 669 84% 10%
TOTAL 5.693 6,722 18% 10 %
Total Spain 2,062 1,783 (14%) 27%
Teral International 3631 4,939 36% 73%

* “Other” includes: Auxiliary construction, Engineering and Other.

Concessions

At 31 December ACCIONA held a portfolio of 23 concessions with a book value of €1,332 million
(€444 million “equity” and €888 million net debt).
Annex 3 contains the details on the concessions portfolio at 31December 2015.

B. Water
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2 1t includes the share percentage of debt of concessions accounted for using the equity method (€570 million)
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(&filians of euros) Jan-Dec 14 Jan-Dec 15 Chg. (Fm) Chg. (%)
Revenues 409 451 41 10.0%
ERITDA s is 0 0.2%

Margin (%) 8.40% 7.7%
EBT 28 41 13 41.3%
Margin (%) 6.8% 9.1%

The Water division increased its turnover by 10.0% mainly due to the improvement of the design and
construction activities and the operation and maintenance at an international level.

The Water division registered EBITDA of €35 million in line with FY2014 results and EBT increased
by 47.3% reaching €41 million.

Water Backlog

Aggregated new works awarded during 2015 amounted to €814 million, which in net terms at 31
December amounted to €723 million' (94% international). It is worth mentioning the awards of:

» The design, construction and later operation and maintenance of a purification plant in
Bucaramanga (Colombia).

* The design, construction and later operation and maintenance of two desalination plants in
Qatar.

Annex 4 shows detail of water concessions under the SIC 29 at 31 December 2015.

{Millions of eurosj 31-Dec-14 31.-Dec-15 Chg. (%)

D&C 336 373 1%
O&M 9,022 9,057 0%
TOTAL 9,358 9,630 3%
{Millions of euros) 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 Weight (%)
Spatn 8377 8,241 86%
International 981 1,389 14%
TOTAL 9358 9,630 106%

Annex 4 details the water concessions portfolio subject to IFRIC 12 at 31 December 2015.

C. Services

(Miliions of euros) Jan-Dec 14 Jan-Bec 15 Chg. (Em} Chg. (%)
Revenues 691 716 24 3.5%
EBITDA n 31 16 49,949

Margin (%) 3.0% 4.3%
EBT 7 16 8 117.0%
Margin (%) 1.0% 22%

ACCIONA Service encompasses a series of services: airport handling services, facility services,
logistic services, waste management and others.
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The division reported an increase in revenues of 3.5% reaching €716 million. EBITDA amounted to
€31 million, 49.9% higher than in FY 2014 as a result of a considerable improvement in in the facility
services activity margin.

It is to be stressed that subsequent to year-end, ACCIONA Airport Services was granted a 7 year

handling licence at Diisseldorf Airport as from 1April 2016.

Other Activities
(Miilions of euros) Jan-Dec 14 Jan-Dec 15 Chg. (€m) Chg. (%)

Trasmediterranea 417 424 7 17%
Real estate 94 51 (42} (452%)
Bestinver 135 9 43 (33.0%)
Winery 40 4 0 12%
Corp. & other 6 7 0 64%
Revenues 692 613 (19) (114%)
Trasmediterrénea 30 41 11 376%
Real estate 3 6 4 144 9%
Bestinver 96 67 (29 {30.2%)
Winery 5 5 0 42%
Corp. & other 3 6 1 {13.0%)
EBITDA 126 113 a3y (10 2%)

Margin (%) 18.1% 18.4%
ERY i 55 43 {12) {21.5%)

Margin (%} 79% 7.0%

In FY 2015 this division - which includes Trasmediterranea, Real Estate, Bestinver, Wineries and
others - reported revenues of €613 million, 11.4% lower than in FY 2014.

The EBITDA decreased to €113 million, 10.2% less than in FY 2014 levels due to the decrease in
Bestinver.

Trasmediterranea:

Trasmediterranea improved its EBITDA in €11 million due to higher revenues, the improvement of its
operations’ efficiency and lower costs for fuel and staff

During this period, the number of passengers, vehicles and lane metres increased by 3.7%, 0.4% and
3.4% respectively.
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Jan-Dec 14 Jan-Dec 15 Chyr. (%)
Passengers served 2,363,924 2451323 37%
Cargo hendled (tane metres) 5,466,305 5,651.087 34%
Vehicles 542,597 544,999 04%
ﬂéal Estate:

The decrease in revenues is mainly due to the change of the consolidation method of a subsidiary
which is now accounted using the equity method.

157




TRANSLATION

EBITDA increased by €4 million to €6 million. Such improvement derives from the change of
strategy towards rental activity which generates lesser revenues with a higher margin than the
development of homes for sale.

31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 Chy. (%)

Housing stock 535 316 (53.9%)

Out of the 316 units, 104 are international units.

Bestinver:

Bestinver’s assets under management stood at €5,106 million at 31 December 2015. It reported an
EBITDA of €67 million.
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MATERIAL INFORMATION, DIVIDEND AND SHARE DATA
Significant communications to the stock market
26 February 2015: Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration for the Year 2014

On 26 February 2015 the company notified the Spanish National Securities Commission of
(CNMV) the annual report on directors' remuneration for the year 2014 containing the Shares

Delivery Plan and Performance Shares.
25 March 2015: ACCIONA signs a syndicated loan with banks worth €1,800 million.

ACCIONA Financiacién Filiales, S.A., signed with a syndicate of banks, integrated by 19
financial institutions (10 Spanish 9 Foreign), a financing agreement totaling €1,800 million.

- The financing was divided in two tranches (Tranche A for a maximum of €360 million and
Tranche B for a maximum of €1,440 million) maturing 25 March 2020. The two tranches will
be used to refinance part of the group's debt, general corporate and investment expenses as
well as the group’s liquidity needs.
The finance contract signed was guaranteed by ACCIONA S.A.
20 April 2015: Substitution plan of variable remuneration for ACCIONA shares
ACCIONA informs on the approval of a substitution plan to replace variable remuneration for
ACCIONA shares, aimed to ACCIONA’s management and its group.
7 May 2015: Official announcement and submission of proposal of the Annual General

Meeting
On 7 May 2015, the company informed to the CNMV, of the Annual General Meeting

announcement for 10 June 2015 for its first call, or 11 June 2015 for its second one and
submitted the proposal of agreements.

= 1% Jure 2015: Annual General Meeting — Approval of Agreements

On 11 June 2015, the Annual General Meeting approved, among others, the following agreements:

To approve a €2 dividend per share (or greater amount fixed by the board and its members
with delegated powers in case of treasury shares existence) to be paid as per 2 July 2015.

To appoint Ms. Ana Sainz de Vicufia Bemberg as independent non-executive Director.

To consider assessed and reported the Shares Delivery Plan and Performance Shares 2014-
2019 and substitution plan according to the report of the Board of Directors, as well as
increase the maximum number of available shares for the Shares Delivery Plan and

Performance Shares 2014-2019 in 100,000 shares, without prejudice to subsequent increases,
if proposed by the Board and approved by the General Meeting.

To amend the articles of association and regulations of the General Shareholders Meeting and
the Board to adapt them to the amendments of the Corporate Enterprises Act relating to

ada de INGLES

corporate governance.
To approve, for information purposes, the Directors Remuneration Report for the year 2014.

To approve the 2014 Sustainability Report.
23 June 2015: ACCIONA informs on the Resolution of Catalonia Superior Court of

Justice (TSJC) relative to the ATLL Contract

The TSJC has partially ratified the administrative appeal proceedings filed by the
concessionaire ATLL concessionaire of the Generalitat de Catalunya and ACCIONA Agua,
annulling the ruling of the Catalan Contractual Administrative Agency on 2 January, 2013

regarding the exclusion of the bid made by the consortium led by ACCIONA.

Seucsiantdrprete juy

Tr

159




TRANSLATION

In addition, the Court considers the existence of flaws in the tender procedure not attributable
to tenderers, which will lead to its nullity.

- The resolution can be appealed before the Supreme Court.
= 24 June 2015: ACCIONA informs on the sale of 1.34% of ACCIONA S.A.

On behalf of ACCIONA, S.A., Fidentiis conducted a placement, between national and
international qualified investors of a package of 768,184 treasury shares, representing 1.34%
of its capital at a price of €69.19 per share.

* 3 July 2013: The Company announces the signing of a liquidity contract

- ACCIONA signed on 2 July 2015 a liquidity agreement with Bestinver Sociedad de Valores,
S.A., to manage its treasury shares. The stock trades performed by Bestinver on ACCIONA’s
shares under this contract will be in the Spanish stock exchange and the intended purpose will
be:

i.  Increase the liquidity of transactions.
il.  The regularity in the stock market price.

The liquidity contract will have duration of twelve months, extendable tacitly for an equal
period. The number of shares intended for the account associated to the contract is 48,000 and
the amount allocated to the cash account is €3,300,000.

= 28 July 2015: ACCIONA informs that it has commissioned Morgan Stanley the analysis
of strategic alternatives of the real estate business

- ACCIONA commissioned Morgan Stanley the analysis of strategic alternatives for part of the
real estate business. Currently the company is still considering alternatives which could
conclude on the possible IPO or private placement of a minority stake.

* 4 October 2015: ACCIONA informs about the agreement reached for the transfer of
ACCIONA Windpower to Nordex and for ACCIONAs acquisition of 29.9% of Nordex's
shares

- ACCIONA entered into an agreement with Nordex by virtue of which Nordex shall acquire
the totality of the corporate capital of ACCIONA Windpower, ACCIONA shall in turn receive
as compensation:

@) 16,100,000 new issued shares of Nordex representing 16.6% of its corporate
capital for a per share value of €26 totalling €418.6 million;

(ii) a cash payment of €366.4 million, resulting in an Enterprise Value of €785
million.

- Additionally, ACCIONA S.A. has entered into an agreement with Momentum-Capital
Vermdgensverwaltungsgesellschaft mbH and Ventus Venture Fund Gmbh & Co. Beteiligungs
KG for the acquisition of 12,897,752 existing Nordex’s shares representing 13.3% of its
corporate capital for a total price of €335.34 million which represent €26 per share. Once both
transactions have been completed ACCIONA shall hold a 29.9% shareholding in Nordex's
corporate capital and become the strategic anchor shareholder of the new company.

- The transaction is subject to certain conditions precedent. The first estimation of the future
capital gains would amount to €675m. It is expected that the transaction will be closed in the
first four months of 2016.

Dividend

On 11 June 2015 ACCIONA’s AGM approved the payment of a dividend of €2 per share against 2014
results.
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Share data and share price performance
ACCIONA Share Price Evolution (€/share)

[There follows a diagram that shows the share price evolution from January 2015 to December

2015.]

Key Share Data

Price at 31 December 2015 (€/share)

Price #t 1 January 2013 (€/share)
Low in FY 2015 (02/01/2015)
High m FY 2015 (03/07:2015)

Average daily trading (shares)
Average daily nading (€)
Nufnber of shares

Market caprtalisation at 31 December 2015 (€ mihons)

Share capital information

3&-Dec-15

6330

56.20

5424

8619

246,695
17,294 857
57,259,550
4,52%

At 31 December 2015 the share capital of ACCIONA amounted to €57,259,550 divided mto

57,259,550 shares of €1 of nominal value each.

At 31 December 2015, Acciona, S.A. and its subsidiary Finanzas Dos, S.A. held 320,460 treasury
shares, equivalent to 0.5595% of the share capital at that date. The acquisition cost of said shares came

to 20,238 thousand euros. -

Movement in treasury shares in FY 2015 was as follows:
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Opening balance
Additons
Retired

Liquidity contract
Additions
Retired

Other movements

End balance

2015

Number of
shares

534,499
3,428.656
(3,391.297)
37,359
615,935
(BT.A33)
(251,398)
320,460

Cost
28,895
247,091
(244,121)
2970
42,747
(54 374)
(11,627)
20,238
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Subsequent events

Last 21 January 2016, upon fulfilment of the conditions precedent, shares representing an additional
37.05% of ATLL Concessionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A., owned by the shareholder
Aigiies de Catalunya, S.A., were sold to the shareholder Gestio Catalana D’Aigues, S.A., a subsidiary
of the Acciona Group. According to the provisions of the sale operation described above, both parties
agreed to assign to Gestio Catalana D"Aigues, S.A. 95% of the rights and obligations included in the
loan that the selling sharcholder, namely, Aigiies de Catalunya, S.A, as lender, held vis-a-vis ATLL
Concessionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A., as loanee, and that had been subscribed on 21
December 2012. The price to buy the shares amounted to 19 million euros and the amount of the loan
assigned to Gestio Catalana D"Aigues, S.A. amounts to 55 million euros.

At 31 December 2015, the stakeholding of the Acciona Group in ATLL Concessionaria de la
Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A. amounted to 39%, with the stakeholding being consolidated under the
equity method. The stakeholding of the Acciona Group after the purchase and sale operation referred
to in the paragraph above stands at 76.05% of the share capital
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Main Risks associated with the ACCIONA Group’s business activities

The risk scenarios considered in the ACCIONA Risk Management System have been classified into

four groups: financial, strategic, operational and unforeseeable, with the first two groups identified by
the Group’s executives as those presenting a higher risk profile.

1. Economic and financial risks:

These risks are mainly fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and financial markets, changes in
the prices of raw materials, liquidity, cash flow, late payment or loss of clients.

In order to mitigate the exchange rate risk, ACCIONA engages currency derivatives and exchange-rate

hedging instruments to cover significant future transactions and cash flows in line with the tolerated
risk thresholds.

Interest rate risk is particularly material with regard to the funding of infrastructure projects, in
concession contracts, in the construction of wind farms or solar plants and other projects maturing in
the longer term where the variation in interest rates has a strong impact on their profitability. It is
mitigated by hedging transactions involving the contracting of derivatives.

The risk of fluctuations in prices of raw materials, when stockpiling for construction work and
particularly fuel for transportation, is fundamentally mitigated in the short term by specific hedging
transactions generally involving the contracting of derivatives.

As regards credit and liquidity risks, the Group negotiates operations solely and exclusively with
solvent third parties and requires sufficient assurances to mitigate the risk of financial losses in the
event of any non-compliance. It also constantly monitors the forecasts and the current levels of cash
flows to match these against the maturity profiles for financial assets and liabilities.

2. Strategic risks:

ACCIONA minimises these risks through its own strategy and business model by applying adequate
sectoral and geographic diversification of its businesses; the performance of exhaustive market
research, surveys of competitors and the countries in which its activities are carried out, as well as
through the encouragement of Research and Development,
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3. Operational risks:

In each business area, specific systems are established to cover all the business requirements, to

systematise and document processes, and to manage quality, operations, planning and financial
control.

order to mitigate the risks in the procurement process, controls have been established to favour free

mpetition and transparency in the processes and to avoid violating ACCIONA’s commitment to
ical behaviour in these processes.

ch year, ACCIONA draws up a map of the risks with its critical suppliers, analysing the main risks

its supply chain from the perspectives of economics, the environment, the prevention of
o¢cupational hazards, the activity and the country of origin.

Risks derived from irregular behaviour. ACCIONA has put in place a Code of Conduct establishing
the basic principles and commitments that must be respected and complied with by executives and
employees of the divisions as well as by suppliers and third parties working with the Company in the
exercise of their activities, A whistleblowing channel has been communicated at all levels of the
Organization, and enables the reporting, in total confidence, of any irregular conduct related to
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accounting, control or auditing issues as well as any violation or breach of the ethical behaviour
outlined in the Code.

In September 2011, the Board of Directors resolved to subscribe Acciona, S.A. to the Code of Good
Tax Practices in order to combine and complement the control, prevention and regulatorv compliance
systems already in place to reduce the material tax risks and to prevent behaviour capable of
generating these issues.

4, Unforeseeable Risks:

Environmental risks. — ACCIONA has its own Corporate System in place for the Management of
Environmental Crises. This system includes the measures to be followed and the responsibilities and
resources necessary for the proper handling of a crisis situation due to any incident arising at the
facilities owned or operated by the Company and entailing an impact on the environment.

ACCIONA consolidated its initiatives regarding environment risk management, focusing its efforts on
identifying and implementing measures to mitigate the most relevant risks. In 2015 ACCIONA
prepared a document to deal specifically with those risks for all the group divisions.

Occupational hazards. — The management of Employee Health and Risk Prevention is one of the
priorities of all the Divisions and lines of business: a large part of our activities are included among
those considered by legislation to be high risk (especially the Infrastructure and Energy divisions).
Prevention activities are carried out through Management Systems under international premises
certified under OHSAS 18001 standard.

Sustainability

ACCIONA deploys its sustainability strategy through the 2015 Sustainability Master Plan (PDS). PDS§
2010-2015 encompasses initiatives and goals in the areas of Innovation, Context, Society, People,
Value Circle and Good Governance, as well as commitments about Stakeholders, Dissemination and
Leadership, and Accountability.
Some of the challenges set by ACCIONA for 2015 were, among others:

e To achieve a total of 500 million euros in R&D+I for the 2010-2015 period.

¢ To improve the ratio of CO, emissions avoided by 15% in respect of the CO; emissions
generated (base 2009).

® To reduce the work-accident frequency rate by 20% in respect of 2011.

e To implement the social impact management method for all the classified projects in the
strategic divisions.

¢ To improve the sustainability performance of the supply chain and to encourage and
promote responsible procurement through bidding processes that incorporate
sustainability criteria.

» To implement gradually good governance enhancement measures.

# To consolidate ACCIONA’s position as a benchmark in sustainability.

= To consider the expectations of the Company’s main stakeholders in the management of
its sustainability practices.
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¢ To report transparently and rigorously to its main stakeholders, in accordance with the
highest international standards, on the Company’s performance in terms of its
sustainability practices.

Since 2009, sustainability-related actions and undertakings are promoted by the Board of Directors’
Sustainability Committee, the organ in charge of supervising and approving the goals of the
Sustainability Master Plan. The various sustainability committees created in the main divisions are, in
turn, the route for bringing sustainability closer to business areas. Their function is to drive and
monitor specific initiatives in these divisions within the PDS framework. Another route to drive the
implementation of the Company’s sustainability strategy and the achievement of its targets was, once
again, to link part of the executives’ and managers’ bonuses to the achievement of sustainability

targets,

In the course of 2015 ACCIONA gradually defined a new sustainability strategy to cover the period up
to 2020. For this, the Company assessed the achievements and challenges experienced in the five years
of implementation of the previous PDS; it implemented thorough benchmarking on the most advanced
practices affecting the areas thereof; and consulted with a number of external experts in sustainability,
energy, infrastructures and water. As a result, the new Plan up to 2020 is structured around strategic
and operational targets, applicable to the entire organization, with specifications for the various lines
of business.

In the financial year ACCIONA had an active presence in different initiatives and international
organizations, mainly working for the launch of the 2030 Agenda, with the definition of Sustainable
Development Objectives by the United Nations, and the Climate Change Summit held in Paris
(COP21). The Company is part, inter alia, of initiatives and organisations such as The Prince of
Wales’s Corporate Leaders Group, the UN Global Compact LEAD, the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, Sustainable Energy for All (SE4ALL), the World Economic Forum and
CEO Climate Leadership Group.

Furthermore, the Company consolidated the implementation of its social impact management
methodology in 2015 by increasing the risk study phases and the social impact surveys throughout the
course of its projects, as well as the scope in relation to the number of projects subject to this
management model. In this way, over 45 projects in different countries (Australia, Brazil, Cape Verde,
Chile, Colombia, Ecuador, Egypt, Spain, Gabon, Italy, Mexico, Norway, Peru, Poland, Qatar, South
Africa and Trinidad & Tobago) are now at different stages in the implementation of this methodology.
ese projects are very diverse, such as, for example, the construction of roads, bridges, dams, water

%‘ atment stations, sewers and wind farms, operation of desalination facilities, and construction and
-3 aintenance of hospitals.

;r& I must be noted too that in 2015 ACCIONA completed a diagnostic process regarding human rights,
= following the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights, with the purpose of learning

i
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apout the main risks in this matters by business and country. In addition, corporate regulations and
Gprocedures were analysed, with different international standards being taken for reference, to assess
Pthe controls in place in the organisation in this respect.
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¢ advances seen in the fulfilment of these sustainability targets and actions carried out during 2015,
together with the challenges faced by the Company, are described in detail in the Sustainability
nnual Report and on the corporate website (http://www.acciona.es/sostenibilidad).

e
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Analysis of materiality in sustainability matters

n order to maintain an attitude of continuous monitoring of new trends and challenges in
sustainability matters, and to delve deeper into the social, environmental and governance aspects of
relevance for the business, ACCIONA has drawn up a materiality survey.
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In 2014, the analysis of materiality identified and prioritised relevant matters for each of ACCIONA’s
main lines of business (Energy, Construction, Water, Services and Industry) and their impact
throughout the value chain. In addition, a geographical criterion was applied by evaluating the risk
involved in each matter identified in the countries where ACCIONA operates.

In 2015 the analysis of materiality was updated on the basis of the study from the previous financial
year, and the issues identified as relevant were studied in depth and expanded with current topics
according to various sources: international institutions, entities from different sectors and press news.
In addition, as a novelty, in 2015 the relevant issues were identified, updated and prioritised on the
basis of the macro-trends analysed in the course of the design of the new Master Plan for
Sustainability for each of ACCIONA’s line of business. To design this Plan, expert advice was sought
and significant documents at global and sector levels were analysed, for each line of business.

The analysis process made it possible to create a matrix with the material issues by business on the
basis of the relevance of each issue for the Company and its stakeholders.

As regards the key issues identified by ACCIONA’s lines of business, the most relevant issue for
Energy, Water, Construction and Industry was “Social impact and dialogue with the local
communities”. “Mitigation and adaptation to climate change” appears as highly relevant for Energy
and Services. As for the “Ethics and compliance” issue, it is highly relevant in the Construction,
Industrial, water and Services businesses.

ualitv, Environment

For ACCIONA, the fight against Climate Change, the sustainable use of Natural Resources and the
protection of Biodiversity make up the principal thrusts of its environmental strategy.

In 2015 the Company consolidated its position as a leading company in the fight against climate
change, opting for renewable technologies, reducing and compensating its emissions and seeking
innovating solutions that will place the Company at the avant-garde of the most advanced
environmental standards.

These efforts were acknowledged by the main international benchmarks for transparency and
environmental behaviour in 2015:

CDP (formerly Carbon Disclosure project):

International organisation representing 822 major institutional investors with assets worth $95 billion
and that require environmental data about the companies they rank:

- CDP gave ACCIONA the highest possible score at world level, both for Transparency and
Leadership in the action against climate change’. The Company was awarded the Record
Score of 100A rating.

CDP also granted ACCIONA, for the third year running, the highest rating as Sustainable
Supplier, with the Company now listed on the exclusive list that recognises globally only 2%
of the assessed companies as suppliers of sustainable products and services.

3 For the fifth year running ACCIONA achieved the highest rating for performance vis-a-vis climate change, thus joining The
Climate "A" list. For environmental transparency, it achieved a score of 100 out of 100, heading the Carbon Disclosure
Leadership Index (CDLI;
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As regards water management, in 2015 ACCIONA was recognised by CDP as a world leader, it being
the only Sparish utility and one of the only two in the world that achieved the highest rating under the
CDP programme related to water management. This programme, in which ACCIONA participated
voluntarily, assesses the responsible use of water in terms of consumption reduction, transparency,
improvement targets, governance, strategy, extension of commitment to suppliers and other

stakeholders, as well as management of the risks and opportunities associated with water resources.
Dow Jones Sustainability Index World:

- ACCIONA obtained the highest score in Biodiversity and Electricity generation based on

renewable energies policies, achieving an overall environmental score higher than 98% of all
the electricity companies assessed.

The Company’s main figures in environmental matters in 2015 were:

e 17.2 million tonnes of CO, avoided.

¢ 0.6 million tonnes of CO, generated. ACCIONA has reduced by 45.7% the emissions

generated in its production activities since 2009 (the Company’s 2015 Master Plan for
Sustainability base year).

e. ACCIONA has reduced its energy intensity (energy consumed versus sales ratio) by 27%

since 2009 (the Company’s 2015 Master Plan for Sustainability base year). For fossil-based
energy intensity, the drop is 55.3%.

¢ As for water, the Company’s balance sheet is clearly favourable for the environment, with a
positive global water footprint of over 491 million cubic metres, a figure equivalent to the
annual domestic consumption of 6 million inhabitants.

21% of the Company’s total water consumption comes from reused or recycled water.

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions were calculated for the second year running for 100% of
the supply chain, i.e., 28,000 suppliers. With this pioneering action, ACCIONA shares its
commitment to fight climate change, developing SCO2PE by ACCIONA, a programme for
collaboration with suppliers to promote emission reductions on the supply chain.

TERESA DE LA CUESTA BERNI‘\LDEZ
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ACCIONA has also pioneered the measurement of water consumption of all its suppliers.
ACCIONA has measured total water consumption associated with the activity of all its
suppliers in 75 countries and has identified the 500 suppliers that induced 70% of total
consumption on the supply chain. Thanks to this initiative, the Company has become the first
major Spanish Company and one of the first companies in the world to analyse water
consumption on 100% of its supply chain. The study carried out has made it possible for
ACCIONA to learn, amongst other variables, the percentage of water consumption on the
chain of suppliers related to direct suppliers; to identify those that consume water more
intensively; to verify what supply activities are being more intensive in terms of water

consumption in water-risk countries; or to identify the ACCIONA’s activities with more
consumption relevance within the supply chain.

Strengthening of environmental risk management. Design of two documents about analysis of
risks associated with water and climate change, in order to study in depth these aspects, which
are highly relevant to the Company and at world level. These analyses were extended to the

entire supply chain of ACCIONA. In addition, design of the corporate regulations on

environmental risk management and three related procedures (environmental responsibility,
climate change and water).
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e Promotion of initiatives within the framework of the Biodiversity Compensation and
Improvement Programme.

¢ Promotion of environmental offsetting services, with the organisation of carbon footprint
neutral events for both its clients and for its own events, such as, for example, ACCIONA’s
General Shareholders’ Meeting.

ACCIONA has put in place an organisational structure that facilitates the integration of environmental
and quality variables into the operations of its businesses and guarantees enforcement of the policies,
principles and strategies related to these matters.

This structure has been strengthened through the Training efforts made by the Company, which have
contributed to the growth of continuous improvement in the qualification of its professionals and their
active participation in an environment-focused culture. ACCIONA’s employees received 34,618 hours
in environmental training in 2015.

In addition, 2015 saw the launch of CACCIONA — Advanced Environmental Course, taken by over
4,359 people, with 3,064 qualifying as supported by Fundacion General de la Universidad de Alcald.
The participating groups were employees, suppliers, education centres and different Foundations that
support groups with disabilities or that risk social exclusion, such as ONCE, PRODIS o EXIT.

As regards impact management, ACCIONA has a basic management tool for the main environment-
related problems, under the name of PLAN 10°, which in 2015 meant implementation of 111
improvement measures aimed to prevent and minimise the impacts associated with each problem
recorded.

Progress has also been made in the implementation and certification of quality management systems
and environment management systems in all ACCIONA divisions, with in-depth analysis of the new
requirements under ISO 9001:2005 and ISO 14001:2005 standards (quality and environment,
respectively), as published in September, to make the transition thereto quickly and efficiently.

ACCIONA Energy implemented and certified for the first time its quality management systems and
environment management systems under ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 standards in Chile, Costa Rica and
South Africa. ACCIONA Construction certified its activity in Panama under both standards.

These systems permit process-level management, considering all environmental aspects related to our
activities in all the development phases, with an approach based on continuous improvement. Also, the
new ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 versions (published in September 2015) reinforce, amongst other
aspects, the risk-based approach, the approach based on the life cycle of products/services, the control
of the supply chain, the strategic environmental management, and communication with stakeholders,
aspects on which ACCIONA is already at work.

The scope of the energy management system (ISO 50001) has increased in ACCIONA Water, with
new centres and activities being certified in 2015, so the group’s commitment to energy efficiency has
continued.

Mention must be made of the first implementation of the EMAS regulations (Environmental
Management and Audit Community System) in ACCIONA, specifically in ACCIONA Environment,
at its Madrid offices and for the park and garden maintenance Service in the city of Ledn.

The percentages of ACCIONA’s revenue certified under [SO 9001 and ISO 14001 amounted to 92%
and 90%, respectively (3% more than in 2014).
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Environment-related figures for 2015

The environmental investments and expenditure made by the ACCIONA Group in 2015 covered the
following items:

e Measures fo minimise environmental impact

e Environmental research, development and innovation

e Environmental prevention

® Personnel

Investments in plant, property and equipment to avoid impacts and protect the
environment

Environment advice and consultancy

Treatment of waste water and drinking water
e Other

In 2015, environmental expenditure amounted to 266 million euros, and investments, to 116 million
euros, which placed the company’s global environmental activity at 382 million euros.

The greatest efforts were made in the areas of waste water treatment, environmental prevention and
environmental impact minimising measures.

Innovation

Every year Acciona challenges its innovative capacity so as to create value in products and services
through technology differentiation, anticipating the clients’ needs and requirements. Acciona relies on

Innovation as the main tool that guarantees sustainability, competitive advantages and improved

‘m_ efficiency in all the lines of business.

In 2015, Acciona increased the Group’s effort in Innovation, having reached the highest figure in its
history, putting this Innovation figure up to 180.4M euros, developed in 141 projects. 45.8% of the

|

™~ wn Group’s total for Innovation is already obtained outside Spain.
FonY —
= 2 Acciona continues to opt for other state-of-the-art technologies, as it understands the advances that are
= ] gradually taking place in the field of loT — Internet of things, mobility, Big Data, Advanced Analytics
= s or digitisation. Business initiatives have developed that place ACCIONA at the avant-garde of
=t © Innovation. In addition, strategic agreements have been renewed and extended with various
3 - iversiti d technological centres of international repute
"'_-_-,_':; = e universities and tecnnolog pute.
‘;:J 95‘_ Z | The European Investment Bank (EIB) approved ACCIONA’s Innovation programme for the four-year
:.T_’a g period 2013-2016, through the funding of 50% of the programme, with the granting of a loan for 120
o = million euros. In 2015 the first two annual amounts were justified, for 206.4 million euros, which
% i:.s largety exceeds the 50% of the bi-annual amount to justify.
& T
w3 ACCIONA’s position remains steady in the most important innovation rankings. The “2015 EU
%E‘ ;‘?_ ndustrial R&D Investment Scoreboard” published by the European Commission’s IRI (Economics of
L=

ndustrial Research and Innovation) ranks ACCIONA at the 5th place among Spanish firms and at no.
144 in Europe in terms of the effort made in R&D+1.
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On the international context, Strategy &, strategic consultancy firm of PwC, in its worldwide
innovation ranking, based on a methodology selecting the top 1000 companies with the highest
R&D+I figures (only 8 Spanish companies appear on the list), ranks ACCIONA at number 468 on the
world ranking; ACCIONA is the 5" Spanish company.

Compliance with the Strategic Innovation Plan defined in 2014 fulfilled a milestone in ACCIONA’s
R&D&I strategic management, the outcome of which is an increased capacity for innovation focused
on its businesses and activities.

Acciona’s Innovation Policy continues to obtain international recognition:

v' OBRA CEMEX award to the Development of Industrial Works and Special Prize for
Innovation in Construction Processes and techniques for the construction of the wind farms
Ventika and Ventika II, located in the municipal district of General Bravo, Nuevo Leén.

v’ Infrastructure 360° Prize, awarded by the Inter-American development Bank to recognise
sustainability in infrastructure projects implemented in Latin America and the Caribbean
region. The Project awarded the prize was the Eurus wind farm, a facility with 250.5
megawatts (MW) located in the state of Oaxaca, Mexico.

In Spain, Acciona received the Fundacion Torres Quevedo 14th Award (Cantabria University) to
Entrepreneurial Collaboration, for the Group’s trajectory of collaboration in Innovation and support of
the Research Groups at Cantabria University.

ACCIONA collaborates with entrepreneurs, start-ups and suppliers, helping their innovations to reach
the market thanks to the group’s procurement policy. In 2015 this initiative carried out in the last few
years was awarded the “Premio Comprendedor” by Fundacidén Empresa y Sociedad.

ACCIONA’s commitment to innovation is reflected in its R&D&I management System, certified
under UNE 166.002: 2014 standard, which was amended in 2014 and made Acciona respond and

adapt in record time. In 2015 the Company underwent successfully the audit for maintenance of the
certification issued by AENOR.

[Diagram: It shows the trend of the figure for innovation from 2006 to 2015.]

Short-term Forecast

The wotld economic activity continued to stow down in the course of 2015. According to the TMF,
2015 is expected to close at a year-on-year growth rate of 3.1%. The brake on growth emerges
basically from the gradual slowdown and rebalancing of activity in China, which is getting further and
further way from investment and industry to focus on consumption and services, the fall in energy
prices and other raw materials, in particular oil, and the gradual hardening of the monetary policy in
the United States, which contrasts with the policies of the other advanced economies, which opt for
following much more flexible lines.

Oil prices played a significant role in 2015, with a huge impact on the global economy, due mainly to
the dramatic falls in the last few months of the year. The main reason for the non-stop fall in oil prices
is based on an excess in offer on the market after production was increased by OPEP, which means
that the global production of oil is higher than consumption. First, the fall in oil prices has come along
with significant financial tensions directly affecting internal demand in the exporting economies. On
the other hand, the drop in prices has reduced extraction investments, which no doubt has had an
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adverse effect on aggregate demand. Finally, consumption by oil importers has not improved in the
way that it was expected to, possibly due to the deleveraging process in which those economies are
involved.

Based on the current situation, the IMF has reduced its projections for global growth for 2016 and
2017 to rates of about 3.4% and 3.6%, respectively, which means a fall of 0.2% in the estimates. The
review emerges from a weaker growth of the emerging economies and the strong trend downwards of
oil prices. The stagnation of the growth levels of the American economy and the brake on world trade
growth because of the Chinese situation are factors that also contribute to reduce expectations.

It is expected that the growth of the advanced economies will practically remain constant, going up
only 0.2% in 2016 till it reaches 2.1%, according to IMF sources, and that it will remain constant in
2017.

In the United States growth continues to be robust, with rates above the average of the other developed
countries, due to the strong employment and housing markets, as well as good financial conditions.
However, the strength of the dollar is a risk to take into consideration, together with the fall in the oil
price, which is holding back investment in natural resources and could give rise to financial tensions at
odd times. The American economy is expected to grow 2.6% in 2016 and 2017, it being, among the
developed economies, the one with the highest sustained growth rates. The US will continue to be the
main driver of growth among the advanced economies, provided that the accommodating monetary
policies of the country are upheld.

The euro zone will continue the path of economic recovery, albeit more slowly than initially
anticipated. The boom of private consumption strengthened by the fall in the oil Price and the good
conditions of financial markets is being opposed by weak exports. The growth rates projected for 2016
and 2017 are 1.7%, in an environment where Europe will have to face major challenges in the next
few months. The challenges include the management of the migratory crisis of Syrian refugees and
their inclusion in the European employment market, and the political uncertainty generated by the re-
emergence of extremist and anti-system political forces in the peripheral countries.

Spain stands out among European countries as the country with higher prospects of growth in future.
According to the IMF projections, the Spanish economy will grow 2.7% in 2016 and 2.3% in 2017,
well above the average for Europe (1.7%) for both years. However, the political arena looks somewhat
uncertain in 2016 and this might affect the economy, since both foreign and Spanish investments could
be put on hold. Another important challenge will be the new government’s capacity to maintain a
stable fiscal balance that makes it possible to comply with the European Union’s deficit requirements,
and improved productivity.

As for Portugal, the country is expected to grow in 2016 at 1.5% rate, with the growth estimated for
2015 being less — according to the IMF it would stand at 1.6%. Even so, the country is expected to
continue on the path of recovery in the next few years.

The IMF has also reviewed downwards the growth projected for France in 2016, which is not expected
to exceed 1.3% in 2016. And Germany is expected to grow about 1.7% in 2016, according to IMF
sources.

Average period of payment to suppliers and Corporate Social Responsibility

To the effects of the provisions in article 262.1 of Royal Legislative Decree 1/2010, of 2 July, whereby
the rewritten text of the Capital Companies Act is approved, the information on the average period for
payment to suppliers is contained in note 36 to the financial statements. In addition, and in conformity
with recommendation 55 of the Code of Good Governance of Listed Companies, it is hereby indicated
that the aspects related to Corporate Social Responsibility are discussed in the Sustainability Report.
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Annual Corporate Governance Report

The Annual Corporate Governance Report is available in its entirety on the web site of the National
Securities Market Commission (www.cnmyv.es) and on the Company’s web page (www.acciona.es).

In addition, the Annual Corporate Governance Report will be notified to the National Securities
Market Commission as a Material Event.

CERTIFICATION: Ms. M. Teresa de la Cuesta Bernaldez, Sworn English Interpreter, certifies that the
foregoing is a truthful and complete translation into English of a document written in Spanish. Madrid, 16
March 2016.

CERTIFICACION: Diia. M. Teresa de la Cuesta Bernaldez, intérprete jurado de inglés, certifica que la
que antecede es traduccion fiel y completa al inglés de un documento redactado en espaiiol. En Madrid, a
16 de marzo, 2016.
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For the purposes of Royal Decree 1,362 dated October 19th, 2007 (art.8.1 b), the Directors of Acciona,
S.A. now subscribe the following declaration under their own responsibility:

As far as they are aware, the Consolidated Annual Accounts drawn up in accordance with the
applicable accounting principles offer a true and fair view of the equity, financial situation and results
of the issuer and the companies included in the scope of consolidation taken as a whole and the
directors’ report includes a faithful analysis of the business results and position of the issuer and the
companies included in the scope of consolidation taken as a whole, together with the description of the
main risks and uncertainties faced.

Formal Note added to state for the record that the Directors of ACCIONA, S.A. are aware of the
entire contents of the Annual Accounts and the Directors’ Report corresponding to the 2015 financial
year of Acciona, 8.A. and its subsidiaries (Consolidated Group) submitted to the Board of Directors
and duly prepared by the Board at meeting held on February 29th, 2016, printed on 204 sheets, all of
them signed by the Secretary and with the corporate Seal affixed and numbered as follows:

COVEr Page......civiciiiiisrecsse et ss s s s es Page 1
CONLENLS ... rciistisi st eese e v s sae e e s b s s besbeseressessnsarassastsas Pages 2 and 3
Consolidated Balance Sheet .........cccocceeeicrrviriiiciecenee e Page 4
Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement...........ccccoueeevevvvemiiescecaceesencnnne Page 5
Consolidated Statement of Recognized Income and Expenditure.......... Page 6

Total Statement of Changes in Consolidated Equity ...........ccooeeeeuveerrennes Pages 7 and 8
Consolidated Statement of Cash FIOWS ...........ccocoveiecericicee e Page 9

Notes to the Consolidated ACCOUNES...........c.cccureeereeiecreiee e cnes Page 10 to Page 171
Consolidated Directors’ REPOIt.......ccceevveeveveeeiiesieeeneeeeesesesessaesesseanes Page 172 to Page 204

Therefore, in witness of their agreement herewith, this note is signed by all of the members of the
Board of Directors:

Mr. José Manuel Entrecanales Domecq Mr. Juan Ignacio Entrecanales Franco
Chairman Vice-Chairman

[blank] [blank]

Mr. Javier Entrecanales Franco Mr. Juan Carlos Garay Ibargaray
Member Member

[blank] [blank]

Mr. Daniel Entrecanales Domecq Ms. Maria del Carmen Becerril Martinez
Member Member

[blank] [blank]

Mr. Jaime Castellanos Borrego Ms. Belén Villalonga Morenés
Member Member

{blank] [blank]
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Mr.Fernando Rodés Vila Ms. Ana Sainz de Vicufia Bemberg
Member Member
[blank] [blank]

Mr. Jeronimo Marcos Gerard Rivero
Member
[blank]

CERTIFICATION: Ms. M. Teresa de la Cuesta Bernaldez, Sworn English Interpreter, certifies that the
foregoing is a truthful and complete translation into English of a document written in Spanish. Madrid, 16
March 2016.

CERTIFICACION: Dfia. M. Teresa de 1a Cuesta Bernaldez, intérprete jurado de inglés, certifica que la
que antecede es traduccion fiel v completa al inglés de un documento redactado en espafiol. En Madrid, a
16 de marzo, 2016.




